LANCASTER

CITY COUNCIL

Promoting City, Coast & Countryside

Committee: LICENSING COMMITTEE

Date:

Venue:

Time:

THURSDAY, 26 AUGUST 2021
MORECAMBE TOWN HALL
1.00 P.M.

AGENDA

Apologies for Absence

Minutes

Minutes of meeting held on 1 July 2021 (previously circulated).
Items of Urgent Business authorised by the Chair

Declarations of Interest

To receive declarations by Councillors of interests in respect of items on this Agenda.

Councillors are reminded that, in accordance with the Localism Act 2011, they are
required to declare any disclosable pecuniary interests which have not already been
declared in the Council’s Register of Interests. (It is a criminal offence not to declare a
disclosable pecuniary interest either in the Register or at the meeting).

Whilst not a legal requirement, in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 9 and in the
interests of clarity and transparency, Councillors should declare any disclosable pecuniary
interests which they have already declared in the Register, at this point in the meeting.

In accordance with Part B Section 2 of the Code Of Conduct, Councillors are required to
declare the existence and nature of any other interests as defined in paragraphs 8(1) or
9(2) of the Code of Conduct.

Matters for Decision

Draft Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy - Consultation Responses
(Pages 3 - 256)

Report of the Licensing Manager
Extension to Pavement Licence Provisions (Pages 257 - 274)

Report of the Licensing Enforcement Officer.



ADMINISTRATIVE ARRANGEMENTS

) Membership
Councillors  Colin Hartley  (Chair),  Mel Guilding  (Vice-Chair),  Paul Anderton,
Mandy Bannon, Roger Dennison, Merv Evans, June Greenwell, Joan Jackson, Abi Mills
and Jean Parr

(i) Queries regarding this Agenda

Please contact Sarah Moorghen, Democratic Services - email
smoorghen@lancaster.gov.uk.

(iii) Changes to Membership, or apologies

Please contact Democratic Support, telephone 582170, or alternatively emalil
democracy@Iancaster.gov.uk.

KIERAN KEANE,
CHIEF EXECUTIVE,
TOWN HALL,
DALTON SQUARE,
LANCASTER, LA1 1PJ

Published on 18 August 2021.


mailto:democracy@lancaster.gov.uk

Page 3 Agenda ltem 5

LICENSING COMMITTEE
Draft Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy -
Consultation Responses
26 August 2021

Report of Licensing Manager

PURPOSE OF REPORT

To provide the Committee with an overview of consultation responses on the Draft Hackney
Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy.

The report is public

RECOMMENDATIONS

(2) That the Committee members consider the consultation responses and make
amendments to the draft Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy.

2) That the Licensing Manager bring a completed Policy, with final amendments
before members for approval at the next meeting of the Licensing
Committee.

1.0 Introduction

1.1 Members will recall that in July 2020, the Department for Transport (DfT) published its
“Statutory Taxi and Private Hire Vehicle Standards”. Attached for reference at
Appendix 1. These published standards are statutory standards to which local
authorities must have regard. Lancaster City Council already met several requirements
of the DfT standards, but other aspects of local licensing standards did require further
development.

1.2 The need to update and develop some of the Councils licensing standards was
identified in the 2020 licensing workplan. In light of the updates required and the
published DfT standards it was felt necessary to consolidate existing standards,
policies and procedures into one document, suitable for applicants, officers, members
and the wider public.

1.3 Attached at Appendix 2 is Lancaster's draft hackney carriage and private hire
licensing policy. This is the first time that the Council has attempted to provide a single
document containing all policies and procedures relevant to the hackney carriage and
private hire licensing process.



14

15

1.6

2.0

2.1

2.2

2.3

Page 4

The draft policy contains 7 chapters,

Background

Introduction

Administrative and Operational arrangements
Driver standards

Vehicle standards

Operator standards

Enforcement and compliance

Most of the chapters are broken down into sub sections. Throughout the draft policy
there is reference to a wide range of appendices (Appendices A- Q). The appendices
largely reflect individual specific sets of licensing standards for example, conviction
and conduct policy, different categories of licensing conditions, vehicle specifications,
lists of licensing offences etc, the policy has been drafted in such a way that if the
standards need to change for example due to a change in legislation this can be easily
accommodated by updating relevant appendices rather than reviewing the whole

policy

The content of the policy is a mixture of existing policies and procedures and new
requirements which are motivated by the need to ensure that the primary and
overriding objective of the Councils licensing policies is to protect the public.

Report

At a meeting of the Licensing Committee on Thursday 18" March 2021 members
approved a 12-week public consultation on the draft policy. The consultation period
ran from Monday 12" March 2021 with the last date for representations being Sunday
27" June 2021. Throughout the 12-week period reminders were sent to consultees
encouraging completion of the questionnaire in order for their views to be considered
on the draft proposals.

The consultation was undertaken with regard to Government guidance on how
consultations should be carried out. In 2000 the Government published its Code of
Practice on consultation, the latest version of this is version 3 published in 2008 by the
Department for Business, Enterprise and Regulatory Reform. More recently in 2018
the Cabinet office published the Government Consultation principles, the Council had
regard to both documents when undertaking the consultation on the draft policy.

The list provides a comprehensive list of consultees. All of the consultees were
contacted directly in writing advising them of the draft policy and inviting them to
comment on the same via an online questionnaire.

e Hackney carriage and private hire trade reps

e Licence holders (Driver, Vehicle and Operator)

e Agencies responsible for railway stations

e lancashire Police

e Other local Authorities including Lancashire and neighbouring Cumbrian Authorities
e Guide Dogs, Deaf Society and Dementia UK

e lancaster and Morecambe Pubwatch



24

2.5

3.0

3.1

3.2

3.2

3.3

3.4

Page 5

Business Improvement District Managers

Lancashire County Council school transport providers
Hospital and other key health providers

All Local Councillors

e Educational bodies including universities and colleges
e Relevant safeguarding leads (Internal and External)

e Public via website and social media platforms

Due to the ongoing Covid-19 pandemic no face-to-face consultation could be
facilitated, instead the public was encouraged to review the draft policy and respond
to the consultation via the Councils website and social media platforms, including
Facebook and twitter.

In addition, those with a specific interest in a section of the policy were signposted to
relevant sections and encouraged to respond to proposals. For example, Private Hire
Operators were contacted, highlighting the updated conditions proposed in the Policy
document and asked for their views.

Conclusion Responses

Attached at Appendix 3 is the approved consultation Questionnaire. In order to
evaluate responses received and direct respondents to the key issues, they were
directed to the questionnaire online. It asked for their comments and, to enable those
comments to be evaluated, asked for an explanation / reasoning for the views
expressed.

The consultation gquestionnaire asked questions and requested comments around
proposals set out in the policy with regards to the following standards.

Content of policy overall

Driver/ vehicle and operator standards

Public and driver safety

CCTV (Direct DfT requirement)

Emission standards

Distinguishing between the two types of Vehicles, including signage
Passenger advice and info

Any other comments

Through the consultation process a total of 12 responses were received, 9 via the
online questionnaire and 3 written representations.

Attached at Appendix 4 is a summary of the online questionnaire responses.

Written representations were received from the following individuals, also highlighted
are the key issues their response wished to address.

Name of Respondent Representation

Paul Cartmell (Senior Environmental | Air Quality/Emission standards of fleet
Health Officer)
Peter Cookson (Private Hire Standards for private hire operators
Operator)




Page 6

William Riley (Former Private Hire Various matters
Operator and driver)

Their representations in full are attached at Appendix 5.

3.5 A number of key decisions in respect of the policy proposals require discussion and a
decision taken by members of the Licensing Committee.

3.6 Attached at Appendix 6 is a table detailing decisions to be taken to allow the
Licensing Manager to make the necessary updates and complete the final policy
document. In reaching their decision members should consider the DfT standards,
relevant legislation and the responses received during the 12-week consultation
period.

4.0 Conclusion

4.1 In producing the Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing policy the aim is to
provide a focal reference point for, officers, members, those working in the hackney
carriage and private hire trades and members of the public.

4.2 A 12-week consultation has been undertaken and responses considered as set out in
the report. Consultees were encouraged and reminded to submit a response to
proposals set out in the draft policy. This provided an opportunity for the licensed trade
and/or interested parties to provide feedback and influence the content of the future
licensing policy.

4.2 Members are reminded that the content of the draft policy was motivated by the need
to ensure that the primary and overriding objective of the Councils licensing policies in
protecting the public, is promoted. When reaching decisions on matters to be included
in the licensing policy, public safety should be at the forefront of all decision-making
and of paramount importance.

4.3 It is the intention of the Licensing Manager to provide an update to the Licensing
Committee on progress regarding the implementation of standards outlined in the
Department for Transports (DfT) “Statutory Taxi and Private Hire Vehicle Standards”
alongside the final policy at the next Licensing Committee.

CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT
(including Health & Safety, Equality & Diversity, Human Rights, Community Safety,
Sustainability and Rural Proofing):

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

The Statutory Taxi and Private Hire Vehicle Standards are not legislation. However para 1.3
of the Standards states- The Department (for Transport) expects these recommendations to
be implemented unless there is compelling local reason not to

The document makes it clear that the standards have been developed as a result of past




Page 7

failings of licensing regimes and makes reference to both Jay and Casey reports and lists
several local authorities where taxi licensing policy and practice had failed to offer the
necessary protection to children.

The duty is a “have regard” duty. This means that the Council must take the standards into
account and must give clear reasons for departing from them

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

Proposals within the draft policy will result in additional direct costs to the licensed trade, the
main cost of which will be the capital cost associated with the purchase of ULEZ and zero
emission vehicles. However the running costs associated with these types of vehicles is
considerably less than vehicles which use diesel or petrol fuel.

There is also the potential for challenges by the trade to any change in policy that are brought
in and if so, this may incur legal costs to defend any such challenge.

Any additional costs associated with the administration and enforcement of the taxi licencing
regime can be recovered via taxi licensing fees.

OTHER RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS, such as Human Resources, Information Services,
Property, Open Spaces

BACKGROUND PAPERS Contact Officer: Jennifer Curtis

Reports to licensing Committee 27 August || Telephone: 01524 582732

2020, 8 October 2020,18 March 2021. Email: jcurtis@lancaster.co.uk
Ref: JC




Page 8

Department
for Transport

lire Vehicle

rivate |

Standards

July 2020




Page 9

Contents
Page
1o INPOAUCHON ..ottt e, 4
2. Consideration of the Statutory Taxi and Private Hire Vehicle Standards......c...co......... 6
Administering the Licensing Regime.........cooooeiiiiiiciiee e 8
LicensiNg PONCES .. ..ii et e e s e e st bt e ettt 8
DUration Of HEBMGES ....ccii ittt 9
WHISHEDIOWING . .1ttt et e re et e e e e een e eaneas 9
Consultation at the local Jevel ... 10
Changing licensing policy and requir@mMents ........c.coeee e e e 10
4. Gathering and Sharing INformation................ocovriiiiiii e 12
The Disclosure and Barming SEIVICE ...vviceeecei et 12
The Disclosure and Barring Service Update SErvice .......cooeevivieeceieeceieinrese e 13
Common Law Police DISCIOSUIE .......coceevieeceie et 13
Licensee Self-reporting ... .o e 13
Referrals to the Disclosure and Barring Service and the Police .....cccovcevvvveeeeenn., 14
Working With the POliCe ... e 15
Sharing licensing information with other licensing authorities. ..o veeeeeeeeen .. 15
Multi-agency Safeguarding Hub (MASH).........oooiiiiiii e 16
Complaints against ICBNSEES . vvii i, 17
OVEIrSEAS CONVICHIONS 1.ttt esn e ranen s 17
D, DeGiSION MaKiNG ..o e e 19
Administration of the licensing framework ... 19
Training decision MaKers. ... ... nan s 19
The regUlatory SITUCIUIE ..ot ee e 20
FILand Proper tST ...t 21
Criminal convictions and rehabilitation .............cc.oo v 21
8. DIIVEr LICENSING .. cccv ittt st s e e e ce e e s b et a s et e e eenens 23
Criminality checks for drivars...............oiiii e 23
Safeguarding BWAIENESS .. ....uiviee et e e eeeraa s et ee e et e e nrea e ee e 23
‘County lines’ explofation ..........ccoc v 24
Language ProfiCIBNCY .....uuuiiieieiirie i eee e er e e es i nr et s b e e e e e e e e e et e e e e eeaens 25




Page 10

7. Vehicle LICENSING ... ..ot e a e 26
Criminality checks for vehicle proprietors ............oo i, 26
In-vehicle visual and audio recording — CCTV ... e 27
Stretched LIMOUSINGS ..ottt 28

8. Private Hire Vehicle Operator LIGENSING ....oovvvvivviniiiniiciiiee e 29
Criminality checks for private hire vehicle operators.................co e, 29
Booking and dispatch staff..........cccoooiii 30
Record KEePING .....oiveiiiiiiire ettt oo s 31
Use of passenger carrying vehicles (PCV) licensed drivers...........cooove e, 31

9. Enforcing the Licensing ReJIME ......ccovvriiiiiei et 33
Joint authorisation of enforcement officers.........c.c.co i 33
Setting expectations and mMonitoring.. ..o 33
Suspension and revocation of driver licences..............ccoi e, 33

Annex — Assessment of Previous ConviCtionS ......cccoooooimeeene i, 35

Annex — Disclosure and Barring Service information .........cccccivviniccin 37

ANNEX — COTV GUIAANCE ... oeeeeei et eaca e e e e 38

Annex - Staying Safe: Guidance for Passengers ........cccceivviviiresiciicice i 40




1.

Page 11

Introduction

1.1 There is evidence fo support the view that taxis and private hire vehicles are a

high-risk environment. In terms of risks to passengers, this can be seen in abuse
and exploitation of children and vulnerable adults facilitated and in some cases
perpetrated by the trade and the number of sexual crimes repaorted which involve
taxi and private hire vehicle drivers. Links between the trade and child sexual
abuse and exploitation have been established in many areas and other
investigations continue. Data on reported sexual assaults by taxi and private hire
vehicle drivers evidence the risk to passengers; data from Greater Manchester
and Merseyside suggest that, if similar offence patterns are applied across
England, 623 sexual assaults per year are reported. These figures do not however
account for the under reporting of crime which is estimated to be as high as 83
percent in the Crime Survey for England and Wales.

1.2 The Policing and Crime Act 2017 enables the Secretary of State for Transport to

issue statutory guidance on exercising taxi and private hire vehicle licensing
functions to protect children and vulnerable individuals who are over 18 from harm
when using these services. For the purposes of this document, a child is defined
as anyone who has not yet reached their 18th birthday; and the term “vulnerable
individual” has the same meaning as the definition of a ‘vulnerable adult’ for the
purpose of section 42 of the Care Act 2014, which applies where a local authority
has reasonable cause to suspect that an aduit in its area (whether or not ordinarily
resident there}).

{(a) has needs for care and support (whether or not the authority is meeting
any of those needs),

(b} is experiencing, or is at risk of, abuse or neglect, and

(c) as a result of those needs is unable to protect himself or herself against
the abuse or neglect or the risk of it.

1.3 Whilst the focus of the Statutory Taxi and Private Hire Vehicle Standards is on

protecting children and vulnerable adults, all passengers will benefit from the
recommendations contained in it. There is consensus that common core minimum
standards are required to regulate better the taxi and private hire vehicle sector,
and the recommendations in this document are the result of detailed discussion
with the trade, regulators and safety campaign groups. The Department
therefore expects these recommendations to be implemented unless there
is a compelling local reason not to.

1.4 It should be noted that as policing and criminal justice is not a devolved matter,

the Statutory Taxi and Private Hire Vehicle Standards issued under the Policing
and Crime Act 2017 will continue to have effect in Wales although responsibility
for taxi and private hire vehicle policy was devolved to the Welsh Assembly in
April 2018, Should the Welsh Government introduce legislation to regulate on
these issues, the standards in this document would, cease to apply.




Page 12

1.5 All local authorities and district councils that provide children’s and other types of
services, including licensing authorities, have a statutory duty to make
arrangements to ensure that their functions and any services that they contract
out to others are discharged having regard to the need to safeguard and promote
the welfare of children. This means that licensing authorities should have in place
arrangements that reflect the importance of safeguarding and promoting the
welfare of children. This includes clear whistleblowing procedures, safe
recruitment practices and clear policies for dealing with allegations against people
who work with children, as set out in the Working Together to Safeguard Children

statutory guidance.

1.8 The Statutory Taxi and Private Hire Vehicle Standards reflect the significant
changes in the industry and lessons learned from experiences in local areas since
the 2010 version of the Department’s Best Practice Guidance. This includes
extensive advice on checking the suitability of individuals and operators to be
licensed; safeguarding children and vulnerable adults; the Immigration Act 2016
and Common Law Police Disclosure (which replaced the Notifiable Occupations

Scheme).

1.7 The standards in this document replace relevant sections of the Best Practice
Guidance issued by the Department in 2010, where there is a conflict between
the Statutory Taxi and Private Hire Vehicle Standards and the Best Practice
Guidance the Department issue on taxi and private hire vehicle licensing, the
standards in this document take precedence.




Page 13

Terminology

Taxis are referred to in legislation, regulation and common language as
‘hackney carriages’, ‘black cabs’ and ‘cabs’. The term ‘taxi’ is used throughout
this document and refers to all such vehicles. Taxis can be hired immediately
by hailing on the street or at a rank.

Private hire vehicles include a range of vehicles including minicabs, executive
cars, chauffeur services, limousines and some school and day centre transport
services. All private hire vehicle journeys must be pre-booked via a licensed
private hire vehicle operator and are subject to a ‘triple licensing lock’ i.e. the
operator fulfilling the booking must use vehicles and drivers licensed by the
same authority as that which granted its licence. The term ‘private h|re vehscle )
is used throughout this document to refer to all such vehicles. -

2. Consideration of the Statutory Taxi and Private Hire
Vehicle Standards

2.1 The past failings of licensing regimes must never be repeated. The Department
has carefully considered the measures contained in the Statutory Taxi and Private
Hire Vehicle Standards and recommend that these should be put in to practice
and administered appropriately to mitigate the risk posed to the public. The
purpose of setting standards is to protect children and vulnerable adults, and by
extension the wider public, when using taxis and private hire vehicles.

2.2 The Government set out in the Modern Crime Prevention Strategy the evidence
that where Government, law enforcement, businesses and the public work
together on prevention, this can deliver significant and sustained cuts in certain
crimes. That is good news for victims and comimunities and it makes clear
economic sense too. Educating the public on the risks of using unlicensed drivers
and vehicles, how to identify the licensed trade and appropriate measure to take
when using these services will protect help all passengers, more information is
annexed to this document (Annex - Staying safe: guidance for passengers).

2.3 The Strategy commitied to protect children and young people from the risk of child
sexual abuse and exploitation (CSAE), by working with local authorities to
introduce rigorous taxi and private hire vehicle licensing regimes. Both the Jay
and Casey reporis on CSAE highlighted examples of taxi/private hire vehicle
drivers being directly linked to children that were abused, including instances
when children were picked up from schools, children’s homes or from family
homes and abused, or sexually exploited.

2.4 The Casey Report made clear that weak and ineffective arrangements for taxi and
private hire vehicle licensing had left the children and public at risk. The
Department for Transport has worked with the Home Office, Local Government
Association (LGA), personal safety charities, trade unions and trade bodies,




Page 14

holding workshops, forums, and sharing evidence and good practice with local
autharities to assist in the setting of the standards.

2.5 This document is published by the Secretary of State for Transport under section
177(1) of the Policing and Crime Act 2017 following consultation in accordance

with section 177(5).

2.6 The document sets out a framework of policies that, under section 177{4),
licensing authorities “must have regard” to when exercising their functions.
These functions include developing, implementing and reviewing their taxi and
private hire vehicle licensing regimes. “Having regard” is more than having a
cursory glance at a document before arriving at a preconceived conclusion.

2.7 “Having regard” to these standards requires public authorities, in formulating a
policy, to give considerations the weight which is proportionate in the
circumstances. Given that the standards have been set directly to address
the safeguarding of the public and the potential impact of failings in this
area, the importance of thoroughly considering these standards cannot be
overstated. It is not a question of box ticking; the standards must be considered
rigorously and with an open mind.

2.8 Although it remains the case that licensing authorities must reach their own
decisions, both on overall policies and on individual licensing matters in light of
the relevant law, it may be that the Statutory Taxi and Private Hire Vehicle
Standards might be drawn upon in any legal challenge to an authority’s practice,
and that any failure to adhere to the standards without sufficient justification could
be defrimental to the authority’s defence. In the interest of transparency, all
licensing authorities should publish their consideration of the measures
contained in Statutory Taxi and Private Hire Vehicle Standards, and the
policies and delivery plans that stem from these. The Department has
undertaken to monitor the effectiveness of the standards in achieving the
protection of children and vulnerable adults (and by extension all passengers).

2.9 The Statutory Taxi and Private Hire Vehicle Standards does not purport to give a
definitive statement of the law and any decisions made by a licensing authority
remain a matter for that authority.



Page 15

3. Administering the Licensing Regime

Licensing polices

3.1 The Department recommends all licensing authorities make publicly available a
cohesive policy document that brings together ali their procedures on taxi and
private hire vehicle licensing. This should include but not be limited to policies on
convictions, a ‘fit and proper’ person test, licence conditions and vehicle

standards.

3.2 When formulating a taxi and private hire vehicle policy, the primary and overriding
objective must be to protect the public. The importance of ensuring that the
licensing regime protects the vulnerable cannot be overestimated. This was
highlighted in the report by Dame_ Louise Casey CB of February 2015 on

safeguarding failings.

“It will be evident from this report that in many cases the activities of
perpelrators take place in spheres which are regulated by the Council — taxis
have been the focus of particular concern. Persistent and rigorous enforcement
of the regulatory functions available to the council, including the placing of
conditions on private hire taxi operator licences where appropriate, would send
a strong signal that the trade is being monitored and would curtail the activities
of opportunistic perpetrators whereby taxi drivers have solicited children to
provide sex in return for cigarettes, alcohol or a fare free ride.”

33 The long-term devastation caused by CSAE was summarised in the same report:

“Victims suffer from suicidal feelings and often self-harm. Many become
pregnant. Some have to manage the emotional consequences of miscarriages
and abortions while others have children that they are unable to parent
appropriately. The abuse and violence continues lto affect victims into
adulthood. Many enter violent and abusive relationships. Many suffer poor

mental health and addiction.”

3.4 Rotherham Metropolitan Borough Council (‘Rotherham Council’) provides an
example of how the systematic review of policies and procedures and the
implementation of a plan to drive improvements in practice can result in a well-
functioning taxi and private hire vehicle sector that is rebuilding focal confidence
in the industry. The history of past failings here and elsewhere is well known, but
it is the transparency and resolution that Rotherham Council has demonstrated
and the high standards they now require that are rebuilding public confidence.

3.5 One of the key lessons learned is that it is vital to review policies and reflect
changes in the industry both locally and nationally. Licensing authorities should
review their licensing policies every five years, but should also consider
interim reviews should there be significant issues arising in their area, and

their performance annually.




Page 16

Duration of licences

3.6 A previous argument against issuing licences for more than a year was that a
criminal offence might be committed, and not notified, during this period; this can
of course also be the case during the duration of a shorter licence. This risk can
be mitigated for drivers by authorities to undertaking regular interim checks. To
help authorities monitor licensees’ suitability, licensing authorities should engage
with their police force to ensure that when the police believe a licensee presents
a risk to the travelling public they use their Common Law Police Disclosure powers
(see paragraphs 4.9 - 4.11) to advise them.

3.7 The Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 {as amended) sets
a standard length at three years for taxi and private hire vehicle drivers and five
years for private hire vehicle operators. Any shorter duration licence should only
be issued when the licensing authority thinks it is appropriate in the specific
circumstances of the case, if a licensee has requested one or where required (e.g.
when the licence holder’s leave to remain in the UK is time-limited) or when the
licence is only required to meet a short-term demand; they should not be issued

on a ‘probationary’ basis.
Whistleblowing

3.8 ltis in the application of licensing authority’s policies (and the training and raising
of awareness among those applying them) that protection will be provided. Where
there are concerns that policies are not being applied correctly, itis vital that these
can be raised, investigated and remedial action taken if required. Licensing
authorities should have effective internal procedures in place for staff to
raise concerns and for any concerns to be dealt with openly and fairly.

A report into the licensing of drivers by South Ribble Borough Council highlights
the implications of not applying the agreed policies. In early August 2015,
concerns were raised regarding decisions to renew the licences of drivers
where there were potential incidents of child sexual exploitation. An internal
review concluded that there had been failings in local investigatory procedures
which might have affected the ability of the General Licensing Committee to
make proper decisions, and information sharing with the police and data

recording was not satisfactory.




Page 17

3.9 The external investigation in South Ribble concluded “that there had been a lack
of awareness and priority given to safeguarding and the safety of taxi [and private
hire vehicle] passengers in the manner in which licensing issues were addressed”.
We are pleased to note that the report concludes, “The Council have been active
at every stage in responding to issues and concerns identified. It has taken steps
to address operational issues in the licensing function and has engaged fully with
other agencies in so doing. In the light of the above, it is not necessary to make
any further recommendations.”

3.10 it is hoped that all licensing authorities will have learnt from these mistakes
but to prevent a repeat, local authorities should ensure they have an effective
‘whistleblowing’ policy and that ali staff are aware of it. If a worker is aware
of, and has access to, effective internal procedures for raising concerns then
‘whistieblowing’ is unlikely to be needed.

311  The Public Interest Disclosure Act 1998 (PIDA), commonly referred to as
whistleblowing legislation, provides protection for those that have a reasonable
belief of serious wrongdoing, including failure to comply with professional
standards, council policies or codes of practice/conduct. The PIDA is part of
employment law. In the normal course of events, if a worker reveals information
that his employer does not want revealed it may be a disciplinary offence. If
someone leaked their employer’s confidential information to the press, they might
expect to be dismissed for that. The PIDA enables workers who ‘blow the whistle’
about wrongdoing to complain to an employment tribunal if they are dismissed or
suffer any other form of detriment for doing so. It is a qualified protection and
certain conditions would have to be met for the worker to be protected. More
information is available online for employees and employers:

Consultation at the local level

3.12  Licensing authorities should consult on proposed changes in licensing rules
that may have significant impacts on passengers andfor the trade. Such
consultation should include not only the taxi and private hire vehicle trades but
also groups likely to be the trades’ customers. Examples are groups representing
disabled people, Chambers of Commerce, organisations with a wider transport
interest {e.g. the Campaign for Better Transport and other transport providers),
women’'s groups, local traders, and the [ocal multi-agency safeguarding
arrangements. It may also be helpful to consult with night-time economy groups
(such as Pubwatch) if the trade is an important element of dispersal from the local
night-time economy’s activities.

3.13  Any decision taken to alter the licensing regime is likely to have an impact on
the operation of the taxi and private hire vehicle sector in neighbouring areas; and
licensing authorities should engage with these areas to identify any
concerns and issues that might arise from a proposed change. Many areas
convene regional officer consultation groups or, more formally, councillor liaison
meetings; this should be adopted by all authorities.

Changing licensing policy and requirements

10




Page 18

3.14  Any changes in licensing requirements should be followed by a review
of the licences already issued. If the need to change licensing requirements
has been identified, this same need is applicable to those already in possession
of a licence. That is not however to suggest that licences should be automatically
revoked overnight, for example if a vehicle specification is changed it is
proportionate to allow those that would not meet the criteria to have the
opportunity to adapt or change their vehicle. The same pragmatic approach
should be taken to driver licence changes - if requirementis are changed to include
a training course or qualification, a reasonable time should be allowed for this to
be undertaken or gained. The implementation schedule of any changes that affect
current licence holders must be transparent and communicated promptly and
clearly.

3.15 Where a more subjective change has been introduced, for example an
amended policy on previous convictions, a licensing authority must consider each
case on its own merits. Where there are exceptional, clear and compelling
reasons to deviate from a policy, licensing authorities should consider doing so.
Licensing authorities should record the reasons for any deviation from the policies

in place.

11



Page 19

4. Gathering and Sharing Information

4.1 Licensing authorities must consider as full a range of information available to them
when making a decision whether to grant a licence and to meet their ongoing
obligation to ensure a licensee remains suitable to hold a licence.

The Disclosure and Barring Service

4.2 The Disclosure and Barring Service (DBS) provides access to criminal record
information through its disclosure service for England and Wales. The DBS also
maintains the lists of individuals barred from working in regulated activity with
children or adults. The DBS makes independent barring decisions about people
who have harmed, or where they are considered to pose a risk of harm to a child
or vulnerable person within the workplace. The DBS enables organisations in the
public, private and voluntary sectors to make safer employment decisions by
identifying candidates who may be unsuitable for certain work, especially that
which involves vulnerable groups including children.

4.3 Enhanced certificates with a check of the barred lists include details of spent and
unspent convictions recorded on the Police National Computer (PNC), any
additional information which a chief officer of police believes to be relevant and
ought to be disclosed, as well as indicating whether the individual is barred from
working in regulated activity with children or adults. Spent convictions and
cautions are disclosed on standard and enhanced certificates according to rules
set out in legislation. Convictions which resulted in a custodial sentence, and
convictions ar cautions for a specified serious offence such as those involving
child sexual abuse will always be disclosed on a standard or enhanced certificate.
Full details of the disclosure rules, and those offences which will always be
disclosed, are available from the DBS. As well as convictions and cautions, an
enhanced certificate may inciude additional information which a chief police officer
reasonably believes is relevant and ought to be disclosed. Chief police officers
must have regard to the statutory guidance issued by the Home Office when
considering disclosure. A summary of the information provided at each level of
DBS checks is annexed to this document (Annex — Disclosure and Barring
Service information).

4.4 it should be noted that licensing authorities must not circumvent the DBS process
and seek to obtain details of previous criminal convictions and other information
that may not otherwise be disclosed on a DBS certificate. Whilst data protection
legislation (not just the Data Protection Act 2018 or General Data Protection
Regulation (GDPR)) gives individuals (or data subjects) a ‘right of access’ to the
personal data that an organisation holds about them, it is a criminal offence to
require an individual to exercise their subject access rights so as to gain
information about any convictions and cautions. This could potentially lead to the
authority receiving information to which it is not entitled. The appropriate way of
accessing an individual’s criminal records is through an enhanced DBS and
barred lists check.

12




Page 20

The Disclosure and Barring Service Update Service

4.5 Subscription to the DBS Update Service allows those with standard and enhanced
certificates to keep these up to date online and, with the individual's consent,
allows nominees to check the status of a certificate online at any time.
Subscription to the service removes the need for new certificates to be requested,
reduces the administrative burden and mitigates potential delays in relicensing.

4.6 The DBS will search regularly to see if any relevant new information has been
received since the certificate was issued. The frequency varies depending on the
type of information; for criminal conviction and barring information, the DBS will
search for updates on a weekly basis. For non-conviction information, the DBS
will search for updates every nine months.

4.7 Licensing authorities are able to request large numbers of status checks on a daily
basis. The DBS has developed a Multiple Status Check Facility (MSCF) that can
be accessed via a web service. The MSCF enables organisations to make an
almost unlimited number of Status Checks simultaneously. Further information on
the MSCF is available from the DBS.

4.8 Should the MSCF advise that new information is available the DBS certificate
should no longer be relied upon and a new DBS certificate requested.

Common Law Police Disclosure

4.9 The DBS is not the only source of information that should be considered as part
of a fit and proper assessment for the licensing of taxi and private hire vehicle
drivers. Common Law Police Disclosure ensures that where there is a public
protection risk, the police will pass information to the employer or regulatory body
to allow them to act swiftly to mitigate any danger.

410 Common Law Police Disclosure replaced the Notifiable Occupations Scheme
(NOS) in March 2015 and focuses on providing timely and relevant information
which might indicate a public protection risk. Information is passed on at arrest or
charge, rather than on conviction which may be some time after, allowing any
measures to mitigate risk to be put in place immediately.

4,11  This procedure provides robust safeguarding arrangements while ensuring
only relevant information is passed on to employers or regulatory bodies.
Licensing authorities should maintain close links with the police to ensure
effective and efficient information sharing procedures and protocols are in
place and are being used.

Licensee self-reporting

412 Licence holders should be required to notify the issuing authority within 48
hours of an arrest and release, charge or conviction of any sexual offence, any
offence involving dishonesty or violence and any motoring offence. An arrest for
any of the offences within this scope should result in a review by the issuing
authority as to whether the licence holder is fit to continue to do so. This must hot

13



Page 21

however be seen as a direction that a licence should be withdrawn; it is for the
licensing authority to consider what, if any, action in terms of the licence should
be taken based on the balance of probabilities. Should an authority place an
obligation on licensees to notify under these circumstances, autharities should
also ensure appropriate procedures are in place to enable them to act in a suitable
timeframe if and when needed.

4.13  Importantly, a failure by a licence holder to disclose an arrest that the issuing
authority is subsequently advised of might be seen as behaviour that questions
honesty and therefore the suitability of the licence holder regardless of the
outcome of the initial aliegation.

Referrals to the Disclosure and Barring Service and the Police

4.14  In some circumstances it may be appropriate under the Safeguarding
Vulnerable Groups Act 2008 for licensing authorities to make referrals to the DBS.
A decision to refuse or revoke a licence as the individual is thought to
present a risk of harm to a chiid or vulnerable adult, should be referred to
the DBS. The power for the licensing authority to make a referral in this context
arises from the undertaking of a safeguarding role. Further guidance has been
provided by the DBS.

4.15  The Department recommends that licensing authorities should make a
referral to the DBS when it is thought that:

» anindividual has harmed or poses a risk of harm to a child or vulnerable aduit;
» an individual has satisfied the ‘harm test: or
» received a caution or conviction for a relevant offence and:

« the person they are referring is, has or might in future be working in regulated
activity;

if the above conditions are satisfied, the DBS may consider it appropriate for the
person to be added to a barred list.

4.16  These referrals may result in the person being added to a barred list and

enable other licensing authorities to consider this should further applications to
other authorities be made. Further information on referrals to DBS is available.

14




Page 22

Working with the Police

4.17  The palice are an invaluable source of intelligence when assessing whether
a licensing applicant is a ‘fit and proper’ person. It is vital that licensing authorities
have a partnership with the police service to ensure that appropriate information
is shared as quickly as possible. As part of building an effective working
relationship between the licensing authority and the police, action taken by the
licensing authority as a result of information received should be fed-back
to the police. Increasing the awareness among police forces of the value
licensing authorities place on the information received, particularly on non-
conviction intelligence, will assist furthering these relationships and reinforce the
benefits of greater sharing of information.

4.18  This relationship can be mutually beneficial, assisting the police to prevent
crime. The police can gain valuable intelligence from drivers and operators, for
example, the identification of establishments that are selling alcohol to minors or
drunks, or the frequent transportation of substance abusers to premises.

4.19  To aid further the quality of the information available to all parties that have a
safeguarding duty, a revocation or refusal on public safety grounds should also
be advised to the police.

Sharing licensing information with other licensing authorities

420 As has been stated elsewhere in this document, obtaining the fullest
information minimises the doubt as to whether an applicant or licensee is it and
proper’. An obvious source of relevant information is any previous licensing
history. Applicants and licensees should be required to disclose if they hold
or have previously held a licence with another authority. An applicant
should also be required to disclose if they have had an application for a
licence refused, or a licence revoked or suspended by any other licensing
authority. Licensing authorities should explicitly advise on their application forms
that making a false statement or omitting to provide the information requested
may be a criminal offence.

4.21  The LGA’s Councillors’ Handbook on taxi and private hire vehicle licensing
advises that those responsible for licensing should “communicate regularly with
licensing committees and officers in neighbouring councils to ensure critical
information is shared and that there is a consistency and robustness in decision-
making. By working together, local government can make sure that this vital
service is safe, respected, and delivering for local communities.”. While this
approach may aid consistency and robustness in decision-making within regions,
it has obvious inherent limitations as it is unlikely such protocols could be
established between all licensing authorities. The LGA commissioned the
National Anti-Fraud Network to develop a national register of taxi and private hire
vehicle driver licence refusals and revocations (the register is known as ‘NR3').
Tools such as NR3 should be used by licensing authorities to share
information on a more consistent basis to mitigate the risk of non-
disclosure of relevant information by applicants.

15



Page 23

4.22  For these processes to be beneficial, all licensing authorities must keep a
complete and accurate record as to the reasons for refusal, suspension or
revocation of a licence in order that this might be shared if requested and
appropriate to do so.

4.23  Data protection legislation provides exemption from the rights of data subjects
for the processing of personal data in connectionh with regulatory activities. This
includes taxi and private hire vehicle licensing. The exemption applies only to
information processed for the core regulatory activities of appropriate
organisations; it may not be used in a blanket manner. The exemption applies
only to the extent that the application of the rights of data subjects to the
information in question would be likely to prejudice the proper discharge of the
regulatory functions. The Information Commissioner's Office has published
guidance to assist organisations to fully understand their obligations and suggest
good practice,

4.24  If notification under paragraph 4.20 or 4.21 of a refused or revoked licence is
disclosed, the relevant licensing authority should be contacted to establish when
the licence was refused, suspended or revoked and the reasons why. In those
circumstances, the relevant licensing authority must consider whether it should
disclose any information in relation to the previous decision, consistent with its
obligations under data protection legislation. If information is disclosed, it can then
be taken into account in determining the applicant’s fithess to be licensed. The
relevance of the reason for refusing/revoking a licence must be considered. For
example, if any individual was refused a licence for failing a local knowledge test,
it does not have any safeguarding implications. Conversely, a revocation or
refusal connected to indecency would. Licensing authorities should not simply
replicate a previous decision, authorities must consider each application on its
own merits and with regard o its own polices.

4.25  Should a licensing authority receive information that a licence holder did not
disclose the information referred to in paragraph 4.20, for example by checking
the NR3 register, the authority should consider whether the non-disclosure
represents dishonesty and should review whether the licence holder remains it

and proper'.
Multi-agency Safeguarding Hub (MASH)

4,26  Multi-Agency Safeguarding Hubs are a way to improve the safeguarding
response for children and vulnerable adults through better information sharing
and high quality and timely safeguarding responses. MASHs (or similar models)
should operate on three common principles: information sharing, joint decision
making and coordinated intervention.

4,27  The Home Office report on Multi Agency Working and Information_Sharing
recommended that effective multi-agency working still needs to become more
widespread. The Children’s Commissioner's 2013 Inquiry into Child Sexual
Exploitation in Gangs and Groups found that both police and local authorities still
identified the inability to share information as a key barrier to safeguarding
children from sexual abuse and exploitation.

16




Page 24

428 Al licensing authorities should operate or establish a means to facilitate the
objectives of a MASH (i.e. the sharing of necessary and relevant information
between stakeholders). As has been emphasised throughout this document, one
of the most effective ways to minimise the risk to children and vulnerable adults
when using taxis and private hire vehicles is to ensure that decisions on licensing
individuals are made with the fullest knowledge possible.

Complaints against licensees

4.29  Complaints about drivers and operators provide a source of intelligence when
considering the renewal of a licence or to identify problems during the period of
the licence. Patterns of behaviour such as complaints against drivers, even when
they do not result in further action in response to an individual compliant, may be
indicative of characteristics that raise doubts over the suitability to hold a licence.
All licensing authorities should have a robust system for recording
complaints, including analysing trends across all licensees as weli as
complaints against individual licensees. Such a system will help authorities to
build a fuller picture of the potential risks an individual may pose and may tip the
‘balance of probabilities’ assessment that licensing authorities must take.

430 Licensees with a high number of complaints made against them should be
contacted by the licensing authority and concerns raised with the driver and
operator (if appropriate). Further action in terms of the licence holder must be
determined by the licensing authority, which could include no further action, the
offer of training, a formal review of the licence, or formal enforcement action.

431 To ensure that passengers know who to complain to, licensing authorities
should produce guidance for passengers on making complaints directly to the
licensing authority that should be available on their website. Ways to make
complaint to the authority should be displayed in all licensed vehicles. Thisis likely
to result in additional work for the licensing authority but has the advantage of
ensuring consistency in the handling of complaints. Currently, it is more likely that
a complaint against a taxi driver would be made directly to the licensing authority
whereas a complaint against a private hire vehicle driver is more likely to be made
to the operator. An effective partnership in which operators can share concerns
regarding drivers is also encouraged.

4.32  Importantly, this approach will assist in the direcling of complaints and
information regarding the behaviour of drivers who may be carrying a passenger
outside of the area in which the driver is licensed to the authority that issued the
licence. In order for this to be effective licensing authorities must ensure that
drivers are aware of a requirement to display information on how to complain and
take appropriate sanctions against those that do not comply with this requirement.

4.33  Interms of investigating complaints CCTV footage of an incident can provide
an invaluable insight, providing an ‘independent witness’ to an event. This can

assist in the decision whether to suspend or revoke a licence. The potential
benefits of mandating CCTV in vehicles is discussed in paragraphs 7.7 - 7.12.

QOverseas convictions

17



Page 25

4.34  The DBS cannot access criminal records held overseas, only foreign
convictions that are held on the Police National Computer may, subject to the
disclosure ruies, be disclosed. Therefore, a DBS check may not provide a
complete picture of an individual’s criminal record where there have been periods
living or working overseas; the same applies when an applicant has previously
spent an extended period (three or more continuous months) outside the UK. It
should however be noted that some countries will not provide an ‘Certificate of
Good Character’ unless the individual has been resident for six months or more

4.35  Licensing authorities should seek or require applicants to provide where
possible criminal records information or a ‘Certificate of Good Character’ from
overseas in this circumstance to properly assess risk and support the decision-
making process (. Itis the character of the applicant as an adult that is of particular
interest, therefore an extended period outside the UK before the age of 18 may
be less relevant. As with all licensing decisions, each case must be considered
on its own merits. For information on applying for overseas criminal record
information or ‘Certificates of Good Character' please see the Home Office

guidance.

4.36  Where an individual is aware that they have committed an offence overseas
which may be equivalent to those listed in the annex to this document (Annex —
Assessment of previous convictions), licensing authorities should advise the
applicant to seek independent expert or legal advice to ensure that they provide
information that is truthful and accurate.

18




Page 26

5. Decision Making

Administration of the licensing framework

5.1 A policy is only effective if it is administered properly. The taxi and private hire
vehicle licensing functions of local councils are non-executive functions i.e. they
are functions of the council rather than the executive (such as the Cabinet). The
functions include the determination of licence applications, reviews and renewals,
along with the attachment of conditions when considered appropriate. The
function may be delegated to a committee, a sub-committee or an officer — which
should be set out within a clear scheme of delegation. In London the taxi and
private hire vehicle licensing function is undertaken by Transport for London.

5.2 Licensing authorities should ensure that all individuals that determine whether a
licence is issued or refused are adequately resourced to allow them to discharge

the function effectively and correctly.
Training decision makers

5.3 All individuals that determine whether a licence is issued should be
required to undertake sufficient training. As a minimum, training for a member
of a licensing committee should include: licensing procedures, natural justice,
understanding the risks of CSAE, disability and equality awareness and the
making of difficult and potentially controversial decisions. Training should not
simply relate to procedures, but should include the use of case study material to
provide context and real scenarios. All training should be formally recorded by the
licensing authority and require a signature from the person that has received the
training. Training is available from a number of organisations including the
Institute of Licensing and Lawyers in Local Government; the LGA may also be
able to assist in the development of training packages.

5.4 Public safety is the paramount consideration but the discharge of licensing
functions must be undertaken in accordance with the following general principles:

« policies should be used as internal guidance, and should be supported
by a member/officer code of conduct.

 any implications of the Human Rights Act should be considered.
« the rules of natural justice should be observed.
« decisions must be reasonable and proportionate.

o where a hearing is required it should be fairly conducted and allow for
appropriate consideration of all relevant factors.

¢ decision makers must avoid bias (or even the appearance of bias) and
predetermination.

« data protection legislation.

19



Page 27

5.5 When a decision maker has a prejudicial interest in a case, whether it be financial
or a personat relationship with those involved they should declare their interest at
the earliest opportunity; this must be prior to any discussions or votes and, once
declared, they must leave the room for the duration of the discussion or vote.

The regulatory structure

5.6 It is recommended that councils operate with a Regulatory Committee or Board
that is convened at periodic intervals to determine licensing matters, with
individual cases being considered by a panel of elected and suitably trained
councillors drawn from a larger Regulatory Commitiee or Board. This model is
similar to that frequently adopted in relation to other licensing matters. To facilitate
the effective discharge of the functions, less contentious matters can be delegated
to appropriately authorised council officers via a transparent scheme of
delegation,

5.7 itis considered that this approach also ensures the appropriate level of separation
between decision makers and those that investigate complaints against licensees,
and is the most effective method in allowing the discharge of the functions in
accordance with the general principles referred to in 5.4. In particular, the
Committee/Board model allows for:

s FEach case to be considered on its own merits. It is rare for the same
councillors to be involved in frequent hearings — therefore the councillors
involved in the decision making process will have less knowledge of previous
decisions and therefore are less likely to be influenced by them. Oversight
and scruliny can be provided in relation to the licensing service generally,
which can provide independent and impartial oversight of the way that the
functions are being discharged within the authority.

e Clear separation between investigator and the decision maker — this
demonstrates independence, and ensures that senior officers can attempt to
resolve disputes in relation to service actions without the perception that this
involvement will affect their judgement in relation to decisions made at a later
date.

5.8 Avoidance of bias or even the appearance of bias is vital to ensuring good
decisions are made and instiling and/or maintaining confidence in the ficensing
regime by passengers and licensees.

5.9 Unlike officers, elected members are not usually involved in the day to day
operation of the service and as such do not have relationships with licence holders
that may give the impression that the discharge of a function is affected by the
relationship between the decision maker and the licence holder.

510 Some licensing authorities may decide to operate a system whereby all
matters are delegated to a panel of officers; however, this approach is not
recommended and caution should be exercised. Decisions must be, and be seen
to be, made objectively, avoiding any bias. In addition, it may be more difficult to
demonstrate compliance with the principles referred to above due to the close

20




Page 28

connection between the officers on the panel, and those involved in the
operational discharge of the licensing functions.

5.11  Whether the structure proposed is introduced or an alternative model is more
appropriate in local circumstances, the objective should remain the same - to
separate the investigation of licensing concerns and the management of the
licence process. Regardless of which approach is adopted, all licensing
authorities should consider arrangements for dealing with serious matters
that may require the immediate revocation of a licence. It is recommended
that this role is delegated to a senior officer/manager with responsibility for the
licensing service.

Fit and proper test

5.12  Licensing authorities have a duty to ensure that any person to whom they
grant a taxi or private hire vehicle driver’s licence is a it and proper’ person to be
a licensee. It may be helpful when considering whether an applicant or licensee
is fit and proper to pose oneself the following question:

Without any prejudice, and based on the information before you, would
you allow a person for whom you care, regardless of their condition, to
travel alone in a vehicle driven by this person at any time of day or night?

5.13 If, on the balance of probabilities, the answer to the question is ‘no’, the
individual should not hold a licence.

5.14  Licensing authorities have to make difficult decisions but (subject to the points
made in paragraph 5.4) the safeguarding of the public is paramount. All decisions
on the suitability of an applicant or licensee should be made on the balance of
probability. This means that an applicant or licensee should not be ‘given the
benefit of doubt’. If the committee or delegated officer is only “50/50" as to whether
the applicant or licensee is ‘fit and proper’, they should not hold a licence. The
threshold used here is lower than for a criminal conviction (that being beyond
reasonable doubt) and can take into consideration conduct that has not resulted
in a criminal conviction.

Criminal convictions and rehabilitation

5.15 In considering an individual’s criminal record, licensing authorities must
consider each case on its merits, but they should take a particularly cautious view
of any offences against individuals with special needs, children and other
vulnerable groups, particularly those involving violence, those of a sexual nature
and those linked to organised crime. In order to achieve consistency, and to
mitigate the risk of successful legal challenge, licensing authorities should have a
clear policy for the consideration of criminal records. This should include, for
example, which offences would prevent an applicant from being licenced
regardless of the period elapsed in all but truly exceptional circumstances. In the
case of lesser offences, a policy should consider the number of years the authority
will require to have elapsed since the commission of particular kinds of offences

before they will grant a licence.

21



Page 29

516  Annexed to this document are the Department’s recommendations on the
assessment of previous convictions {(Annex — Assessment of previous
convictions). This draws on the work of the Institute of Licensing, in partnership
with the LGA, the National Association of Licensing Enforcement Officers
(NALEO) and Lawyers in Local Government, in publishing its guidance on
determining the suitability of taxi and private hire vehicle licensees.

5.17  These periods should be taken as a starting point in considering whether a
licence should be granted or renewed in all cases. The Department's view is that
this places passenger safety as the priority while enabling past offenders to
sufficiently evidence that they have been successfully rehabilitated so that they
might obtain a licence. Authorities are however reminded that applicants are
entitled to a fair and impartial consideration of their application.

22




Page 30

6. Driver Licensing

Criminality checks for drivers

6.1 Licensing authorities are entitled to request an enhanced criminal record
certificate with check of the barred lists from the DBS for all driver licence holders
or applicants. The DfT’s 2019 survey of taxi and private hire vehicle licensing
authorities shows that all licensing authorities in England and Wales have a
requirement that an enhanced DBS check is undertaken at first application or
renewal.

6.2 All individuals applying for or renewing a taxi or private hire vehicle drivers licence
licensing authorities should carry out a check of the children and adult Barred
Lists in addition to being subject to an enhanced DBS check (in section x61 of the
DBS application ‘Other Workforce’ should be entéred in line 1 and “Taxi Licensing'
should be entered at line 2). All licensed drivers should also be required to
evidence continuous registration with the DBS update service to enable the
licensing authority to routinely check for new information every six months. Drivers
that do not subscribe up to the Update Service should still be subject to a check
every six months.

6.3 Driving a taxi or private hire vehicle is not, in itself, a regulated activity for the
purposes of the barred list. This means that an individual subject to barring would
not be legally prevented from being a taxi or private hire vehicle driver but the
licensing authority should take an individual's barred status into account alongside
other information available. In the interests of public safety, licensing
authorities should not, as part of their policies, issue a licence to any
individual that appears on either barred list. Should a licensing authority
consider there to be exceptional circumstances which means that, based on the
balance of probabilities they consider an individual named on a barred list to be
fit and proper’, the reasons for reaching this conclusion should be recorded.

6.4 Drivers working under an arrangement to transport children may be working in
‘regulated activity’ as defined by the Safequarding Vulnerable Groups Act 2006.
It is an offence to knowingly aliow a barred individual to work in regulated activity.
The guidance on home-to-school travel and transport issued by the Department
for Education should be considered alongside this document. Please see
guidance on driver DBS eligibility and how to apply.

Safeguarding awareness

6.5 Licensing authorities should consider the role that those in the taxi and private
hire vehicle industry can play in spotting and reporting the abuse, exploitation or
neglect of children and vulnerable adults. As with any group of people, it is
overwhelmingly the case that those within the industry can be an asset in the
detection and prevention of abuse or neglect of children and vulnerable adults.
However, this is only the case if they are aware of and alert to the signs of potential
abuse and know where to turn to if they suspect that a child or vulnerable adultis
at risk of harm or is in immediate danger.

23



Page 31

6.6 All licensing authorities should provide safeguarding advice and guidance to the
trade and should require taxi and private hire vehicle drivers to undertake
safeguarding training. This is often produced in conjunction with the police and
other agencies. These programmes have been developed to help drivers and
operators;

e provide a safe and suitable service to vulnerable passengers of ali ages:
e recognise what makes a person vulnerable; and

¢ understand how to respond, including how to report safeguarding concerns
and where to get advice.

6.7 Since 2015, the Department for Education (DfE) has run a nationwide campaign
— ‘Together, we can tfackle child abuse’ which aims to increase public
understanding of how to recognise the signs to spot and encourage them to report
child abuse and neglect. The DfE continues to promote and raise awareness of
the campaign materials through its online toolkit, for local authorities, charities and
organisations for use on their social media channels.

‘County lines’ exploitation

6.8 County lines is a term used to describe gangs and organised criminal networks
involved in exporting illegal drugs (primarily crack cocaine and heroin) into one or
more importing areas [within the UK], using dedicated mabile phone lines or other
form of “deal line”.

6.9 Exploitation is an integral part of the county lines offending model with children
and vulnerable adults exploited to transport (and store) drugs and money between
locations. Children aged between 15-17 make up the majority of the vulnerable
people involved in county lines, but they may also be much younger. We know
that both girls and boys are groomed and exploited and offenders will often use
coercion, intimidation, violence (including sexual violence) and weapons to
ensure compliance of victims. Children exploited by county lines gangs may have
vulnerabilities besides their age, such as broader mental health issues, disrupted
or chaotic homes, substance misuse issues, being excluded from school or
frequently going missing.

6.10  The National Crime Agency’'s 2018 county lines threat assessment set out
that the national road network is key to the transportation of county lines victims,
drugs and cash; with hire vehicles being one of the methods used for
transportation between locations.

6.11  Safeguarding awareness training should include the ways in which drivers
can help to identify county lines exploitation. Firstly, they should be aware of the

following warning signs:

» Children and young people travelling in taxis or private hire vehicles alone;

24




Page 32

 travelling at unusual hours {during school time, early in the morning or late
at night);

e travelling long distances,
¢ unfamiliar with the local area or do not have a local accent;
s paying for journeys in cash or prepaid.

8.12  The Home Office is working with partners to raise awareness of county lines
and has provided material to help taxi and private vehicle hire staff to identify
victims and report concerns to protect those exploited through this criminal
activity.

6.13  Drivers (or any person) should be aware of what to do if they believe a child
or vulnerable person is at risk of harm. If the risk is immediate they should contact
the police otherwise they should:

« use the local safeguarding process, the first step of which is usually to contact
the safeguarding lead within the focal authority;

o call Crime Stoppers on 0800 555 111.
Language proficiency

6.14  Alack of language proficiency could impact on a driver’s ability to understand
written documents, such as policies and guidance, relating o the protection of
children and vulnerable adults and applying this to identify and act on signs of
exploitation. Oral proficiency will be of relevance in the identification of potential
exploitation through communicating with passengers and their interaction with
others.

6.15  Alicensing authority’s test of a driver’s proficiency should cover both oral and
written English language skills to achieve the objectives stated above.

25



Page 33

7. Vehicle Licensing

7.1 As with driver licensing, the objective of vehicle licensing is to protect the public,
who trust that the vehicles dispatched are above all else safe. It is important
therefore that licensing authorities are assured that those granted a vehicle
licence also pose no threat to the public and have no links to serious criminal
activity. Although vehicle proprietors may not have direct contact with passengers,
they are still entrusted to ensure that the vehicles and drivers used to carry
passengers are appropriately iicensed and so maintain the safety benefits of the
licensing regime.

Criminality checks for vehicle proprietors

7.2 Enhanced DBS and barred list checks are not available for vehicle licensing.
Licensing authorities should require a basic disclosure from the DBS and
that a check is undertaken annually. Any individual may apply for a basic check
and the certificate will disclose any unspent convictions recorded on the Police
National Computer (PNC). Licensing authorities should consider whether an
applicant or licence holder with a conviction for offences provided in the annex to
this document (Annex — Assessment of previous convictions), other than those
relating to driving, meet the ‘fit and proper’ threshold.

7.3 However, it is important that authorities acknowledge that in many cases
individuals that license a vehicle may already be licensed as a driver. An authority
which undertakes the biannual DBS checks recommended for its drivers should
not require those seeking to licence a vehicle to provide a basic DBS check as
part of the application process; a basic DBS would not provide any information in
addition to that disclosed under the enhanced DBS and barred lists check used
for the driver assessment. In these circumstances, the authority should instead
rely on the fact that the applicant is considered as fit and proper to hold a driver
licence when considering their suitability to hold a vehicle licence. Should the
individual cease to hold a driver licence a basic certificate should be required
immediately.

7.4 A refusal to license an individual as a driver or to suspend or revoke a driver
licence does not automatically mean that that individual cannot be issued or
continue to hold a vehicle or private hire vehicle operator licence; these decisions
must be independent of a driver licence refusal and based on the appropriate
information i.e. it should not consider information that would only be available via
an enhanced DBS check but instead that which would be disclosed on a basic
check. DBS certificate information can only be used for the specific purpose for
which it was requested and for which the applicant's full consent has been given.

7.5 Private hire vehicle operator and vehicle licences may be applied for by a
company or partnership; licensing authorities should apply the ‘fit and proper' test
to each of the directors or partners in that company or partnership. For this to be
effective private hire vehicle operators and those to whom a vehicle licence should
be required to advise the licensing authority of any change in directors or partners.

26




Page 34

7.6 As explained earlier in the context of driver licensing, the DBS cannot access
criminal records held overseas so other checks must be consider where and
applicant has lived or worked overseas (see paragraph 4.34 - 4.36).

In-vehicle visual and audio recording — CCTV

7.7 Government has acknowledged the potential risk to public safety when
passengers travel in taxis and private hire vehicles. It is unfortunately the case
that no matter how complete the information available to licensing authorities is
when assessing whether to issue any taxi or private hire vehicle licence, nor how
robust the policies in place are and the rigor with which they are applied, it will
never completely remove the possibility of harm to passengers by drivers.

7.8 The Department’s view is that CCTV can provide additional deterrence to prevent
this and investigative value when it does. The use of CCTV can provide a safer
environment for the benefit of taxi/private hire vehicle passengers and drivers by:

deterring and preventing the occurrence of crime;

reducing the fear of crime;

assisting the police in investigating incidents of crime;

*

assisting insurance companies in investigating motor vehicle accidents.

7.9 All licensing authorities should consult to identify if there are local circumstances
which indicate that the installation of CCTV in vehicles would have either a
positive or an adverse net effect on the safety of taxi and private hire vehicle
users, including children or vulnerable adults, and taking into account potential
privacy issues.

7.10  While only a small minotity of licensing authorities have so far mandated all
vehicles to be fitted with CCTV systems, the experience of those authorities that
have has been positive for both passengers and drivers. In addition, the evidential
benefits of CCTV may increase the level of reporting of sexual offences.
According to the Crime Survey for England and Wales only 17 percent of victims
report their experiences to the police, 28 percent of rape or sexual assault victims
indicated that a fear they would not be belisved as a factor in them not reporting
the crime. The evidential benefits CCTV could provide are therefore an important
factor when considering CCTV in vehicles. ‘

711  The mandating of CCTV in vehicles may deter people from seeking a taxi or
private hire vehicle licence with the intent of causing harm. Those that gain a
licence and consider perpetrating an opportunistic attack against a vulnerable
unaccompanied passenger may be deterred from doing so. it is however
unfortunately the case that offences may still occur even with CCTV operating.

7.12  CCTV systems that are able to record audio as well as visual data may also
help the early identification of drivers that exhibit inappropriate behaviour toward
passengers. Audio recording should be both overt (i.e. all parties should be aware
when recordings are being made) and targeted (i.e. only when passengers (or

27



Page 35

drivers) consider it necessary). The recording of audio should be used to provide
an objective record of events such as disputes or inappropriate behaviour and
must not be continuously active by default and should recognise the need for
privacy of passengers’ private conversations between themselves. Activation of
the audio recording capability of a system might be instigated when either the
passenger or driver operates a switch or button.

7.13  Imposition of a blanket requirement to attach CCTV as a condition to a licence
is likely to give rise to concerns about the proportionality of such an approach and
will therefore require an appropriately strong justification and must be kept under
regular review. More information and guidance on assessing the impacts of CCTV
and on an authority mandating CCTV is annexed to this document (Annex— CCTV
guidance).

Stretched Limo'usines

714 Licensing authorities are sometimes asked to license small (those
constructed or adapted to carry fewer than nine passengers) limousines as private
hire vehicles, these vehicles may be used for transport to ‘school proms’ as well
as for adult bookings. It is suggested that licensing authorities should approach
such requests on the basis that these vehicles — where they have fewer than nine
passenger seats - have a legitimate role to play in the private hire trade, meeting
a public demand. It is the Department's view that it is not a legitimate course of
action for licensing authorities to adopt policies that exciude limousines as a
matter of principle thereby excluding these services from the scope of the private
hire vehicle regime and the safety benefits this provides. A blanket policy of
excluding limousines may create an unacceptable risk to the travelling public, as
it may lead to higher levels of unsupervised operation. Public safety
considerations are best supported by policies that allow respectable, safe
operators to obtain licences on the same basis as other private hire vehicle
operators.

7.15  Stretched large limousines which clearly seat more than eight passengers
should not be licensed as private hire vehicles because they are outside the
licensing regime for private hire vehicles. However, in some circumstances a
vehicle with space for more than eight passengers can be licensed as a private
hire vehicle where the precise number of passenger seats is hard to determine.
In these circumstances, the authority should consider the case on its merits in
deciding whether to license the vehicle under the strict condition that the vehicle
will not be used to carry more than eight passengers, bearing in mind that refusal
may encourage iltegal private hire operation.

28




Page 36

8. Private Hire Vehicle Operator Licensing

8.1 As with driver licensing, the objective in licensing private hire vehicle operators is
to protect the public, who may be using operators’ premises and trusting that the
drivers and vehicles dispatched are above all else safe. It is important therefore
that licensing authorities are assured that those that are granted a private hire
vehicle operator also pose no threat to the public and have no links to serious
criminal activity. Although private hire vehicle operators may not have direct
contact with passengers, they are still entrusted to ensure that the vehicles and
drivers used to carry passengers are appropriately licensed and so maintain the
safety benefits of the driver licensing regime.

Criminality checks for private hire vehicle operators

8.2 Enhanced DBS and barred list checks are not available for private hire vehicle
operator licensing. Licensing authorities should request a basic disclosure
from the DBS and that a check is undertaken annually. Any individual may
apply for a basic check and the certificate will disclose any unspent convictions
recorded on the Police National Computer (PNC). Licensing authorities should
consider whether an applicant or licence holder with a conviction for offences
provided in the annex to this document (Annex — Assessment of previous
convictions), other than those relating to driving, meet the ‘fit and proper’
threshold.

8.3 However, it is important that authorities acknowledge that in many cases
individuals that license as a private hire vehicle operator may already be licensed
as a driver. An authority which undertakes the biannual DBS checks
recommended for its drivers should not require those seeking a private hire
vehicle operator licence to provide a basic DBS check as part of the application
process; a basic DBS would not provide any information in addition to that
disclosed under the enhanced DBS and barred lists check used for the driver
assessment. In these circumstances, the authority should instead rely on the fact
that the applicant is considered as fit and proper to hold a driver licence when
considering their suitability to hold a vehicle licence. Should the individual cease
to hold a driver licence a basic certificate should be required immediately

8.4 Refusal to license in individual as a driver or to suspend or revoke a driver licence
does not automatically mean that that individual cannot be issued or continue to
hold a private hire vehicle operator licence; this decision must be independent of
a driver licence refusal and based on the appropriate information i.e. it should not
consider information that would only be available via an enhanced DBS check but
instead that which would be disclosed on a basic check. DBS certificate
information can only be used for the specific purpose for which it was requested
and for which the applicant's full consent has been given.

8.5 A private hire vehicle operator licence may be applied for by a company or
partnership; licensing authorities should apply the ‘fit and proper” test to each of
the directors or partners in that company or partnership. For this to be effective

29



Page 37

private hire vehicle operators should be required to advise the licensing authority
of any change in directors or partners.

8.6 As explained earlier in the context of driver licensing, the DBS cannot access
criminal records held overseas. Further information on assessing the suitability of
those that have spent extended periods in overseas is provided in paragraphs
4.34-4.386.

Booking and dispatch staff

8.7 Private hire vehicle drivers are not the only direct contact that private hire vehicle
users have with private hire vehicle operators’ staff, for example a person taking
bookings (be it by phone or in person). A vehicle dispatcher decides which driver
to send to a user, a position that could be exploited by those seeking to exploit
children and vulnerable aduits. It is therefore appropriate that all staff that have
contact with private hire vehicle users and the dispatching of vehicles should not
present an undue risk to the public or the safeguarding of children and vulnerable
adults.

8.8 Licensing authotities should be satisfied that private hire vehicle operators can
demonstrate that all staff that have contact with the public and/or oversee the
dispatching of vehicles do not pose a risk to the public. Licensing authorities
should, as a condition of granting an operator licence, require a register of
all staff that will take bookings or dispatch vehicles is kept.

8.9 Operators should be required to evidence that they have had sight of a Basic DBS
check on all individuals listed on their register of hooking and dispatch staff and
to ensure that Basic DBS checks are conducted on any individuals added to the
register and that this is compatible with their policy on employing ex-offenders.
DBS certificates provided by the individual should be recently issued when
viewed, alternatively the operator could use a ‘responsible organisation’ to
request the check on their behalf. When individuals start taking bookings and
dispatching vehicles for an operator they should be required, as part of their
employment contract, {o advise the operator of any convictions while they are
employed in this role.

8.10  The register should be a ‘living document’ that maintains records of all those
in these roles for the same duration as booking records are required to be kept,
this will enable cross-referencing between the two records. A record that the
operator has had sight of a basic DBS check certificate (although the certificate
itself should not be retained) shouid be retained for the duration that the individual
remains on the register. Should an employee cease to be on the register and later
re-entered, a new basic DBS certificate should be requested and sight of this
recorded.

8.11  Operators may outsource booking and dispatch functions but they cannot
pass on the obligation to protect children and vulnerable adults. Operators should
be required to evidence that comparable protections are applied by the company
to which they outsource these functions.

30




Page 38

8.12 Licensing authorities should also require operators or applicants for a licence
to provide their policy on employing ex-offenders in roles that would be on the
register as above. As with the threshold to obtaining a private hire vehicle
operators’ licence, those with a conviction for offences provided in the annex to
this document (Annex — Assessment of previous convictions), other than those
relating to driving, may hot be suitable to decide who is sent to carry a child or

vulherable adult unaccompanied in a car.

Record keeping

8.13  Section 56 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976
requires private hire vehicle operators to keep records of the particulars of every
booking invited or accepted, whether it is from the passenger or at the request of
another operator. Licensing authorities should as a minimum require private
hire vehicle operators to record the following information for each booking:

e the name of the passenger;

o the time of the request;

e the pick-up point;

» the destination;

¢ the name of the driver;

¢ the driver's licence number;

« the vehicle registration number of the vehicle;

« the name of any individual that responded to the booking request;

the name of any individual that dispatched the vehicle.

8.14  This information will enable the passenger to be traced if this becomes
necessary and should improve driver security and fagilitate enforcement. It is
suggested that booking records should be retained for a minimum of six months.

8.15  Private hite vehicle operators have a duty under data protection legislation to
protect the information they record. The Information Commissioner's Office
provides comprehensive on-line guidance on registering as a data controlier and
how to meet their obligations.

Use of passenger carrying vehicles (PCV) licensed drivers

8.16 PGV licensed drivers are subject to different checks from taxi and private hire
vehicle licensed drivers as the work normally undertaken, i.e. driving a bus, does
not present the same risk to passengers. Members of the public are entitled to
expect when making a booking with a private hire vehicle operator that they will
receive a private hire vehicle licensed vehicle and driver. The use of a driver
who holds a PCV licence and the use of a public service vehicle (PSV) such

31



Page 39

as a minibus to undertake a private hire vehicle booking should not be
permitted as a condition of the private hire vehicle operator's licence
without the informed consent of the booker.

8.17  Where a private hire vehicle is unsuitable, for example where a larger vehicle
is needed because more than eight passenger seats required or to accommodate
luggage, the booker should be informed that a PSV is necessary, and that a PCV
licenced driver will be used who is subject to different checks and not required to
have an enhanced DBS check.

32




Page 40

9. Enforcing the Licensing Regime

9.1 Implementing an effective framewark for licensing authorities to ensure that as full
a range of information made available to suitably trained decision makers that are
supported by well-resourced officials is essential to a well-functioning taxi and
private hire vehicle sector. These steps will help prevent the licensing of those
that are not deemed ‘fit and proper' but does not ensure that those already
licensed continue to display the behaviours and standards expected.

Joint authorisation of enforcement officers

9.2 Licensing authorities should, where the need arises, jointly authorises officers
from other authorities so that compliance and enforcement action can be taken
against licensees from outside their area. An agreement between licensing
authorities to jointly authorise officers enables the use of enforcement powers
regardless of which authority within the agreement the officer is employed by and
which issued the licence. This will mitigate the opportunities for drivers to evade
regulation. Such an agreement will enable those authorities to take action against
vehicles and drivers that are licensed by the other authority when they cross over
boundaries. A model for agreeing joint authorisation is contained in the LGA
Councillors’ handbook.

Setting expectations and monitoring

9.3 Licensing authorities should ensure that drivers are aware of the policies that they
must adhere and are properly informed of what is expected of them and the
repercussions for failing to do so. Some licensing authorities operate a points-
based system, which allows minor breaches to be recorded and considered in
context while referring those with persistent or serious breaches to the licensing
committee. This has the benefit of consistency in enforcement and makes better
use of the licensing committee’s time.

9.4 The provision of a clear, simple and well-publicised process for the public to make
complaints about drivers and operators will enable authorities to target
compliance and enforcement activity (see paragraphs 4.29 - 4.33). This will
provide a further source of intelligence when considering the renewal of licences
and of any additional training that may be required. It is then for the licensing
authority to consider if any intelligence indicates a need to suspend or revoke a
licence in the interests of public safety.

Suspension and revocation of driver licences

9.5 Section 61 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976
provides a licensing authority with the ability to suspend or revoke a driver's
licence on the following grounds: -

(a) that he has since the grant of the licence—

33



Page 41

(i) been convicted of an offence involving dishonesty, indecency or
violence; or

(ii) been convicted of an offence under or has failed to comply with
the provisions of the Act of 1847 or of this Part of this Act;

(aa) that he has since the grant of the licence been convicted of an
immigration offence or required to pay an immigration penalty; or

(b) any other reasonable cause

9.6 Licensing authorities have the option to suspend or revoke a licence should
information be received that causes concern over whether a driver is a fit and
proper person. Where the licence holder has been served an immigration penalty
or convicted of an immigration offence the licence should be revoked immediately.
Guidance for licensing authaorities to prevent illegal working in the taxi and private
hire vehicle sector has been issued by the Home Office. As with the initial decision
to license a driver, this determination must be reached based on the balance of
probabilities, not on the burden of beyond reasonable doubt.

9.7 Before any decision is made, the licensing authority must give full consideration
to the available evidence and the driver should be given the opportunity to state
his or her case. If a period of suspension is imposed, it cannot be extended or
changed to revocation at a later date.

9.8 A decision to revoke a licence does not however prevent the reissuing of alicence
should further information be received that alters the balance of probability of a
decision previously made. The decision to suspend or revoke was based on the
evidence available at the time the determination was made. New evidence may,
of course, become available later.

9.9 New evidence may be produced at an appeal hearing that may result in the court
reaching a different decision to that reached by the council or an appeal may be
settled by agreement between the licensing authority and the driver on terms
which, in the light of new evidence, becomes the appropriate course. If, for
example, the allegations against a driver were now, on the balance of probability,
considered to be unfounded, a suspension could be lifted or, if the licence was
revoked, an expedited re-licensing process used.

9.10 A suspension may still be appropriate if it is believed that a minor issue can
be addressed though additional training. In this instance the licence would be
returned to the driver once the training has been completed without further
consideration. This approach is clearly not appropriate where the licensing
authority believes that, based on the information available at that time, on the
balance of probability it is considered that the driver presents a tisk to public
safety.

34




Page 42

Annex — Assessment of Previous Convictions

Legislation specifically identifies offences involving dishonesty, indecency or violence as a
concern when assessing whether an individual is fit and proper’ to hold a taxi or private
hire vehicle licence. The following recommendations to licensing authorities on previous

convictions reflect this.

Authorities must consider each case on its own merits, and applicants/licensees are
entitled to a fair and impartial consideration of their application. Where a period is
given below, it should be taken to be a minimum in considering whether a licence should
be granted or renewed in most cases. The Department's view is that this places passenger
safety as the priority while enabling past offenders to sufficiently evidence that they have
been successfully rehabilitated so that they might obtain or retain a licence.

Crimes resulting in death
Where an applicant or licensee has been convicted of a crime which resulted in the death
of another person or was intended to cause the death or serious injury of another person

they will not be licensed.

Exploitation
Where an applicant or licensee has been convicted of a crime involving, related to, or
has any connection with abuse, exploitation, use or treatment of another individual
irrespective of whether the victim or victims were adults or children, they will not be
licensed. This includes slavery, child sexual abuse, exploitation, grooming,
psychological, emotional or financial abuse, but this is not an exhaustive list.

Offences involving violence against the person
Where an applicant has a conviction for an offence of violence against the person, or
connected with any offence of violence, a licence will not be granted until at least 10
years have elapsed since the completion of any sentence imposed.

Possession of a weapon
Where an applicant has a conviction for possession of a weapon or any other weapon
related offence, a licence will not be granted until at least seven years have elapsed

since the completion of any sentence imposed.

Sexual offences
Where an applicant has a conviction for any offence involving or connected with illegal

sexual activity, a licence will not be granted.
In addition to the above, the licensing authority will not grant a licence to any applicant
who is currently on the Sex Offenders Register or ont any barred list.

Dishonesty
Where an applicant has a conviction for any offence where dishonesty is an element of

the offence, a licence will not be granted until at least seven years have elapsed since
the completion of any sentence imposed.

35



Page 43

Drugs

Where an applicant has any conviction for, or related to, the supply of drugs, or
possession with intent to supply or connected with possession with intent to supply, a
licence will not be granted until at least 10 years have elapsed since the completion of
any sentence imposed.

Where an applicant has a conviction for possession of drugs, or related to the possession
of drugs, a licence will not be granted until at least five years have elapsed since the
completion of any sentence imposed. In these circumstances, any applicant may also
have to undergo drugs testing for a period at their own expense to demonstrate that they
are not using controlled drugs.

Discrimination
Where an applicant has a conviction involving or connected with discrimination in any
form, a licence will not be granted untii at least seven years have elapsed since the

completion of any sentence imposed.

Motoring convictions
Hackney carriage and private hire drivers are professional drivers charged with the
responsibility of carrying the public. It is accepted that offences can be committed
unintentionally, and a single occurrence of a minor traffic offence would not prohibit the
granting of a licence. However, applicants with multiple motoring convictions may
indicate that an applicant does not exhibit the behaviours of a safe road user and one

that is sujtable to drive professionally.

Any motoring conviction while a licensed driver demonstrates that the licensee may not
take their professional responsibilities seriously. However, it is accepted that offences
can be commitied unintentionally, and a single occurrence of a minor traffic offence may
not necessitate the revocation of a taxi or private hire vehicle driver licence providing the
authority considers that the licensee remains a fit and praoper person to retain a licence.

Drink driving/driving under the influence of drugs
Where an applicant has a conviction for drink driving or driving under the influence of
drugs, a licence will not be granted until at least seven years have elapsed since the
completion of any sentence or driving ban imposed. In the case of driving under the
influence of drugs, any applicant may also have to undergo drugs testing at their own
expense to demonstrate that they are not using controlled drugs.

Using a hand-held device whilst driving
Where an applicant has a conviction for using a held-hand mobile telephone or a hand-
held device whilst driving, a licence will not be granted until at least five years have
elapsed since the conviction or completion of any sentence or driving ban imposed,
whichever is the later.

36




Page 44

Annex — Disclosure and Barring Service information

Table 1: Information included in criminal record checks

Information included Type of check
Basic Standard Enhanced Enhanced DBS
check DBS check | DBS check (including
barred list)
check
Unspent convictions Yes Yes Yes Yes
Unspent cautions Yes Yes Yes Yes
Spent convictions? No Yes Yes Yes
Spent cautions 142 No Yes Yes Yes
Additional police No No Yes Yes
Information *
Barred list(s) No No No Yes
Information *

1. Does not include fixed penalty notices, penalty notices for disorder or any other
police or other out-of-court disposals.

2. Spent convictions and cautions that have become protected under the
Rehabilitation of Offenders Act 1974 (Exceptions Order) 1975, as amended, are
not automatically disclosed on any level of certificate. Further guidance is
available the DBS filtering quide.

3. This is any additional information held by the police which a chief police officer
reasonably believes to be relevant and considers ought to be disclosed.

4. This is information as to whether the individual concerned is included in the
children’s or adults’ barred lists maintained by the Disclosure and Barring Service

(DBS).

37




Page 45

Annex — CCTV Guidance

It is important to note that, in most circumstances, a licensing authority which mandates the
installation of CCTV systems in taxis and private hire vehicles will be responsible for the
data — the data controller. It is important that data controllers fully consider concerns
regarding privacy and licensing authorities should consider how systems are configured,
should they mandate CCTV (with or without audio recording). For example, vehicles may
not be exclusively used for business, also serving as a car for personal use - it should
therefore be possible to manually switch the system off (both audio and visual recording)
when not being used for hire. Authorities should consider the Information Commissioner’s
view on this matter that, in most cases, a requirement for continuous operation is unlikely
to be fair and lawful processing of personal data.

The Home Office ‘Surveillance Camera Code of Practice’ advises that government is fully

supportive of the use of overt surveillance cameras in a public place whenever that use is:
« in pursuit of a legitimate aim;

necessary to meet a pressing need,

proportionate;

effective, and;

compliant with any relevant legal obligations

* & o o

The Code also sets out 12 guiding principles which, as a ‘relevant authority’ under section
33(5) of the Protection of Freedoms Act 2012, licensing authorities must have regard to. l
must be noted that, where a licence is granted subject to CCTV system conditions, the
licensing authority assumes the role and responsibility of ‘Systém Operator. The role
requires consideration of all guiding principles in this code. The failure to comply with these
principles may be detrimental to the use of CCTV evidence in court as this may be raised
within disclosure to the Crown Prosecution Service and may be taken into account.

The Surveillance Camera Commissioner (SCC) has provided guidance on the Surveillance
Camera Code of Practice in its ‘Passport o Compliance’ which provides guidance on the
necessary stages when planning, implementing and operating a surveillance camera
system to ensure it compiies with the code. The Information Commissioner’s Office (ICO)
has also published a code of practice which, in this context, focuses on the data governance
requirement associated with the use of CCTV such as data retention and disposal, which it
is important to follow in order to comply with the data protection principles. The SCC
provides a self-assessment tool to assist operators to ensure compliance with the principles
set of in the Surveillance Camera Code of Practice. The SCC also operate a certification
scheme; authorities that obtain this accreditation are able to clearly demonstrate that their
systems conform to the SCC’s best practice and are fully compliant with the Code and
increase public confidence that any risks to their privacy have been fully considered and

mitigated.

The Data Protection Act 2018 regulates the use of personal data. Part 2 of the Data
Protection Act applies to the general processing of personal data, and references and
supplements the General Data Protection Regulation. Licensing authorities, as data
controllers, must comply with all relevant aspects of data protection law. Particular attention
should be paid to the rights of individuals which include the right to be informed, of access

38




Page 46

and to erasure. The ICO has provided detailed guidance on how data controllers can ensure
compliance with these.

It is a further requirement of data protection law that before implementing a proposal that is
likely to result in a high risk to the rights and freedoms of people, an impact assessment on
the protection of persenal data shall be carried out. The ICO recommends in guidance that
if there is any doubt as to whether a Data Protection Impact Assessment (DPIA) is required
one should be conducted to ensure compliance and encourage best practice. A DPIA wili
also help to assess properly the anticipated benefits of installing CCTV (to passengers and
drivers) and the associated privacy risks; these risks might be mitigated by having
appropriate privacy information and signage, secure storage and access controls, retention
policies, training for staff how to use the system, efc.

It is essential to ensure that all recordings madé are secure and can only be accessed by
those with legitimate grounds to do so. This would normally be the police if investigating an
alleged crime or the licensing authority if investigating a complaint or data access request.
Encryption of the recording to which the licensing authority, acting as the data controller,
holds the key, mitigates this issue and protects against theft of the vehicle or device. Itis
one of the guiding principles of data protection legislation, that personal data (including in
this context, CCTV recordings and other potentially sensitive passenger information) is
handled securely in a way that ‘ensures appropriate security’, including protection against
unauthorised or unlawful processing and against accidental loss, destruction or damage,
using appropriate technical or organisational measures.

All passengers must be made fully aware if CCTV is operating in a vehicle. Given that audio
recording is considered to be more privacy intrusive, it is even more important that
individuals are fully aware and limited only to occasions when passengers (or drivers)
consider it necessary. The recording of audio should be used to provide an objective record
of events such as disputes or inappropriate behaviour and must not be continuously active
by default and should recognise the need for privacy of passengers’ private conversations
between themselvaes. Activation of the audio recording capability of a system might be
instigated when either the passenger or driver operates a switch or button. As well as clear
signage in vehicles, information on booking systems should be introduced. This might be
text on a website, scripts or automated messages on telephone systems; the Information
Commissioner's Office (ICO) has issued guidance on privacy information and the right to
be informed on its website.

39



Page 47

Annex - Staying Safe: Guidance for Passengers

Licensing authorities should provide guidance to assist passengers in identifying licensed
vehicles and the increased risks of using unlicensed vehicles. The guidance might include

advice on:

how to tell if a taxi or private hire vehicle is licensed.

Educate the public in the differences between taxis and private hire vehidles e.g.:

* o

a taxi can be flagged down or pre-hooked.
a private hire vehicle that has not been pre-booked should not be used as it will not

be insured and may not be licensed.

what a private hire vehicle should look iike e.g. colour, signage, licence plates etc.
the benefit of pre-booking a return vehicle before going out.

arrange to be picked up from a safe meeting point.

requesting at the time of booking what the fare is likely to be.

When using a private hire vehicle, passengers should always:

book with a licensed operator.

confirm their booking with the driver when s/he arrives.
note the licence number.

sit in the back, behind the driver.

let a third party know details of their journey.

When using a taxi, passengers should where possible:

use a taxi rank and choose one staffed by taxi marshals if available.

40




Page 48

Private Hire and Hackney Carriage Licensing Policy

Public Consultation Version

. Foreword

(To be added at later date once policy finalised)

1. Background

1.1 Aspirations of Policy

“This policy details the procedures and standards applied by the Council in carrying out its hackney
carriage and private hire licensing functions. The policy provides the Councils interpretation of the
legal standards facilitated by legislation, statutory standards, good practice and the practical
procedures that are in place to implement the licensing requirements. The policy will be published
by the Council and all applicants and licence holders will be made aware of the policy when making
an application. The Policy will be made freely available on the Councils website.

Licence holders are expected to be familiar with the policy, the standards expected of them as a
licence holder and the potential consequences of failure to comply with the Policy and or relevant
legislation.

2. Introduction

2.1 Status of the Policy

In carrying out its licensing functions, the Council will have regard to this policy, the legislation and
relevant guidance. Each licence application and review of licence will be considered an its own
merit, and whilst regard will be had to the policy, the Councils discretion will not be fettered and
where appropriate it may depart from the Policy providing reasons for doing so.

2.2 How will the Policy be utilised and by who?

The Policy will be used by officers, and Councillors to provide a framework against which decisions
are made in respect to licensing matters, It will be used to determine whether applications are
valid, and if so assist in determining whether those applications should be granted or refused and
whether existing licences should be reviewed. It will also be used in conjunction with other relevant
policies to determine whether any and if so what form of enforcement/ compliance action should
be taken against licence holders and none licence holders

The Policy provides detailed guidance to licence applicants and holders as to the standards
expected hy the Council and the likely consequences of failing to meet and or comply with those
standards whether as an applicant or as an existing licence holder.

The Policy provides the public with an overview of the standards they should expect from the
licensed hackney carriage and private hire trade and provides information and guidance as to how
any complaints/ concerns should be dealt with.




Page 49

2.3 Aims

This policy seeks to ensure that the following aims are at the forefront of considerations in
development and implementation of licensing procedures and standards. There is no overall
priority in terms of the list below, however the primary and overriding objective is to protect the

public,

A. Public safety in its widest context

B. A professional hackney carriage /private hire service

C. Driver and staff safety

D. The requirement for vehicles that are safe, comfortable, accessible and will reduce air pollution
levels

E. A hackney carriage /private hire service that meets the needs of the local community

F. The embracement of technology to support all the above

2.4 How will the aims of the policy be implemented?

The aims of this policy have been identified in the paragraph above. This section provides
information as to how the Council expects to deliver on the aims of the Policy

A. Public Safety in its widest context

Criminality checks undertaken and reviewed at appropriate times

Motoring offences checks undertaken and reviewed at appropriate times

Medical checks and notifications

Commitment to multi agency working, partnerships and effective data sharing protocols
Efficient complaints mechanisms in place to ensure appropriate effective action is taken
promptly

Effective enforcement including action by private hire operators where licence holders fail to
meet standards

Public awareness campaigns / information to ensure public are aware of the standards to
expect and what to do if these are not achieved

Effective and appropriate licensed standards/ conditions in place and effective and if
appropriate CCTV to enhance and protect passengers and driver

Consideration of a vehicle livery if needed for means of identification of types of licensed
vehicles

B. Professional Hackney Carriage / Private Hire Service

Licence holders will have been appropriately trained

Licence holders will have been equipped with the necessary knowledge / skills

Licensing conditions and a code of conduct will be in place to ensure licence holders are aware
of the behavioural standards expected

A dress code will be in place to support a professional appearance amongst licence holders
Safeguarding embedded within the roles of licence holders

A commitment to work in partnership with the Council, police and ather key agencies




Page 50

e Effective complaints procedures documented and implemented within the Council and licensed
trade
e Effective licence conditions attached to the grant of licences

¢ Documented records to support public safety

C. Driver and Staff Safety

e |If considered appropriate following consultation, the effective and appropriate CCTV‘tQ
enhance and protect passengers and driver '

e Driver code of conduct to detail standards expected of a licensed driver

e Public Information Charter to detail standards expected of passengers including reasonable
grounds for refusal to carry

e (Crime prevention measures, where to sit in a vehicle, cash handling, security screens, self-
defence tactics

e Consideration of a Taxi safe scheme (similar to night net — no go addresses/ commitment if no
monies/ use of credit/ debit cards / reasons for refusal

e Formal Training in place before a drivers’ licence is granted

e Operators responsibilities

D. The Regquirement for Vehicles that are Safe, Comfortable, Accessible and will reduce Air
Pollution Levels

e Specifications/ standards of licensed vehicles

¢ Vehicle testing

e Enforcement including suspension and revocation of vehicle licences
¢ Vehicle availability

¢ Incentives for cleaner vehicles {pollutants)

¢ Type of vehicles including accessibility

¢ Rank locations and facilities

e Hackney carriage numbers

E. A Hackney Carriage / Private Hire Service that meets the nheeds of the local community

e Availability of drivers/vehicles

¢ Suitability of drivers/vehicles

¢ Drivers having the necessary skills to undertake role to required standard
e Dress code

¢ Code of conduct to detail standards to be expected of drivers / passengers
¢ Supports the Councils Climate Emergency resolution




Page 51

F. The Embracement of Technology to support all the above

e Cleaner vehicles

s If appropriate following consultation CCTV to support passenger and driver safety
e Use of technology to enhance safety in the booking systems

e Further development of online licensing processes

3. Administrative and Operational Arrangements

3.1 Council Constitution, Decision Making and Scheme of Delegation

The Local Government Act 2000 provides a framework for decision making in Councils, the Act
outlines which functions/ responsibilities can be carried out by which groups/ individuals within the
Council. The Act requires the Council to have its own Constitution. The Councils Constitution is
devised by the Council and is its own rule book-s in respect of:

e How the Councils responsibilities have been allocated,

e The procedural framework for undertaking the functions and decision making within the
Council |

¢ The codes and protocols that elected members {councillors) and officers i.e. employees of the
Council are expected to follow.

The scheme of delegation is contained within the Constitution and details what roles and
responsibilities have been given to who. For example, specific responsibilities are delegated to the
Council, the Executive of the Council, various Committees and Senior Officers i.e. employees of the
Council,

In terms of hackney carriage and private hire licencing the majority of functions can be delegated to
a committee, a sub- committee or an officer, the individual delegations are all listed in the
Constitution. Details of the specific delegations are not listed in this policy as the constitution is an
ever-evolving live document subject to regular updates and changes due to frequent changes in
legislation.

A copy of the Council current constitution is available on the Councils website.

3.2 Authorisation of officers

Where the Councils constitution delegates a role to an officer, the officer can then authorise other
officers to carry out that role/ function on his or her behalf. Authorisations are only given to
persons who have the appropriate competences to undertake the roles they have been authorised
to do.

Licensing officers are individually authorised by the Director of Communities and the Environment
to carry out responsibilities under named legislation. These authorisations are usually in written
format and are available from officers upon request. In certain circumstances usually emergency
situations officers may be given a verbal authorisation from the relevant senior officer.

The Department for Transports Statutory Guidance advocates that the Council should consider
authorising officers from other authorities and vice versa so that compliance and enforcement




Page 52

action can be taken against licensees from outside individual licensing authority areas. This has not
been actioned at this stage, the City Council does not appear to have a significant problem with
influx of vehicles/ drivers from neighbouring authority areas but will be considered as part of the
ongoing local authority reorganisation considerations.

3.3 Training/ Competency of Officers/ Members

Officers

Officers will only be authorised to conduct licensing duties when the officer delegated to carry out
those duties is satisfied that the licensing officer has received relevant training and is competent to
carry out the role.

All licensing officers will keep an individual documented record of their training which will be
countersigned by the relevant line manager.

Training will be undertaken by a variety of methods including in house training by experienced
competent officers, distance self-learning, formal training seminars and professional qualifications
where appropriate.

Any Officer who has responsibility for determining licence applications will attend the Licensing
Committee training and will keep a documented record of training carried out.

Members

The Councils Head of Democratic Services is responsible for ensuring that Councillors involved in
decision making in relation to licensing matters have received the relevant training. This includes all
members of the Licensing Committee and the Cabinet member with responsibility for Sustainable
Neighbourhoods. A record of all training relevant to licensing will he maintained.

Licensing Committee members will have received training in the following areas before being
allowed to take part in decision making

s Licensing procedures
e Rules of natural justice
e Safeguarding

e Disability awareness

e Decision making

¢ Data protection

3.4 Guidelines on Relevance of Convictions and Other Conduct

The Council has specific guidelines in place on the relevance of convictions, and other conduct. A
copy of the guidelines can be found at Appendix A. The guidelines will be reviewed as part of any
overall review of this policy but may also be reviewed independent of the overall policy if deemed
necessary. The Guidelines apply to applicants for, and existing licence holders of private hire
operators, vehicle proprietors and drivers licences and have been updated as part of this policy.




Page 53

Within the Guidelines it clearly states that matters which have not resulted in a criminal conviction
(whether that is the result of an acquittal, a conviction being quashed, decision not to prosecute, or
an investigation which is continuing where the individual has been bailed) can and will be taken into
account by the City Council. In addition any reference to conviction will also include matters that
amount to criminal behaviour but which have not resulted in a conviction, as will complaints where
there was no police involvement.

The specific time periods detailed in the guidelines on the relevance of convictions and other

matters should be regarded as a minimum time period that an applicant is expected to be free from
conviction, caution, etc.

3.5 Duration of Licences

Legislation details the time periods for which licences can be granted. In general terms these are as
follows:

e Driver licences 3 years
e Private Hire Operator Licences 5 years
e Vehicle licences maximum licence period 1 year

Licences can be issued for a shorter duration where the City Council thinks it appropriate due to the
specific circumstances of the application, examples include where a licensee requests a shorter
licence, or where a licence holder leave to remain in the UK is time limited.

Licences will not be issued for a shorter time based on a probationary period, a licence holder is
either fit and proper/suitable to hold a licence or not.

3.6 Licence Fees

The City Council is responsible for setting fees associated with carrying out the hackney carriage
and private hire licensing function. The fees are set in accordance with the legislative requirements,
primarily detailed in the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976.

There is a growing number of legal cases which seek to clarify which costs are recoverable in
respect of which licences. In setting its fees the City Council will have regard to relevant case law
and the requirements of relevant legislation.

The City Council will consult on changes to licensing fees including driver licence fees where there is
no statutory requirement to do so.

The City Council aims to review licence fees on an annual basis, with the intention that the licensing
service is self-financing but not income generating. If at the end of the financial year thereis a
budget surplus, the surplus will be carried forward and built into the following years budget
process. Similarly if there is a budget deficit that will normally be taken forward into the following
years budget process with the intention of achieving a cost neutral budget.

The responsibility for setting of licence fees is delegated to Licensing Committee details of the
delegation can be found in the constitution.




Page 54

The appropriate fee must be paid when the licence application is submitted. It is acknowledged
that the licence fee in respect of an application for the grant of a private hire operator, hackney
carriage/ private hire driver, hackney carriage/ private hire vehicle licence is payable for the grant
of the licence, therefore in the event of these types of licences being refused a refund can be
requested of the appropriate fee {minus any disbursements).

No refunds will be given once a licence has been granted.

The current licence fees are available on the Councils website.

3.7 Guidance/ Information for Passengers

The City Council recognises the importance of the public understanding how to identify licensed
vehicles/ drivers and the increased risks associated with the unlicensed trade.

Information will be published by the Council and will be required to be displayed in licensed private
hire operator premises/ vehicles regarding standards expected from the licensed trade and from
customers. A copy of the proposed information to be displayed in licensed vehicles is attached at
Appendix B .

Also contained within Appendix B is a general guidance for passengers on how to stay safe when
using hackney carriage and private hire services.

When making a booking with private hire operator’s customers are advised to make the operator
aware of any special requirements e.g. a wheelchair accessible vehicle, large amounts of luggage,
swivel seats, requests for child car seats etc, this is aimed to assist both passengers and the licensed
trade.

3.8 Whistle Blowing Policy

The Councils raising concerns policy often referred to as whistleblowing is in place to encourage
employees and others who have serious concerns about any aspect of the Councils work to come
forward and voice those concerns.

The law requires the Council to protect employees, councillors and contractors who raise a concern
within the Council regarding

e Possible corruption or malpractice taking place

o The law or Councils rules being broken

s The health and safety of any person being endangered
e Damage to the environment taking place

The Council has a documented raising concerns policy which can be accessed via the council
website at Fraud and corruption - Lancaster City Council . The policy includes all information relevant
to raising concerns regarding malpractice within the Council associated with any of the 4 areas
documented within this section of the policy (3.8).




Page 55

3.9 Safeguarding

In recent years the national media has reported on numerous towns and cities where local licensing
authorities’ policies and practices have failed to protect the safety of passengers travelling in
licensed vehicles, whether that be in relation to child sexual exploitation, inappropriate treatment
of customers and drug/ people trafficking.

Less media attention has been given to physical attacks and abuse suffered by licensed drivers. The
taxi trade press regularly details such incidents, which often result in serious injury to licensed
drivers.

Safeguarding is at the heart of this hackney carriage and private hire licensing policy. Procedures
and practices including licencing conditions and enforcement reflect the importance of
safeguarding and will seek to promote the welfare of children, vulnerable people, passengers in
general and licensed drivers.

Safeguarding is everyone’s responsibility, any licence holder who receives any information or has
concerns regarding a safeguarding matter is expected to notify the licencing team. This would
include concerns about:

e alicence holders conduct

e the conduct of a passenger towards another person,

e the conduct of a carer / assistant towards another person

e the conduct of an employee or other person involved in the private hire operator business
{including a volunteer)

e Any other relevant safeguarding matter

The failure to notify such matters could result in an individual’s own licences being reviewed.
Private hire operator licence conditions have been strengthened to require operators to review

complaints and to develop and implement their own safeguarding policies.

3.10 Application Processes — Detailed in Relevant Sections

The application processes in respect of the various licence types are detailed in the drivers, vehicles
and operators’ sections of this policy.

In general terms all documentation submitted in support of licence applications must be original
documents that can be verified. Scanned copies may be sent electronically but will only be
accepted on the basis that the document is clearly legible once viewed on Council systems. The
Council reserves the right to refuse to accept electronic service of documents where information is
unclear or where there may be reason to suspect impropriety. Each document served electronically
should include a statement from the sender to the effect that “I certify that this is an identical copy
of original documentation. No changes have been made from the original document” {name
assigned).




Page 56

3.11 Changes/Review of Policy

This policy will be reviewed at a minimum frequency of every 5 years but where appropriate it may
be reviewed more frequently. The review may be a complete or partial review dependent upon
circumstances.

3.12 Consultations

The Council will carry out consultation on this draft policy. The consultation will include the licensed
trade and groups of people who may represent customers of hackney carriage/private hire users,
other regulatory bodies, night-time economy representatives, lead authorities in respect of
safeguarding matters, examples of consultees include:

¢ Hackney Cairiage and Private Hire Trade Reps

e Licence Holders .

e Agencies responsible for Railway Stations

¢ Police

e Other Local Authorities

e Representatives of Local Disability Groups

e Pub watch

¢ Lancashire County Council School Transport Providers
e Hospital and other key health providers

e Local Councillors

¢ Educational bodies including Universities and Colleges
¢ Relevant Safeguarding leads

e Public via website and street surveys

Consultation will be undertaken having regard to Govt guidance on how consultation should be
carried out. In 2000 the Government published its Code of Practice on consultation the latest
version of this is version 3 published in 2008 by the Department for Business, Enterprise and
Regulatory Reform. More recently in 2018 the Cabinet office published the Government
Consultation principles, the Council will have regard to both documents when undertaking
consultation on this draft policy.

This draft policy has been developed during the COVID-19 pandemic, it is likely that the
consultation will take place whilst restrictions are in place and therefore consultations which may
previously have been undertaken face to face may have to take place using other types of
communications.

The section of the policy will be redrafted for the final version and will focus on how consultations
will be carried out in the future.

3.13 Reporting on Licensing Authority Performance

Licensing Officers will provide an annual report to the Licensing Committee outlining the number
of private hire/ hackney carriage related applications received, the determination of those
applications, and highlighting the number of applications where the decisions were made not in
accordance with the Councils policy.




Page 57

The report will also provide details of the number of complaints received in respect of drivers/
vehicles and operators and an overview of the nature of complaints and how the complaints were
dealt with,

The annual report will also include an overview of any legal cases and appeals. Appendix C details
the information that will be collated in the report.

3.14 Right to Work Checks

All applicants for driver, vehicle and private hire operator licences are required to demonstrate
that they have the right to live and work in the United Kingdom. The City Council follow the
general advice given by the UK Border Agency, available at:

www.ukba. homeoffice.gov.uk/business- sponsors/preventing-illegal-working/ in ascertaining this
status.

A licence will not be granted to an applicant who is not entitled to work in the UK.

it shall be incumbent upon an applicant to produce such official documentation as to
demonstrate such an entitlement. This requirement shall apply equally to British, EEA and non-
EEA nationals, this statement will be amended to reffect the terms of the Brexit agreement, at the
time of drafting (31.12.20 the details of the agreement are not known).

The UK Border Agency maintains a list of documents that can evidence such an entitlement,
which is reproduced in Appendix D. Documents in List A of Appendix D
demonstrate that the person has an on-going entitlement to work in the UK; documents in List
B of Appendix D indicate that the person has restrictions on their entitlement to be in the
UK. Copies of documents produced will be retained.

In addition to requiring documents as identified above, the Council may also make direct
enquiries to the UK Border Agency, to verify the details of an applicant’s right to work.

Where an applicant’s entitlement to work (or to remain in the UK) is time-limited, the City
Council will not grant a licence that beyond the date of the entitlement to work. Should that
entitlement subsequently be extended during the validity of the licence, an application to
renew the licence for a longer period may be made, to be accompanied by evidence of the
revised entitlement.

4, Drivers

4.1 The “Fit and Proper Test”

Legislation requires that private hire and hackney carriage drivers are “fit and proper” but does not
provide a definition as to what constitutes fit and proper.

The DFT Statutory Standards (2020) suggests that the following question may be helpful in the
consideration of fit and proper “without any prejudice and based on the information before you,
would you allow a person for whom you care, regardliess of their condition, to travel alone in a
vehicle driven by this person at any time of day or night”

The Council is not fettered in its discretion as to what can be taken into consideration regarding the
“fit and proper test”, but routinely considers a person’s conduct, (this extends beyond criminal and




Page 58

maotoring convictions), their driving skills, knowledge and awareness of issues relevant to the role of
a licensed driver and medical suitability.

4.2 Application Process, New, Renewal and Fast Track

4.2.1. New Driver Applicants

The application process for private hire and hackney carriage drivers requires a number of tests be
satisfied before the Council can consider an individual “fit and proper” to be a licensed driver
(private hire or hackney carriage). In terms of new applicants, they are required to provide:

e FEvidence of right to work (as detailed in section 3.14 and Appendix D)

e Fully completed application form

e 2 recent passport size photos

e Satisfactory DVLA Group 2 medical (completed within 1 month by a medical practitioner who
has had sight of the applicants medical summary) (see section 4.5 for further details)

e A full current DVLA driving licence held for a minimum period of 12 months and a time limited
DVLA check code

¢ An appropriate practical driving certification from an approved training provider (see section
4.6for further details)

e An enhanced DBS certificate for the role of taxi driver and other workforce together with DBS
update service details {see section 4.4 for further details)

e An overseas checks — certificate on good conduct {required for persons who have spent time
away from the UK — see section 4.4.1)

s ABTEC level 2 / City and Guilds level 2 Certificate in Introduction to the Role of the Professional
Taxi and Private Hire Driver
issued by Lancaster and Morecambe College — incorporating the Lancaster City Council taxi
drivers knowledge test (see section 4.7 for further details)

e The Licence fee

The step by step process to the application is detailed on the Councils website at Taxi and private
hire -~ Lancaster City Council .

An application for a driver’s licence (hackney carriage or private hire) will only be accepted when all
the above documents are provided. Any person with criminal convictions, cautions, motoring
convictions or other conduct matters are strongly advised to familiarise themselves with the
Councils Guidelines on relevance of convictions and other conduct (Appendix A} before deciding
whether to commence the application process, the cost of obtaining all the above documentation
and qualifications is significant and in the event of an applicant having convictions that fall within
the guidelines detailed in Appendix A the application is unlikely to be successful, although each
application is considered on its own merit.

As above if an applicant cannot meet the standards required by the DVLA group 2 medical he/she is
unlikely to be granted a hackney carriage/private hire drivers’ licence.




Page 59

4.2.2 Driver Renewal Applications

The following are required in respect of driver renewal applications:

e Completed Application Form

e DVLA Driving Licence Photo Card

e DVLA Check Code

e Satisfactory DVLA Group 2 medical (completed within 1 month by a medical practitioner who
has had sight of the applicants medical summary)

¢ DBS Update Service Details

e The Licence Fee

e Right to Work Documents

4.2.3. Fast Track Driver Licence Applications

The fast track driver application process was originally introduced to facilitate a quicker application
process for drivers who had previously been licensed but who may have chosen to take a short
break from the trade, the primary reason for this being the COVID-19 pandemic. However, the fast
track driver application may also be available to drivers whose licences have been revoked but due
to a change in circumstances wish to reapply for a licence*,

*This would normally be where information comes to light after a revocation which may infer that
the revocation would not have made had the new information been available at the time.

A fast track licence application largely replicates a renewal driver licence application, all checks are
conducted as per a renewal application, with the exception that there is no need for a person to
resit training if this training has previously been satisfactorily completed as part of a previous
licence.

4.3 Dual Driver Licences

Applicants can apply for either a hackney carriage/ private hire or dual drivers’ licence. The
standards that are applied to hackney carriage and private hire drivers’ licences are identical in
terms of what is required to meet the “fit and proper test”. A hackney carriage or private hire
driver who holds either type of licence can make an application for a dual licence during the
duration of a current drivers licence. Subject to there being no change in convictions, medical or
other conduct matter and payment of the appropriate fee the dual licence will be granted to the
date of the expiry of the original licence issued.

4.4 Driver Criminality checks

4.4.1. On Initial Application

DBS

As part of the driver licence new application process an applicant will be required to complete an
enhanced Disclosure and Barring Service (DBS) check. The disclosure application will be
countersigned by licensing officers and the Job role will be identified as other workforce taxi
driver. This ensures that the disclosure will include a check of the “barred lists” as weil as spent and
unspent convictions.




Page 60

In addition, all new applicants and existing licensed drivers are required to sign up and maintain
subscription to the DBS update service. This can be done at any time from the date of submission of
the disclosure application up to and including 30 days from the date when the disclosure certificate

is issued.

The Council will not normally accept an enhanced DBS certificate from another registered body. An
exception to this may be when the enhanced certificate relates to the role of a taxi driver and other
workforce and the update service can be utilised to ascertain that there has been no change since
the date of issue of the enhanced certificate.

Overseas Checks- Certificate of Good Character

Where an applicant has spent 3 continuous months or more outside of the UK then the Council will
request evidence of a criminal record check from the country or countries where the applicant has
spent at least 3 months. If criminal record checks are not available in individual countries, then a
certificate of good character will be required from the relevant embassy. Only approved
translations will be considered, and the cost of approved translations will be the applicant’s

responsibility.

Asylum seekers who hold a Home Office issued application registration document together with a
positive verification letter from the Home Office's Employer Checking Service stating that the
named individual is permitted to work in the UK will be exempt from the requirement to submit a
recent Certificate of Good Character. The Council will require any Certificate of Good Character that
the applicant may have regardless of the age of the document.

4.4.2 Cngoing Criminality Monitors for Licensed Drivers

The paragraph above details the enhanced DBS disclosures required in respect of applicants of
private hire and hackney carriage driver licences. The enhanced disclosure certificate will then be
considered against the Councils Guidelines on convictions and the information together with all
other relevant information e.g. medical certificates, training any other relevant information from
the applicant and other agencies will be taken into account when the application is determined.

If a private hire/ hackney carriage drivers licence is granted the Council will at 6 monthly intervals
conduct an online check utilising the DBS update service to see if there has been any change in
status to the DBS disclosure.

If a change in DBS status is disclosed, the licence holder will be contacted, and the matter discussed
further. A new enhanced DBS disclosure will be required, and a decision made as to whether any
further action is required in respect of the drivers licence at that time.

Where the Council is made aware of a hackney carriage/private hire drivers’ failure to maintain
subscription to the DBS update service it will result in the suspension/revocation of the licence.

The private hire drivers licence conditions and the hackney carriage drivers code of conduct require
a licensed driver notifies the Council of any conviction, fixed penalty, binding over, caution, charge
or arrest for any matter within 48 hours . The receipt of any such information may result in further
enquiries with relevant agencies e.g. police, and action may or may not be taken against the drivers
licence.




Page 61

Any information received from relevant partner agencies including the police or other iocal
authorities regarding criminal or unacceptable conduct will also be considered during the duration
of the licence and in future applications.

Criminality, motoring convictions, medical fitness and general conduct are seen as fundamental to
the “Fit and proper” test that must be satisfied before a person is licensed to drive hackney carriage
or private hire vehicle and maintained during the course of the licence period .

4.5 Driver Medicals.

As part of the Councils assessment of the “fit and proper test”, licensed drivers are required to he
medically fit for the role they are carrying out . Medical fitness is assessed by the Driver and
Vehicle Licensing Agency “(DVLA) medical standards of fitness to drive for Group 2 licences”. The
medical certificate requires the medical practitioner to state whether, in their opinion, the
applicant/licence holder complies with the standards and is medically fit to drive hackney
carriages or private hire vehicles.

A summary of the Group 2 standards can be viewed via:

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment data/fil
e/669519/inf4d-d4-medical-examination-report-for-a-group-2-bus-or-lorry-licence--.pdf

The D4 medical form should be downloaded from the DVLA website at Medical examination report for
a lorry or bus driving licence (D4) - GOV.UK (www.gov.uk),

In order to ensure that the Council are informed of any significant changes to a driver’s health,
which could impact on his / her driving standards, there is a condition attached to the grant of a
private hire driver’s licence and stated on the hackney carriage driver code of conduct that licensed
drivers must notify the Council of changes in health. '

Any licensed driver who fails to produce a satisfactory medical at the appropriate time will be
subject to suspension of the licence until the necessary medical certificate is produced.

Similarly, where the Council have any concern regarding a licensed drivers medical status, they will
conduct a formal review of the drivers licence to assess whether that person remains “fit and
proper” to hold a drivers licence, the sanctions in respect of such a review are detailed in Chapter 7
of this policy.

Where the medical practitioner has stipulated that they do not consider the applicant/licensed
driver to be medically fit, in accordance with the Group 2 standards, to drive hackney carriage or
private hire vehicles, the Council will refuse the application, and in the case of a licensed driver
either suspend or revoke the drivers licence dependent upon the details contained within the
medical certification.

Where the medical practitioner has recommended that further monitoring of a particular
condition or examinations are undertaken in a certain period, it shall be open to the Council to
consider granting a licence for a shorter period commensurate with that recommendation, or to
require additional medical certificates to be submitted at more frequent intervals than would
otherwise be required.

The cost of the Medical Examination is not included within the licensing fees and is paid
directly to the Medical Practice/GP Surgery.




Page 62

4.6 Practical Driving Assessment Requirements

For licensed drivers to meet the “fit and proper” test the Council require an applicant to
satisfactorily complete a practical driving skills assessment with an approved training
provider. Details of training providers are detailed on the council’s website at Taxi and
Private Hire Licence Forms - Lancaster City Council.

Whilst it is recognised that all driver applicants are required to hold the relevant DVLA
driving licence, this is not necessarily a measure of a person’s current driving skifls. The
satisfactory completion of a practical driving assessment is required as evidence that an
applicant has good practical driving skills, this is seen as a key requirement for both
driver and passenger and public safety.

4.7 Driver Training Requirements

For licensed drivers to meet the “fit and proper test” The Council regard it essential for
drivers {hackney carriage and private hire) to have knowledge awareness and skills in the
following subjects.

Prior to submitting an application for a private hire or hackney carriage drivers licence
potential applicants are required to attend Lancaster and Morecambe college to take an
English and a Maths assessment where they need to achieve Level 2 to be able to
progress to the next stage.

Following the English and Maths assessment successful candidates (i.e. those who have
reached the level 2 standard) are required to sit Lancaster driver knowledge test, this
assesses a candidates knowledge of the routes, localities and points of interest within
the City area and beyond and it also assesses a candidate knowledge of licensing laws
and local licensing conditions. It is considered that this knowledge requirement is an
essential part of the “fit and proper test” that licensed drivers are required to meet.
Licensed drivers must be able to effectively communicate with their passengers and
other members of the public, they must have good topographical knowledge of the area
in which they intend to driver i.e. Lancaster City council area, and they must also have
good knowledge of the rules they will be required to follow whilst working as a licensed
driver in the City.

Once a candidate has passed the basic skills (Maths and English) and the Lancaster
knowledge test they are required 1o complete the City and Guilds Level 2 Certificate in
Introduction to the Role of the Professional Taxi and Private Hire Driver.

Once again this is provided by Lancaster and Morecambe College, the course is a 4-day
programme. There are 9 units covered over the 4-days:

1. Health and Safety in the taxi and private hire work environments

2. Road safety when driving passengers in a taxi or private hire vehicle
3. Professional customer service in the taxi and private hire industry

4. Taxi and private hire vehicle maintenance and safety inspections




Page 63

The regulatory framework of the taxi and private hire industry

Taxi and private hire services for passengers who require assistance®
Routes and fares in the taxi and private hire vehicle industries

Transporting of parcels, luggage and other items in the taxi and private hire
industries

8. Transporting of children and young persons by taxi and private hire vehicle

N NS W

All the above exams are assessed on-line exams undertaken in the classrocom and the
candidates have to get over 70% to pass each unit.

*Unit 6 has the practical assessment which candidates need to successfully pass also.

An applicant for a hackney carriage/ private hire drivers’ licence will need to provide the
necessary documentation/ certification to show that they have successfully completed

~ the above training, this will form part of the driver application referred to in section 4.2
above.

If an applicant is considered as fit and proper to hold a hackney carriage/ private hire
drivers’ licence, it may become necessary for them to complete additional training whilst
they are a licensed driver. A condition is imposed on a private hire drivers’ licence and
stipulated in the hackney carriage driver code of conduct that they may be required o
complete additional training during the course of their licence. '

The cost of any training is not included in the licence fee and is payable by the applicant/
licence holder.

4.8 Private Hire Driver Licence Conditions

Legislation allows the Council to attach “reasonably necessary” conditions to the grant
of a private hire driver’s licence.

The Council has a set of standard licence conditions that are attached to the grant of
private hire driver licences attached at Appendix E.

The Council will include additional specific licence conditions on the grant of a licence
where it considers it reasonably necessary to do so.

Where the holder of a private hire drivers licence considers that any licence condition is
not reasonably necessary, then the licence holder has a right of appeal against the
licence condition being imposed. More information on appeals in available in Chapter 7
of this policy.




Page 64

4.9 Hackney Carriage Byelaws

Lancaster City Council byelaws in respect of hackney carriages were approved in March
2014 and came into effect on 23 April 2014. A copy of the Byelaws can be found at
Appendix F.

The byelaws apply to hackney carriage drivers and hackney carriage vehicle licence
holders. It is an offence to fail to comply with the byelaws, Details of the maximum
penalties for failure to comply with bye laws is deal with under the enforcement part of
this policy details of the bye law offences are detailed in Appendix Q.

4.10 Driver Code of Conduct

A licensed hackney carriage/private hire driver is expected to remain fit and proper to
hold a licence during the duration of their licence. As already highlighted there is no
legal definition as to what constitutes “fit and proper”, but in general terms they are
expected to remain medically fit, maintain the standards detailed in the convictions
policy and conduct themselves appropriately.

In order to assist licensed hackney carriage drivers, a code of conduct has been
developed so that drivers have an awareness of the standards expected whilst they are
working as a hackney carriage driver. A copy of the hackney carriage driver code of
conduct is attached at Appendix G. |

The standards detailed within the code of conduct are replicated as appropriate in the
private hire driver licence conditions, this ensures that both types of licensed drivers are
aware of the standards they are expected to adopt.

Failure to comply with the code of conduct could result in the review of a hackney
carriage drivers licence as the City Council considers whether that person remains fit and
proper to hold a hackney carriage drivers licence.

Where a driver is dual licensed failure to comply with either the hackney carriage drivers
code of conduct or the conditions attached to the grant of a private hire drivers licence
will result in considerations relevant to both licence types.

4.11 Dress Code

There is no requirement for corporate branding or a uniform to be worn by licensed
drivers (there is a uniform requirement associated with executive hire ) however the City
Council consider it important that licensed drivers wear clean appropriate clothing and
maintain a good standard of personal hygiene whilst working as a licensed driver. A
requirement to comply with the dress code is included within the private hire drivers
licence conditions and the hackney carriage driver code of conduct. A copy of the dress
code is attached at Appendix H.




Page 65

4.12 Carriage of Assistance Dogs

It is a legal requirement that drivers of hackney carriage and private hire vehicles permit
assistance dogs to be carried in the licensed vehicle without any extra charge. Assistance
dogs are highly trained and will normally sit in the footwell of the vehicle immediately
adjacent to their owner. The failure of a licensed driver to carry a passenger (pre-booked
passenger in the case of private hire) because the passenger is accompanied by an
assistance dog is an offence.

If a licensed driver has an allergy to dogs then the licensed driver must obtain a
certificate from their medical practitioner, a copy of which should be provided to the
licensing team. Consideration will then be given to granting a certificate of exemption
based on medical grounds.

The Council will regard the failure to carry an assistance dog as a serious matter, all
drivers are made aware of this requirement during their driver training. Where sufficient
evidence of the offence exists, the council will prosecute the driver and review the
drivers licence.

4.13 Surrender of Driver’s Licences

The City Council will not accept the surrender of hackney carriage or private hire drivers’
licences. The surrender of such licences negates the notification of any criminal conduct
matters and also allows an individual to correctly state that a licence has not been
revoked or suspended.

5. Licensed Vehicles

5.1 Suitability of Licence Holder

As with driver and operator licensing requirements, the objective of vehicle licensing is
to protect public safety. The legislation does not include a “fit and proper” test for
holders of vehicle licences but does require that vehicles are safe. Safety is taken in its
widest interpretation and goes beyond the mechanical safety and comfort of the actual
vehicle. The City Council will only issue vehicle licences to persons it considers safe and
suitable to hold such licences, as such they will have regard to the conduct of the licence
holder, not only does this include criminal or motoring offences but also includes the
licence holder’s ability to satisfy the City Council that he/ she can ensure that the vehicle
will be properly maintained in good condition at all times. The failure of a licence holder
to properly maintain the vehicle in a suitable condition will result in the suspension of
the vehicie licence and impact on future licence applications. Similarly, the failure of a
vehicle licence holder to comply with the conditions attached to the grant of the
licence or insurance requirements will be a relevant consideration in future applications.




Page 66

5.2 Application Process, New Renewal, Vehicle Transfer, Change of Vehicle

5.2.1 New Vehicle Licence Application

In the first instance any person wishing to apply for a new private hire vehicle licence
should ensure that the vehicle meets the council’s vehicle specification. Section 5.4
below and Appendix | provide details regarding private hire vehicle specification.

Any person wishing to apply for a hackney carriage vehicle licence should familiarise
themselves with the current policy in relation to the allocation of such licences (the
hackney carriage alfocation policy is currently under review and this paragraph will be
updated at the appropriate time).

An application for a new vehicle licence shall include the following:

A completed application form.

A current certificate of insurance/cover note

V5 logbook/ green slip {if recently brought, details completed)

Bill of sale — if owned for less than 12 months

Meter calibration certificate if the vehicle is fitted with a taxi meter
Right to work documents in respect of the applicant

Relevant fee — current fees are available on the Councils website at Taxi and Private Hire
Licence Forms - Lancaster City Council

5.2.2. Renewal Vehicle Licence Application

A completed renewal application must be received prior to the expiry of the vehicle
licence, failure to do so will mean that the vehicle cannot be used for licensed purposes
once the previous licence has expired. A completed renewal application will include the
following documents:

e« A completed application form

¢ A current certificate of insurance/cover note

o Meter calibration certificate if the vehicle is fitted with a taxi meter

¢ Right to work documents if the licence holder has only limited leave to remain in the
UK or has a spousal visa as the right to work in the UK

e Relevant fee — current fees are available on the Councils website at Taxi and Private
Hire Licence Forms - Lancaster City Council

5.2.3. Notification of Transfer of Vehicle Licence

A proprietor of a hackney carriage/ private hire vehicle licence has a legal obligation to
notify the City Council licensing team that he/she has transferred their interest in the
licensed vehicle to another person, unless that person is already named on the licence.
The notification must be in writing and must detail the name and address of the person
to whom the vehicle has been transferred. The notification must be made within 14 days




Page 67

of the transfer taking place. A vehicle transfer notification form is available on the
Councils website at Taxi and Private Hire Licence Forms - Lancaster City Council.

A vehicle licence holder who fails to comply with this requirement without reasonable
excuse is guilty of an offence. It is important that the Council maintains an accurate and
up to date record of vehicle licence holders, the failure to comply with this legal
requirement will be regarded as a serious matter and likely subject to formal action.

5.2.4 Application to Change a Vehicle on a Vehicle Licence

The legislation is silent in relation to any legal framework for the change of a vehicle
licence to a substitute vehicle.

However due to the Council currently having a limit on hackney carriage numbers it is
essential that such a mechanism is in place to allow for replacement vehicles following
accidental damage and vehicles to be replaced with more modern, cleaner suitable
vehicles. As such applications can be made in respect of the change of a hackney
carriage vehicle.

For parity the same mechanism will be available to private hire vehicle licence holders
who want to change the vehicle part way through the licence term. The following will be
required in terms of any application to change a vehicle on an existing licence:

e Completed Application Form

e Current Certificate of Insurance/Cover Note

e V5 logbook/ green slip {if recently brought, details completed)
¢ Bill of sale — if owned for less than 12 months

e Meter calibration certificate

o Relevant fee

e Previous plates and door livery to be returned

5.3 Criminality Checks for Vehicle Proprietors

Where an applicant for a hackney carriage or private hire vehicle (proprietors) licence is
not the holder of a Lancaster City Council hackney carriage / private hire drivers’ licence,
or a private hire operator’s licence they will be subject to a Basic DBS disclosure and
required to complete a statutory declaration.

Where an applicant for a vehicle licence is a company or partnership each
director/partner will be required to comply with the requirements of the basic
disclosure described in the paragraph above.




Page 68

Overseas Checks - Certificate of Good Character

Where an applicant has spent 3 continuous months or more outside of the UK then the
Council will request evidence of a criminal record check from the country or countries
where the applicant has spent  at least 3 months. if criminal record checks are not
available in individual countries, then a certificate of good character will be required
from the relevant embassy. Only approved translations will be considered, and the cost
of approved translations will be the applicant’s responsibility.

Asylum seekers who hold a Home Office issued application registration document
together with a positive verification letter from the Home Office's Employer Checking
Service stating that the named individual is permitted to work in the UK will be exempt
from the requirement to submit a recent Certificate of Good Character. The Council will
require any Certificate of Good Character that the applicant may have regardless of the
age of the document.

Where a vehicle proprietor is already licensed by Lancaster City Council as a hackney
carriage/private hire driver no further criminality check will be required as that person
has already met the criminality element of the licensed drivers “fit and proper” test.

5.4 Vehicle Specifications/Standards

The legislation requires hackney carriages to be of such design, appearance or have
distinguishing marks so that they are clearly identifiable as a hackney carriage.

For private hire vehicles the legislation requires that the vehicle is suitable in type, size,
and design, not of such a design that a person could believe it’s a hackney carriage, be in
suitable mechanical condition, safe, comfortable and that the vehicle is suitahly insured.

Any person who wishes to licence a vehicle as a private hire vehicle will be expected to
provide a vehicle that complies with the specifications at Appendix I.

Any person who wishes to licence a hackney carriage vehicle should in the first instance
familiarise themselves with the current policy in respect to any limits in place regarding
the number of licences to be issued. . Appendix J details the specifications for hackney
carriage vehicles.

5.5 Emissions Standards

At a meeting of Full Council on 30 January 2019 the City Council declared a climate
emergency and made various commitments including to work towards activities being
net zero carbon by 2030.

With effect from January 2030 the Council will only issue a new hackney carriage and
private hire vehicle licence in respect of vehicles that are zero emission. Any application
to put a replacement vehicle on an existing vehicle licence from this date will also have
to be zero emission.




Page 69

With effect from January 2025 the Council will only issue a new vehicle licence in respect
of petrol / hybrid vehicles, diesel vehicles which are Euro 6 compliant or zero emission
vehicles. Any application to put a replacement vehicle on an existing vehicle licence from
this date will also have to comply with the petrol/ hybrid, diesel Euro 6 compliant or zero
emission standard.

It is recognised that this is a significant change to previous policy and hence the
prolonged lead in time.

The aspiration of the Council is that licence holders seek to licence cleaner vehicles
earlier than the dates above but have allowed the longer lead in period in recognition of
the financial issues arising from the pandemic,

5.6 Vehicle Testing, inspection and Maintenance

It is the responsibility of an applicant to ensure that any vehicle to which an application
relates meets the vehicle specification. In the circumstances where a vehicle does not
meet the vehicle specification and an application is still submitted the application will be
referred to the Licensing Manager / Licensing Committee for consideration. Although
each case will be considered on its merit, the vehicle specification is in place to reflect
the standards required, the exceptional condition policy detailed in para 5.8 outlines the
circumstances where exceptions may be made.

Vehicle testing will be undertaken at frequencies depending upon the age of the vehicle

For vehicles less than 2 years old from the date of first registration to the date of licence
application being received will be required to be tested annually.

For vehicles between 2 years old but less than 10 years old from the date of registration
to the date the licence application is received will be required to be tested at 6 monthly
intervals.

For vehicles over 10 years of age from the date of registration to the date the licence
application is received will be tested at 4 monthly intervals,

Vehicle licences are currently issued for the same period as the frequency of testing, i.e.
4 months, 6 months or annually dependent upon the age of the vehicle. The Intention is
that the Council move to an annual vehicle licensing system, even though the frequency
of testing will remain as current. A move to annual licensing will reduce the
administrative burden on applicants but public safety standards will be preserved by the
frequency of vehicle testing remaining unchanged.




Page 70

Inspections and Maintenance

Conditions attached to the relevant licences require that daily inspections are
undertaken on vehicles to ensure that the vehicles are safe and roadworthy.
Furthermore, Licence conditions require that on a monthly basis a more detailed
inspection is undertaken, and the findings recorded in writing.

The daily and monthly inspections will go a long way towards ensuring that the vehicle is
maintained in a safe and roadworthy condition and will assist in complying with the
requirement for the vehicle to be maintained in such a condition that it is capable of
passing the “taxi test” at any time.

Vehicles will be subject to ad hoc on the spot inspections by authorised licensing
officers. The daily inspection checks will ensure that officers find little or no problems
with vehicles {accepting that an isolated bulb can blow at any time or that a tyre may
succumb to picking up a nail etc) where evidence exists of failure to carry out daily
vehicle inspections this will give cause to review whether the driver/ vehicle proprietor
should be subject to enforcement action, principally a review of the licence.

An example of an inspection sheet that can be used by licenced drivers / vehicle licence
holders is attached at Appendix K.

5.7 Exceptional Condition Policy

Exceptional conditions policies are well established within local authorities who impose
an age limit policy in respect of licensed vehicles. There is no age limit policy in place at
the City Council, but an emissions policy will be introduced in line with the dates listed
above in section 5.5.

Where a vehicle fails to meet the emission standard required by the policy, but can
demonstrate that the particular vehicle has unigue design features which adds value as
a licensed vehicle and whereby an equivalent vehicle is not available on the market with
the required emission standard, consideration will be given to licensing any such vehicle
as an “exception”. Any such application would be referred to the Licensing Committee/
Sub Committee (as delegated by the constitution in place at that time) for determination
and would be expected to be in exceptional condition.

5.8 Vehicle Licence Conditicns

Legisiation allows the City Council to attach “reasonably necessary” conditions to the
grant of a hackney carriage or private hire vehicle licence.

The City Council has a set of standard licence conditions that are attached to the grant of
private hire vehicle licences see Appendix L and hackney carriage vehicle licences see
Appendix M.




Page 71

The City Council will include additional specific licence conditions on the grant of a
licence where it considers it reasonably necessary to do so.

Where the holder of a vehicle licence considers that any licence condition is not
reasonably necessary, then the licence holder has a right of appeal against the licence
condition being imposed. More information on appeals in available in section 7 of this

policy.

5.9 Signage / Plates/ Door Signs / Insurance Stickers/ Tariff Cards/ Info for Passengers

/ Smoking

(this section will be initially drafted during consultation period but will largely reflect
current practice but with additional signage as required by DFT)

Appendix N = examples of vehicle signage

5.10 Executive Hire

The Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 575 provides an exemption
for licensed private hire vehicles from displaying plates, and signage. The Council will
consider requests for this exemption from private hire vehicles used exclusively for the
purposes of executive hire. There is no legal definition of “executive hire” but the
Council will general consider the foliowing when determining any requests for
exemptions from displaying plates/ signage:

o The majority of the work should be for businesses which maintain an account with
the private hire operator

¢  The vehicle may be used for one or more contracts, but these would be booked on
account with payment made by invoice or card payments. No payments are 1o be
made to the driver in the vehicle

o The type of vehicle to which the application relates should reflect the executive hire
status, i.e. a high value luxury vehicle

e The driver of an executive hire vehicle should wear a uniform befitting of the
executive status

¢ The vehicle cannot be used for any standard private hire work

If an exemption notice is granted it would apply to the duration of the licence. Failure to
comply with the requirements above or the conditions attached to the grant of the
private hire licence will result in the exemption being withdrawn and or the licence
being revoked.




Page 72

- 5,11 Licensing of Stretched Limousines

Nationally, over recent years there has been some interest in licensing stretch
limousines as private hire vehicles.

The Council considers that such vehicles do not undertake standard private hire work
and any request to licence a stretch limousine as a private hire vehicle would fall under
the consideration of executive hire and would expect to comply with the requirements
detailed in section 5.10.

The Council will only consider applications from vehicles which have been examined and
granted Individual Vehicle Approval {IVA)} certification by the Driver and Vehicle
Standards Agency (DVSA). In addition, vehicles will be subject to further taxi test and
inspection. Special arrangements will be in place regarding vehicle testing as the size of
some vehicles prohibit them being tested at the Council Vehicle Maintenance Unit
(VMU). Vehicles over 4.5 meters long weighing over 5.2 tons and being anything other
than class 4 or 7 cannot be tested at VMU and will be referred to DVSA for testing at
DVSA test stations.

The Council will only consider applications in respect of a vehicle with 8 or less
passenger seats and will not consider void/ blocked off seating areas. The majority of
“American type” stretch limousine vehicles have more than 8 passenger seats and would
therefore not be considered suitable for licensing under the private hire/ executive hire
regime. The Council have concerns that if a vehicle was to be licensed for 8 passengers
hut have seating for a greater number there is potential for misuse.

5.12 Accident notifications

The Local Government {Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 550 (3) requires proprietors
of hackney carriage and private hire vehicle licences to report as soon as is practical and
in any case within 72 hours any accident involving their hackney carriage/ private hire
vehicle which has caused damage that may materially affect the safety, performance or
appearance of the licensed vehicle or the comfort or convenience of persons in the
vehicle.

To assist proprietors to comply with this requirement the Council provides an accident
report form on the taxi licensing pages of the Councils website Taxi and Private Hire
‘Licence Forms - Lancaster City Council.

The provision of false or misleading information on an accident report form will be
regarded as very serious.

Failure to comply with this requirement without “reasonable excuse” is an offence for
which vehicle licence holder may be prosecuted and action taken against the licence.

In addition to the above provision the Council is keen to be made aware of all road
traffic accidents involving licensed drivers. The Council will impose a condition on private
hire drivers licences and highlight in the hackney carriage drivers code of conduct that




Page 73

drivers should report all road traffic accidents in which they are involved to the Licensing
team so that any trends of poor driving standards can promptly be identified.

5.13 CCTV

(This paragraph is relevant to the draft policy and will be updated accordingly
following consultation. Paragraph 7.9 of the DFT statutory standards (July 2020)
requires local authorities to consult regarding on whether CCTV would have a positive
or negative effect on the safety of hackney carriage and private hire users).

The Department for Transports Statutory guidance states at paragraph 7.8 “CCTV can
provide additional deterrence to prevent this (harm to passengers by drivers) and
investigative value when it does. The use of CCTV can provide a safer environment for
the benefit of hackney carriage / private hire passengers and drivers by:

o deterring and preventing the occurrence of crime

e reducing the fear of crime

e gssisting the police in investigating incidents of crime

o assisting insurance companies in investigating motor vehicle accidents

The licensing team has reviewed the complaints received in 2019 and 2020 in respect of
the private hire and hackney carriage trade. It is estimated that 40% of the complaint
investigations may have been enhanced by the availability of CCTV.

CCTV in licensed vehicles may provide safeguarding measures for both passengers and
drivers. In order to achieve this, it is important that any CCTV systems are compliant with
legal standards and provide a quality of recording that provides a good standard of
evidence. The Council is considering mandating CCTV in licensed vehicles and if
introduced a specification for the CCTV would be applied, as a minimum this is likely to
require:

e CCTV recording covers all passenger and driver seats

¢ The recordings are stored and kept available for a minimum of 14 days

e The recordings are encrypted and can be downloaded by the data controller or the
police

e That audio recording is only applied when activated by the driver or passenger via a
audio switch(es) and is accessible to all persons in the vehicle

o That the quality of images is such that images are clear even in hours of darkness. -

¢ The issue of mandating CCTV will be further considered following the consultation on
the draft policy. It is acknowledged that in local authority areas where CCTV is
mandated in licensed vehicles the specification of the systems is such that the costs
are in the region of £500 per vehicle |




Page 74

5.14 Dual plating/ working for more than 1 operator / vehicle licensed in more than 1
area

It a vehicle is currently licensed with another authority the City Council will not consider
it for licensing by the City Council. Vehicle licence plates and signage are required to be
displayed throughout the duration of the licence, the identity of the licensed vehicle
becomes confused by being licensed in more than one local authority area. A licence
condition will be attached to the grant of vehicle holders licences to prevent them from
obtaining a vehicle holders licence on that vehicle during the duration of the Lancaster
City Council licence.

A condition will be attached to the grant of private hire vehicle licences preventing them
from working for more than 1 private hire operator at any time. Private hire vehicles are
required to display company door signs to enable customers to recognise their hooked
vehicles. This is a safety features which is undermined by the use of multi company door
signs or the absence of any door signs.

5.15 Livery of vehicles

Current practice is that the differential between hackney carriage and private hire
vehicle is by means of roof signs being present on hackney vehicles and differences in
door signage. At this stage the Council does not proposz'e a colour policy to differentiate
between hackney carriage and private hire, but as part of the consultation on this draft
policy intends to consult with the public to gain an understanding of the % of people
who know how to differentiate between the two vehicle types. The findings of the
public consultation will identify whether the current means of differential is satisfactory.
A livery policy may be considered if poor knowledge on vehicle differential causes
concern.

5.16 Child seats in licensed vehicles

It is not always possible for the right child seat or booster to be available in a licensed
vehicle (hackney carriage or private hire}. in the case of private hire bookings, the hirer
is advised to clarify at the time of making the booking whether suitable child seats will
be available in the vehicle and if not will be expected to make their own provision
regarding child car seats.

The Highway Code, road safety and vehicles rules allow children to travel in hackney
carriages or private hire vehicles without using a suitable car seat but the following
restrictions apply.

¢ Under 3's may travel unrestrained but in the rear only.

e Those 3 years and above must use an adult belt in the rear seat only.




Page 75

e A child up to 135cms in a front seat of ANY vehicle must use the correct child seat or
booster.

e The driver of the vehicle is responsible for seat belt wearing by children under 14 years
(except in vehicles with fixed partitions).

e Rear-facing baby seats MUST NOT be used in a seat protected by a frontal air bag
unless the air-bag has been deactivated manually or automatically.

e Drivers are expected to comply with the highway code requirements and where
passengers refuse to comply with seat belt requirements this is a legitimate reason for

the driver to refuse to carry the passenger.

5.17 Insurance requirements

The City Council requires appropriate vehicle insurance documents prior to granting
(new or renewal) a hackney carriage/ private hire vehicle (proprietors) licence. The City
Council will require a valid certificate of insurance or cover note confirming that
insurance is in place for each driver of the vehicle and specify the use as either public
hire {hackney carriage) or private hire vehicle insurance.

Hackney carriage vehicle insurance documentation will need to state that the insurance
covers public hire and hire and reward.

Private hire vehicle insurance documents will need to state that the insurance covers
hire and reward.

If a valid cover note is provided rather than an insurance certificate the insurance
certificate should be provided to the Council at the earliest opportunity, failure to do so
may result in the suspension/ revocation of the vehicle proprietor’s licence.

Photocopies of insurance documents are not accepted. Original documents should be
provided if an application is made in paper format. Scanned copies of original
documentation are acceptable on the basis that the documents are clearly legible on the
Councils IT systems and a declaration must accompany the scanned document to
declare that no alieration has been made to the original documentation.

The Local Government {(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 S50 allows for authorised
officers of the Council to require a vehicle licence holder to produce insurance
documents on request. Such requests may be made on site or in writing. Officers will
normally give a period of several days for the documents to be produced, but any
documents produced must cover the period requested by the officer.

Failure to comply to such a request without a reasonable excuse is an offence for which
a vehicle licence holder may be prosecuted. In addition, action will be taken to
immediately suspend/ revoke the vehicle licence.




Page 76

As an added public safety measure the Council will impose as a standard licence
condition on all vehicle licenced that a valid certificate of insurance remains in place at
all times that the vehicle is licensed. This provides added protection through the
duration of the licence.

5.20 Hackney carriage and private hire fares

Hackney carriage fares

Local Authorities can choose to set hackney carriage fares. Lancaster City Council like
most other local authorities do this using the provisions of the Local Government -
Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976. The Act details the process which must be followed
in terms of consultations and changes to hackney carriage fares. Hackney carriage fares
include all charges associated with the hire of the vehicle for example flag fall, (initial
start-up fare), rate per distance travelled, soiling charges, waiting charges etc. The fares
are published in a table of fares displayed in the hackney carriage vehicle. The table of
fares also indicates the different tariffs applicable for, day/ night, some holiday periods.

It should be noted that the table of hackney fares set by the Council are maximum fares
that can be charged for local journeys.

For journeys that begin or end outside of the City Council boundaries a fare can be
agreed in advance of the journey (this may be higher than the table of fares due to the
likelihood of the vehicle having to undertake a return journey without any passengers —
commonly known as avoid), if no fare has been agreed in advance then the fare shown
on the taximeter must be charged.

Following a review of hackney carriage fares the council issues a hackney carriage tariff
card to each proprietor; the tariff card is only issued once the Council has received a
calibration certificate from an approved supplier advising that the vehicles taxi meter
has been calibrated to the new tariff and the meter has then be subsequently sealed.
Each tariff card includes the Councils logo, and the specific licence number of the
hackney carriage vehicle.

The Council is currently reviewing the methodology used to undertake a revision of
hackney carriage fares, it is expected that consultation on this matter will run in parallel
to the consultation on the overall taxi licensing policy.

The Council acknowledges that whilst the capital costs of the business increase with the
purchase of more expensive cleaner vehicles, the running costs associated with such
vehicles are likely to be less, these changes will need to be reflected in the hackney
carriage tariff at the appropriate time.

Private hire fees and charges

Private hire fees and charges are not set by the Council, but by the private hire
operators who take the bookings and dispatch the private hire vehicles/drivers. Each




Page 77

private hire operator has their own tariff which may be different or identical to the
hackney carriage tariff.

This policy review intends to introduce a condition on private hire operators to require
them to produce and provide a private hire tariff card to each private hire driver in
respect of each private hire vehicle they operate and similarly require that each private
hire driver ensures that the relevant tariff card is displayed in the vehicle.

Where a hackney carriage vehicle/driver fulfils a private hire booking he cannot charge
more than the metered fare unless the out of area provisions referred to above apply.

5.21 Surrender of vehicle licences

Chapter 7 of this policy on compliance and enforcement provides general information
on revocation and suspension of the various types of licences.

There may be circumstances where a vehicle licence owner wishes to surrender the
vehicle licence for example a change in health status of the licensed driver. The vehicle
licence can be surrendeéred to the Council this requires return of

e Paperlicence

¢ Vehicle licence plates

o Vehicle signage/ Council door stickers
e For Hackney carriages the tariff card.

Once a vehicle licence has been surrendered it cannot be returned other than via a new
application process, the reason for this is that whilst the vehicle is unlicensed there is no
requirement to comply with licence conditions such as notification of accidents etc. It is
therefore essential that following any period of not being a licensed vehicle a vehicle will
need to be subject to a vehicle test.

For the purposes of clarity a licenced vehicle which is accident damaged and therefore
the licence subjected to a temporary change of vehicle is not regarded as a surrender of
the licence, this scenario would be regarded as a change of vehicle

There is no facility for a partial refund on a licence fee. The legislation is clear that the
licence fee is charged for the grant of a licence.

5.22 Installation of protective screen in licensed vehicles

in May 2020 the Council gave urgent consideration to its position regarding the
installation of protective screens in licensed vehicles. The Council adopted a position
statement regarding the use of screens and this can be found at Taxi and private hire -
Lancaster City Council. This will be further reviewed following the publication of relevant
Government advice or scientific data.




Page 78

5.23 Issues specific to Hackney Carriage Vehicle Licencing

5.23.1 Replacement vehicles following accident damage

As above in section 5.12 if a hackney carriage vehicle is involved in an accident, the
licence holder must report the accident to the Licensing Authority and an accident form
completed within 72 hours of the accident occurring. If a licence holder wishes to utilise a
replacement hackney carriage vehicle these will have the original licence number
changed to the replacement vehicle. When the original vehicle has been repaired and
tested an application will be required to transfer the licence back to the original vehicle.
Any change of vehicle on a licence in respect of a mandatory wheelchair accessible
vehicle can only be changed to another wheelchair accessible vehicle that meets the
requirements of this policy.

It is recognised that many replacement vehicles are now provided by accident
management companies, it is a contractual matter between the holder of the vehicle
licence and the provider of the replacement vehicle as to how the ownership of the
licence is secured.

5.23.2 HCV policy on limiting/ delimiting no’s

The Transport Act 1985 516 provides the key legal provision in respect of numbers of
hackney carriages to be licensed. A local authority has a choice of whether to limit the
number of hackney carriage vehicle licences issued or not, however this is a qualified
choice and a local authority can only chose to limit the number of hackney carriage
proprietors licences if the local authority is satisfied that there is no significant unmet
demand for hackney carriages.

The Department for Transports Best Practice Guidance 2010 para 45-51 deals with the
matter of numbers of hackney carriage vehicle licences (also known as proprietor
licences), the Guidance generally questions the benefits of limiting the numbers of
licences issues and details that where such limits are imposed regular surveys should be
undertaken to assess whether significant unmet demand does exist.

Lancaster City Council currently limits the number of hackney carriage proprietors’
licences at 108. Regular unmet demand surveys have identified no significant unmet
demand for hackney carriages; however the Council does receive anecdotal information
regarding a lack of availability of wheelchair accessible vehicles. As part of the formal
consultation process the Council intend to explore this issue further and consult with
service user groups, in particular those who may requires specialist licensed vehicles to
assess whether their specific needs are being met in respect of private hire and hackney
carriage provision.

The Council will consider whether it is appropriate to licence additional specialist vehicles
to provide for the needs of people travelling in wheelchairs. If the consultation process
identifies the publics wish for greater availability and accessibility of licensed vehicles the




Page 79

council will consider options for achieving this, without imposing additional requirements
on existing licence holders (albeit recognising the additional capital costs on all
proprietors that will be associated with compliance with proposed emission
requirements to be met by 2025 and 2030).

Whilst there has been much case law published on the matter of numbers of hackney
carriage licences issues, there does not appear to be any legislative provision including
case law that prevents the allocation of additional hackney carriage proprietor licences
even when no significant unmet demand has been identified, the test that the council
must satisfy is that any such decision must not be “Wednesbury unreasonable”. The
term Wednesbury unreasonable comes from a case law which defines Wednesbury
unreasonable as being so unreasonable or irrational that no reasonable person acting
reasonably could have made it.

5.23.3 Hackney carriage vehicles special requirements

The hackney carriage vehicle specification at Appendix J details the requirements in
respect of all hackney carriage vehicles. There is a historic requirement that any
additional vehicle licences granted i.e. new licences as opposed to transfer of licences the
vehicles must be wheelchair accessible.

As part of this review of policy the Council will seek to realign licence numbers so that it
is easily identifiable from the hackney carriage vehicle licence number whether it is
mandated to be a wheelchair accessible vehicle or not.

5.23.4 Hackney Carriage byelaws

This paragraph repeats the information detailed at section 4.9 of the policy this is
repeated because the byelaws apply to both hackney carriage drivers and the holders of
hackney carriage vehicle licences.

Lancaster City Council byefaws in respect of taxis were approved in March 2014 and
came into effect on 23 April 2014. A copy of the Byelaws can he found at Appendix F.

It is an offence to fail to comply with the byelaws, Details of the maximum penalties for
failure to comply with bye laws is deal with under the enforcement part of this policy
details of the bye law offences are detailed in Appendix Q.

5.23.5 Hackney Carriage ranks

There are two separate legal provisions which allow for the creation of “hackney
carriage ranks/ stands” commonly referred to as taxi ranks.

Hackney carriage stands were originally created by the Town Police Clauses Act 1847,
now replaced by Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976. Where a
hackney carriage stand has been designated by this legisiation, authorised local




Page 80

authority officers, namely licensing officers can undertake enforcement action in
respect of the provisions of section 64 of the 1976 Act, i.e. prohibition of other vehicles
on a hackney carriage stand- accepting the defence of reasonable excuse.

In recent years, many local authorities including the City Council have utilised traffic
regulation orders (TROs) to create hackney carriage ranks, which imposes parking
restrictions applied in such a way that they only permit hackney carriages to utilise the
facility. The advantage of a TRO rank is that it can be enforced by civil enforcement
officers who can issued fixed penalty notices.

Where taxi ranks have been designated using the TRO process, licensing officers do not
have authority to issue fixed penalty notices nor can they take action against private
vehicles parking on the “rank” or for a hackney carriage driver leaving his / her vehicle
unattended on  a “rank”. However licensing officers can consider this as a conduct
issue as part of the requirement for a licensed driver to be “fit and proper”.

Appendix O provides details of the “taxi ranks” in the City area and the type of
legislation used to provide the “rank”.

6. Private Hire Operators

6.1 The “Fit and Proper” test

Legislation requires that private hire operators are “Fit and proper” but does not
provide a definition as to what constitutes fit and proper. However, the Institute of
Licensing Suggest the following

“Would | be comfortable providing sensitive information such as holiday plans,
movements of my family or other information to this person, and feel safe in the
knowledge that such information will not be used or passed on for criminal or
unacceptable purposes”

The Councils Guidelines on the relevance of convictions and other conduct at Appendix
A outlines the matters that will be considered together with relevant conduct issues
that will be considered when determining whether a person is “fit and proper” but
again does not provide a definitive definition of the term.

There is no medical assessment required as part of private hire operator fit and proper
considerations.

Relevant financial conduct and previous business status may be a relevant consideration.




Page 81

6.2 Private Hire Operator application process new and renewal

6.2.1 Application for a new private hire operator licence

An applicant for a new private hire operator’s licence is required to provide:

A fully completed application form

A copy of the proposed private hire fare card

A copy of proposed company door signage

A copy of Public & Employers Liability insurance
OFCOM Licence {if you use radio systems)

A basic DBS certificate for each person named on the application (if a partnership or
limited company it is for each partner/director) (existing licensed drivers are exempt
from this requirement as they already hold an enhanced DBS)

The Relevant licence fee {please see Council website at Taxi and Private Hire Licence
Forms - Lancaster City Council for current fee table )

Right to work documents for each applicant (please see section 3.14 and Appendix D for
further details)

6.2.2. Application to renew a private hire operator’s licence

A compieted renewal application must be received prior to the expiry of the operator’s
licence, failure to do so will mean that the private hire operator must cease trading upon
expiry of the previous licence. A completed renewal application will include the following

documents.

Copy of current private hire fare card

Copy of Current Public & Employers Liability insurance certificate

Basic DBS certificate for each person named on the application (if a partnership or
limited company it is for each partner/ director) {existing licensed drivers are exempt
from this requirement as they already hold an enhanced DBS )

Relevant fee ( pilease see Council website at Taxi and Private Hire Licence Forms -
Lancaster City Council for current fee table )

i any of the applicants have limited leave to remain in the UK or have right to remain via
a spousal visa a copy of the current right to work documents must be provided (please
see section 3.14 and Appendix D for further details).

Copy of written policies as required by the conditions attached to the grant of a private
hire operator licence, e.g. data protection policy, equalities policy, customer services and
complaints policy, complaints record and safeguarding policy should also be provided as
part of the renewal licence application.




Page 82

6.3 Criminality checks for private hire operators

Where an applicant for a Private Hire Operators Licence is not the holder of a Lancaster
City Council hackney carriage / private hire drivers’ licence, they will be subject to a
Basic DBS disclosure and required to complete a statutory declaration.

Once a private hire operator licence has been issued then an operator will be required
to provide the Licensing authority with an annual DBS basic disclosure, this requirement
will be enforced via a condition placed upon the grant of the private hire operator
licence.

Where the applicant / private hire operator is a company or partnership each
director/partner will be required to comply with the requirements of the basic
disclosure described in the paragraphs above.

Overseas checks- certificate of good Character

Where an applicant has spent 3 continuous months or more outside of the UK, the
Council will request evidence of a criminal record check from the country or countries
where the applicant has spent at [east 3 months. If criminal record checks are not
available in individual countries, then a certificate of good character will be required
from the relevant embassy. Only approved translations will be considered, and the cost
of approved translations will be the applicant’s responsibility.

Asylum seekers who hold a Home Office issued application registration document
together with a positive verification letter from the Home Office's Employer Checking
Service stating that the named individual is permitted to work in the UK will be exempt
from the requirement to submit a recent Certificate of Good Character. The Council will
require any Certificale of Good Character that the applicant may have regardless of the
age of the document.

The above requirement will not be enforced in respect of any operator who currently
holds a Lancaster hackney carriage/ private hire drivers’ licence. The reason for this is
that all Lancaster hackney carriage/ private hire drivers are subject to 6 monthly DBS
checks via the DBS update service, these are undertaken at an enhanced level.

6.4 Record keeping and documentation

The Local Government {Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 section 56 requires private
hire operators keep details of private hire bookings. it is for City Council to determine
exactly what details should be recorded and how long these should be kept for. Licence
conditions attached to the grant of Private hire operator licences, detail the booking
records requirements.




Page 83

More recently it has been recognised how safeguarding measures can assist in the
protection of public safety, as such the City Council considers it reasonably necessary for
documentation and other records to be kept to enhance public safety measures.

The requirement for such checks, documentation and record keeping will be
administered and enforced by licence conditions attached to the grant of the private
hire operator licence.

6.5 Private Hire Operator Licencing conditions

Legislation allows the Council to attach “reasonably necessary” conditions to the grant
of a private hire operator’s licence.

The Council has a set of standard licence conditions that are attached to the grant of
private hire operator licences see Appendix P.

The Council will include additional specific licence conditions on the grant of a licence
where it considers it reasonably necessary to do so.

Where the holder of a private hire operator licence considers that any licence condition
is not reasonably necessary, then the licence holder has a right of appeal against the
licence condition being imposed. More information on appeals in available in Chapter 7.

The Council recognises that in some cases private hire operator licences have been
granted for periods of 5 years in accordance with Deregulation Act 2015 provisions.
Having regard to this a number of private hire operators will not be required to apply
for the grant of a private hire operator’s licence for several years and therefore any new
licence conditions cannot be applied in the short term.

On implementation of this policy, the Licensing team will write to all private hire
operators to make them aware of the new private hire operator licence conditions that
will be attached to the grant of future licences. In the interests of promoting passenger
and driver safety the licensing authority encourages responsible private hire operators
to implement the requirements of the new licensing conditions without delay or waiting
for the conditions to be imposed on the renewed operator licence.

6.6 Approval of Private Hire Company name

It is important that the name of the private hire operator is easily identifiable to the
customer. Operator names which are similar may cause confusion to customers, and as
such operator names similar to names already in use will not be granted.

With effect from the implementation date of this policy, no new private hire operator
will be allowed to use the word taxi in the company name or any other marketing
material. It is acknowledged that licensed private hire operators who currently use the
word taxi in their company name will be allowed to continue to do so, however this
exemption does not apply to company door sighage as detailed below.




Page 84

Where a private hire operator licence has been revoked, the name {or similar) of that
private hire operator associated with the revoked licence cannot be used by another

. operator until 5 years have elapsed since the date of revocation or in the event of any
appeals 5 years from the conclusion of the appeal process. The reason for this is to
prevent any perception of association.

6.7 Approval Private hire vehicle door signage

As part of the initial application private hire operators will be required to provide a copy
of proposed door signage to be used on private hire vehicles dispatched by the
operator. The door signage is required to be of a size XXXXXXXXXXXX, and livered as
landscape. The top2/3 of the door sign can display the company details but is not
permitted to display the word taxi/ cab or any other wording that a customer may
consider the private hire vehicle to be a hackney carriage. The bottom third of the door
sign has to be a solid-coloured background in yellow pantone XXXX and displaying the
following wording in Black size XX font. XXXX type XXXX “This vehicle must be
prebooked with the operator.

Any hackney carriage vehicle dispatched by a private hire operator has the option to
display private hire operator signage on the rear passenger door, the format of the
signage should be the same as for private hire with the exceptions that the hottom third
of the door sign can display the word taxi instead of the Prebooking wording associated
with private hire.

6.7 Planning permission requirements

As part of an application for the grant of a new private hire operator licence. A private
hire operator will need to provide written proof of planning permission in relation to the
operator premises or written proof from the Councils planning officers that planning
permission is not required. This information will then be checked with the Councils
planning officers to ensure that the information is current and valid. A private hire
operator’s licence would not normally be issued in a way that it would conflict with
planning restrictions/ permissions.

6.8 Location of private hire operator

Lancaster City Councif will only licence Operator’s offices that are within the City
Council’s local authority area.




Page 85

7. Compliance and Enforcement

7.1Enforcement policy/ Regulators code / statutory framework

7.1.1Enforcement Policy

(Include Public Protection/Licensing Enforcement Policy — upon review)

7.1.2 Regulators code

The Regulators code came into effect in April 2014 published by the Better Regulation
Delivery Office based within the Governments Dept for Business Innovation and Skills.

The code details 6 principles that regulators including the City Council must have regard
to when undertaking their duties, including developing policies and procedures that
provide guidance on regulatory activity.

The 6 principles within the code are as follows

e Regulators should carry out their activities in a way that supports those they
regulate to comply and grow

e Regulators should provide simple and straightforward ways to engage with those
they regulate and hear their views

e Regulators should base their regulatory activities on risk

e Regulators should share information about compliance and risk

e Regulators should ensure clear information, guidance and advice is available to help
those they regulate meet their responsibilities to comply

e Regulators should ensure that their approach to their regulatory activities is
transparent

The development of this policy and the information, standards and guidance contained
within has been drafted having regard to those principles whilst also having regard to
information within the Department for Transports Statutory Taxi and Private Hire
Vehicle Standards which states at para 3.2.

“When formulating a taxi and private hire vehicle policy the primary and overriding
objective must be to protect the public”

7.1.3. Statutory Framework

The main legislative requirements dealing with specific hackney carriage and private
hire licensing standards can be found in the following iegislation

Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976
Town and Police Clauses Act 1847 and 1889
Deregulation Act 2015

Transport Act 1985 & 2000




Page 86

Other legislation provides a general framework of standards which cover many areas of
life but impact on hackney carriage and private hire licensing examples include:

Health Act 2006
Equality Act 2010
Human Rights Act 1998

Rehabilitation of Offenders Act 1974

7.2 Complaints about hackney carriage and private hire

The Council investigate complaints relating to the conduct of a licence holder and none
licence holder {for example allegations of unlicensed drivers). It is standard practice for
officers to request complaints are received in writing (email will suffice), this ensures
that officers know the exact details of the complaint.

It is acknowledged that in certain circumstances complainants may not be able to
provide details of the complaint in writing, this does not mean the complaint will not be
regarded as valid, and in the case of vulnerahle people officers may offer to meet them
at a convenient location to take full details of the complaint.

Where the complaint relates to a serious public safety matter this will be treated as an
urgent matter and forwarded to a competent officer for immediate investigation.

Similarly requests for information from partner agencies including the police and other
authorities will be dealt with as a priority having regard to relevant data protection
reguirements.

Complainants are asked to provide their contact details so that they can be given
relevant information following the investigation of a complaint.

Anonymous complaints will generally not be treated as seriously as other complaints. it
is recognised that complaints can be malicious, however it is also recognised that
complainants can be genuinely frightened and vulnerable. Anonymous complaints in
respect of serious public safety allegations will be thoroughly investigated. Anonymous
complaints about less serious matters such as minor overcharging, inconsiderate
parking, use of a radio in a vehicle etc are likely to be dealt with by noting the allegation.

The City Council does not have a target resolution time for complaints, this is in
recognition of the wide variety of investigations that may be necessary. However, the
City Council does have a target response time of confirming receipt of a complaint and
providing a contact officers details to the complainant within 5 days of receipt of the
complaint.

Complaints will be recorded on the City Councils data base and will be subject to trends
analysis on an ongoing basis in respect of individual licence holders and as part of
performance monitoring reporting in terms of general analysis of complaint types.




Page 87

There are a wide variety of actions that can arise from the investigation of complaints
this include:

e No action

e Verbal advice given

e Written advice/ warning issued

e Suspension/ revocation of licences

¢ Simple cautions

¢ Prosecutions

¢ Formal review of a licence which could result in any of the above

Where there are a number of complaints against a ficence holder this is likely to
compound concerns regarding the licence holder’s suitability to maintain the licence,

As part of the inspection of private hire operator premises, authorised officers will
inspect the complaints record log to identify and pattern of complaints and action
accordingly.

Where appropriate information concerning the investigation and outcome of
investigation of complaints may be shared with other agencies including the police and
the National Refusals register of taxi drivers (NR3).

7.3 Complaints about the Licensing service

Anyone who wishes to complain about the service they have received from the
Licensing service can do so as part of the City Councils formal complaints procedure.
This is detailed on the Councils website at
www.lancaster.gov.uk/information/complaints-comments-and-questions. Alternatively
you can contact customer services by telephoning 01524 582000 or email
complaints@Ilancaster.gov.uk

7.4 Service Reguests

This is a request for information as opposed to receipt of a complaint. Service requests
can be received from applicants, licence holders, partner agencies, councillors or any
other individual / organisation. Where the information requested is available on the
Councils website, the enquirer will be directed to the webpage.

The most efficient way to make a service request is by emailing
licensing@lancaster.gov.uk. This email address is monitored throughout the working
day, and whilst you may not receive an immediate response emails are promptly
forwarded to the appropriate officer.

Administrative charges may be levied for some service requests.




Page 88

7.5 Refusal to grant a licence

The legislative framework for refusal of drivers, vehicles and operators’ licences is
contained within the Local Government {Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976. Applicants
will always be informed in writing of the reasons why an application has been refused
and their right of appeal against the decision.

Where an applicant is refused a licence he/she does have a right of appeal, generally
this is to the Magistrates Court, the only exception being the refusal to grant a hackney
carriage vehicle licence is an appeal direct to Crown Court.

The City Council will keep a record of all licence applications refused and the reasons for
the refusal, this information will be shared if requested in accordance with relevant data
protection requirements.

7.6 Suspension/ revocation of licences

The Local Government {Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 provides provisions for
suspending and revoking driver, vehicle and operator licences where it is appropriaie to
do so.

The difference between the suspension and revocation of a licence is that in general
terms a suspension of a licence is for a finite period for example;

¢ suspend a driver’s licence until a satisfactory medical certificate has been produced

¢ suspend a driver’s licence until a particular training course has been completed

e suspend a vehicle licence until a satisfactory certificate of insurance has been
produced etc

A revocation however is a total loss of a licence, once revoked a licence cannot be
reinstated, other than via an appeal process. A person can make a new application for a
licence.

Case law has defined that suspension /revocation cannot be a two stage process, if
action is required to take away a licence it must be a suspension or a revocation of a
licence it cannot be one followed by the other (for reference the relevant case law is
Cardiff v Singh 2012}.

The City Council will keep a record of all suspended and revoked licences and the
reasons for the actions taken, this information will be shared if requested in accordance
with relevant data protection requirements.

7.7 Prosecutions licence holders/ none licence holders

Where a licence holder has committed an offence listed in Appendix Q, the City Council
must make a decision in respect of what action should be taken against the licence
holder. The City Council will have regard to the Council’s Enforcement policy detailed
above, the Regulators code and the Code for Crown Prosecutors.




Page 89

There are a number of factors that will be taken into consideration before any decision
is made. These factors include:

e |sthere enough evidence to prosecute?

e |sitin the publicinterest to prosecute?

e How serious/ potentially serious is the offence?

¢ Has the person benefitted from the offence?

e Isthere any relevant previous history?

o Isthe offence likely to be repeated?

e Was the person coerced in any way?

e Has there been any harm caused?

e Isthere a potential for impact on the wider community?
e [s prosecution a proportionate response?

There are a limited number of circumstances where prosecutions will be instigated
against none licence holders, primarily these will relate to persons working within the
licensed trade but without having the relevant licence in place, and include, persons
working on expired licences, unlicensed drivers purporting to be licensed drivers etc

7.8 Appeals

The principles of the rules of natural justice, lead to the position that someone has the
right to challenge decisions. In terms of hackney and private hire licencing there is a
right of appeal to the Magistrates’ court against decisions to revoke, refuse, suspension
of a licence and against any decisions imposed upon the grant of a licence. Appeals to
Magistrates’ court must be made within 21 days of receipt of the decision.

In most circumstances once an appeal has been lodged a person may continue to utilise
the licence until the appeal process has been finalised or withdrawn, although clearly
this does not apply to new applicants.

There are some exceptions to the above

e There is no immediate right of appeal against a Councils decision to immediately
suspend a vehicle licence issued under section 68 of the Local Government
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976. The action takes immediate effect, however if
the suspension has not been lifted within a 2-month period a right of appeal is then
applied

¢ In relation to a decision to refuse to grant a hackney carriage vehicle licence the
appeal is direct to the Crown Court

e A hackney carriage/ private hire drivers licence revoked or suspended with
immediate effect on the grounds of public safety, prevents the licence holder from
continuing to utilise the licence, even when an appeal has been lodged.

e In most cases there is a further right of appeal from the Magistrates Court to the
Crown Court




Page 90

7.9. Data sharing / partnership working including National Refusals Register.

The City Council will share with other enforcement bodies and relevant agencies
including DBS and National Anti-Fraud Network (NAFN} who operate the NR3 national
refusal register, information supplied by applicants/ licence holders or acquired in the
course of exercising the licensing functions, where it is lawful to do so. Personal
information will only be disclosed in accordance with the Data Protection Act 2018 and
General Data Protection Regulations. This may include requests from other agencies
where this is necessary for the detection or prevention of crime or required by law in
connection with legal proceedings. Where applicable, it will be in accordance with the
relevant data information sharing protocol.

The Comman Law Police disclosure requires that where there is a risk to public
protection the police will pass the information to the City Council to allow them to act
swiftly to protect the public. Examples of this include informing the City Council of
relevant matters at the appropriate time which may be include upon a person’s arrest,
charge or investigation. An information sharing protocol is in place with Lancashire
Constabulary

7.10 Referrals to the DBS and the police

Where the City Councit make a decision to refuse or revoke a licence as the applicant/
licence holder is thought to present a risk to harm to a child or vulnerable adult, the City
Council will refer this decision to the Disclosure and Barring Service in addition to the

. NR3 register detailed above.

The circumstances that will warrant such a referral are as follows

e  Where an applicant/ licence holder has harmed or poses a risk of harm to a child or
vulnerable adult

» An applicant/ licence holder has satisfied the harm test *:or

e Received a caution or conviction for a relevant offence

o The applicant/ licence holder being referred is / has or might in the future be
working in a regulated activity

If the above conditions are satisfied the DBS may consider it appropriate to add the
applicant/ licence holder to the barred list.

* harm test = (NEED TO DEFINE, WEBSITE DOWN WHEN jH CHECKED 21 DEC A person
satisfies the harm test if they may harm a child or vulnerable adult or put them at risk of
harm. It is something a person may do to cause harm or pose a risk of harm to a child or
vulnerable adult).

Where the City Council make a decision to refuse or revoke a licence on the grounds of
public safety, the City Council will inform the police of the decision.




Page 91




Page 92

APPENDIX A

Guidelines on the relevance of

Convictions, Cautions, and Conduct

1. Drivers

When submitting an application for a licence to drive a hackney carriage or a private hire vehicle, or
to renew such a licence, applicants are required to declare on the application form ALL previous
convictions, cautions, penalties and motoring endorsements they may have received, with the
exception of protected cautions and convictions which are detailed below. Applicants are also
required to declare any on-going criminal investigations, prosecutions, or similar legal proceedings
of which they are the subject.

Hackney carriage and private hire drivers are exempt from the provisions of the Rehabilitation of
Offenders Act 1974, , therefore convictions which would ordinarily be considered ‘spent’ must be
declared and may be considered in the determination of the application.

The Rehabilitation of offenders Act 1974 ( Exceptions Order 1975) {2013) Order introduced new
categories of 'protected cautions' and 'protected convictions', which mean that after the stated
period of time an applicant must be treated as not having been charged with, convicted of or
sentenced for any of those offences that would fall within the categories of protected cautions /
convictions, as such protected cautions and protected convictions do not need to be disclosed

Protected Cautions
A caution is only a “protected caution” if:

¢ |t does not relate to a listed offence,

¢ |t was given to a person aged under 18 at the time of the caution and two years or more have
elapsed.

e It was given to a person aged 18 or over at the time of the caution and six years or more have
elapsed.

Protected Convictions
A conviction is only a protected conviction if;

¢ It does not relate to a “listed offence” such as violence and sexual offences.

e No custodial sentence was imposed.

e |t isthe only conviction that the individual has received.

o It was received by a person aged under 18 at the time of the conviction and five and a half years
or more have elapsed; and

e It was received by a person aged 18 or over at the time of the conviction and 11 years or more
have elapsed.

NB the reference to “listed offence” is as per list detailed in the current Rehabilitation of offenders
Act 1974 ( Exceptions Order 1975) (2013 and 2020). At the time of drafting this policy this was the
2020 order, the “listed offences” for the purposes of protected cautions and convictions is subject




Page 93
APPENDIX A

to change and is therefore not detailed in this policy, the “listed offences” should be taken from the
Exceptions order 1975 ( 2013 and 2020}

There has been recent changes to legislation introduced on 28 November 2020 which means that:

e warnings, reprimands, and youth cautions will no longer be automatically disclosed on a DBS
certificate.

e the multiple conviction rule has been removed, meaning that if an individual has more than one
conviction, regardless of offence type or time passed, each conviction will be considered against
the remaining rules individually, rather than all being automatically disclosed.

Upon initial application, all driver applicants will be required to obtain an enhanced level disclosure
from the Disclosure and Barring Service (DBS). This level of disclosure includes details of spent
convictions and police cautions, {with the exceptions as detailed above) as well as any non-
conviction information deemed relevant to the application. This level of check is considered
appropriate as a licensed driver may be left in sole charge of passengers under 18 years of age or
other vulnerable adults, at any time and without prior knowledge. The Council shall facilitate these
applications upon payment of the required fee.

As well as submitting an application for an enhanced DBS disclosure, a driver applicant is required
to sign up and maintain subscription to the to the DBS update service he/she will not be required to
obtain a further enhanced DBS disclosure unless a check on the online update service reveals a
change in status to the disclosure.

Please note there is a time limit applied by the DBS in respect of sign up to the online system.
Failure to maintain subscription to the online update service may result in the suspension /
revocation of a licence.

The Council will undertake 6 monthly online checks on the status of all licensed drivers DBS
disclosures/ certificates.

Where a change in status of a disclosure is indicated a licensed driver will be required to submit a
further enhanced disclosure, this may be at renewal or during the duration of a current licence.




Page 94

APPENDIX A

2. Vehicle Licence Holders

There is no explicit requirement within legislation for vehicle licence holders {(proprietors) to be fit
and proper, the City Council has absolute discretion over granting a vehicle licence (hackney and
private hire) and will therefore undertake a variety of checks before issuing a vehicle licence. There
needs to be public trust and confidence in the standards applied by the City Council as part of this
process applicants for vehicle licences will be required to complete a basic disclosure and complete
a statutory declaration at each application. The exception to this is there is no such requirement for
licensed drivers to undertake such checks in respect of vehicle licences as licensed drivers have
already been subject to enhanced DBS disclosures and 6 monthly checks on the online DBS update

service,

Vehicle proprietors {both hackney carriage and private hire) have two principal responsibilities:

1) They must ensure that the vehicle is maintained to an acceptable standard at all times, and;
2) They must ensure the vehicie is not used for illegal or illicit purposes

It is recognised that some vehicle licence holders rent or track their vehicle to a licensed driver, in
such circumstances the vehicle licence holder must ensure that they have adequate management
control systems in place to ensure that the vehicle is properly maintained, they cannot pass all
responsibility to the licensed driver.

Vehicle licence holders that fail to maintain their vehicle in a satisfactory condition are likely to be
give rise to considerations in respect of whether the licence holder is suitable to hold a vehicle
licence.

In addition to vehicle maintenance standards, the disclosure of any convictions, cautions,
reprimands, investigations etc will be taken into account in determining an application and the
relevant considerations are listed in the relevance of convictions, cautions, reprimands and conduct
listed below

Where vehicle licence applicant(s) have more than one conviction, serious consideration will need
to be given as to whether they are a fit and proper person to hold a licence. Similarly a single
serious conviction which could undermine public safety will be sufficient cause to refuse a vehicle
licence application and revoke or suspend an existing vehicle licence holder.




Page 95

APPENDIX A

3. Private Hire Operators

In performing their duties private hire operators obtain and hold considerable amounts of personal
and private information about their passengers, which must be treated in confidence and not
revealed to others, or used by the operator or their staff for criminal or unacceptable purposes.

As public trust and confidence in the overall safety and integrity of the private hire system is vital,
private hire operators, including directors and shareholders are required to submit upon
application, a basic level DBS certificate, private hire operator licence conditions require a new
certificate is provided every 12 months. The Council will have regard to the standards applied to
licensed drivers with the following exceptions:

o Information disclosed on an enhanced DBS (as part of a PH/ HC driver application/ licence) will
not be taken into account in respect of the private hire operator licence unless such
information would also be revealed on a basic disclosure i.e., unspent convictions

e Where applicant{s) have more than one conviction, serious consideration will need to be given
as to whether they are a fit and proper person to hold a licence. However in respect of
applicants for or holders of a private hire operator’s licence regard will also be had to the
criteria list in XX below and how any conviction or other conduct matter could be considered
relevant to the role of private hire operator. In particular isolated motoring offences may have
less relevance to public safety in respect of a private hire operator role, however an applicant
for or holder of a private hire operator’s licence with a pattern of motoring offences may still
give rise to concern as it would demonstrate a general lack of regard for public safety, a
consideration which may reflect into other elements of their role as a private hire operator.

The previous business conduct of a private hire operator may also be taken into account when
determining whether a person is fit and proper to be a private hire operator, a person who has
been bankrupt, investigated for financial irregularities or other similar conduct will have such
conduct considered as part of the fit and proper test. The considerations given to such matters will
depend on the factors listed in the relevance of convictions, cautions, and conduct below.




Page 96

APPENDIX A

4. General Policy

As a general rule, the Council will expect applicants (drivers, vehicle, and operators) for licences and
licence holders to be free from previous convictions, cautions and be of good conduct. However, a
person with convictions or cautions will not be excluded from holding a licence but should be
expected to have:

e remained free of conviction for an appropriate period and
o shown adequate evidence of good character from the time of conviction.

Simply remaining free of conviction will not generally be regarded as sufficient evidence of good
character.

Particular regard will be had to any failure to accurately complete an application {(whether that be
new application or renewal) this may give rise to serious concerns regarding an applicant’s honesty
for example failure to disclose a relevant matter in regard to conduct or the previous suspension /
revocation of licences will likely result in the refusal to grant a licence. The application forms also
make it clear that providing a false statement or omitting information may be a criminal offence.

Each case will be decided on its own merits. Some discretion may be appropriate if the offence is
isolated and there are mitigating circumstances, However, multiple offences or a series of offences
over a period of time are likely to give greater cause for concern and may demonstrate a pattern of
inappropriate behaviour, which will be taken into account.

On application to renew a licence, if no further convictions have been received since the previous
application was considered, the Council will not consider it necessary to review convictions
considered on the previous application. However, in cases where new convictions, or other
relevant information has been received, all convictions may be taken into consideration, even if
they have been previously considered.




Page 97

APPENDIX A

5. Relevance of Convictions, Cautions, and Conduct

In determining the relevance of a conviction, offences or cautions, relevant to applicants for and
holders of driver, vehicle and operator licences consideration will be given to the nature and
seriousness of the offence involved, the period of time elapsed since the event and the applicant’s/
ficensees conduct subsequent to that.

In circumstances where previous convictions, cautions or other information relating to criminal
matters is disclosed, the Council, will have regard to the following:

e The relevance of the offence(s) or other matters revealed in the application.

e The seriousness of any offence(s) or any other matter revealed.

e The class / nature of the offences(s).

e The age of the offences(s).

¢ The age of the person at the time of the offence(s).

e Whether the disclosure reveals a pattern of behaviour.

e  Whether the applicant’s circumstances have changed since the offending behaviour or the
other relevant matters; and

e Any other information that is deemed appropriate for consideration in determining whether
the person is a ‘fit’ and ‘proper’ person.

in addition to the above, the Council is also entitled to use all other records and information
available to it in determining applications or entitlement to continue holding a licence. This may
include information held by the Council or other licensing authorities and information held by the
police.

The overall offending history will be considered when assessing a person’s suitability to be licensed
or to continue holding a licence.

Where the applicant has been convicted of a criminal offence the Council cannot and will not
review the merits of the conviction. It is noted that cautions are not convictions, but rather are an
admission of guilt to a criminal matter. The Council may have regard to cautions when considering
an application, and will take the following matters into consideration:

e The nature of the offence
¢ Any history of related cautions or convictions
¢ The guidelines applying to convictions of that category.

The issue of summons or the arrest and release on bail with or without charge can indicate that
there has been an event, which may cause the Council to review the suitability of an applicant or a
licensed holder to hold a licence.

Although some specific guidelines on the relevance of convictions are contained in the following
sections for examples of offences to which the Council will pay particular regard, the Council will
give equal consideration to offences falling outside of these categories and the examples given.
Offences of a similar nature or differently entitled in any statutory provision, modification or re-
enactment will be taken into account in accordance with the guidelines.




Page 98

APPENDIX A

The specific time periods detailed below should be regarded as a minimum time period that an
applicant is expected to be free from conviction, caution, reprimand etc.

Crimes resulting in death

Where an applicant or licensee has been convicted of a crime which resulted in the death of
another person or was intended to cause the death or serious injury of another person they will not
be licensed.

Exploitation

Where an applicant or licensee has been convicted of a crime involving, related to, or has any
connection with abuse, exploitation, use or treatment of another individual irrespective of whether
the victim or victims were adulis or children, they will not be licensed. This includes slavery, chitd
sexual exploitation, grooming, psychological, emotional, or financial abuse, this is not an exhaustive
list.

Offences involving violence

Where an applicant/ licensee has a conviction for an offence of violence, or connected with any
offence of violence, a licence will not be granted until at least 10 years have elapsed since the
completion of any sentence imposed.

Possession of a weapon

Where an applicant/ licensee has a conviction for possession of a weapon or any other weapon
related offence, a licence will not be granted until at least 7 years have elapsed since the
completion of any sentence imposed.

Sexual and Indecency offences

Where an applicant/ licensee has a conviction for any offence involving or connected with illegal
sexual activity or any form of indecency, a licence will not be granted.

In addition to the above, the licensing authority will not grant a licence to any applicant who is
currently on the Sex Offenders Register or on any ‘barred’ list.

Dishonesty

Where an applicant/ licensee has a conviction for any offence of dishonesty, or any offence where
dishonesty is an element of the offence, a licence will not be granted until at least 7 years have
elapsed since the completion of any sentence imposed.

Drugs

Where an applicant/ licensee has any conviction for, or related to, the supply of drugs, or
possession with intent to supply or connected with possession with intent to supply, a licence will
not be granted until at least 10 years have elapsed since the completion of any sentence imposed.




Page 99
APPENDIX A

Where an applicant/ licensee has a conviction for possession of drugs, or related to the possession
of drugs, a licence will not be granted until at least 5 years have elapsed since the completion of
any sentence imposed. In these circumstances, any applicant/ licensee will also have to undergo
drugs testing at their own expense to demonstrate that they are not using controlled drugs.

Discrimination

Where an applicant/ licensee e has a conviction involving or connected with discrimination in any
form a licence will not be granted until at least 7 years have elapsed since the completion of any
sentence imposed.

Motoring Convictions

Hackney carriage and private hire drivers are professional drivers charged with the responsibility of
carrying the public. Any motoring conviction, fixed penalty notice or requirement to attend driver
training course, demonstrates a lack of professionalism and will be considered seriously. It is
accepted that offences can be committed unintentionally, and a single occurrence of a minor traffic
offence would not prohibit the grant of a licence or may not result in action against an existing
licence. Subsequent convictions reinforce the fact that the licensee does not take their professional
responsibilities seriously and is therefore not a safe and suitable person to be granted or retain a
ticence.

Drink driving/driving under the influence of drugs/using a hand-held telephone or handheld
device whilst driving )

Where an applicant /licensee has a conviction for drink driving or driving under the influence of
drugs, a licence will not be granted until at least 7 years have elapsed since the completion of any
sentence or driving ban imposed. In these circumstances, any applicant will also have to undergo
drugs testing at their own expense to demonstrate that they are not using controlled drugs.

Where an applicant/ licensee has a conviction for using a hand-held mobile telephone or a hand-
held device whilst driving, a licence will not be granted until at least 5 years have elapsed since the
conviction or completion of any sentence or driving ban imposed, whichever is the later.

Other motoring offences

A minor traffic or vehicle related offence is one which does not involve loss of life, driving under the
influence of drink or drugs, driving whilst using a mobhile phone, and has not resulted in injury to
any person or damage to any property {including vehicles). Where an applicant has 7 or more
points on their DVLA licence for minor traffic or similar offences, a licence will not be granted until
at least 5 years have elapsed since the completion of any sentence imposed.

A major traffic or vehicle related offence is one which is not covered above and also any offence
which resulted in injury to any person or damage to any property {including vehicles). I also
includes driving without insurance, or any offence connected with motor insurance. Where an
applicant has a conviction for a major traffic offence or similar offence, a licence will not be granted
until at least 7 years have elapsed since the completion of any sentence imposed.




Page 100

APPENDIX A

Hackney carriage and private hire offences

Where an applicant / licensee has a conviction for an offence concerned with or connected to
hackney carriage or private hire activity {excluding vehicle use}, a licence will not be granted until at
least 7 years have elapsed since the completion of any sentence imposed.

Vehicle use offences

Where an applicant has a conviction or caution for any offence which involved the use of a vehicle
{including hackney carriages and private hire vehicles), a licence will not be granted until at least 7
years have elapsed since the completion of any sentence imposed.




Page 101

APPENDIX A




Page 102

Licence Number:

Hackney Carriage (Taxi)
Public Information Charter

This information is produced by Lancaster City Council who have licensed this vehicle and its
driver, the following information is for the benefit of passengers and the driver.

Passengers and drivers should show mutual respect and be polite to each other.

Passengers please:
e Let the driver know of any specific requirements before you commence your
journey.
¢ Make sure you have adequate funds to pay for your journey.
e For the comfort of future passengers do not eat, smoke, or drink inside this vehicle.
e Do not ask the driver to speed or to take unnecessary risks on the road.
e Make sure you do not leave any property in the vehicle.
e Askthe driver if you would like any assistance.
e Ask the driver if you would like a receipt, one should be provided on request.
e Ensure the taxi meter is engaged at the start of the journey and not before.

Passengers if you have concerns about your journey:
e Take note of the vehicle licence number at the top of this information sheet.
e If you feel unsafe tell the driver and use your mobile phone to contact a responsible
person.

Complaints

e If you are unhappy about the service provided and your journey was one that was
pre-booked via a private hire operator, please contact the private hire operator and
provide details of your complaint. The operator will investigate your complaint and
advise you of the outcome.

o If you picked up the taxi at a taxi rank or flagged down the vehicle in the street,
please contact licensing@lancaster.gov.uk providing as much detail of the
complaint as possible. The Council’s licensing team will investigate your complaint
and advise you of the outcome.

Compliments
e Hackney carriage drivers often face lots of challenges when undertaking their work,
if you think that your driver has provided an excellent service, please take the time
to say thank you. You may even wish to contact the Council to them know about the
excellent service you received.

In any event, for advice, information or concerns about the licensed trade you can contact
Lancaster City Councils Licensing team at: licensing@lancaster.gov.uk




Page 103




Page 104

licence Number:

Private Hire
Public Information Charter

This information is produced by Lancaster City Council who have licensed this vehicle and its
driver, the following information is for the benefit of passengers and the driver.

Passengers and drivers should show mutual respect and be polite to each other.

Passengers please:
e Let the driver know of any specific requirements before you commence your
journey.
e Make sure you have adequate funds to pay for your journey.
e For the comfort of future passengers do not eat, smoke, or drink inside this vehicle.
e Do not ask the driver to speed or to take unnecessary risks on the road.
e Make sure you do not leave any property in the vehicle.
e Ask the driver if you would like any assistance.
o Ask the driver if you would like a receipt, one should be provided on request.

Passengers if you have concerns about your journey:

e Take note of the vehicle licence number at the top of this information sheet. I
¢ If you feel unsafe tell the driver and use your mobile phone to contact a responsible
person.
Complaints

¢ If you are unhappy about the service provided, please contact the private hire
operator and provide details of your complaint. The operator will investigate your
complaint and advise you of the outcome.

Compliments
e Private hire drivers often face lots of challenges when undertaking their work, if you
think that your driver has provided an excellent service, please take the time to say
thank you. You may even wish to contact the private hire operator or Lancaster City
Council to them know about the excellent service you received.

in any event, for advice, information or concerns about the licensed trade you can contact
Lancaster City Councils Licensing team at: licensing@Ilancaster.gov.uk




Page 105




Page 106

Appendix B

Staying Safe: Guidance for Passengers

This guidance is provided to assist passengers in identifying hackney carriage and private hire vehicles and
the increased risks of using unlicensed vehicles.

The licensing of hackney carriage and private hire vehicles is undertaken by local councils, who in turn set
focal criteria around the licensing of the trade (commonly referred to as taxis). This is why hackney
carriages and private hire vehicles look different in different parts of the Country. In the large city areas, a
lot of the hackney carriage vehicles tend to be London style taxis — often commonly referred to as “black
cabs”, in smaller cities, towns, and rural areas including Lancaster City Council area there is no
requirements for all hackney carriages to be London style cabs, in Lancaster they are a mix of saloon cars,
multipurpose vehicles and wheelchair accessible vehicles.

The private hire trade is also licensed by the Lancaster City Council, these vehicles have to be prebooked
through a private hire operator.

Listed below is information on what the different types of licensed vehicles look like in Lancaster and how
you can tell a vehicle is licensed in the first instance.

All licensed vehicles have the following information displayed:

e Arear licensed plate that provides a licence number, an expiry date, the vehicle registration number,
and Lancaster City Council Logo. Hackney carriage plates are blue and white in colour and private hire
are yellow, examples are shown below. '

{Insert photo of hackney carriage and private hire plates in final version }
» All licensed vehicles will also have door signage on the vehicles, showing the licence number,
{insert photos of hackney carriage and private hire door signs in final version )

¢ All licensed vehicles will have no smoking signage on the passenger door windows.

e All licensed vehicles will have a tariff card displayed inside the vehicle in such a position that it can be
seen by passengers.

o All licensed vehicles will have the public information charter displayed in the vehicle in such a position
that it can be seen by passengers.

{insert copy of public information charter following consultation )

How do Hackney Carriage vehicles look different to Private Hire vehicles

All Lancaster Licensed hackney carriages have to have a roof sign on the top of the vehicle. This can be one
of two types, if the vehicle is a purpose-built hackney carriage, i.e., London taxi/ “black cab” type vehicle it
will have a roof sign built into the front of the vehicle with the words for hire printed on it.

If the vehicle is a saloon or none purpose built hackney it will have the following style roof sign on the
vehicle

(insert photo of roof sign — not yet developed this will be a standard style/ size roof sign to assist in vehicle
D}




Page 107

Appendix B

The door signage is Blue and white in colour

How do Private Hire vehicles look different to Hackney Carriages?

Private hire vehicles do not have any roof signs and the door signage is yellow and black in colour.

Apart from looking different what is the difference between the two types of licensed vehicles ofien

commonly known as taxis?

A customer can pre book a hackney carriage vehicle, flag it down in the street or pick it up from a
hackney carriage rank.

Only Lancaster licensed hackney carriage vehicles can ply for hire in the streets or at a rank, vehicles
licensed in other areas cannot ply for hire or wait at ranks within the Lancaster area.

Private hire vehicles must be prebooked through a licensed private hire operator. The bookings
must be made in advance of customers getting into the vehicle.

If a customer uses a private hire vehicle without prebooking the vehicle is in effect uninsured as the
insurance in place cannot cover this type of use of the vehicle

Hackney carriages can be prebooked either through a private hire operator or direct with the driver.

Safety issues to consider

Only get into a vehicle if you satisfied that it is appropriately licensed.

Only use a private hire vehicle if it has been pre-booked.

Take note of the vehicle details and pick-up point. Some people chose to take a quick photo of the
vehicle licence plate.

If possible prebook your return journey before going out

When prebooking a journey, make sure the collection point and drop off point is in a safe place i.e,,
well lit, busy area, if possible covered by CCTV

Make sure you have adequate funds to pay for your journey — it may be an offence to take a journey
without have the means to pay.

Check if the company/ vehicle you are using accepts card payments.

if travelling alone, consider letting someone know of your journey plans and when your journey has
been completed.

Use the rear seats of the vehicle in preference to the front seats.

When prebooking make sure the company/ person you are booking with is licensed by Lancaster
City Council

Do not fall asleep in the vehicle the driver may not know your exact end location and may feel
uncomfortable in having to try to wake you up.

When prebooking a private hire vehicle you may be able to agree a fare in advance.




Page 108

Appendix C

Information to be included in Annual Report.

Number of Licensing Applications Determined

Type of Application Licence Granted Licence Refused
Application : Application Application | Application
within outside of within outside of

policy policy policy policy

PH Driver - New

PH Driver - Renewal
HC Driver - New

HC Driver - Renewal
Dual Driver - New
Pual Driver - Renewal

PH Vehicle new
PH Vehicle renewal
HC Vehicle new
HC Vehicle renewal

PH Operator new
PH Operator renewal

Number of Compliance Visits/Inspections

Type of Licence Numbers Undertaken

Satisfactory Verbal/Written Formal Action
Warning

PH Driver

HC Driver

Dual Driver

PH Vehicle (Test*)

HC Vehicle (Test*)

PH Vebhicle (Inspection**)

HC Vehicle (Inspection**)

PH Operator k |

Key:
PH/HC Vehicle Test* denotes vehicle test as part of licence application process at Vehicle

Maintenance Unit (VMU).
PH/HC Vehicle Inspection** denotes reactive inspection undertaken by licensing officers
during the course of the licence.




Page 109

Use of Suspension and Revocation Provisions

Appendix C

Type of Licence

Suspension

Revocation

Imm

ediate

Delayed

immediate  Delayed

PH Driver

HC Driver

Dual Driver

PH Vehicle

HC Vehicle

PH Operator

Complaints

{Data relates to complaints closed out during the particular period — otherwise action
numbers never align)

Conduct/Vehicle
Safety

Type of Licence Complaints
Driver or Driving Overcharging/Long | Cleanliness
Operator Standards Routes etc.

PH Driver

HC Driver

Dual Driver

PH Vehicle

HC Vehicle

PH Operator

Key:

Not Applicable




Page 110

Appendix D

List A
Documents showing an on-going right to work in the UK

A passport showing that the holder, ora
person named in the passport as the
child of the holder, is a British citizen or a
citizen of the United Kingdom and
Colonies having the right of abode in the
United Kingdom.

A passport or national identity card
showing that the holder, or a person
named in the passport as the child of the
holder, is a national of a European
Economic Area country or Switzerland.

A residence permit, registration
certificate or document certifying or
indicating permanent residence issued by
the Home Office, the Border and
Immigration Agency or the UK Border
Agency to a natienal of a European
Economic Area country or Switzerland.

A permanent residence card or
document issued by the Home Office, the
Border and Immigration Agency, or the
UK Border Agency to the family member
of a national of a European Economic
Area country or Switzerland.

A Biometric Residence Permit issued by
the UK Border Agency to the holder
which indicates that the person named in
it is allowed to stay indefinitely in the
United Kingdom or has no time limit on
their stay in the United Kingdom.

A passport or other travel document
endorsed to show that the holder is
exempt from immigration control, is
allowed to stay indefinitely in the United
Kingdom, has the right of abede in the
United Kingdom, or has no time limit on
their stay in the United Kingdom.

An official document issued by a previous
employer or Government agency, e.g.,
HM Revenue and Customs, the
Department for Work and Pensicns,
lobcentre Plus, the Training and
Employment Agency (Northern Ireland)
or the Northern Ireland Social Security
Agency, which contains the National
Insurance number and name of the
person, and one of the following:

¢ An Immigration Status Document
issued by the Home Office, the
Border and Immigration Agency, or
the UK Border Agency to the holder
with an endorsement indicating that
the person named in it is allowed to
stay indefinitely in the United
Kingdom or has no time limit on their
stay in the United Kingdom.

e A full birth certificate issued in the
United Kingdom which includes the
name(s) of at least one of the
holder's parents.

e Afull adoption certificate issued in
the United Kingdom which includes
the name(s) of at least one of the
holder’s adoptive parents.

e A birth certificate issued in the
Channel Islands, the Isle of Man or
ireland.

* An adoption certificate issued in the
Channel Islands, the Isle of Man or
Ireland.

e A certificate of registration or
naturalisation as a British citizen

*  Aletter issued by the Home Office,
the Border and Immigration Agency,
or the UK Border Agency to the
holder which indicates that the
person named in it is allowed to stay
indefinitely in the United Kingdom.




Page 111

Appendix D

List B

Documents showing a time-limited right to work in the UK

A passport or travel document endorsed
to show that the holder is allowed to stay
in the United Kingdom and is allowed to
do the type of work in question.

A Biometric Residence Permit issued by
the UK Border Agency to the holder that
indicates that the person named in it can
stay in the United Kingdom and is
allowed to do the work in question.

A work permit or other approval to take
employment issued by the Home Office,
the Border and Immigration Agency, or
the UK Border Agency, and one of the
following:

e a passport or other travel document
endorsed to show the holder is
allowed to stay in the United
Kingdom and is allowed to do the
work in question,

¢ & letter issued by the Home Office,
the Border and Immigration Agency,
or the UK Border Agency to the
holder or the employer or
prospective employer confirming the
same

A Certificate of Application issued by the
Home Office, the Border and Immigration
Agency, or the UK Border Agency to or for
a family member of a national of a
European Economic Area country or
Switzerland stating that the holder is
permitted to take employment which is
less than 6 months old {the Council must
also undertake employment checks with
UKBA in this situation).

A document issued by a previous
employer or Government agency, e.g.,
HM Revenue and Customs, the
Department for Work and Pensions,
Jobcentre Plus, the Training and
Employment Agency (Northern Ireland)
or the Northern Ireland Social Security
Agency, which  contains the National
Insurance number and name of the
holder, and one of the following:

e Ap Immigration Status Document
issued by the Home Office, the
Border and Immigration Agency or
the UK Border Agency to the holder
with an endorsement indicating that
the person named in it can stay in
the United Kingdom and is allowed to
do the type of work in question.

e A letter issued by the Home Office,
the Border and Immigration Agency,
or the UK Border Agency to the
holder or the employer or
prospective employer, which
indicates that the person named.in it
can stay in the United Kingdom and is
allowed to do the work in guestion.

A residence card or document issued by
the Home Office, the Border and
Immigration Agency, or the UK Border
Agency to a family member of a national
of a European Economic Area country or
Switzerland.

An Application Registration Card {ARC)
issued by the Home Office, the Border
and Immigration Agency or the UK
Border Agency stating that the holder is
permitted to take employment.

(The Council must also undertake
employment checks with UKBA in this
situation).




Page 112

“1ueI3 uodn saouedl| auniny
Jo saidoo apiaoud ||eys pue
20UBIN| § JIALP 1Y B1eALd
s1y Jo Adoa e yum Joielado
341y =1eaud ayl aplaoud
Jojeiado aJiy a1eald B yum
HI0M SUDUIWIC) 810430 e
"Jues8 uodn $30UB2| MmNy
40 sa1dod aplacad ||eys pue
3]2142A PISUITY B SUIALIP
01 JoLId 22UD0}| SIBALIP 341y
s1eAud siy jJo Adod e yym
20URDN| 2IDIYA 2ty 23eALId
3U1 JO 19PjOY 3} BPIAOL] @

"Padidxa sey 20uedl| Syl 30U0 JBALIP
B 0] }J0M 21BJ0||R J0U SI0p 3y
8insua 01 uonewJour eudosdde
ay1 sey Joietado ays 183 Suuinsus
AgR13Y1 80U32]| 5,J9ALIP 241y 21eALd
12y /s1y Jo Adood e uoieiado syl anlg
03 SBY I2ALIP 3Y1 1BY] OS5 papuUalxa
0s[e sl UOIHpPUCY Y] 18Y] 15238Nng
"BPOIYBA PISUSII| B IALP O} JBALIP
pasuso)jun ue Juwlad ASumou

40 2DOUBLO ue ULLWOI 10U $30p 3YS
/3y 24nsu3 ued pue saldxa auady
uaym smouy Joladaoud ey os
Jo1aladoud 01 uanlg aq os[e pjnoys
BOUBIN] [EMBIUDI /MBU YIed adinbal
01 BulpJom papuawe 15238ng
"I9ALIP PISUBIY

B AQ UBALID ] B|31Y3A 53IN5US
103a1udoad au 1ey) wsiueysaw syl
SI SIY1 SE SUOIIIPUOD Mau Ul papn|oul

"S1Y JO 3|21ysA 1910 AUR 40 IDIYBA
8U1 anlip 01 paAojdws Jo payywiad
B( 01 S9582J JSALIP BYL SB Wi yans
faun wiy AQ uopus3as Jo4 Jolaudeuad

12U1 YUM SDUBDI[ SIDALIP BUIIH I1BALIg
siy jo Adod e ysodap apiyaa 1eyl

SAlP 01 SU[DUSWILLIOD 210434 ]|BUS

3y ‘J]aswiIy uey) J3Y10 SUOIIOS
stJolsudosd ayy yaym o s3iyan
BJIH 91BALI4 B 3ALID 01 paAo|dwa

[IBYS JBALIP 341y 21eAld v 24 01 PHEA |]I1S S1 uoIpUod 9y 10 pRllwad S 4aAMUp 343 U 82uaniT jo ysodaq v
uonesisiviwpe Suisuasny v

suolpuod Suollpuod
20Uad] JaAp 341y atealtd pasodoay SIUBWILLOD JIDIHO 80Ua21] Jo Buipiopn Sunsixg ou jay

'PANJBIB] SJUBLWILIOD JO UOJINIBPISUOI PUD UODYNSUOD JO 350} ay1 Buimojof 3830 Buisuao 241 Ag panouddp suonpuos
B0u3if 3y AjUO MOYs ji1m 33ua3lf fo suonIpuod Yl Adljod ourf aya Uy "MOJ3q SD UMOYS 34D 33Ua2)f Jo Suoiipuol ay) uoppynsued fo sasodind ayy o4

3 Xipuaddy

SAINFIIT YIAIMA FHIH JLVAIYL

9461 1DV {SNOISINOHd SNOIANVTIISIIA LNFINNYIAOD V201

JONIIIT 40 SNOILIANOD



Page 113

7L UIJUM JUDAD AUB Ul pue
8)q1s50d se uoos se paliodal
2¢ pjnoys Juapioul ay |
10U JO BIDIYIA PISUIDI} B
Ul sem JUSPIDUL Byl J9ylaym
10 ssa{pJe8al 5151y uapw
B2 Ul PIAJOAUL D[DIYIA
B 10 JIALIP 33 Sem Jap|oy
95UI2]| YT Y2IIyMm Ul JuspIoul
Juols1|]02 /3usplaoe o1en
peod Jo uiol Aue 32§40

Sujsuao) sy oy uoday e

i[eus JaAup aay aleaud v

UBPIdUL 3] 10 311 3Y)

12 J[ILYIA PBSUIDIJUN UE 1O 3IIYBA
pPasua2i| B SUIALP SEM ISP(0Y 92UD|
31 Jayaym Jo ssa|pledal siapjoy
20UD0|| LO SPIEPUEES SUIALIP JOUUSW
uea {15uno) a3 1eys ueliodul

s1 1 Aved pajyl e Jo ynej syl aq

[|IMm SIUSPIIUL DWIOS IS|IYAN -Alejes
olgnd o) paxul AjJe3|d st ydiym
‘Aljge /paepuels SuiAlp s,uosiad

B JOJIUOW J13UNO03 3y} 1SISse 01 3oe)d
Ul ‘uoipued mau pasodoud e S| syl

v

USHBLIIPUN 3 01 US|
VIAQ 43Y /sy O %0342 B 3|qeu?

01 3P0 %0242 ¥IAQ B YUM 20140
Buisusnry syl apinouad ‘spews Bujsq
15anbad e Jo sAep SupiHom 7 UIYLAA
|leus AP 241y a1eaud v

SUOIHPUOD 22Ud3I| B]AYDA BY}
UIUM Papn|aul 3G 01 S| 3JURINSUL
pljea sonpoad o3 Juswaainbay

"‘apew 2ulaq 1sanbau

40 ABp Buplom Z UuIylm 4331340
BuISUII| 01 P02 jaYd YIAQ
apia0Jd 01 S19ALP pasuadl| sanbal
Q] PIPJIOMII 3Q UOIHIPpUCD 15983NnS

Ajlenuew paxosya J23uo]

OU 248 $32UIDL| SUIALIQ “1BULIO)
1Ua44Nn3 531 U] padinbaJa 128uo] ou
S1 UC[IPUOI 51Y1 1BY} PUSWILLOIDY

"u0i1oadsul 10} SIURINSUL 19 93U
BulALg Ua.4NnD s1Y 9240 SuISUs3L
843 03 2onpoJd ‘0s op 01 wiy
Bulnnbas 21304 UM BUiAIaDa)
JO SABpP £ UM ‘|BYS 995U Y]

20UEBINSU| 77 IDUIDIY
SulaL@ Jo uordnpoad

139

ssalppe jo 98ueyo ay3 jo

Suium ug 1ouno) syl AJijou ssaippe
Jo a@8ueyo e o sAep / UIYLIMA

JlBYs J2ALIp 241y a3eAld ¢

‘S|1E13P 10BIUOD JUBAD|] YUM 31EP
03 dn 1da) 24 spJoJad BuIsud1| 94}
eyl Juenoduwii s1 i ‘UOIHPUOD Pi[eA

-aoe|d Bupjel ‘@8ueyd

yons Jo sAep USAIS UIYHM SDUIDY
3y3 Jo pouad ay) Bupnp ssauppe

s1y JO 98ueLD Aue JO BURLIM Ul 3010
Suisusor7 ay3 AJ30U {|BYS J9AP BYL

SSRUPPY Jo aduey)

fA

3 Xipuaddy




Page 114

L

Aligenns pue suoiaiauo) |

g

Jo1ea8do 3yl Wouy sSupjoog

Sup{el Bupuswiwod o sAep £ UIyIM
Auedwoo ro1esado auy a1eaid

J3Y /sIy Jo awteu ays jo |lewa Agq 1o
UM Ul 92140 SuIsuadi sy AJnou
J1_YS I3ALIP u1Y S1eAald vy

Jojesado

ayy Aq patojdwa Ajluessadzau

1,USI QHd & ley3 uojiusoras

ul Yans se payesp uaaq sey ng
‘plemme st Suiprom paisessns ay

A

32U82]| Y1 JO UORRBINP
2yl 1noysnolyl pauleiuew
SI UOHEIUIWNIOP JOMm

03 1y3u1 pue ‘21e01119)
|EJIPBIA ‘sn1els a1epdn sgq
Surpnjoul) uoileIUSWINIOP

JUBAD[S JEY] BINSUR e
H1eys deaup a4y alead vy

$92UI]| AleaA aauy)

LM panss| 8¢ NG S|EJ[PaW [BNUUE
3onpo.d o1 paJinbai ag Aew oym
SIIALIP 19p|0 0] 33uBIa4aJ Jejndilied
JO 1 [ed1paLl 0} S2UUYSJ BY)
spJepuels 1)q syl Aq padinbad
$39912 $94 AJY1uoW g 3yl 1PNpuUo?
UBJ |13Uno7) ay3 38yl 2Jnsus o]
uepodw st uopuod pasodoid ay|

ov

dapjoy
20UR|| 3Y1 Ag BuJog g jjim
Sutuiesl ay1 Jo uoisiaoad ay
YIMm paleroosse 53500 Auy
jrauno) Al ayi Ag padinbau
SB UBALIP PISUIII[ B JO Jjed
oy o1 s1edousdde Bujuren
d|geuoseal Aue euapun e
JiBYs JaAuIp sy 1ALd v

duiutesy sepdn 4o

9U0 pusnE 0] pastnbal 9JaM SIBALIP
gunsixs Yyoiym Ing ‘syuswasnbai
Sujule] JIALIP [RINUL BY3 UIYHM
PaPNDUl US3Q MOU SARY YdIYM Saul|
Alunos pue Bujpiengajes apnjpu
$8Nsst Yans 1o ssjdwexy “Supuieay
JaAUp Jeuosiippe a4inbal Aew
Arajes oignd uo 1oedwl pinoa yaym
Sanss| /sianew JO 92ua8IawWwa 3y

Sy

815¢aMm S[|auno)

241 1B 2UJUO B|(R]IBAR LLIO)
1USpPIdIe JO UOIIRDII0U
J3ALIP 3Y3 Uo paviodal ag
PINOYS 1uspIoul ay] "sunoy

3 xipuaddy



Page 115

10 sisouSelp JuBAS[3J BY3

10 (sunoy g% UIYIM ased Aue

Ul 1o} Ajaleipsww] ssauppe

J1ELUB 32140 BUIsUaD ayl

01 1U3S 3¢ 1SNW UOI1BILIION

‘(sJaAlp Snqg pue AlLo|

}0 Buisuady| 3yl 01 WSAd

ay3 Aq parjdde se plepuels

ales ayi} piepuels

[eaipaus Z dnoio YSAQ

e Sunnbai sous21) $ J9ALIp

2 031 JUBLWISLIUI J1ay]

19141521 ABLL Y2|YM UOJHPUOD

|EMpaWL 3UR4IND B 0]

28ueyD 40 pasou3elp Ajmau
Aug Jo [1Dunod Ayl AJIION e

1Y) S1B01J1143D |edIpaLU JayMng e
104 Supyse [12UnoD ALY 3yl a1el|ioey
01 1 uoiIpuod pasodoid puodss 3yL

‘uopuod Suisuad| Iyl Jo

Suipsom Y3 a8ueyo o3 Juswaiinbal
Aug Jnoypum pJepuels (eapsw ysad
|BUOIIRU U] 2Bueyd Aue §3}E11|108)
guipJom mau pasodoad ay|

‘S|eIIPaW JaAMP aJly S1eaud

10 SWiI31 Ul [1aunod) ayy Ag paidde
PJEPUEIS BY3 SI YIIYM PLEPUBIS

7 dnoJusd viAQ Syl 01 93Ul
J08.Ip syjew Suiplom pasiaal ay L

‘papuatue Suipiom ysnoygle

'a3Lld0d3d

39 1SNIAN LvHL SALLIMIEVSIQ 3HL
TV IANTINT LON $S3040 1SI7SIHL
"quiif B 40 95N JO qulj B JO 550]

pue ‘Bupjel-Snip ‘wsijoyod|e ‘ssaul|l
[E3UBW ‘UOISIA JO JBPJIOSIP ‘SYME
‘aunssaid poelg Y31y ¢ SaBUCL0),
‘BUIBUR ‘B5BISIP LRI ‘OsBaSIP

S, U0suUpjed ‘s1soua)as sjdijnw
‘syjoJ3s ‘Asdajida ‘sinoyoe|q
‘Buipuie) ‘ssauippld ale ssjdwexy
“31niny ayl

Ul 4O MOU Jayua Suialp uaym ajgnd
ay3 01 J28uEp JO 924N0S B 3g 01

Wiy asned 03 A|a)1] uoLipUo yljesy
Aue jo uruasiom Jo 135U0 Byl 1noge
Aejap 1noym JaBeueln Sulsuaol

[[eys Jaalp a0y 31eaud v | jedpurnd ul psulelal g 03 UoIBpUoD 31 WJIOUI [[RYS IB5U01| 3Y L T
[E21IP3IA J
‘8oUusll|
341 Jo poltad ay3 uunp Jay
Jwity uo pasodui {padieyd
30U 10 Jaylaym) Jariew
Aue Joy} 3sadle 10 a8ieyd
‘uonned Jaao Suipulq
‘Ajjeusd paxl) ‘UoIDIAUOD )
Aue 10 S[/e13p (1 SUIpIAOLd . 27Us21| 243 jo pouad syl Bulnp wiy
(3219 i [1eWS) SuiLIM Ui (zT'1 eaed) splepuels 1iqd Sys | uo mmman_ Ayeuad paxy Jo uopned
J2UNGS SUY AJI0U SINOY 8 » Jo suonesdse 139)}21 01 pepuawe U0I1DIAUOD AUe JO s|1E1Sp SUlILIM
: __EW sonup any s1enud v 3 0} BUIpJom 1aABMOY pllBA Ul 92140 Buisuadlt aul 03 asopIsip
: ‘ ’ SUlBLUBJ UOIHPUOD SIY) JO |edIduLld ‘shep USASS UIYLM [|BYS JIALP 241 SUOIINED PUE SUOIIIIAULOYD) 19

3 Xipuaddy




Page 116

241 J0 1no pue u] Buas)
siaduassed o0} aouelsIsse
3[QBUOSEII BPIAOId e
SI9ALIP pasuadl|
10} 3P0I 55247 YT YUM
1UelduIoD 8q JSAMP 341y
91eALd B se SUDIOM IS[IUAA e
Ajies)d a1esiunwiwiod
pue sisBuassed oy syjod ag e

JJleys toALp a1y a1eaud ¢

" JUBUIIBIS B ING UOIPUQGD
23UIDY| B 10U 5] Yuet 241y
93enud Suipiedal Juswwod 3y

‘SLUES B} usdmiag Azued
S| 2183 32U3 05 10NPUOD JO P02

‘WY Aq usaup
JANYasA 3yl wol) 3upydije 10 Suidaius
‘U peAaauod sisBuassed o A1ajes ay)

ainsu= 01 sdals a|geuoseal jje axel  (0)

“I3UUBW ALISPIO pUE [IAID

B Ul 9ABY3( pue uosiad pue ssalp siy u|

JBALID OH 3y3 se Aem duwies sy Ul | 9|qeldadsas pue ueap ag sawil [|e 1y (Q)

PAPIOM ING SUOIIPUOI MU UIYHIM

‘23e88n] ,sia8uassed

P3pn|aul aq ||Im pUB JUBASISJ | YLM 3JURISISSE 9|(BUOSEDI ||B IOy ()

ade (1)-(e) ul spew sadUIDEY

J1BYS J2ALIP YL

PNpUO) Jsalg

EIRIETY
3J1Y 81eA1d e JO soALp
B 3¢ 0] 1} 29 03 S2NUIIU0D
40 S| 8Ys/ay 18yl 10840
3Y3 03 SpJ0I3J |RIIPRLU
[[N4 S 49ALIP BY1 0} 553008
SBY OyMm JURYNSUO0D /101007
2jendoddde
ue Aq pausis [1ouno)
AN ay1 Ag paqriosald wuioyg
3Y1 Ul 21B2J11490 JUaLINI &
aonpoud (31nbaa Ajgeuosead
Aew pouno) Al sy
S S|eAI31U] YINS 1€ Jo) s}
Aueje |leys @asusdl|ayl e

‘U0 PUOI
[BDIpaW 03 a8ueyd

"anssy AYajes oljqnd e S| yatym ssauy
{BJIPSW 03 Sk Ioueinsseal Suiyass
3G |[}m 1ounod sy Juteldwod/
Aned paiyl e woly panlasal
UOI1BULIOIUL JO UOIIPUOD [2OIpaW Ul
d8uBYd & BulpseSal JBAR Pasuall| B
WOJ} uollewsojul Uo paseq ag Aew

"J0100p J1ayl

}nsuod pinoys panodal 3q pjnoys
‘YoIym U0 S| UOIIPUOD UYijeay

13yl JoU Jo Jaylaym Inoge Ignop

ur aJe oym siaAl( ‘pajodal aq
10U Pasu SYUoW 33yl uRYj 210w
15e| 0] pa10adx@ 10U ‘Sauo JUaLINIay
UBy1 Jaylo ‘suoiypuor Alelodwa)

SILLMAVYSIa
40 SIdAL IHL FLVYDIAN] OL
ATNO NIAID ¥V SITdINVXT ISTHL

I Xipuaddy




Page 117

‘(uonejuan/Suiiesy "8'a)
Asuinof ay3 Bulnp Hojwos
d1ayl Buipsedea so8uassed
ay1 Jo 1sanbau 3|geuosesl
Aue yum Aldwod osie fim
JBAP PISUIDI| YL ISHO
201j0d JO 21uey2N Surlssl
‘1320440 PISLOYINY ue Aq
apeuws 3sanbas ajgrUOSER.
Aue yum Ajdwon

a1iqnd ayy 4o ‘siaBuassed 01
2JUeSINU B 34 01 58 05 Aem
Aue uy 3[01yaA 343 9s411n

JO S2A[ISUI3Y] 1ONPUOD 10N
SP2IYaA 341 jo uonesado
Y1 YUM UOIIBUUOD

U} sa8essaw SulAaIR08l

J0 Bujpuas Jo) asn syl s
uondwaxa uy "uoissiwad
J19yz Yy 1daoxs ajo1yaa
3yl u1 aue sua8duassed
15[y 32UISIUL JO Buoyd
asiin ‘oiped au3 Aejd 1oN
321YaA Y UL

paJn2as Aldadoud pue Ajajes
poJ0is st 98e88n) vunsug
uolssiuad 113Y3 yum
1d30x® 3[21y3A I3 ul 24E
sla3uassed 1s)iym 3)21Yan
BYL Ul Huup 1o 188 10N
(Bulp[ing /sesiwaud ay1 40
100p J21h0 3U) 01 38238
Suipeojun pue 3j21ysn

Bdly

Joj SuwiAid a0y uolnaasold 03 pes| pue
jues e BujLIO} SB U33S 3 PINOI SIDIYI3A
3JIH 1BALId 2JowW 10 7 0 Sulaules Auy
"3|21YIA DY) IPISINO L0 IpISUL JFyIaym
‘uosJtad Aue 01 aoueAcuue 10 3zueSINU

10 304n0S B 39 01 SUIALIP §1 34 Yyalym
321yaA 3y} u) Juswdinba paucjusw
Alsnolasad JaY10 10 olped Aue AgQ paluws
as]ou 3yl ywuad Jo asned awip ou e (3)
EIRIIEL

31 JO uonesado syl yuUm UODJ1I8UU0D

uj sa8essawl Suine0ad 4o Sulpuas

40 asodund a3 10} UBYL JBL10 B)21YaA Y]
ul Juawdinba Jo Juswnuisul Supnpoadau
punos 1o oipes Aue Aeyd 1sa1y eyl

1O JUaSU0D ssaudxa 3yl Inoyum 10N ()
DPRIYAA  BYI UL 18D 0 juup 1341y Y1

J0 1uasu03 ssaidxa ayl inoyum 1oN ()

3 xipuaddy




Page 118

pue 1e3s paleusISap & 03 553008
BARY 1SNW sisBuassed ||e 1.yl
B4NSUD |{BYS JBALIP PasUaI| ayL

s|iel=p
1oy Aotjod I1xe1 93s) us
01 papuuliad aue uaapjiy?
BI3IYaA B Ul aJaym
pue s1e8s 1ed Lo suoisiaold
ay1 SuipJe8au Jenoied
ul ‘sa|a1yaa auiy aeald
Ul Buyj[aABS] usIppIYD
punoJe sens Aemysiy

B3 Yum Ajdwod pue mouy e

j1eys Jaalp aaly a3eand ¢

‘paAoWaL Ajuelodwa) uaaq aARY
$1235 242UM SB|DIYDBA PasUI|

ur A1e4es 311qnd uninsua 1e pawue
Apueujwopaud s1 UOIMPUOD SIYL

Aajod

3ujsuaz] IXel 8y} Jo Apoq urew
B3 UIYIM papADUL UDBY SBy
sjuawalInbad 1139 1ess Jo adsal
ul Suipiom ay3 "UOIPUOD 32U
e se pajed||dal ag 01 pasu 10U op
2J0jat2y] pue uswalinbal [e8s] e
123434 suWRIINbal 33q 1835 3y,

(suonmped

paxiy yum sixe ) ul 1da0xa) siedh ¢
A3pun uaipjiya Aq Burieam 1§13 1e3S 10}
9[qIsuadsal 5] 9[HYIA BY] JO JBALIP Y|

1315004 10 1B35 P|IY2 3024402
81 35N ISNW 3[2IY3A ANY JO 189S JUoL
B Ul SWIGET 01 dn pliyd e 18y} JagLUaWay

"AJUO 1B3S JB3J BY] UI 1j3q Jnpe
UE 3SN ISNW SAOQE PUE SIRJA € 350y -

‘Aluo Jeal Byl Ul
1Ng pautesisalun [aaeal ABW S, € Japupn -

"3|21YBA 2JIH S)RALId PIsUDY

J0 [XB) PISU3MN| B U I|(e[IRAR 10U

Bl S1U1RIISSI PJIYD 11 1YL 05 uondaaxa
paulenb e st sisy3 ‘1043434 WIBY}
4IMm SU0 1Y3noJdg aABY SI2JBD $S3|UN I1XE]
B U} ®]qBlIBAE 8 01 .J9)500( 10 1835 PlIy2
Y31 ay1 Padxa o1 a)gednoeidwi si

"AJ|EJI1BLUOINE L0 Af[ENUBWI PRleAllIeap
uaaqg sey seg-Jie syl ssajun Seq

-Jle [eluol) e Ag pa1osload 1835 B u) pasn
99 LON LSNIA s1eas Aqeq Suioey-Jesy

53eas p[iyd/siaqiess

<

3 Xipuaddy




Page 119

12B1U02 I3U10 10 Jaguinu
auoyda|a) Jawoisnd
253N 10 dasy 10N e

siseq

|euoissaroud sreudosdde ue uo
siaduassed yum sdiysuoiiejas daay
J{BYS 43A14p 241y a1eald

Aue ul a8e8us Jo ‘sugnsanb
jeuos.tad jse acueseadde

s Jawolsnd e Suipiefal SJUSUILIO0D
[euossad ssed Jou pINoys SI8ALp
Ajrendoudde saajasuiayl 1onpuod
$JBALID JBy] Juenoduwl S

£d

(Adsed 01 pasusdy)

S1 31 1eY1 su98uassed jo Jaquinu
wnwixew syl AJED J0UURD 32IYan
U1 1BY] UBSW ABW UOILIpUOCD
35U8321] S1y1 Yyum asue|dwod)

"}12q 1ess s1eudoidde ue 01 ssa00e
Sey Jieyo@aym Il Ul uij|aaely
198usssed syl puE S3UIRIISI
Jadoud 8uisn painoas Ajgzenbape
S1Jiey21a3ym syl papiaoad

1E3S poleudisap e se papiesal

84 UBD JlBYI|33YyM BUL JiByd|aaym
e U] Bul||aAeal saaBuassed

104 "}|9q 1e95 a1endoidde

( Jieydp@aym

e ul Sulf[eABSl T pue JesJ

BU3 Ul T JUO4} BYF Ul T ) J1Bydjeaym
B Ul Suljanedy sy uostad T

uaym siaduassed ¢ ajepouwlLlodle
Ajajes Ajuo ued { teai a3y ui

€ pue 1uoJj ayj ul T ) sue5uassed ¢
Aused 0] pasuadl] AjjeLLIOU B]2IYBA
B 1BY1 suesw SIyl “Heydasym e Ul
3uifjenes] uosiad B 21EPOWILLIODIDE
0} S1E3S 0M] JO JBAOLIBI 31}
SAJOAUL AR SIY L “JIBUDSBYM B UL
dunjjenea] uossad e Jo |9ARJ] BiES
941 S1EPOWLLEOITR O] 3|31YdA 31
W o4} §1eas pacwal Ajuesodwal
ABLW $9]21UYSA PBSUB]| BLIOS

1Byl POOISISPUN SI 3| "S|ELI®IEW
1230 10 38ed8n| Jo 98ei01s 2yl
21B11|12B} 01 95N 40 1IN0 UM E] UD3(
sey 1895 9|5U1S B aUaym UopienlIs e
1BADD 058 PINOM 1IN ‘SJIBYI|IBYM
u] 8uj||9AR] sua8uassed
I1epowilode o1 Ajjensn st siyl

3 Xipuaddy




Page 120

3B {23Y2 33y Ajlep e axellapun

Alessadau Ajgeuoseal paiapIsuod

11eYsS 19ALIP 2Uiy a1eAld ¢ S| uoljtpuos paesodoad sy g
"HoJWI0D
Jz3uassed 1o) ues|d aday 8q
01 SP33U 3|2IL3A 33 JO BpISUl By L
ysigqnu Jo a3k pue 1B 38 SMOopUIM
(3no pue apisur) ueapo 1day pue ‘peat Ajises aq ued saie|d pue
5| 9[21YBA BYL JBYI 2INSUT e 28eudis 1ey1 os ue|s 1day aq 03
Y|Bys IBALID B4l 21eALd v SPO3U JDIYAA Y1 SO BPISINO 3| cq
101)JU0D
"21N0J 1934ip 1s0W 1oy Ajlunpioddo syl saanpau
9U3 Wouj uolsiaalp Aue pue si28uassed pue susAup
J93usssed ayy yum ssude US9MIBY UOIEIIUNWIWIAD JO
PUE 5, UOISISAID umot| pue PIEPUELS POOS 01 Sa1e[24 PJIUY) 3yl
swia|qoJad oyyeul Ayay1| puiul soueJnsu| elendoldde pue
U1 Buliesq 91n0J UBIUS plea Ag paidaioud aue sauednino
AW Isow syl el e se[aIyan ayl pue Asuinof
Asuunof syt Supuswiwos BY1 1Byl S3UNsus puodas ayL
91048q payoog-a.d sey soo[10e.d utalp ajes 01
i98uassed ayr eyl aunsuy e uolIe|aJ ur s11ujod 134 ng 1541 By L
s43sh
peos Jaylo pue siaduassed QT0z 22ueping aoioesd
2L3 spiemol Asalinod 1s9¢ Yodsuea] 1o} uswipedaq
puUB 2183 3NP YUM BALIY] e BU3 4O g XBUUY WOy Uy el
Jleys 18AlIp 241y 31eAld vy il aJe suoitipuod pasodoud oy +q

Jupjooq ay3
yum pajernosse sasodind
10} UBY] JBY3O s[leap

3upjooq

Yl 01 pare|at Aj3oaa1p sasodind
104 UBYL J2Y10 SISLU0ISND 10BIUOD
10U Op SJ2AUP 12Y] [BIIUSSSD §1 ]

inoiaeyag sxeudorddeu;

3 Xipuaddy




Page 121

B|ge[IBAR 5] UOIIBUWLIOM] DY} 8UNSUD
[lIAM pUE ST || 1B 3|21YBA 3y}

uj 3d3y ag 03 S O3YD SUl JO plodal
Ay "USHEMDPUN UOEIIE BAI1I31I0D
pue s1oajap Aue 310U pue

N0 paLIeD Usaq 3ABY $HIBYD 3yl
0UO 2pPEW A[DIRIPSLULUI 51 pI0J3J &
2INSUF [[eYs JaAap a1y 1eaud syl

30 BUPHOM 3q

01 leadde Buiiasls fuolsuadsng
wswdinba Aijpuns .

$1|2q 1e9s /s1e98
SIOJHIUW SI2AE e

S|oA3] J21BM /IO e

J3pJo Supdom ul uloH

sjedq e

palinbau se juasatd s8eudis
syuawalinbal

SuIsuad1| ym 3ouepIodde Ul
paxi pue uasald seiejd sousd]
sa3ps

dieys 10O SIUIP OU —IoMApPOd
1IN0 pue apisul sssuljues|)
S|9A9] piny

Jaysem pue siaysem ‘siadipn
sihujaaym /peadl

pue saJnssald ‘UoILpuod BIAL e
SJO3BOIPUI pURSIYS e

1SMO)|0)

SE 31E N0 palied 3g 01 $Ho3Yd
BYL "LYS yoea jo 3uluuidag ay3

A3pjoy 23ua21| 3|IIYIA
a1 3suiese uaye) Bulaq uolloe

Ul 3nsaJ pinoo Auadoad 3oiysa
B3 UlBIUIRWI O] Sa4njie) Aue pue
3|21Y3A SU3 JC JouBUILIEW BYY
Jo} Anjigisuodsad [[BA9A0 SEY OYMm
JIP|CY 2UIN| BDIYIA BYI SI U
AJ21BWIIN 1BY3 S| UDIIIE SAIIIDII0D
/510343p 4O JBUMO 3IIU3A

aY3 WJIoul 01 JuSwWAIINbas syl

"B|Y3A
2 JO S2URLIFIUIBLU 3J SUJIB0U0D

01 3511 9AI8 pjnom sadAl UO

peaJ1 21enbapeur 10 s1y3|| |e1oAIS
10 aunjiey syl JaAsmoy ‘ awn

Aug 1 mopq ued q|ng 31| / |ieu

e dn yoid ued auAy e 1eyy paidadde
S1 11 pUe $109)8p [ED|UBYISW
snouas Ayituapl 0} paloadxa

10U 2Je $23YJ A[le@ "UDIHPUOD
UE3|2 pUB 2BS B Ul 5] 32143A

ay1 1Yl a[qesnoeld Ajgeuosesi i
Se Jej Se 24nsu3 01 51 $HIBYD 541 JO
asodind sy, 40m SUIZUBWIWIGD
24043 3JIUYDA UO SHIBYD Ajiep
23E1IBpUN 0O} SISALIP [BUOISS304d
10} azi1oe4d UOWIWOD 1 | "B[DIYIA
3y Jo Alajes Y1 Jo 10adsau ul

3 Xipuaddy




Page 122

3y} Ipew oym uosiad ayy
J2yus o1 paplacad ag o1 1disoal
Joj MmO[|e 0} papiomal Apysis

'1oNpuod

15anbal 10 3p02 SIBALIP JH Y3 Ul pue ‘pred aJej oyl Jo) 1d1803] UINIM B YIIM
uo s3diaoal USRIM 3PIACI e uonipuol pasodoud e se papnjoul WYy apiaoad 8a1ysa 8lIH 31BALId B JO
J1eys JaALp 34y S3eAud v 3q 1M PUB UOINPUOD PljeA Y | J3Uly ay3 Ag palsanbau J |jeys JaALkp ayy s3d1929Y UM <lal
*0S Op 01 |eS9)
pue sfes s 11 41} uoileuISap
J13Y1 SpISIN0 pue qiay
81 01U Ajlo311p 321YaA 'si9ylo
93 BAE3| SENpPe I[(eIaunA JO UCIIBIBPISUOD pue Alofes
pue uaip|iya 1eyy 3y} £0) Alessaoau Ajgeuoseal
24ns5ua 3|qIssod JARUSYM e PBJapPISUOI §1 UOIIPUOD
1em 01 padinbal pasodold 2yl sdusyo Sulolow
41 3uIBus Y1 JJO YolMs € 91N11su0d sAem|e 10U Apw
[1BYS pUB {S19pJ0 21BN U 18[1yMm pue sjuie|dwos a9l
peoJd AUB JO UOITUSARIIUDD $30P [1DUNOD Y1 YAYM Inoge
uf Jou) Aj|eds) pue Jajiew e s] Bupied ajelapisuodu|
Ala1BJ3pISUOD B[aIYaA 21y -Ajajes ao8uassed pue Supled
aleand ayiyied o dois e 21RI2PISUOIUL JO SNSS] BUY YHMm
[[BUS JoAup suiy 31eapd ¢ |Eap suolipuod pasodoud ay . £d

paJsnbau

JUSNEBLIBPUN UOIIDE JAI1D34I0D pue
pailuapt $30949p AuR JO pPaLUIOUL
2( 1SNUI Jap|oy 30uU3]| BdIYRA

BU1L “I8ALP Y1 UBY] J3y30 uostad

& AQ pasuadl| S3|DIYIA O ISED DY U]
1senbal

uodn 420140 PasSLOUINY Ue 0]

3 xipuaddy




Page 123

*SUJBDU0D 13NPUOD
Jaguassed Jo saindsip
J3W0IsN2 ‘Pasned usag

SBY $S3J1SIP J0 1Ny aJaym
S1Uap[o2e 3ulpn{oul UI9dUDD
J0 1uapIoul Aue Jojesado
3yl 01 Ajs1eIpawwy Loday

-]

HEYS J2AP 341y 91eAud v

Jejnoued up pue Asijod pasodoud
ay3 Aq pauoddns sisiyy '(z'€
eled) Ajaies aijgnd 51 Suisua||
a4y 21eand pue sdelled Asuyaey
40 anjafgo Aewnd ayl 1eyl
SpJepUBIS 14 BY3 Ul Jes|d S1 1] Se
Alessaoau Aj[gEUOSERN PRIIPISUCD
S| Ui puod pasodoud s1y],

o1a

‘s30p aouelsisse

Adled 01 JuswaJInbau

B3 03 UONE[DI Ul [IoUno)
AND 8yl wouiy aaey Asyz
a1eoiaa0 uonduwaxs Aue
J0 aueme sp olesado aaly
a1eAlad 41943 141 BINSUT
JPIYBA 3

J0 Jozelado 4o Jozauudouad
31 JO J|aswily JO Apoisnd
ay1 u] 1o 01 BwBuoiaqg
[BLUILUE AUB 3]21y3A 3J1H
3]1eAlid B Ul ASAUOD 10N

Heys Jaalap aay ateaud v

“pl{eA SUIBWIAI € 1led

'uolle|sida) Adewud

J0 1uawalinbal e si 3| asnezaq
UOIPUOD 32UIDI| B SE papn|dul 3¢
pinoys z 1ed Jaylaym uonssnp

"Pl[eA UOILIPUOD SULISIXS JO T Hed

‘paiojdwa

1511} 248 ASY3 USYM UO[PUOD

2 4ans Jo ajeme st aAo|dws

/ Aueduwiod Jiayl 1ey3 aunsua o1
All[Igisuodsal e sey 23s5uad|7 3y L

‘G661 19V UOREBUIWLIDSL]
Auligesiq ay3 4o L€ u0110as

Yim 2ouepsodae Ul ‘AJioyine
241 Aq panssi ,uondwaxg

10 32110N, e 10 1d]9224 Ul S| pue
UOI12E yons apnjdald pinom 1eyl
UOIpuUod [RIIpaW uanoJd e sey
By ssajun ‘e81eyd Jo a9l ‘s8op
2ouelsIsse/3urieal /aping Adted
S2Wil ||B 1B ||BYS 235U3217 IYL

"9121ysA Byl Jo Jojeaado
Joaolsuudoud auy Jo jjaswiy

40 Apo3sna ay3 Ui a0 o1 Buiduo|aq
[eLULUE AUg B]D1YDA SUIH B1BALId &
ul ABAUDD 10U ||BYS 235U YL

(¢

(T

s|ewnuy

6d

“Aswinol sy
300l oym uossad ayl 1o upjooq

3 xipuaddy




Page 124

9[aIyaA BY1 puk [BNSUISUOD
41 USAB “331YyaA pasusl]
B Ul AJinj0e pale|ad 1ol
10 |enx3as Aue ul a8e3ua 1opN

[|eYS taaup 341y aleand v

B Ul S311]AI108 42NS 4O 2JUBLINID0
ay]. ‘Auailoe jo sadAl asayy
inhoqge sjulejdwon yum yeap pue
PaAlEdal sey (ounod AlD ayl se
Alessansu Algeuoseal palspIsuod
st uolypuos pasodoud siy|

41

'95ned
wspwns  Ag patuansssd
1o paAejap ss3auUn

‘ooejd pue awil pajuiodde
eyl 1B pusiie Ajeniound
‘@oejd pue awinl paluicdde
ue 1B 3JUBPUSLIE U] Bg O3
Joiesado syl Ag pajonssuy
BEEN 951MUBYL0 sey
sys/ay Jo =oed pue awn
pajulodde ue 18 acuepuRE
Ul 8q 03 paliy  udaqg
SBY 3[2142A 3YL 1BYL 3URME }|

[[2YS JoALP a1y S1eALld v

Joleiado BiA BQ

pinoys 8upjooq |e sledoldde s)
10381doud 01 IoUBIR)RN JBYIBYM
Aranb ySnoyyje suonipuod
pasodoud ul paledjdal ag 01
PiEA pue JUBAS[BJ 135 UOILIPUOD

*25NED
wsdIyns Ag paiusaaud 4o pade[ap ssajun
‘soeld pue awl paulodde Jeuys 1e pusiie
Ajenyound ‘aseid pue swil papulodde
Ue 1e 9JUEPUSIIE ULl BQ 01 YA 3] 4O
Joianrdoud Jo tojeiado ay3 Ag paIdnLIsul
U923 951MJ3410 sBY 3y Jo 20e|d pue awn
psiujodde ue 1e sduepUILIR Ul 3G 01 PadIY
uaaq Sey sidiysA syl 1eyl aleme S| ay
‘1_US 3[31Y3A SJIH 1AL B JO JDALIP YL

sauepualny Jdwoud

1Td

‘92140 SuIsuadl]

3y1 03 Jolesado Ay a1eaud
a3 Buipie8al suisou)
Buipsen8ajes Aue uoday
-lojessdo any

21eAalld Byl 01 AjP1epalLLg
suJsouod Aue uodal

JleUs pue Bupuom usym
suJaouod Bujpiensajes
pue sia8usssed I|qeiaUNA
Bujpiedal Jue|Sin g

‘pojuswsdw]

9q | 6°€ eaed yoiym

AQ WsiuBYO3W B S| UQIHPUOI
pesodo.d 2y ‘Buipiendajes
30 19adsal ul uoleloadxs

3yl spieasp yoiym Adijod yeup
s|1ounoD AL 3YL SO 6°E UOILD9S

j xipuaddy




Page 125

3|qel a4e} Aue Aeidsip
031195 S| J918W 3Y} 3INSU3 e

B 5] 2434 1912 [XE] B YIIMm
P33y 24e $3dIYsA aay aleaud

J1eyYs Janlp a1y o3eand y s d@1seaueq jo Ayuofew ayp T4
S13)9|A] pue saJed 4
dIANA AINVYN FHL
OLIONNOD ALID FHL AD Q3Nss!
N33d SVH 3LYD1411430 NOILdINIXI
NV SSTINN D0d IINLSISSY
NV AdHYD OL LININIYWINTIY B1ED413=0 [EDIp3aW B Ul PI[IBIDP
TYDITV SI LI NOILVINYOLN] 404 | UOIIPUOD [B3ipaul Jay/s1y 01 anp
21e21111130 uondwaxs ue 3sanbau
3[HYDA PasUID|
01 Pa3U 9yl JO JBP|OY 33U
3y} Ul s3op sruelsisse
B 0} JBpUlWIBL B SB 5138 03] )
BulAiaed Wolky J9ALp
‘80p a2uBISISSE UR Yum SuljjPnes]
pasus2]| ay3 sauanaad
JaBuassed e 3dadoe 0] asnyal
12U} LOLIPUOS [edtpaul 01 Jy814 DY} SBY JBAIIP PESUBDI| B
31 01 Bulie(ad unod Ay HEL Bt seY JOAIP P .
aylaym Ajiuspi Ajale|pawuuil ued
9yl AQ panss| 81B3111432
[19UN02 3Y3 JO J3J140 pasuoyine
uondwaxs Aue Jo 3)21yaa
ue yaiym Agq ASojopoyiau
pasuadl| sy ul Adoo e daay e
243 sopiaoJd 11 Se uoiIpuod
[1BUS J3A4p 241y S1eaLd v Alessaoau Ajgeuosead e s SIUL T3
s80( IoueISISSY E|

'sasodund au1y ayeand
J0oJ pasn 8ulag 1ou s

salllAzoe

yons syuanatd Aol dxa 1ey1
30U221| YL UO UOIPLOD B asodw)
03 Alessadau Ajqeuoseal s1 1] 1843
1s288nS piNoMm BJ21YaA PasU||

3 xipuaddy




Page 126

Syued Asuydey psleusisap

10joeq Jo juod) ayiie {o

SIUDAT 03 Ajluixoud 3sod UL Jo
$3559UISNg /SaNUaA Asng apisine (g
5U0131820|

3|qIsiA y3iy/ |1efa00) ysiy ui (e
:3upjooq e noyum

aunlem Jo Buipopd 10u Aq ‘auiy 0}
SuiA|d 4o Buipuels aq 03 pswasp
3q Aew 1eU] AEm B U] BABY3] 10U

01 a1eudoudde 3 Japisuod 10U

op JadiyQ ey Joj Ajd sensuod
JBYM O} SE UOII3JIp JB3|D

apinoad 1ou saop ng Suidued
apim $1 341y 404 SulA[d Jo 3oadsal
ui me| ase) aaly Joj Ald |e3a))
SPUNGLINS U3 1Byl AlURLISOUN
3U1 JO YN 33BIA3||B pINCm
UoRIpUOd Y3 Yyum soueldwiod

se Alessa03u A|qeuoseal pawaap

[[8ys 121D a1y 1eald ¢ St uolHpuoo pasodoad ay . D
a1y Joj Buipuels
faay 104 Agd [eBay)| o)
‘pa1nwlad jou si ao13oead S|yl 1B
1B | SI{BW UOIILPUOD 3IU3DY
pasodoud ay] -sueys@aym
ul uljjanedy sis8uassed 10} anss)
(321y8A Je[noiped e us3q SBY SIYL "IPIYBA
241y 23eaud ay1 Ul pany 2y1 BuIssaooe i sia8uassed 01
s1.1312W ou auaym Aldde 3oue3sisse SuIpiaoad 1S)1YM 3]DIYaA
10U $30P $14Y3) SI2UBWILID 31 U0 J3lsw syl sjelado o0}
Asuunol 2y gun Buinels (Jeaseoue 03 424 aj1oads
J91ow oy} 21edado 10N e ON) SeaJe SWO0S Ul SIBAP JO
[leys JaALp sy 21eald v 93e19A00 BIPSW URBQ SBY JUBYL ra|

Ajg1endosdde pajeas

pue padejdsip yiel sy}
01135 5| J219W AUB 3INSU3 @

iojesado

aJ1y s1eaud ay1 Ag paadope

Jauuew
1291102 B U] J3)9W ay] sa1eJiado
ays /3y 1BY3 S4NsSUa 03 JBALP 341y
21eALid Y1 UO LOIIPUD B Bsodul
01 Aessaoau Ajqeuosesd s1 1
"1912W |BN13E 2y} JO SIURWRJInbal
Y3 uipae3al 93U921] 32IY3A 3J1Y
a1eAld ayy uo pasodul UOIHPUOD

3 xjpuaddy




Page 127

‘Aliadoud
150| 404 3]21Y3A 343 3230
Ia1jealayl ageanoeld
Se U00S Se J0 Sully
Syl i9Ye AjS1BIpoLLIW| e
lleys JaAalip a4y ateaud v

3|qeUOSEs) PRIBPISUOT S1 11 PUB
smeAg 28eLued Asuoey sy ul
passaUppe sl anss! Yl ‘SUOIPUOD
JSALIP 41y a1eALkd Jua4IND

3U1 UIyIMm S 01 20UBI3)al

ou 5| a48y3— Ajadoid 1507

Anadoad 3507

"J01e4ad0 3yl Ag L2ALIP pasuad)
31 01 PAIEDIUNLULLIOI 3541} Uaym
usyepapun ag Ajuo ued sgupjooq
‘10N0p 10 0UBPIOAR B3 JO4

‘wa3shAs Supjooq
5. J0leiadQ 2yl uo paploda
aq 01 J0jeasdQ 8yl
01 PIIBIIUNWIWIOD UBY] §]
1BY1 3414 y2ans Aue 8uipnioul
‘s01yan 1843 JO 241y
31BIpIWW SY3 J04 Jag0
ue ‘Buzdadde JapIsuod
10 9dsooy  3piyaa
2J1y s1eand e jo a8ieyd
Ul 10 BUIALIP 9)IUM ION e
Asuinof a3 Supuswiwiod
2J049¢ paoog-zid sey
JoBuossed ayiieyl ainsug e

"lussaud s28u0| oU s SaplacJd
2oUeJnNsSUl 3eY] UoIR04d

21 240434541 pue 3dueINSU|

Ag patanod Sujaq 1ou Aauinol

3Y1 Ul S1NS34 YIIYM BUO SI 41y JO}
Ald 1e83))1 Jo 30 BY] 21y Jo Ald
SpJemol 9InqLIuo / a8einooua
UED 1By} 5J010B} 33 31BUIWI|3

/ 83anpaJd 01 Swie UoIpUod
pasodosd ay) "SUCRIPUOD

5I9pJ0 ul paedl|dnp ag 10u pinoys

Jl4JBJY PROJ JO UOIIUBARIIUOD U] (3 0s pue Juswalinbal |eSs| e 5}
Sued, e | SIyyse —adiy 4o Ajd 10U 1snwl noA

se Jussazd eyl sauij 40 sdnoad uj (p 591215 1843 UCINPUO B aphjaul

3 xtpuaddy



Page 128

suoIlR[|EISUI
ALDD Aue jo uonelado

81 SurpJeSaJ SA0UID| SIBALID"

uo padinbal aq [|1m sUoIHpUOd
s1eudoldde uayy pardope si
Aojjod Awolepuew e J) ( spiepuels
14a 8y jo 5/ eded ) anssy

$1Yl UG UOIIR}NSUOD 31BJ0APE
SpJeRUELS 1J(] 29Ul ALDD JO 1aadsal
ul Axjod Adorepuew e ansand jim
[IOUN0D 3Y1 J3YIaym Jesoun si i

Tl

AL

*SLUBY pswieoun Jo 3uisodsip
810]aq ‘SYjUow g Buipsaoxs
10U poliad e so) Auadoud Byl pjoy
jiim oym tolesado ady a1eaud syl
01 2eq papuey aq 1snw Auadoud
150| 3yl pauleladse ag Jouued
Ausdoud ay3 Jo JBUMO By 2UBYA
uiniaJ sy Buipaesad
taumo Apadoud ayy
YHM SIUSWSBUBLIE BN o
{Ar4adoud 350] @Y1 UL
punoy sjie1ap [euosiad Jo
splooal Supjooq Jauya Ag
3|qissod s| s1y3 J1) Bpd1ysn
a3 Ul puno} Aladoad 150}
Y110 JBUMO BYT AJIION e

aungal
1y a1ealad a3 utyum Auadould
1501 40} apew sjuolsiacld e jey)

J xipuaddy




Page 129

SUOILPUOI Buisusd)

ul syuawaainbal je8a| sjeadnp
0] AlBS$903U PaJapISUcD Jou

st 1 Adjjod ay3 ui pajielap st pue
UOI1RITPISUOD TUBABIDI B 51 S1YL

0% Op ABW 3 10243 J]BIpIW L]
UMM 30UD2)] B4l 3% 0A3J 10 puadsns
0} Arajes 2igqnd 4O 35a421U1 Y3

Ul 2q p|nom 1 1Yl 2A3|[3G [IoUnod
BU3 H 1ey} sapirold gz uoas-qng

U0 Aep 3 [|Im

UOJIBIIFI10U SBAIBD3J BY Udiym uo Aep
3 "32U3dI| SIY Y0oARL O puadsns 01
UOIS|2BP 243 JC UCIIEILIIOU PaAIRIE]
Sely J2ALP 3Y3 JIYe. SsAep T7 109,49
3Bl []IM UOLIBI0ASI 10 UoIsuadsns

e 123 saplacid Yz uoi10as-gns

“T9 uo3das 03Ul
SUOJ3035 MaU 7 paonpoUiul sey 900z
1Y Alajes peoy ay3 JO g UoNas
"9/6T Y (SLUOISINDIG SNOSUBR||IDISIAL)
UDWUIIAOLD) |BI0T YL JO TG UOII0IS
J3puUn 32USi BY3 JO UDIIBIOASL U0
uoisuadsns aU3 J0) 3Snes sjgeuoseal
SE [12UNn07) 3yl AgQ p31eadl aq Aew
smejaig oyl JO 9pad s1Yl Jo uolstaold
Aue Jo a3sua21| ay3 Ag yoeauq ay] (e)

uoJ1EJ0ATY fuoisuadsng

p3.44N220 sey
uonkeaoaal fuoisuadsns e usym
‘971 BZ TQ U0[II3s Japun (a5u33]|
10U) 98peq sisAuLp By} Winiald
o13juawalinbal [e83) & 51 249y

*20U93y| 2yl Supuels usym

22130 SuISUaIT 9U3 AQ Wiy 03 panssi
33peq s 42A14p 243 92140 Sulsuall] 2yl 03
UJNisd yUMyHof aouadl| e jo uoisuadsns
J0 UOILEI0ARY ‘(|eMBUDT B1B[pIWL
1hoypm) Adldxa ayg uodn [jBYS J2ALIP 3YL

a5pegq Jo winiay

padnbau
Ja3uo] ou pawsap
SUO[1IpUO3 22uad| Sunrsixy

3 xipuaddy




Page 130

*AUm sujejdxs pue Ajpleipawu]
payoAd 10 papuadsns I 32uady| sy}
1B43 S93L15 I2ALP 31 01 uaaIg a3130u
uoISP3p [ensn ayy 1ey) papiaoad

3 xipuaddy




Page 131




Page 132

Appendix F

BYELAWS

Made under Section 68 of the Town Police Clauses Act 1847, and Section 171 of the Public
Health Act 1875, by the Lancaster City with respect to Hackney Carriages in the City of
Lancaster.

Interpretation

1. Throughout these Byelaws “the Council” means the Lancaster City Council and “the
district” means the City of Lancaster.

Provisions regulating the manner in which the number of each Hackney Carriage
corresponding with the number of its licence shall be displayed:

2.
a) the proprietor of a Hackney Carriage shall cause the number of the licence granted
to him in respect of the carriage to be legibly painted or marked on the outside and
inside of the carriage, or on plates affixed thereto;

b} A proprietor or driver of a Hackney Carriage shall:

i) not wilfully or negligently cause or suffer any such number to be
concealed from public view while the carriage is standing or plying for
hire;

i) Not cause or permit the carriage to stand or ply for hire with any such
painting, marking or plate so defaced that any figure or material
particular is illegible.

Provisions regulating how Hackney Carriages are to be furnished or provided:

3. The proprietor of a Hackney Carriage shall:

a) provide sufficient means by which any person in the carriage may communicate
with the driver;

b} cause the roof or covering to be kept water-tight;

¢} provide any necessary windows and a means of opening and closing not less than
ohe window on each side;

d) cause the seats to be properly cushioned or covered;

e) cause the floor to be provided with a proper carpet, mat, or other suitable
covering;

f} cause the fittings and furniture generally to be kept in a clean condition, well
maintained and in every way fit for public service;

g) provide means for securing luggage if the carriage is so constructed as to carry

luggage;




Page 133

Appendix F

h) provide an efficient fire extinguisher which shall be carried in such a position as to
be readily availahle for use;

i) Provide at least two doors for the use of persons conveyed in such carriage and a
separate means of ingress and egress for the driver.

4. The proprietor of a Hackney Carriage shall cause any Taximeter with which the
carriage is provided to be so constructed, attached, and maintained as to comply
with the following requirements, that is to say:

a) the Taximeter shall be fitted with a key, flag, or other device the operation of which
will bring the machinery of the Taximeter into action and cause the word “HIRED”
to appear on the face of the Taximeter;

b} such key, flag, or other device shall be capable of being locked in such a position
that the machinery of the Taximeter is not in action and that no fare is recorded on

the face of the Taximeter;

¢) when the machinery of the Taximeter is in action there shall be recorded on the
face of the Taximeter in clearly legible figures, a fare not exceeding the rate or fare
which the proprietor or driver is entitled to demand and take for the hire of the
carriage by time as well as for distance in pursuance of the tariff fixed by the
Council;

d) the word “FARE” shall be printed on the face of the Taximeter in plain letters so as
clearly to apply to the fare recorded thereon;

e) the Taximeter shall be so placed that all letters and figures on the face thereof are
at all times plainly visible to any person being conveyed in the carriage, and for that
purpose the letters and figures shall be capable of being suitably illuminated during
any period of hiring;

f) The Taximeter and all the fittings thereof shall be so affixed to the carriage with
seals or other appliances that it shall not be practicable for any person to tamper
with them except by breaking, damaging or permanently displacing the seals or
other appliances.

Provisions regulating the conduct of the proprietors and drivers of Hackney Carriages
plying within the district in their several employments, and determining whether such
drivers shall wear any and what badges:

5. The driver of a Hackney Carriage provided with a Taximeter shall:

a) when standing or plying for hire, keep the key, flag or other device fitted in
pursuance of the byelaw in that behalf locked in the position in which no fare
is recorded on the face of the Taximeter;

b) before beginning a journey for which a fare is charged for distance and time,
bring the machinery of the Taximeter into action by moving the said key, flag
or other device, so that the word “HIRED” is legible on the face of the
Taximeter and keep the machinery of the Taximeter in action until the
termination of the hiring;




Page 134

Appendix F

c) Cause the dial of the Taximeter to be kept properly illuminated throughout any

6.

10.

11.

12,

part of a hiring which is during the hours of darkness; this being the time
between half-an-hour after sunset to half-an-hour before sunrise, and also at
any other time at the request of the hirer.

A proprietor or driver of a Hackney Carriage shall not tamper with or permit any
person to tamper with any Taximeter with which the carriage is provided, with the
fittings thereof, or with the seals affixed thereto.

The driver of a Hackney Carriage shall, when plying for hire in any street and not
actually hired:

a) proceed with reasonable speed to one of the stands fixed by the Council
{excepting between the hours of 7.00 pm and 7.00 am when the driver may ply
for hire whilst driving, free from such requirement);

b} if a stand, at the time of his arrival, is occupied by the full number of carriages
authorised to occupy it, proceed to another stand;

c) on arriving at a stand not already occupied by the full number of carriages
authorised to occupy it, station the carriage immediately behind the carriage or
carriages on the stand and so as to face in the same direction;

d) From time to time when any other carriage immediately in front is driven off or
moved forward cause his carriage to be moved forward so as to fill the place
previously occupied by the carriage driven off or moved forward.

A proprietor or driver of a Hackney Carriage, when standing or plying for hire, shall
not make use of the services of any other person for the purpose of importuning any
person to hire such carriage.

The driver of a Hackney Carriage shall behave in a civil and orderly manner and shall
take all reasonable precautions to ensure the safety of persons conveyed in or
entering or alighting from the vehicle.

The proprietor or driver of a Hackney Carriage who has agreed or has been hired to
be in attendance with the carriage at an appointed time and place shall, unless
delayed or prevented by some sufficient cause, punctually attend with such carriage
at such appointed time and place.

A proprietor or driver of a Hackney Carriage shall not convey or permit to be
conveyed in such carriage any greater number of persons than the number of
persons specified on the plate affixed to the outside of the carriage.

If a badge has been provided by the Council and delivered to the driver of a Hackney
Carriage he shall, when standing or plying for hire, and when hired, wear that badge
in such position and manner as to be plainly visible.




Page 135

Appendix F

13. The driver of a Hackney Carriage so constructed as to carry luggage shall, when
requested by any person hiring or seeking to hire the carriage:-

a) convey a reasonable quantity of luggage;
b) afford reasonable assistance in loading and unloading;

c) Afford reasonable assistance in removing it to or from the entrance of any
building, station, or place at which he may take up or set down such person.

Provisions fixing the rates or fares to be paid for Hackney Carriages within the district, and
securing the due publication of such fares:

14. The proprietor or driver of a Hackney Carriage shall be entitled to demand and take
for the hire of the carriage, the rate or fare prescribed by the table of fares set by the
Council. The rate of fare being calculated by distance and time unless the hirer
express at the commencement of the hiring, his desire to engage by time.

Provided always that where a Hackney Carriage furnished with a Taximeter shall be
hired by distance, the proprietor or driver thereof shal! not be entitled to demand
and take a fare greater than that recorded on the face of the Taximeter, save for any
extra charges authorised by the table of fares which it may not be possible to record
on the face of the Taximeter:

15,

a) The proprietor of a Hackney Carriage shall cause a statement of the fares fixed by
the Council to be exhibited inside the carriage, in clearly distinguishable letters and
figures.

b} The proprietor or driver of a Hackney Carriage bearing a statement of fares in
accordance with this byelaw shall not wilfully or negligently cause or suffer the
letters or figures in the statement to be concealed or rendered illegible at any time
while the carriage is plying or being used for hire.

Provisions securing the safe custody and re-delivery of any property accidentally left in
Hackney Carriages, and fixing the charges to be made in respect thereof:

16. The proprietor or driver of a Hackney Carriage shall immediately after the
termination of any hiring or as soon as practicable thereafter carefully search the
carriage for any property which may have been accidentally left therein.

17. The proprietor or driver of a Hackney Carriage shall, if any property accidentally left
therein by any person who may have been conveyed in the carriage be found by or
handed to him:-




Page 136

Appendix F

a) carry it as soon as possible and in any event, within 48 hours, if not sooner claimed
by or on behalf of its owner, to the office of the Council, and leave it in the custody
of the officer in charge of the office on his giving a receipt for it;

b) Be entitled to receive from any person to whom the property shall be re-delivered
an amount equal to five pence in the pound of its estimated value (or the fare for
the distance from the place of finding to the office of the Council, whichever be
the greater) but not more than five pounds.

The Council acknowledges that at certain times during weekends and bank holidays
whilst the office is closed it will not be possible to comply with (a) above. In these
instances, the property should be delivered to the office of the Council on the next
working day after the closure.

Penalties

18. Every person who shall offend against any of these Byelaws shall be liable on
summary conviction to a fine not exceeding level 2 on the standard scale and in the
case of a continuing offence to a further fine not exceeding two pounds for each day
during which the offence continues after conviction therefore.

Repeal of Byelaws

19. The Byelaws relating to Hackney Carriages that were made by the Council on the 8t
day of February 2000 and which were confirmed by the Secretary of State for
Transport on the 20th day of March 2000 are hereby repealed.

The Common Seal of the Council of the City of Lancaster was here unto affixed this seventh
day of LS February 2014 in the presence of:

SARAH TAYLOR

Chief Officer (Governance)

The Secretary of State confirmed the foregoing Byelaws on the Twenty Sixth day of March
2014 and fixed the date on which the Byelaws are to come into operation as the Twenty

Third day of April 2014

ANTHONY FERGUSON
Signed by authority of the Secretary of State.




Page 137




Page 138

Appendix G

Code of Conduct Hackney Carriage Drivers

The Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 S59 requires that the Local
Authority only licences persons it deems “fit and proper” to be hackney carriage drivers. The
Council has specific requirements which a person must satisfy in order to be meet the “fit
and proper” test, these include driving standards, training, medical fitness, criminality
checks, language assessments etc.

The Council has a code of conduct in place for hackney carriage drivers to provide guidance
on the standards that hackney carriage drivers are expected to maintain as part of
continuing to meet the “fit and proper” test throughout the duration of their licence.

Failure to comply with the code of conduct or any other conduct that could jeopardise the
“fit and proper” standard could result in a formal review of a hackney carriage driver’s

licence, the outcome of which could include suspension or revocation of the licence.

Conduct of Driver

This is separated into 5 distinct areas of conduct:

1. Administrative Conduct

A hackney carriage driver shall:

e Within 48 hours notify the council in writing (email will suffice} providing full details
of any conviction, fixed penalty , binding over, caution, charge or arrest for any
matter {whether or not charged) imposed on him/ her during the period of the
licence

¢ Within 7 days notify the Council in writing of any change of address.

» Within 2 working days of a request being made, provide the Licensing Office with a
DVLA check code to enable a check of his/her DVLA licence to be undertaken

s Ensure that relevant documentation (including DBS update status, Medical
Certificate, and right to work documentation is maintained throughout the duration
of the licence Notify the Council of any newly diagnosed or change to a current
medical condition which may restrict their entitlement to a driver’s licence requiring
a DVSA Group 2 medical standard (the same standard as applied by the DVSA to the
licensing of lorry and bus drivers). Notification must be sent to the Licensing office
email address immediately {or in any case within 48 hours) of the relevant diagnosis
or change to medical condition.

e At any time (or at such intervals as the City Council may reasonably require) produce
a certificate in the form prescribed by the City Council signed by an appropriate
Doctor/Consultant who has access to the driver’s full medical records to the effect
that he/she is or continues to be fit to be a driver of a hackney carriage vehicle.

e Undertake any reasonable training appropriate to the role of a licensed driver as
required by the City Council. Any costs associated with the provision of the training
will be borne by the licence holder.




Page 139

Appendix G

Report to the licensing office any form of road traffic accident/ collision/ incident in
which the license holder was the driver of a vehicle involved in the incident This is
regardless of whether the incident was in a licensed vehicle or not. The incident
should be reported as soon as possible and in any event within 72 hours. The
incident should be reported on the driver notification of accident form available
online at the Councils website XXXXX

Keep a copy in the licensed vehicle of any exemption certificate issued by the City
Council, relating to the medical condition that prevents the licensed driver from
carrying assistance dogs in the licensed vehicle, ( without an exemption certificate a
hackney carriage driver is legally obliged to carry an assistance dog)

2. Conduct whilst working as a Licensed Driver

A hackney carriage driver shall:

Whilst working as a hackney carriage driver be compliant with the dress code for
licensed drivers

Shall be polite to passengers and communicate clearly

Keep the vehicle clean and free of rubbish

Provide reasonable assistance to passengers (getting in and out of the vehicle and
unloading luggage to the outer door of the premises/ building)

Ensure luggage is stored safely and properly secured in the vehicle

Provide written receipts on request

Keep relationships with passengers on an appropriate professional basis

Not eat or drink in the vehicle whilst passengers are in the vehicle except with their
permission

Not play the radio, utilise phone or internet whilst passengers are in the vehicle
except with their permission. An exemption is the use for sending or receiving
messages in connection with the operation of the vehicle

Not conduct themselves or utilise the vehicle in any way so as to be a nuisance to
passengers, or the public

*Drive with due care and courtesy towards the passengers and other road users
Know and comply with the highway code rules around children travelling in hackney
carriage vehicles, in particular with regard to the provisions of car seats and where in
the vehicle children are permitted to sit (see taxi policy for details)

Not carry any animal belonging to himself in the vehicle

Carry out and keep a record of a daily inspection of the vehicle. The checks shall
include the following items, lights and indicators, tyre condition, pressures and
tread/ wheelnuts, Wipers, washers and washer fluid levels, cleanliness inside and
out, Bodywork ~ no dents or sharp edges, all sighage and plates present and fixed in
accordance with licensing requirements, brakes, horn in working order, oil/ water
levels, drivers mirrors, seats/ seat belts, sundry equipment and any obvious defects
to suspension/ steering

The licensed driver shall ensure that all passengers must have access to a designated seat
and appropriate seat belt. For passengers traveiling in a wheelchair , the wheelchair can be
regarded as a designated seat provided the wheelchair is adequately secured using proper




Page 140

Appendix G

restraints and the passenger travelling in the wheelchair has access to an appropriate seat
belt.

e {this may mean that the vehicle cannot carry the maximum number of passengers that it is
licensed to carry) '

3. Conduct in respect of Fares Levied and Use of Meters

A hackney carriage driver shall:

e *Use the meter within the licensed area, unless the passenger has agreed to hire by
time

e *Take the most time efficient route bearing in mind likely traffic problems and
known diversions, and explain any diversion from the most direct route

e Where a Hackney Carriage vehicle is hired via a telephone call to a private hire
booking office linked by radio to the vehicle, the contract of hire shall be deemed to
be made with the person or body operating the booking office, the meter shall not
be set into operation until the hirer has commenced his journey. (The meter cannot
be switched on until the journey has commenced — unless the fare has been agreed
in advance for an out of area booking)

e Ensure the current hackney carriage tariff is displayed in the vehicle in such a
location that it can be seen and read by passengers

4. Conduct in respect of Lost Property

A hackney carriage driver shall:

o Immediately after the hiring or as soon as practicable thereafter check the vehicle
for lost property.

s Notify the owner of the lost property found in the vehicle (if this is possible by either
known address or contact details or personal details found in the lost property)

¢ Make arrangements with the property owner regarding its return

¢ Where the owner of the property cannot be ascertained the lost property must be
handed to the Lancaster City council Licensing office

5. Conduct in respect of Hackney Carriage Byelaws

A hackney carriage driver shall:

e Familiarise him/ herself with the requirements of the Lancaster city council hackney
carriage byelaws
e Comply with the requirements of the byelaws

IT 1S AN OFFENCE TO FAIL TO COMPLY WITH THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE RELEVANT
BYELAWS FOR WHICH A LICENSED DRIVER CAN BE PROSECUTED AS WELL AS BEING SUBJECT
TO A REVIEW OF HIS/ HER HACKNEY CARRIAGE DRIVERS LICENCE TO ASSESS WHETHER A
PERSON REMAINS FIT AND PROPER TO HOLD THE SAID LICENCE.

Key: * Denotes taken from DfT best practice guidance 2010.




Page 141




Page 142

Appendix H

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Drivers Dress Cade.

The drivers’ dress code forms part of the hackney carriage drivers code of conduct
and the private hire drivers licence conditions.

The purpose of the dress code is to set a standard that provides a positive image of
Lancaster’s licensed hackney carriage and private hire trade, and that the standard
adopted seeks to promote public and driver safety.

Dress Code

e All clothing worn by driver whilst working as private hire/hackney carriage
driver must be in good condition and the driver must have good standards of
personal hygiene.

e As a minimum standard whilst working as a licensed driver, males should
wear trousers and a shirt which has a full body and short/ long sleeves. Knee
length tailored sharts are also acceptable.

e As a minimum standard whilst working as a licensed driver, female should
wear trousers. Knee length skirt or dress and a shirt/ blouse which has a full
body and short/long sleeves. Knee length tailored shorts are also.

¢ Footwear whilst working as a licensed driver shall fit i.e., be secure around
the heel of both feet.

Examples of Unacceptable Standard of Dress

e Clothing that is not kept in clean condition, free from holes, rips, or other
damage.

¢ Words or graphics on any clothing that is of an offensive nature or suggestive
nature which might offend.

e Sportswear e.g., football/rugby kits including shirts, track suits in whole or
part, beachwear.

e Sandals with no heel straps, flip flops or any other footwear not secure
around the heel.

e The wearing of any hood or any other type of clothing that may obscure the
drivers’ vision or their identity.

Uniforms

The Council recognises the positive image that uniforms can create. This dress code
does not require a licensed driver to wear a distinct uniform, except for licensed
drivers of Executive Hire vehicles. The Council acknowledges that nationally some
operators and hackney carriage associations do require licensed drivers to wear
appropriate corporate branded uniform and this is a practice that the Council would
encourage Lancaster companies to consider and adopt. Such branding may assist with
the identification of the licensed trade as distinct from any unlicensed driver who may
be trading illegally.




Page 143




Page 144

Appendix |

Private Hire Vehicle specification

Proposed specification

Reason for proposed specification

Vehicles must conform to M1 vehicle standard

Converted vehicles must have either European
whole vehicle type approval/ individual type
approval {IVA) or European low valume type
approval

These standards are associated with
safety standard testing undertaken on
the vehicle

M1 type approval applies to mass
production car types

Vehicles cannot be retrofitted with engines of a
poorer emission standard than that of the
vehicle at manufacture

The aspiration of the council is for less
polluting vehicles

No new vehicle licence will be granted to any
vehicle which has been subject to any category
of vehicle write off

Vehicles that have been written off are
repaired outside of insurance and the
guality of repair may be to a lesser
standard for example the use of second
hand parts. It is accepted that in very
low value vehicles write offs may occur
due to cosmetic bodywork. 1t is
accepted that vehicle testing and
inspection may identify some poor
quality repairs however this is not
always the case. There are a wide range
of second hand vehicles on the market
and therefore write offs of any
category will not be licensed.

No renewal licence will be granted to any
vehicle which has been subject to any category
of write off

For the same reasons as above.

No roof signs are permitted

(Please see note below in respect of integral
roof signs on wheelchair accessible vehicles)

Roof signs are required to be utilised
on hackney carriage vehicles and are
prohibited on private hire vehicles for
the purpose of differential of the two
types of vehicles

Access to all passenger seats must be
unimpeded. Clear access and egress to all
passenger seats must be provided, without the
need to tip forward, fold or remove seats.

That the licensing committee may make
exceptions for specific models of vehicle, made
to the manufacturer’s specification, on an
individual basis, with vehicles approved in this

This is in the existing specification
approved by the Licensing Committee
in June 2019 and is worded as such to
provide adequate means of customer
comfort, whilst allowing the flexibility
to provide a wider range of vehicle
types onto the licensed fleet which may
suit the needs of groups of more than 4
passengers travelling at the same time.




Page 145

way added to an approved list of vehicles in
order that any future requests to license an
identical vehicle could be dealt with
automatically.

NOTE - Two door saloon cars with tilted seats
are not considered suitable for licensing as the
majority of customers would have to access the
vehicle via a tilted seat and such vehicles do not
add any additional passenger benefits when
compared to a 4 door saloon

The additional NOTE regarding 2 door
saloons is added for the purpaoses of
clarification

7 Only seats fitted with a three point safety belt Lap seat belts are less effective than 3
fitted as standard by the vehicle manufacturer point seat belis
will be classed as usable by passengers
Side facing seats are not permitted Seat belts are not effective in side

facing seats and therefore such seats
should not be utilised in licensed
vehicles. This is not deemed to be
restrictive as there are lots of vehicles
available on the market that do
provide only forward/ rear facing seats

8 The vehicle glass is to be kept clear of all Heavy tints may be fashionable in some
obstructions. types of vehicles, but they prevent site

of how many people are in the vehicle
The minimum permitted light transmissions are | and the conduct of people inside the
as follows: vehicle.
¢ Front windscreen transmission —
minimum 75% light Licensing Committee determined the
e  Front side glass transmission — permitted levels.
minimum 70% light
= No restrictions to rear passenger
side windows or rear windscreen.

9 No vehicle currently licensed as a hackney It is important that customers can
carriage / private hire vehicle in another readily identify their private hire
authority will be licensed by Lancaster City vehicle, signage and licence plates are
Council in place to facilitate this. [f a vehicle is

dual plated in another authority this
requires the regular exchange of
signage/ plates/ internal signage/ tariff
cards/ information for passengers etc.
This is deemed impractical

10 The vehicle will have space for a reasonable This is not expected to be excessive

amount of luggage associated with the
maximum passenger numbers

space. Passengers travelling to the
airport will have identified their airport
start/ finish point at the time of
hooking and therefore appropriate
vehicles for airport luggage should be




Page 146

identifiable at that time. The vehicle
should be able to safely facilitate a
couple of suitcases or an average family
weekly supermarket shop {i.e. 5 carrier
bags)

11 The vehicle shall be right hand drive anly For safety purposes and drivers vision
The vehicle shail have a solid roof / sunroofs are { A convertible vehicle does not provide
permitted the same degré\e of personal

protection. There is an adequate supply
of solid roof type vehicles avaiiable on
the market

12 The vehicle shall have a minimum of 4 opening | For safety purposes to prevent
doors. All doors must be fitted with reflectors/ | someone from knocking over
reflective strips or lights which are clearly visible | passengers as they egress the vehicle
from the rear of the vehicle when the door is
open

13 All doors should be capabie of being opened For passenger safety
from the inside and outside and the interior
door handle must be clearly visible and
accessible to passengers

14 Opening windows should be provided in the For passenger safety and comfort
rear of the vehicle and must be capable of being
opened by passengers.

Where this is not possible the vehicle should
have an adequate air conditioning system which
can be operated by passengers seated in the
rear of the vehicle

i5 All vehicles must have adequate leg and foot For the purposes of passenger comfort
room, shoulder width and head height to
accommodate a passengers of 6 ft. height and
average build.

{ For guidance purposes rear seat width should
be 129 cm per licensed seat ) '

16 With effect from 1 January 2030 private hire In line with the aims of the Councils
vehicle licences will only be granted to vehicles | declaration of a climate emergency
which are zero emission

17 With effect from 1 January 2025 private hire A stepped approach to achieving zero

vehicle licences will only be granted to petrol,
diesel or hybrid vehicles or vehicles which are
Euro 6 compliant.

emission policy and securing reduction
in air pollution levels




Page 147

18 The vehicle must not have more than 8 Private hire vehicles can only be
passenger seats or capacity for more than 8 licensed to carry a maximum of 8
passenger seats passengers

19 The vehicle must not have any sign, feature it is a requirement of legislation that
notice or ilfumination which consists of the private hire vehicles do not appear as a
word “ taxi” or leads any person to believe the hackney carriage vehicle
vehicle is a hackney carriage

20 The vehicle must be capable of passing the taxi
test

21 Where retrofit emission technology is installed | This is to ensure that only effective
in a vehicle it must be of a type approved by the | proven technology is used.

City Council
22 Consideration may he given to a colour
policy in respect of private hire
vehicles, If the consuitation identifies
that the public are unable to identify
private hire vehicles separate to
hackney carriage
Specific requirements for private hire Reason for proposed specification
wheelchair accessible vehicles

23 The vehicle must be purpose built by the This is an existing standard currently in

manufacturer or adapted prior to registration | force as a licensing condition on

in @ manner approved by the manufacturer, hackney carriage vehicles. Wheelchair

for the conveyance of wheelchair bound accessible private hire vehicles are also

passengers {where vehicles have been permitted to be licensed; it is

adapted prior to registration certification will | important that specialist requirements

be available) for wheelchair accessible private hire
vehicles are included within private
hire vehicle specification

24 The vehicle must provide access for a This is an existing standard currently in

wheelchair either through the nearside rear force as a licensing condition on

door or a door at the rear of the vehicle. Any hackney carriage vehicles. Wheelchair

door used for wheelchair access must be accessible private hire vehicles are also

capable of opening as wide as the aperture. permitted to be licensed; it Is
important that specialist requirements
for wheelchair accessible private hire
vehicles are included within the private
hire vehicle specification

25 A means to secure both the wheelchair and This is an existing standard currently in

the wheelchair occupant must be pravided;
additional handholds and an additional step
must be provided for the assistance of elderly

force as a licensing condition on
hackney carriage vehicles. Wheelchair
accessible private hire vehicles are also




Page 148

and ambulant disabled people; ramps must be
carried with the vehicle at all times

permitted to be licensed; it is
important that specialist requirements
for wheelchair accessible private hire
vehicles are included within the private
hire vehicle specification

26

If the vehicle was not purpose built for the
carriage of wheelchairs the applicant will be
required to produce documentary evidence
that it was adapted prior to registration, and
that the adaption was approved by the
manufacturer.

This is an existing standard currently in
force as a licensing condition on
hackney carriage vehicles. Wheelchair
accessible private hire vehicles are also
permitted to be licensed, it is
important that specialist requirements
for wheelchair accessible private hire
vehicles are included within the private
hire vehicle specification

27

A wheelchair accessible private hire vehicle
cannot be fitted with an operable roof sign. If
the vehicle is fitted with an integral roof sign it
must be made inoperable and the roof sign
painted the same colour as the body of the
vehicle

A private hire vehicle cannot be fitted
with a roof sign, a substantial % of
wheelchair accessible vehicles are
designed as hackney carriage vehicles
with integral roof signs. The Council
wish to encourage the take up of
wheelchair accessible vehicles in the
licensed fleet and so do not wish to
limit the number of vehicles available
to prospective purchasers

28

The Council will not licence as a private hire
vehicle a London style taxi/ metro cab type
vehicle or any other vehicle that appears to
have the design of the “ ionic London cab”

The legislation is clear that private hire
vehicles must not have the appearance
of a hackney carriage vehicle. The ionic
“London style cal” is of a particular
design that would lead people to
believe it to be a hackney carriage
vehicle regardless of any amendments
to the roof lights.




Page 149




Page 150

Appendix |

Hackney Carriage Vehicle Specification

It is the Councils intention to realign hackney carriage vehicle licence numbers so that the
mandated wheelchair accessible vehicles are clearly identifiable via the licence number.

Hackney Carriage Licence Number

Special Requirements re Vehicle

XX to XX

Any vehicle type that meets the proposed
specification below

XX to XX

Must be a wheelchair accessible vehicle
and meet the proposed specification below

Proposed specification

Reason for proposed specification

1 | Vehicles must conform to M1 vehicle
standard.

Converted vehicles must have either
European whole vehicle type approval/
individual type approval (IVA) or
European low volume type approval.

These standards are associated with safety
standard testing undertaken on the vehicle.

M1 type approval applies to mass
production car types.

2 | Vehicles cannot be retrofitted with
engines of a poaorer emission standard
than that of the vehicle at
manufacture.

The aspiration of the council is for less
poliuting vehicles.

3 | No new vehicle licence will be granted
to any vehicle which has been subject
to any category of vehicle write off.

Vehicles that have been written off are
repaired outside of insurance and the
quality of repair may be to a lesser
standard for exampie the use of second
hand parts. It is accepted that in very low
value vehicles write offs may occur due to
cosmetic bodywork. It is accepted that
vehicle testing and inspection may identify
some poor quality repairs however this is
not always the case. There are a wide
range of second hand vehicles on the
market and therefore write offs of any
category will not be licensed. .

4 | No renewal licence will be granted to
any vehicle which has been subject to
any category of write off

For the same reasons as above.

5 | Unless the vehicle is fitted with an
integral taxi roof sign, it must be fitted

Roof signs are required to be utilised on
hackney carriage vehicles to differentiate




Page 151

Appendix J

with the Lancaster City Council
approved taxi roof sign.

them from private hire vehicles. A single
design roof sign will promote a point of
identification of Lancaster City Council
Licensed hackney carriage vehicles

Access to all passenger seats must be
unimpeded. Clear access and egress 1o
all passenger seats must be provided,
without the need to tip forward, fold
of remove seats.

The licensing committee may make
exceptions for specific models of
vehicle, made to the manufacturer’s
specification, on an individual basis,
with vehicles approved in this way
added to an approved list of vehicles in
order that any future requests to
license an identical vehicle could be
dealt with automatically.

NOTE: Two door saloon cars with tilted
seats are not considered suitable for
licensing as the majority of customers
would have to access the vehicle via a
tilted seat and such vehicles do not add
any additional passenger benefits
when compared to a 4 door saloon.

This is in the existing specification
approved by the Licensing Committee in
June 2019 and is worded as such to provide
adequate means of customer comfort,
whilst allowing the fiexibility to provide a
wider range of vehicle types onto the
licensed fleet which may suit the needs of
groups of more than 4 passengers

travelling at the same time.

The additional NOTE re 2 door saloon cars
is added for the purposes of clarification.

Only seats fitted with a three point
safety belt fitted as standard by the
vehicle manufacturer will be classed as
usable by passengers

Side facing seats are not permitted

Lap seat belts are less effective than 3
point seat belts

Seat belts are not effective in side facing
seats and therefore such seats should not
be utilised in licensed vehicles, This is not
deemed to be restrictive as there are lots
of vehicles available on the market that do
provide only forward/ rear facing seats.

The vehicle glass is to be kept clear of
all obstructions.

The minimum permitted light
transmissions are as follows:
e Front windscreen
transmission —minimum
75% light

Heavy tints may be fashionable in some
types of vehicles, but they prevent site of
how many people are in the vehicle and
the conduct of people inside the vehicle.

Licensing Committee determined the
permitted levels.




Page 152

Appendix ]

e Front side glass transmission
—minimum 70% light

No restrictions to rear passenger side
windows or rear windscreen.

No vehicle currently licensed as a
hackney carriage / private hire vehicle
in another authority will be licensed by
Lancaster City Council.

it is important that customers can readily
identify the licensed status of a vehicle.
Vehicle, signage and licence plates are in
place to facilitate this. If a vehicle is dual
plated in another authority this requires
the regular exchange of
signage/plates/internal signage/tariff
cards/information for passengers etc. This
is deemed impractical.

10

The vehicle will have space for a
reasonable amount of luggage
associated with the maximum
passenger numbers.

This is not expected to be excessive space.
It is accepted that hackney carriage vehicle
may pick up passengers from the station
rank who have significant amounts of
luggage. Passengers pre-booking and
travelling to the airport will have identified
their airport start/finish point at the time
of booking and therefore appropriate
vehicles for airport luggage should be
identifiable at that time. Proposed licence
conditions identify that where large
amounts of luggage are presented
maximum passenger numbers cannot be
accommodated.

11

The vehicle shall be right hand drive
only.

For safety purposes and drivers’ vision.

12

The vehicle shall have a solid
roof/sunroofs are permitted,

A convertible vehicle does not provide the
same degree of personal protection. There
is an adequate supply of solid roof type
vehicles available on the market.

13

The vehicle shall have a minimum of 4
opening doors. All doors must be fitted
with reflectors/ reflective strips or
lights which are clearly visible from the
rear of the vehicle when the door is
open.

For safety purposes to prevent someone
from knocking over passengers as they
egress the vehicle.




Page 153

Appendix J

14

All doors should be capabie of being
opened from the inside and outside
and the interior door handle must be
clearly visible and accessible to
passengers.

For passenger safety.

15

Opening windows should be provided
in the rear of the vehicle and must be
capable of being opened by
passengers.

Where this is not possible the vehicle
should have an adequate air
conditioning system which can be
operated by passengers seated in the
rear of the vehicle.

For passenger safety and comfort.

16

All vehicles must have adequate leg
and foot room, shoulder width and
head height to accommodate a person
of 6ft height and average build.

For the purposes of passenger comfort.

17

With effect from 1 January 2030
hackney carriage vehicle licences will
only be granted to vehicles which are
zero emission.

In line with the aims of the Councils
declaration of a climate emergency.

18

With effect from 1 January 2025 private
hire vehicle licences will only be granted to
petrol, diesel or hybrid vehicles or vehicles
which are Euro 6 compliant.

A stepped approach to achieving zero
emission policy and securing reduction in
air pollution levels.

19

The vehicle must not have more than 8
passenger seats or capacity for more
than 8 passenger seats.

Hackney carriage hire vehicles can only be
licensed to carry a maximum of 8
passengers.,

20

The vehicle must be capable of passing
the taxi test.

21

Where retrofit emission technology is
installed in a vehicle it must be of a
type approved by the City council.

This is to ensure that only effective proven
technology is used.

22

Consideration may be given to a colour
policy in respect of hackney carriage
vehicles. If the consultation identifies that
the public are unable to identify private




Page 154

Appendix J

hire vehicles separate to hackney carriage.

Specific requirements for wheelchair
accessible vehicles

Reason for the proposed specification

23

The vehicle must be purpose built by
the manufacturer or adapted prior to
registration in a manner approved by
the manufacturer, for the conveyance
of wheelchair bound passengers (such
adaption will have appropriate
certification).

This is an existing standard currently in
force as a licensing condition on hackney
carriage vehicles.

24

The vehicle must provide access for a
wheelchair either through the nearside
rear door or a door at the rear of the
vehicle. Any door used for wheelchair
access must be capable of opening as
wide as the aperture.

This is an existing standard currently in
force as alicensing condition on hackney
carriage vehicles.

25

A means to secure both the wheelchair
and the wheelchair occupant must be
provided; additional handholds and an
additional step must be provided for
the assistance of elderly and ambulant
disabled people; ramps must be carried
with the vehicle at all times.

This is an existing standard currently in
force as a licensing condition on hackney
carriage vehicles.

26

If the vehicle was not purpose built for

the carriage of wheelchairs the
applicant will be required to produce
documentary evidence that it was
adapted prior to registration, and that
the adaption was approved by the
manufacturer.

This is an existing standard currently in
force as a licensing condition on hackney
carriage vehicles.




Page 155




Page 156

Appendix K

Driver/Proprietor Vehicle Inspections

Public safety is at the core of hackney carriage and private hire licensing, the safety of a
licensed vehicle is an integral part of that. As part of the conditions attached to driver and
vehicle licences and the hackney carriage drivers code of conduct both drivers and vehicle
licence owners have responsibility in terms of the safety of the vehicle.

Drivers

A licensed driver shall undertake a daily vehicle check at the beginning of each shift. The
checks to be carried out are as follows:

¢ Lights and indicators.

e Tyre condition, pressures and tread/wheelnuts.

e  Wipers, washers, and washer fluid levels.

¢ Cleanliness inside and out.

e Bodywork — no dents or sharp edges.

e Licence plates present and fixed in accordance with licensing requirements.

e Signage present as required.

e Brakes.

¢ Horn in working order.

s Qil/Water levels.

e Drivers mirrors.

e Seats/seat belts. ' '

e Suspension/steering appear to be working ok.

e Sundry equipment.

The licensed driver shall ensure a record is immediately made once the checks have been
carried out and note any defects and corrective action undertaken. The record of the check
is to be kept in the vehicle at all times and will ensure the information is available to an
Authorised Officer upon request. In the case of vehicles licensed by a person other than the
driver, the vehicle licence holder must be informed of any defects identified and corrective
action undertaken/required.

Proprietor {Vehicle Licence Holder)

A vehicle licence holder shall on a monthly basis undertake and keep a written record of the
vehicle inspection detailing the outcome of all the checks carried out. The documented
information must as a minimum contained the information detailed in Table 1 {below).

Vehicle Testing

When a licensed vehicle is submitted for a vehicle licence test, the vehicle testers or
authorised officers may ask to see the vehicle inspection records. Where there are
anomalies between the condition of the vehicle as presented for test and the vehicle
inspection records these will be reported to the licensing office and consideration given as
to any action required in terms of the vehicle licence holder or the licensed driver




Page 157

Appendix K

What if the licensed driver and or vehicle holder fail to undertake the checks and record
the required information?

The failure to complete the relevant vehicle checks as required by the licence conditions
represents a breach of those conditions, this may then give rise to the Council formally
considering whether an individual remains suitable to continue to hold the licence in effect
whether the driver remains fit and proper to hold a drivers licence if he/ she is not capable
of carrying out safety checks on the vehicle. Similarly, is a vehicle licence holder an
appropriate person to hold a vehicle licence if he/ she is not capable of demonstrating that
the vehicle is properly maintained. Such failures may also impact on a person’s suitability to
hold future licences.

Notes:

The vehicle must be in aroadworthy condition before its available for hire. Defects should be
reportedto the vehicle proprietor and repaired/rectified before starting work. Documents may
be checked at the vehicle test. The form below can be replaced with similar paperwork of your
choice but must contain all the information as detailed on the form below.

CHECKLIST FORM PROVIDED ON PAGE BELOW




Page 158

Table 1

Driver and Proprietor

Vehicle Inspection Record and Checklist

Appendix K

Date Checks
Completed:

Licence Plate No:

Vehicle Make and
Model:

Registration No:

Item Checked:

Satisfactory (please & as appropriate)

Yes

No

Fuel, Oil, and Water

Handbrake/Footbrake

Wheel| Security (No nuts/Studs missing or
loose)

Tyres (Tread/Pressure)

Lights, Reflectors, Horn (including Activated
Warning Lights)

Driver's Mirrors {intact and adjusted)

Windscreen/Wipers/Washer

All Seats and Seat Belts

First Aid Box/Fire Extinguisher

All Signage Internal/External and Plates
{present and in good condition, including Roof
Lights on Hackney Carriages)

Body Panels/Paintwork

Sundry Equipment i.e., Steps, Ramps,
Wheelchair Anchor Straps, Swivel Seats

Suspension/Steering i.e.,any knockingorrattiing?
{(Problemsshould beinvestigatedimmediatelyand
necessaryrepairscarriedout).

| certify that the above checks have been completed. Any corrective action has been completed. The

vehicle is/is not in a roadworthy condition.

Checks carried out hy

Name (please print}: Badge No:
Signature: Date:
Proprietor of Vehicle

Name (please print): Contact No:
Signature; Date:




Page 159




Page 160

aoe|d Sunpjel m@cmsu yans

Aue Jo sAep #T ulyum siaulied

1o sJ1012341p ul @8ueyd Aue

10 (821Ns {i1Im [lews } Suillm

ul paijlou aq ||eys Alldoyine

Buisuady) syy ‘diysisuped

10 Auedwos e Jo aweu sy}

u1 p|3y 3u1aq 22ua|| 3PIYSA
241y 81eAld 341 JO JUSAS B U] e

J[[eYS I9p|0Y DDUDI| DIIYIA 3Y |

32U321| 3PIY3A B Jo diysisumo

10 93UBY3 03 Uojle|ad Ul uonEe|sISa|
ul paurads polad awil 3y3 sJoupw
siyl se pasodoid pouad Aep-H1

‘Ajioyine Suisuaoy

3} 03 PAJIOU Bg pINOYS SI0}IRUIP
Auedwod Jo diysisauped u agueyo
Aue 1eyy suinbsu g/ eaed spaepuels
14Q 8Yy1 se Auessadau Ajgeuoseal
pawaap si uolipuod pasodoud siyj

[44

‘$sauppe
Jo 98ueyd Aue jo (a214ns

[[1M [IBWS ue} SUIdM Ul [I2Unc)
2yl Ajnou sAep /£ UIyUpn e
‘[|BYS J2p|0Y 92Ud2]| 32IYydA dY )

[l JO 3SN UOWWOD
9Y3 103|484 01 palepdn SUIPIOA

goe|d

Supjel s3ueyd yons Jo sABp UBASS UIYHM 32U
ay1 jo pouad syl Suunp sssuppe siy jo afueyd Aue
J0 3uilum ul 1puno) ay3 Ajizou |jeys Joaudoad ay) v

uonensIuIWpPY Suisuadr] v

uoIpuo) Suisusdr] pasodoad

SjUBILIOY 49310

3uipiopn Sunsna

PaAI3I3L SJULILIO) fO UCIIDIAPISUOI PUD UOIIDINSUOD

{0 2503 ay) Buimoyjjof aaywiwo) Buisuaort ayi Aq panoiddp suopipuod acuasij ayl Ajuo moys [jim 2auadif Jo suopypuod ay3 Aagjod [ouif ayz uj

"MOjaq SO uMoys 310 33uadjf Jo SU0IIPUOI Y] ‘UOIILINSUO) fo sasodind ayi 104

dON3DIT 40 SNOILLIANOD

S3INIIN FTIIHIA FdIH ILVAINL

9/6T LDV (SNOISINOYd SNOINVTTIDSIA INFAINHIAOD TVI01]

1 Xipuaddy



Page 161

J22140 3y}

Aq pauiads swi) pue siep e 1e
D|2IYIA 3Y1 SALP 01 uolssiwaad
pey oym o} se s|ieiap

aplao.ad 43210 pasuoyine

ue wouj 159nbas uodn

:[|_YS JSP]OY 85U321| 9J21Y3A BY |

‘spiepuels SulAlLp

ajdwexa Jo} SURJoM 10U S| 3|DIYIA
JABALIP 1BYT 1S[IYM JBALIP € JO
1onpuod ayi Suipiedal paalsdal S|
wiejdwod e y1 ‘s)jdwexa Jo4 "JIAUP
PIsuUII|| BUO ULY] dJ0W AQ UBAMP
SI 9|21YSA 2yt Ji Ajjeadss (spwiny
13410 1e 3|gissod aq jou Aew — qof
€ U0 SI 3[21ysn 3yl usym Jojelado
ay1 eln s|qissod 2q Aew S1y3 Is|1ym)
W sejnaied Aue 1B 301YaA Y1
BUIALIP S1 Oym Auapl ued |1punoy
2y31 1ey] Alessadau A|qeuoseal s 3

Y

"AjLoyine je20f Jayjoue

A pasus2i| 2q 01 J0U S 3dIYyaA
3yl [puno) Al J81sesue

Aq pasus2l| SI 3]21ysA a4y
21eAld B 1S)IYM 1Y) BJNSu3

JlIeYS JSP[OY 33U| DPIYSA YL

‘AlLloyine [eso] Jayioue

Aq pasuadl 8q 031 3[21Y3A BY3
3|qeua 01 J3PJO U} BIUDDI| BIIYBA
B SulepusINS Woly Wwayi Jussald
Jou ss0p uollpuod pasodoud

341 ‘satuedwlod ases} jo 1adsal uj

"UOISNJUOD BSNEI PINOD

Ae|dsip uo spies ey #2312 a8eudis
1UDI24Ip JO 3sn ay] ‘BJeymas|d
PasuUad|] 3q 10U P{NOUS }| "3}21YyaA
pasuadl} Ja1sesueT e se 3|geLuapl
Ajdesd si 9d1ysa ay3 1eyl

aJnsu? 01 Asessaoau Ajqeuoseal
pawaap si uolpuod pasodoad siyj

&V

1 Xlpuaddy




Page 162

B JaY/WIyY 0} J3AI|SP 01 JBALID
ay3 aainbaa spryaa pasusdl
9Y1 DALIP 0} JBALIP 3.1y 91eAlad
pasua3dl] e Sunjiwiad suojeg e
JJ{_YS Jap|oy 22Uad1| 321434 9y L

e Sl SIYy] -paJidxa sey 30u321| J3ALP
33} 92U0 D[2IUDA PBIUIDI| BY3 JO
SN AABY JIALIP U1 19| 10U pINOYS
Jo0191udoud sy 1ey3 uawaltnbau

e Sulppe Aq uoIipuod 3uilsSixa

SIy1 uayiduauis 01 pasodoud si

pa1UwIad 3¢ 03 $35EBI JBALIP Y1 SB DWIL YINS [I3un
UOITUB1aJ 1O BOUBII| S JBALIP DUIH 21BALId 42 / S1Y
10 Ad0o2 & Wiy 01 ISAHSP 01 JOALIP U1 3SNED SRIYDA
9Y1 SALP 03 S92UIWIWO0D uosiad eyl 310429 [jeYysS oy
‘3PIUSA BIH D1BALd B SE 3PIYDA 3Y3 SALP 01 uosiad
Jayio Aue sAojdwae Jo sywuad Jolaiidoad auyy §

9v

"sguiduofaq |euossad

0} a8ewep Jo 10adsaa ul

pue yieap Jo Ainful [esisAud jo

109dsald ul yioq Anjgel] Alied

pJIY3 ‘@sn aaly ajealsd U8A02

yolym aaueansui Jo Aajjod

2|qeUNS B ‘JpPIysa a1y ajeand

3Y1 JO 185N 3yl 01 UOIIE|DU

ut 92404 Ul dady ‘S2u3dI| SY3
10 Aduaauno ayi ynoydnodyl e
:|[eys Jap|oy 2uD1| B2IYSA BYL

() 0SS 926T VdINDT) 492140
pasioyIne Aq paisanbal uaym dop

goueansul sonpoud 03 1uswalinbal
|eSa7 paJnsul S| 3dIYSA

e I13yl1aym AH1Uspl 01 SWSISAS BIRD
jeuonleu $$3228 Aj91BIpPaWILUL MOU
ued a2)jod 1ey3 ueaw ASojouydal

Ul sjuLWdo[3A3( "IdIYIA

3Y31 ul 1day 9 01 1432 JdUBINSU]
9Y1 109dxe 01 Alessadau Ajgeuoseal
3 J3PISUODD 10U Op SI22LO

juswasinbas ueasal e SISy
Al4ea[d Ing ‘@ousdl| 3yl JO uoliRINp
2y3 1noydnoJdyy aoe|d uj ulewsau

01 sey adsueinsul 9yl sAes jeys
uolie|si3a] Buisusdi| Ixe1 ul aads
gulyiou $1 249y "pPajUBIS S| BOUBY
3y} uaym aae|d ul $1 @aUBINSU]
1eU1 JjosH AJsi1es 01 Spasu |1ounod
9431 3eY1 S81e2IpuU] Uolle(sIZa] ayl se
Aiessaoau A|EUOSEDI PRIBPISUCD
S[ UORIpUOD pasodoud sIy L

"1s3nbaJ uo 422130 pasUoyIny

ue Ag uoladsul 10} 3|qe|IBAR BpeW ‘PUE Bd1YDA

341 Ul paLlied aq pinoys 931e21i180 sy} jo Adoo vy
sguiBuoaq

[euostad 01 aFewep Jo 1adsaa ul pue yiesp 1o Anful
|eoisAyd jo 1adsal ut yroq Ajigel Aped paiys JoAod
yarym saueansul Jo Adijod e 8]01yaa 2JiH 91eAlId D43
10 13sn ay] 0} UOIjB]aJ Ul 92104 Ul da3y 9ouUd2I| 3y} JO
Adusiina 3yl Fuiinp ‘|jays Jojslidoid 2yl ‘sawil [|e 1y

SvY

7 Xipuaddy




Page 163

sonpoud Jo ‘Buiuiel; puslie 0}
1uswalnbai Aue 01 payoene
994 10 38.B2 UonBSIUIWPE

9|qeuoseal syl Aed e

leys
13p|0Y 22U} BPIYIA 341y 218Ald YL

‘@Bewep 1uapiade Suimo||o}
3[01YaA e JO Sullsel [euoiuppe
apnpul Aew sejdwexs paJsinbau
3Jaym SulUIBL] 1O UOIIRIIHHDD
[euonippe adinbau 01 {1DUno) Al
341 Mmo||e 01 AIBSSaOSU A|geUOSED.
pawsep sI uoilpuos sty

TA4

"9|qEISUOD IO IO
pasuoyine ue o3 }sanbal
uodn aonpoid pue Andxs

J2YE SYIUOW XIS 10§ 532U
S 49AMD 34 UONBWIOJUI 33y e
~ aoe|d ul Fulaq 9oUdIY
S 49ALP auly 91eAud pijea
B JNOYHM IIYaA pIsudd|| ay}
BALIP 01 uostad Aue MmO|je JON e
‘B2UBI1| SIDALIP 3Y1 40
21ep Andxa ay3 pue swn Aue
18 3[2143A 9y} Suiaup uoslad
8Y1 JO 3WEU 3Y3] JO pJodal
3jeanooe pue ayejdwod e dasy e
:[[BYS Jap|oy 93U331[ 3[21Y2A 3y

"B21Y3A 3J1Y

91eAlld ay3 2ALIp 0) paAojdwa
Jo paniuwilad 29 01 sasean
JBALIP BY] SB 3WII YINS JIIun
‘UolUS1aJ 10§ BIUDBDY| S, JDALIP
a1y azeand Jayl jo Adoa

.AU

T 9% UOII93S 9/6T YdINDT) @jo1yaA
31 YI0M 01 JBALIP PIsSUIDL|UN

ue Mo[je 01 J3p|OY S2UdII| B[IIYIA
341y 91eALId B J0) @0UBO UR 51 )
32UI| ,SIBALIP 241y 33eAld JUS4JND
B BABY S9|21Y3A J19Y3 BUIAlLIpR

3B OUM sU0sIad 9y 1yl mouy
SABME SISP[OY 92U3D1| BJ2IYIA 1Y
21ealid 1ey1 sunsua 03 S| UORIPUOD
pasodo.d ayj jo JUs WD BJIXd BY [

ainsesw
A1ajes agnd Asessadau Ajqeuoseal

"SI 4O D2IYBA
12Y10 Aue 10 3[214sA 3Y1 SALIP 0} paiojdws Jo

1 X1puaddy




Page 164

"9040) Ul

SI 92U3D1| Y1 BIYym aw Aue e

[1pUnod ayl jo jeacadde Jod ayy

INOYUM dpeW 39 ||BYS 3]21Yy3A

3Y3 jo soueleadde 4o uoipuod

‘uSisep ‘uonesynads ay3 Ul
23ueyd JO uolEID] e OU BJNSUT] e

:[|_YS Jop|oy 92UBd]| BPIYBA YL

pasodoud se paydwis aq ued
UOIHPUOD B2USDI| BYL "uoledyads
3]21yaaA ay) Jo uoipladal e aJe Ing
SUOILPUOD 2UBD1| JOU D4 95D |

pue uoIsiaAuo2 Yyans Aue Jaye A[S1eIpawwl pauIelqo
9q 01 sl @aueldwo) JO 31eIYIUBD ¥ "UOISIDAUOD

2yl 1no Aured Aew os op o1 pasioyine s5e.ed

e AjJup “swpedsp Suisusdl] syl Jo uoissiwiad
$saddxa ayl yUm 3g 1snw (Hd1) sen wnajollad
pInbI] 03 pa1aAuD 34 03 SI 1Y) 3PIYLA Auy

"0S SB POSAUOD 10U pue
2JN12BINUEBW SAMP pPUBY-1YSLJ 4O 3( [|eYS 3DIYDA YL

14319 ueyl sJow Jou Ing sJjaduassed Inoj ueyy
$s3| Jou SulALied Jo 3jgeded 9q 1snw 3DIYSA 3y

"apisul 8yl woJ} pauado Sutaq jo ajqeded aie Yarym
JO |[B ‘5100p Un0J 15ED]| 1B SARY 1SNW B|21YdA YL

"Yum payjdwod Afiny aq

[leys {suonengay (asn pue uolonNIIsuo)) S9aIYsA
I010JA] Ul pauleiuod asoyl senaiped ui Suipniaul)
SIUWAIINbas A10IN1R1S JURAD|D |[B PUB UOIHPUOD
uead pue Apil ‘sjes uspIe ue up 1day aq U1y

10} ®[gejieAR JO 3SN Ul SI SPDIYSA 3] UdymM Satull |(e
1€ ||eys juswdinba pue s§umly sy || pUB 3)21YsA 3y,

1d

PIYBA U3 JO UOIIPUO)

'ss820.1d uolealyiiou

JO UOfBJISIUIUPE JBYl0 1D
2942 UOIIBDIBA JUSWISSISSE
‘918D1H8D ueAD|Sl B

‘Buidieyoiano
Jo suonesdsjje 8uimoj|o}
SJ913W [XE] UO S$O3YD Uoliepl|ea

1 xipuaddy




Page 165

1ey3 o1 Ajdde suonensay 1o S3ADBUI 850U J0U IO
Jaylaym ‘98AT suoiie|nsay (asn pue uollonilsuod)
BIYIA PROY 2Y1 JO /¥ pue g suonenday pue {H3
8E/96 dAIPRIIQ Aq papuswe se) D3 STT/9/ aARQ
uesdoun3 ul paydads syuswaainbag Yiduasiis

2yl yum Ajdwod yorym yaq 1eas juiod € jruoBelp
pue de[ e yum papiroid aq ||eys siess Je8uassed ||y

‘WIQZ6 10 Wnwiuiw
2 9 [|BYS BUi| |BIILISA B Ul JOOJ 843 JO Hed 159Mmo|
24} 03 SUOIYSND 135 2Y] WOI} WOOoIpeSY [BUIDUI

Y1 "U0J} Ul uoIIdNIISQO 158488U BYL 0] 189S
3U1 JO 3seq 3yl WoJ usye) aq ||Bys Juawainseaw
DU1 1UCI) Ul 1B3S OU S| 3JBY1 SIDYAN "]|9M JUOLL 3
0} 1B9S J23J 9Y3} JO 9SE( SY} WO} pamo|je 3q [|eys

WWOQST Usyl PIASIYIE 8¢ JOULED UBWIINSEDW
SIY} §| "UOISUDIXD SPIEMIBDI ‘[|N) S) JB 51 1BDS JU0IL
BU1 USUM 1UOJJ Ul 18IS BY] JO JBaJ BY] 01 189S 3y}

JO 3seQ Y1 WOl USHe] aq [|IMm JUSWRINSeaW ay |
“WwipQz 29 |ieys 1s3uassed Aue 01 s|gejieAR WOOS
o] wnuiuiw sy 1yS1vY-peay pue Yipim-lapnoys
‘Wo01-100} pue Z3| @3enbape aAey 1SnNW SBIYBA ||V

"018 ‘SIapuIm MOpUIM
‘s)sadWIe FUIphjaxs ‘Yipim pajaniisqoun sayoul
T4 UBY] SS3| OU JO 34 [|BYS 1B3S JBdJ 8yl JO YIpim 3y

"Woladsul
Joj Juswiiedap Suisusdl} oy3 03 paiussaid

1 xipuaddy




Page 166

poriad souadlf oyt Sunp
28e1s Aue 12 uoIdadsul
/1591 B121Y3A S[12UNOD

ay3 Buissed jo sjqeded

3g p|noys pue JapJo pood
Ul paulBIuiewWw s 221Yyaa
2.1y 91enud Byl 1Byl 34nsu]

:[|eYs Jap|oY 82URII| S2IYDIA BYL

3yl 1eym Joj s|qisuodsal sy oym
0] SE 121|JU02 U310 S| 31aY3 SISAUp

Pasuad|| 01 pIIUSL BJe SIDIYSA

19YM 1B8ABMOY 1BP|0Y B82UID]| Ul
Yum a1 Ajpzewnyn 1snw a|214aAa syl
10 @oueualUIEW J0J ALfjIgISuodsaul

oY1 se Auessaoau Ajqeuosesu
S| uoiupuod pasodousd sy

€d

guiuels Jo

a5ewep J3Y30 40 SIea] ‘SInd
Jolew wouy 9344 SulBA0D
Aue pue uea|d ag pjhoys
wawpedwod syl "1y

pie 1541} pUB S|001 |[RIIUDSS
‘Jaysindunxe aJl ‘lesym
aJ1eds 10j 3dsoxs Aldwse
1day asimiaylo pue 28e88n
Joguassed Joj d|gejleae

9q pinoys uswiiedwod
2ded3n) /1009 ay] s.nsuj

:[|_YS J2pjoy 25U 3[DIY3A 3y

"uoleayliefd
-24 93ueyd Joujw pa3sa8ans
35UBLD OU UOINPUOD PIBA

‘Bujue)s 1o sSewep J9Y10 JO
siea} ‘sino Jolew wou) 9914 BUlISA0D AUB pue ues|d
2q pjnoys 1uswpedwod ay] (Z-6658 Sd plepuels

ysipag yum Ajdwod 01) ‘4 ple 1sJi) pue 5j00l
[211U3553 ‘JaysIn3ullxs a4l ‘|@aym aueds 1o} 1dIoxe
Ardwe aq pinoys 1uswiiedwod a8e38n|/ 100q ay

<d

"Buiulels Jo agewep 13Yio 1o
$Je31 ‘sInd Jofews wouy 231) BulsA0 Aue pue uespd
a4 pinoys Juswpedwod 3yl *(Z-6653 54 pIepuels

ysiug yum Ajdwod 01) ‘13 pie 1s11} pue sjool
[ernuasss ‘Jsysindulixa a1l ‘Saym aieds Joy ydaoxe
Adwa aq pinoys juswiedwod a8e83n| /100q syl

"S[0IYDA 3Y3 Jo 3eas Jejnopped

1 Xipuaddy




Page 167

wswdinbs Alpung e

$1j9q 1e9s /S1eas e

SIOMIW SIDALIG @

. S[PABldeIEM /IO e

J9PJ0 SUDJOM UL UIOH e

sajelg e

pasinbaJ se juosaid a8eudis e
spusWwadinbal Suisuao|
UM S2UBPIODDE Ul Paxi)

pue luasaud soje|d 90UB2I] e
sodpa dieys

10 SIURP OU —domApog e

1N0 pue apISul SSIUIUEID) e
S[aAQ] pInj} J3Yysem

pue siaysem ‘siadipp, e
sinujsaym/peay pue

s8nssaJd ‘UOIIPUOD BIA] e

S101E3IPUL PUB SIYSIT e
:Buimol|o) syl pauleluod
wnuwiuiu e se 3snu
UOIIBLLIOLUI PRIUSWNIOP
9L "INO PaLLED S$YIaY2
3Y1 || {0 2W021N0 3y}
guijielap uonoadsu apiyaa
BY} JO PJO23J UDIIUIM

‘Aljigisuodsau 11jds e aaey
J9pP|0Y 22U} I|DIYDA PUB JDALIP
e dea) pue axenapun 3L} Y10q aIdym WisiueyIowW e

siseq AjJuluow B UQD @ ur and o1 sy@8s uollpuos pasedoud

1 xipuaddy



Page 168

1uawdinba ay) palsenbals saBuassed

B J| "91831411432 pIe 1541} pasiugoda.
JUB4ND B Spjoy oym uosuad e

Ag pasn aq Ajuo pjnoys 1l ‘asiie pjnoys
9SN S} JoJ posu Byl | 'saiHed payl o1
DOURISISSE J3pUaJ 01 3SN S} Ul paulRl]
350U1 ATNQ 9]qEuD 03 S1 paliied

W 3Y1 ‘ple 154y Suliapusy i Aljigel|
ANOA 0} UMBIP S| UCIJUDIIE INOA

1day aue Aay) siaym o3
Se 9|214y9A Y1 ul pahe|dsip ag
[|BYS 82110U B pue Adussiows
ue ul asn aleIpawl
10} 3|qIssad0e Ajlpesd 2q 01 se
3[21YyaA 2y} Ul uotpsod e yans
ul pawies ag 01 wawdinbs
Uyans (z-6658 9 piepuels
ysiaug yum Aidwod o)
wawdinba pue suissalp pie
154} 91elsdoidde Suiuieuos 1y
pIe 1541} B pue 21ep-ul 9q os]e
1Snw yaym ‘asysinduixs aiy
1UBDIYD pUB 3|GBUNS B SBWI}
[[e 18 SJOIYDA SY3 Ul paulejuIBwl
pue papiacsd S| 49yl 3unsuy e
:[|eys Japjoy 22uadl] 3IYdA Y]

1591 221YydA B3
JO 3wl 8yl 1B JaYyioue 01 3[2IYyaA
suo wou paddems pue seplyaa
1ssuowie paseys 3u1aq S ple 1541
sjuanaud Syl 4aquinu uonesigal
B[IY3A 34l yUMm parsew A|qiapul
aq 03 S pIe 1541} 404 AJessadau
AlgEUOSERU 1 JBPISUOD SIBIILO

pouad

30ua0|| 219|dwod Y3 Jo) Ajdde
SUOILIPUOD 82USDI| BY1 199413 U]
“40M 341y 23ealad uo pageldus

10U SI 11 1 USAS porad 30u32]| 3yl
Bupnp sawil ||e 38 pasuadl| sulewsl
1l PasuDIl| S IIIYSA B B2UO 1BYL
pajielsp Yaiym aaAog A uosuag

JO ME| 35ED 123|424 0} papusWe
Allu8]|s Suipasom pasodoud

"2JBJ J9UIOISNI JO 158433Ul
341 U1 J2WO0ISNI 3yl AQ UOIIBJISIUILPER-}[3S JO}
papinold g Aew 11 usyl Juswdinbs ayl polsenbal
J93uassed e J| "21e21}11132 pie 1541 pasiudooal
1ua.Lna e spjoy oym uosiad e Ag pasn ag Ajuo
pinoys A ‘aslie pinoys asn sil JoJ paau syl 4| -sonded
P41y} O] 9DURISISSE JSPUSI 0 BSN SY Ul pauies)

350Ul ATNO 2]geua 01 SI paLIed 1) 3Y3 ‘pie 1544
Sunspuad J1 Aljigel] JnoA 03 UMBIP S1 UOIIUDILIE JNOA

1day 31e Aayl 243ym 01 Se 3[21YSA 3}

ui paAedsip a9 ||eyYs 92110U B pue Aduadisws ue ul
DSN DlRIPAWIWI 10} B[C1SS320e A|IpESI 3G 03 SB BIIYDA
ay1 ul uoiisod e yons ul palued aq o1 wawdinba
yons ‘(z-6658 S4 p4epuBlS ysizg yum Ajdwod

01) uswdinba pue s3uissalp pie 15414 21elidoadde
Fuluieu0D 1 PIE 1511} B PUB 31RP-Ul B¢ OS|. 1SN
YoIym “I9ysInBulIXa a4 JUSIDIHS pue |geUNs B 1Y
J0J 3]qe[IBAR JO 3SN Ui S| 1 USYM SIUIIT ||E 3. 3[2IYRA
3Y1 ul paulelulew pue papiacid aq |jeys U9yl

bd

o upjdom aq 03
Jeadde Sulisals/uojsusdsns e

1 Xipuaddy




Page 169

[BUILILID 10 )SR4Ie AuR

10 sjte1ap fnj Sutpiaoud (82144ns

[[IM |1BWS) SUllM Ul [1aunoD
B8yl Ajiou sunoy gy ulyim e

pouad sinoy gy a8y "W1sAs
jeiaipnl ayl Aq pesodwi suoioues
43y10 spnjout 01 palepdn uaaq sey
1nq siuswssnbal snolas.d s109|484
Aja8ae} 11 Aessaoau Ajgeucseau

"93U32}| @Y1 jo pouad ayz Suunp

(s4suyied Jo sio1324ip BY] Jo Aue uo ‘diysisuned Jo
Auedwod e st so3adoud ay3 1 Jo) wiy uo pasoduul
UOII21AU0D Aue JO s|ie1ap Suilim Ul 1Puno) ayl

[[eYs J3p[oY 32U} B|NYSA 3YL | pawa3p S| uollipuod pasododd siyl 01 950[2sIp SARP USASS UIYIM jleys soleldoid ay] 1)
Alligelins pue suonaiAuo) J
"UIBUISPUIM el
10 smopuim apis 1a8uassed
1E34 01 SUOIIDIISDI ON o
31 %0L
WINWIUIW — UOISSRUSURIY
T "UBIISPUIM JBDI IO SMOPUIM
sse|g apisuoly e
5 opIs JaBuassed Jeal 01 SUDIIDIIISAION e
sl 9
Hsll %L W81 %02
WiNWIUIW — UOISSILISUEI]
. T winwiuiw — uolssiwsuesy ssejs apis uod4 e
UDUISPUIM JUOI{ o
WB1| %S Wnuwiuw
:SMO|[O4 S 1B SUCISSILISURL]
— UOISSIWISURI] UDBIISPUIM JUOI] e
W31 pariwusd wnwiuw sy
1SMO||04
SUO[12M11Sqo se 2Je suolssisuesy 1431 paiiuwusd wnwiuw ayy
lje jo Je3)2 1day 8q 03
S155e[3 3|31yaA @Y} 24nsSUT e 'SUOI1OMIISqO
:JiBYsS J2p|0y 22U3dI| 321YIA YL pasodoud aSueys oN [[e jO Jea|2 1day @ 03 sI Sse|8 spP1yaA 9yl 94
qcd

"84ED JBWIOISND JO 1$331U]
3Y1 Ul J3W01sN3 8y} Aq uoneJisiuiupe
-J|9s 40y} paplaoud aq Aew 1 uayl

1 Xipuaddy




Page 170

2]d1yaa 3yl uo syd1 10

sale|d uollellsidal 0IUsA B

34nasqo Aem Aue Ul jou 1snw

a1e|d au3 pue 3PIYIA 3yl jo

JeaJ U3 WOl 2fqISIA 3¢ p|noys

@1e|d 2yl uo uoilewJioul

J1e “aeduwing Jeaus ay1 jo

IpISIedU BY1 O} Paxiye AjuLil)

si a1e|d JeaJ Byl jeyl a4nsug e

[lBYS Jap|oy 32U} 3{2iYaA Syl

"SI[2IYDIA

pPo2uad[] S 3]1Sed2uUe] uo saie|d

4O UOI1RI0| WIOHUN / UOWILIOD

91 01 SB SDA[SSWDY] ISLIB][ILWLE)

0} ULS3Q ||Im SIBWOISND pue
Alluspl 4o Aywuogiun e ageanozus
{ltM S1Y1 ‘SUOIIIPUOD 3USDY|

10 Aem Aq sa1e|d ay1 Jo UOIIRIO|
9yl Ay109ds 01 Asessaoau Ajgqeuosead
S1 11 1eY1 J3PISUOD SISO

‘uoinsod snonoidsuod e ul 3)21YaA 3Y3

JO JU0J} BY1 18 paxly 3q p|noys a1e|d Jayiin e pue
‘3]qeISUCY) £ 4O [1DUNOD BY) 40 J30IYO PASHOYyINY
ue Aq 8jqeacwaJs A|Ises 3g o] se Jsuuew

yons ul pue uoiysod snonaidsuod e ul 3|21YyaA 3y}
10 Je3J 3y31 01 paxiyy Aj3.noas aq [|eYysS U0 ‘9/6T
10V (SUOISIACAd SNOJUESISHAJ) JUSWUIIA0D

[e207 3Y1 jo (9)g¥ uoilaes o1 wensind apysa

9y} uo payqiyxa aq o1 palinbad ale 321yaA a4iH
9lBAlId B Se 3]21YaA 3yl SulAjuapt saie|d sy

{s@3ed Suipnjoul) a8eusis

"20UY|

2y1 Jo 1weas 01 dn uopeo)jdde
ay1 to 1d192aJ 3ouis porsad
3y} Sulnp 1o pue 3oualy)|
8y o poriad ayy Sunnp

Wway1 suiede 19pao pale|ad
2JUB[OIA 211S3WIOp ‘uoilpuniul
Jnolaeyaq _Euomﬁcm Jo JapJo
JnojABYS(q [BUILLLIY BP0 14N0D
[EUIWILID “U8A0 Bulpulg ‘ 954n02
pa1e|24 SUIALIP SAIIBUISYE JO
Ajeuad pexij ‘uoiined sjdwis
10 jewlo] ‘uoaiAucD adieyd
‘suowwing ‘uo13edisanul

"DJH 10} IDFPUCS JO PO JSALIP
pUB SUOIIIPUOD §2UB3|| Jojedado
PUE BIUSA “JBALIP 4O 123]43J Ul
pasipiepuels uaaq sey ASojouIwial
3y "S4911BW Yons Jo Ajlou

0} SJDALIP 104 SpiepURlS AJOInie)s
140 81 ul pa1els awig 2yl s309|al

1 Xipuaddy




Page 171

Jaguassed, panssi
[IPUNOY) BUL 1BY1 BINSUT e
BP2IY3A 91 JO IpIsIho
pue apisu; siadusssed
Ag u29s 2g ued Ayl 1eys
Jauuew e yans ut paie|dsip
9g 1shw sudis SUDOWS ON e
pesilusew aq
10UUBD 3S3Y | "32IYDA B3 JO
SJOOP U0 BY] 0] PAXIHE 3¢
1snw pouno) AN Ja1seoue
Ag panddns sudis Jooq e
SUOIIpPUOD
959Y] JO SjusLWalinbal
24l Yum aouepaodde uj adejd ul
s1 a3eudis 3uimo| [0} aY3 JaALIP
pasuadi| e 01 3RIYaA & Supoesy
/8unruau 10 331yaA pasuad||
e SUIALID 940J9( 1Y 2Insu]

[[_Ys J8p|oY 92U} 9PIY3A BYL

01 Way) 10} siolesado auy areard
01 pajjdde 3q [[1m UOIPUCD Y
"S3[2IY@A PISUII]

[[e ui paAe|dsip aq o1 ulejdwod

01 sAem T¢'t eied Juswannbal
spJepuels Alonies | 4q 9y

Yum Ajdwod o3 wsiueyoauw e s 3j se
AJessasau A|qeuoSED. PRIIPISU0D

s| a8eusis apdIyaA Ja3uassed
Fuipiedai uonipuod pasadosd ay)

SETRIIVET
pasusdi] Jo uoliealiiluspl sa3uassed
- Yum 1sisse o3 suSis Joop Jozesado

841y a1eAd AJolepuew Ianposiul
03 UOUS1Ul By} JO 1adsal ul
Adnjod 1xe) 1jeap ay3 Ut paonpoJiul
saBuey? 103)}a4 01 AJessadau
Algeuoseal s| uoypuod Suilsixa
3y1 01 sa8ueyd pasodoad sy

SIYPDULET

Aq sayoul 0z po9dXa 10U ||BYS puR AJUO 3|21YaA 2]
J0 s1oop Jead 3Y] JO uo[109s dol 3yl uo paie|dsip aq
Aew JUSWBSIYBAPE JO 92130u udis umo sJoystidoud
3YL "3J0IY3A 3Y] JO SI00P U0 3Y] O} PaXiLle aq
snw [punod A ssesue] Ag paljddns susis Joo(

<d

'3]o1yaA Byt uo sy Aue Jo
21e)d uonesidal 3y} 24n3sqo
10U 15w aied Yy IpIySA
SU3 0 Ju04} B3 1e Bupjoo]
POO1S uaym 3jqisia st a1ejd

33 U0 UONBWIOLUI || 3BY} ARM
B Yons Ut sadwng Juo4y syi

JO B3JE 3PISYO 3Y] 0} paxiye
Ajwaly si a1e(d Juouy ay3 sunsug

1 Xipuaddy




Page 172

40 sasodind ay) o pspuswie

"Wl Aue je pa1i usis

[[eys Jap|oy 32Ua2l| 3IIYIA SYL $1 uoilpuod pasodoud ay) | doj e aAey 0] pajlwiad 10U 3Je S3DIYBA BAIH 31BAL] ra
"uoile|sigs} uaIno yum sulAjdwod
supjoogaud 8¢ 10U P|NOM JSALIP 3Y] SE ‘PIOA 8IUBRINSUL
JoJ paau ay) SulpeJsal SuipJom | Yl Japual plnom pueyaloaq Supjooq e 8ulaq suayl
Buuieluoo u8is soop sojeiado ay 1noylm uayel Asuunol Aue 1ey) pue payoog-aid
sapnpoul a8eusd|s Joj Juswalainbas | 3 1snw 3pIYSA 3yl eyl Sunels ULy pasioyiny
M3U ay) se paainbas as3u0| | ue Aq paacsdde se uonysod snon2idsuod e Ul 422135
OU S] UOIIPUOD 323U3d1| SUIISIXD By e Ae|dsip ||eys S3|21yaA 34IH 91eAlid UCILppE U] £a

‘posilausew sq
I0UURY SUSIS 9S3Y] 'Ssio0p
J98uassed ¢ aney 10U saop
Y21YM 3DIYDA B Ul 3DLYSA
ay1 Buiyoeousdde sia8uassed
lje Ag U39S 3q ued Asyl
aJaym uojiisod jus|eainba
Ue U] pPUe Uoo|es Joop { e
ul 3[21Y3A 3Y1 JO $100P JBdd
941 O 3|ppIw ay3 uf usis
Joop peaosdde siojesado
2y} Aedsip 01 3uawalinba.
81 4O 3ueMme Spewl

S1JSALP Pasuddi| 9yl a4nsuy e
paAe|dsip a¢ 1snw sudis
a|diynw paJinbal J| ‘pajeas
uaym sisguassed j|e Aq uaas
8¢ UeO U 18yl Aem e Yons
ul 3|21YyaA ay3 ul paie|dsip
s| @8eusIs ucnew.oful

‘901340 Sutsusan

ay1 Aq panoidde aq 01 pasinbal
ag [j1m susis Joop Joieiadp

aped] pasuadl)

@) 01 sudis Joop apiaoad/eanpoud

7 xipuaddy




Page 173

s30(] 9IUBISISSY 3
unoy "S3IIYIA
3y} JO uolIssiwiad ssaadxa PasUBDI} |{e UO AeM BLUES 3L
PUI INOYUM 3PIYSA 3JIH ul paAe|dsip sSeuss Jo asn sy} Aq
91BALId B UO JO Ul pahe|dsip 8q S3{2IY3A PISUSDI| 4O UOIEDILIUSP!
[|BYS JUIWSSILIBAPE 10 Wajquua 3y} 210woud 03 SJUBM [I2UNOD
‘Bel ‘oo1j0u ‘USiIs ou BINsSUg e A1) 9y3 se Alessassu Ajgeuosed.
[lBYS JBp|joyY 22UD1] JDIYBA BYL | pPaWIsp SI uolpuod pasodouad sty 9@
"92143A BY3 U] PaLLIED
3¢ 01 s1e8uassed Jo Jsquinu
winwixew ayl pue apIysA ayz
JO Jaquinu 3ou3217 3y3 Builels
pajess uaym siadusssed 20US21] 3Y1 ul paquiasaud staduassed
J1e Ag u@ss aq ued U ey} 40 J3qUWINU 3y} pue Jaquinu s3uadl| 8yl UIaJay}
uoiysod e yons uj 9pPIYIA YL ‘Aojoutuay payydus paAaAu0d suosiad 01 Saw |[e 18 9|qISiA 8] 01
ui psAejdsip adeus|s apiaoud e YHM INgG uonipuod Suisixs ay3 Se uolsod e Yans Ul 3[DIYDA Y1 SpISuUl pauleluleW
[l_YS Jap|oYy 22us2| 3|a1yan 3yt sa31ed1|daJ uoipuod pasodoud siy) | pue payJew AlJeapd 9q 01 asned |[eys Joalidoad sy 5a

"3[01YsA 31y 91eALd B UO
Pa51[13N BJe SIUDWSSITISAPE
Buipnjour adAl

Aue Jo UBIS JoOJ OU BUNSUT e

"(ixe1 /qed pJjom

21 9sn 1ey3y AHd U0 susis Joou
s1uaAaid siyl) 086T 1Y Wodsued |
Y3 JO 9 U0I11235 Ag panqiyosd 1snf
10U pue UBIs 4004 J0 WJo4 Aue 0]
Sale|ad Siyl puelstiapun siaoyddoad
1BL3 3JINSUS 01 UoledIIe]d

1xipuaddy




Page 174

Ajo4noas pans st luswdinbe
pPa102UU0cD AUB pue J2}2W 3] e
uo I3y}
papJ10od3Ja 2aey 9y 01 Ajdde
0} SE 0§ $J8113] 483D U] J319W
31 Jo 278} 9yl uo pajuld
3¢ ||_ys ,JYVY4, spiomdyl e
:2JNSUB ||eYS 39SUII| aYL

Ajlses ale] 3y} 99s ued
J241y Aue asaum uoiiisod e uj
Po1820| SI PUB PIJBUILUN|ISI Y e
uoIHpuol
|EDIUBYDSW PUNOS B Ul
paulelulew pue [1puno) syl Aq
panoidde adAy e Jo sAemie sil e
11913W B YUM Pallll SI 321YSA Y3 JI
BINSUS |[BYS J3P|OY 92UIDI| IIIYSA 3Y L

Jualedsueny

pue Jie) sI 1Byl Jsuuew

e ul palesado aq pjnoys Aayl ‘panly
aJe Asyl J1 Ing SJel3W IXel YUM
P23l 20 03 S3PIYDA 24y S1elrd
10) uswaiinbay (e8| ou s| 943y

"$1919W IXE] UM

pPa1111 348 [1DUnod A Jsisesue

ul S3IIY3A au1y a1eald jo Aluolew
21 se Aiessaoau Ajgeuoseal
pawaap st uoipuos pasocdoad sy

SI919IN 4
{jIounoy Al ayl A
(i J D SUIAG 23BYRID "92e|d ul 51 91821132 uondwaxs
uondwsxs ue Yum panssi ussq sey
JUBAD|B. B $SB|UN JIp|oY 22Ud|
S[IIYDA DY) SBALIP OUM JSALIP PISUII|
BIDIYSA 2Y1 JO UOINAASU| 2Y3
B 2Jaym si siyl o1 uondwaxa Ajuo ayy)
uo paseq 24 10uued 30p 3IUBISISSE
qm_umr_m\/ ay3 ul ue Alled 0} jesnjead 1ey] Jeajd
s8op aouelsisse SulAlies wouy 3 s@ew yoiym uoiipuod pasodoud
I9ALIP Pasuadl| B JU9A2Id 10N e 2u3 Aq payuie|a / psoueyus
3q Aew Ing uoile|sida| ul s| sdop
[[eYS JSpP|0Y 22Uad1} IPIYIA 3YL DoUR)SISSE AJued 03 JuBwWIInbay T3

1 xipuaddy




Page 175

ay1 sejnoined ul ‘ appiyaa

a1 ui yuswdinba 1s1|e103ds a3

[l @sn A[3jes ued pue paule.;

AlIny S1 B[21Y3A 3Y] AP 0}
pailwaad uosiad Aue ainsug e

;||_YS Jap|oy 923uUad| B]2IYSA BY L

S| 1l 210)319Y31 pUB SBJIIYDA Y2NS JO
duisuaol| syl 23eIN0JIUS C) SIYSIM
|12UN0D 3Y1 JAABMOY ‘SIIIYSA
341y 918A14d B[QISSITE J1BYD|I3YM
03 J14193ds 2ouaJajal Aue

3PN2UL 10U OP SUOILIPUOD 32U
3|21y3A 3.1y 91eAlld JuD1INd 3Y|

SIPIYIA 9]ISS20Y Jleyd|@ayan o1 a|qedijdde suoijipuoy) |eUCINppY

"9} 18Ul 1B pasIARp
aq {|im suojlpuod aiedoidde
pue uoiieajireds e usyl
‘paonpouiul sI A1DD Atolepuew jf

‘aJleuuonsanb

Uo[1LYNSUOD 3Y3 01Ul pazeiodiodul
aq [|IMm ALDD uo uonisanb v
"SB[DIYSA PASUIdI| Ul AFDD JO BNSSI
3Y1 U0 ) NSU0I S3IUIOYINe [B20|
1eyl {7 eied) spiepuels Aloniels
14Q 9y1Jo uawaldinbal e s1 3]
"ALDD Alojepuew 1oj Juawainbas
B 32NpOJIUL {|IM [12UN0D) Byl
Jaylaym a3e1s siyl 1e Je3|aun s 3

waswdinba

22ug[|laAlns yons Suipiedal me| ayl jo s1a3dse ||e
yum Ajdwon o3 Ayjigisuodsal siolsuudoad/1eALp
3yl aq ||im 3 ~1a8uassed Aue 01 paezey

10 Js8uep Aue 1uasaud 03 10U SB ABM B UoNs

ul pue Ajisao pany aq |jeys wuswdinba yons
Auy ‘papiodal/paioyuow Suiaq aue Aays eyl
sta8uassed Suisiape Juswnedwos sjafuassed
3y ul paAe|dstp aq |[eys aFeudis o1enbape ‘paniy
2B S32ASP U3NS 4| 'S3[31YDA U] paiyulIad aJe
A13JES J9ALIP 1515SE 01 SWBISAS 2IUR||IBAINS ALDD

ALDD

"8]2IY3A Y3 Ul uossad

Aue 01 3s11 & 2q 40 32IYaA Y1
[C43U02 03 Aljige S JaALp By}

Buureduwi Jo 3s1 3y InoYHMm

1 Xipuaddy




Page 176

"jeadal 01 pasu
Ou BA0GE Tg Ul PaIDA0D Apeal)y

'92404 Ul S| BDUIIN] DY 3|IyMm Swil} Aue 1B [12UN0D)

31 Jo [eacsdde 3yl InoyUMm apeW 34 ||eys 3j31YsA
au1 Jo @ouesesdde Jo uonipues ‘usisap ‘uoliedylnads
aY3 U] 98ueyo 10 UoIlRIBYE [BLIDIEW ON

pa12]2p aq 03 pasodouad aJe yaiym suoiypuo) Sunsixy

'sudis
JOOp PaNss! |I2Uno) dY1 dAoqe
Al1elpswiit U8is aqIssanoe
Jleys|aaym pasiugdorsl
Alleuolieu ay) sAeidsip

S[21YaA 241y 3eald syl sunsug e

:3]21Y3A pasua||
9]qISS922E J[EYDD3YM B Jo 1adsal
Ul [[BYS J8p|OY 92Uad]| IDIYRA BY L

"s9jotyan adAl AdIN

pJepuels Wodj SaIyaA Jouop 8sn
S9DIYDA 3|¢ISSSI0R JIRYD|RSYM Y3
Jo Auew ‘9|qissea2e JIBYII3RYM SI I
SUEaW 3IY3A e Jo 3ouesesdde sy
jeyl swnsse Jouued sisguassed se
AJessaoau Ajgeuoseal S| UoJpuod
pasodold sy3 1By} JOPISUOD SIDILO

[4;]

“leyaeaym

e ui 3uij|aaes) 1a8uassed Aue
21Nn235 pue peojun /peo| Ajajes
UED JBALID BU1 1] Jaswily
AJS11BS 1SN JOP[OY 33U3d|

"SUOINPUOD BUISus2]| Ul passaippe
S| J1leyo|aaym e ul Sulj@aesl
sia8uassed Jo aFelied syl Jo
Ajajes aljgnd o1 Fune|sd suUoINpUOD
1e1 Aless209u Ajqeuoseal

1 xipuaddy




Page 177

'seded yooqaoe] apeJsy

"d'9 ‘swaojield jeudip /eipaw |e00S
/ Yyanow jo pasom Ag paunuosl ag
Ajlewwiou pjnom sIaAlIp 1ey) sueaw
ASojouyoss jo uswdopasp ayl

"S3PIYIA
uo Suisiuanpe Aue a1elljioe}
01 Supjo0| 158U0| OU BAOWDY

‘IPuno?
@Y1 03 9|qe1da008 pIEpUL]S B JO 3¢ 0} JUSWSSILIBAPY

pJedjsod |ewuou
e Uey) Ja3.e| ou 3 0} JUaWas|Haape (9)

Aluo smopuim
opls Jeas Uy paodejd aq o} uswasianpe (q)

Wi}l auo Aue 1e 821YaA 343 Ul

1USWBSIIIBAPE BUO JO JaqUNU wnwixew (e)
'suonipuod
3uimo||o4 Y3 01 193[gNS SIBALIP JO JUBWILINIIS
3yl Joj Suisiuanpe susis Aejdsip Aew solaudoud ayy

1 xipuaddy




Page 178

Aue Jo (3214nS [IMm |lewa) Suildm
ul paip1ou 39 j|eys Alloyine Suisuady|

3y ‘diyssauied Jo Auedwod e jo Auedwod Jo diysisutied uy aueyd

BWEBU 9Y] Ul play Suldqg DU IPIYSA Aue jeyi aainbai g7 eied spiepueis

a8eLued Aawyoey Y1 JO 1USAD 3Y) U] 110 243 se Auessaonau Ajgeuoseal
:[|BYS Jopjoy aouadl| 3IYSA YL pawasp s uolipuod pasodoud siyp v

@i} U0 play s|ie1ap
1281U02 1334402 SeY {I5Unod A1) 3yl
181 0s AJess303Uu A[qrUOSEI] PaWsap

'ssaippe S1 UOIUPUOD B ONg “SIap|oy aouad||
10 a8ueyd Aue Jo (2214NS |IM 3[dIYyan 28erried Asuydey uo pesodul
[IEWS UB) SUIMIm Uj [DUno) SEM UOIHPUOD YINS OU 32UID1| I[DIYDA
ayy Ajlou sAep £ UIYHAA e 241y a1eALd e jo jueld ay) 0} payoeie
‘[leys Jap|oy 22uad|] I[2I1Y3A 3y L uoplpuod e Ajsnoinaad ysnoyyy v
uonesiuwpy Suisuaon v
s|esodoud sjuawWwWo) _ Suipiopn Suiasng

P3njalal spUaWILIOI JO UCIIDIBPISUOD PUD UOIIDINSUDD
Jo asopo ayy buimoyjof aanwiwio) Buisuadry ayi Aq panoiddp suonipuod azuasij 3yl Ajuo moys fjim asuadij fo suopipuod ayy Adijod [puif ay3 uj

‘MOJaq SB UMOYS 24D 32Uadjf Jo sUoRipuo3 ayl ‘uonbynsuol fo sasodind ayj 404

FONZD1T 4O SNOILIGNOD

SATNFIIT FTDIHIA IDVIHEVYI AANMNOVH

9.6T 10V (SNOISIACHd SNOANVTIIDSIA) INJINNEIAOD TVIOO01



Page 179

1921440 9Y3
Ag payads awil pue 1ep e e
J21YIA Y1 AP 01 uoissiuiad
pey oym 01 SseB §|Ie3ap
apinosd U210 pasioyine
ue woJd} 1senbas  uodn e
[|BYS Jop|Oy 32U331| IDIYSA YL

UCIIBLLLIOJUI S1Y3 WJIFUOD 0}
I3P|0Y S2U3dH BIIYIA Y1 4mbau |Im
sowl} Jaylo 1e Ing (Joiesado Hd e elA
qol paxoogoaad e uo upom si 3)dIysa
ay1 uaym Jojeiado 2yl eia 3|qissod aq
Arwi siyy) swiysemnoiped Aue je 3)21YaA
9yl BUIALIP ST OYM AJITUSPI UBD [I2UNOD
9yl leyr Asessaosu Ajqeuosesd sl 3

v

Aluoyine |e2o] J5yjoue
Aq pasuadl] 8¢ 01 10U S 3DIYBA
By} |12unod AN J315edUE]
Ag pasua2l| I 3d1yaa s8eles
Aswyoey e 1S|IYM 1By} 9INSu] e
J|BYS Jap|oy a3usd]| 3|21yaA 3y |

‘Allioyine

[ed0| J9yloue Ag pasuadl] aq 0}
B[21YaA 31 S|geUD 0 JPIO Ul 3IUI|
D[2IYDA B SULIBPUILINS LD WYY
1uaAa4d Jou Sa0p uoipuod pasodoud
23 ‘ssiuedwiod asea| Jo 1adsad u|
uoISnNIu02 asned pinod Aejdsip

uo spJed jue] ‘218 adeud|s JusispIp
10 9sSNn 3y] ‘8I8Yymas|3 pasusIl| 29 1ou
PINOYS U "S[2IYSA PBsSUBD|| J93seIUE]
e se 3|qeyIIuspl Al4ed)d S| 321y 3y}
1ey1 sunsus 0} Atessadau Ajgeuosead
pawaap si uonipuod pasododd syl

£v

‘92e)d
3unjel s3ueyd yans Aue Jo shep T
ulyum sisulied 1o sio1oaaip ul s8ueyd

"B[oIYaA padual|[ e Jo diysisumo

J0 98uey2 o1 uoiie|aa U] UCIR|SISI|
ut patads polad awil ay3 siodw
siyi se pasodo.d pouad Aep T

‘Ayloyine Suisual|
2431 01 pPai4110U 3q p[NoYs S10323JIP




Page 180

3Y1 JO WU 8] JO pJod3l
91eanooe pue v1s|dwoo e doay e
"SIy JO 3[21YdA 12410 Aue Jo
3|a1yan 2yl AP 03 paAojdws
10 paniuuad 2q 03 sase30
A3ALIP 3Y1 SE 3Wi] Yons |rpun
‘UoIIUB18J 4O} U] S,4BALIP
adeuued Aswyoey J1ayl o Adod
B J9Y/WiY 01 JOAIBP 01 JAALD
341 a4Inbal 3RIYaA 2Y3 SALIP
01 JOALP 28eLlIR) Aswyaey
pasuadl] e Sunuwssd sio4eg e

:||eYS Jap]oy 30uI21| 9|21YsA YL

"paaidxa sey 32UdJ1| SIDALIP Y3
BOUO IIIYSA PIIUIII| AY] JO 3SN ALY
JBAIIP 8yl 19| 1ou pjnoys Joiandosd
aylleyluawsaiinbai e ppe 03 piomal
g uolypuod 3y} desy 1s883ng

‘8|qeisuod

10 1831340 pasuoyine ue 031 1sanbas uodn peanpoud
pue syjuow x1s Jo pouad e Joj 1dey ag isnw
UOIlBUIIOLU SIY] "BWIl AuE JB 3|21Y3A 3yl BUlALp
uossad ayi JO BWEU 3Y) JO PJOISL JlLINIIE pue
919]dwiod B dooy j|_YysS 921YdA Y1 Jo Joisidoud ay)
‘s1y j0

3]21YaA J3Y10 Aue 10 3[21YdA 3y 3ALP 0} paiojdwa
10 pamywlied 8q 01 SISERI ISAUP 3yl Se aw
yons [1un ‘UoIlua1aJ4 10J 92U} S J9ALp aFelue)
AswyoeH siy Jo Adoo e wiy 03 JBAISP 0} JIALD
9Y1 9SNED 3IIYBA BY3 PALIP 01 SSIUBWIWOD uosiad
1BU: 2J0Jaq ||BYS Y ‘|21ysA Byl SAUD 01 uosiad
Jsyro Aue shojdwa 1o spywuad soisudoad ayi

9V

s3uiSuo|aq

jeuossad o1 a8ewep

10 199dsau ul pue yieap

40 Anfu; |eaisAyd jo 1padsau

ul yroq Aufigei| Aned payy

‘@sn a1y 211qnd ‘s1an0d Yaiym

22ueansul Jo Adijod s|geins

e ‘9|21 adelied Aswyoey

31 O 185N 3y3 01 Ucie|ad

Ul @240} Ul daay ‘®aus2I| 9y}
1o Aousno syirinoygnodyl e

:[|BYS Jap|0Y 23Ud21} DDIYDA BY L

JudWalinbay

1UeAB|24 B S| S[Yl AjJea|d 1ng ‘923uady
3yl Jo uoneanp ay3 1noysnouy;

@oe(d ul ulewal 03 Sey 3dueINSU

2yl sAes jeyl uone|si8s| Suisuaol|

Ixe1 ul 214129ds Suiylou st s1ayl
‘pajuels sI 52uBad1] 9y usym oe|d Ul
S1 @JUBINSU] 1BY] J|9S1l AjSIIes 01 spaau
[19UN0J BY3] 1BY] SIIELIIPUl UOILR|SIS3]
ay1 se Alessa2au Ajgeuosesl
paJapIsuod s) uonipuod pasodoud sy,

"1senbas uo

190140 pasuoyiny ue Aq uoidadsul 4o} Bjge|ieae
SpEW pue ‘paJiy JO 341y IO} S[QR]IBAE S| 3|21Y3A 33
121 SaWIL [[e 18 3|IIYDA BY] Ul pallJed 3q p|noys
91e21411180 saueunsul a1eludoldde ayy Jo Adod y
'sguIguolaq jeuosiad o1 aSewep Jo

10adssJ Ul pue yieap Jo Aunlur [eaisAyd Jo 1oadssuy
ur yioq Aypiger) Alded paiyl 49A00 Yd1ym souelnsul
jo Adijod e ‘a3eiue) Asuyoel Sy} Jo J9sn 3L}

0] uolie|aJ Ul 92404 Ul dooy| ‘@2usd)| Y3 4o Adua.mnd
ay1 3unnp ‘jeys Jolanidold syl ‘sawl |je 1y

v




Page 181

321YySA 3Y1 jo soueieadde

10 uolypuood ‘udisap

‘uopneoydads sy3 ul s8ueld
JO UOCI1BID}E OU BINSUT e

‘pasodoud se paiydwis aq ued
UOIIPUOD 32UB21] 8] "uoiredlyPads
3[21YaA 2yl JO uoniladal e sue

‘oplsul
3Y1 WoJj pauado Bulaq jo s|qeded aie yoiym

[IeyYs Jop|oy IoUI01| J[NYSA dYL | 1N SUCILPUOI 3IUID| 30U BB 3saY | JO [|B 'SJ00P JN0J 1SB3| 1B 3ABY 1SNW 3|IIY3A SYYL 14
IPIYSA SY1 JO UORIPUO) g
'$s320.d uonesiou

10 UO1RJISIUILIPE J3Y10 IO ‘BuiSie213A0 L0 suoIe3a]|e SuImo||0}
}23YD uoIEpI[eA QUIWISSISSE SI912W  IXBl U0 SY2BYD UOHEPIjEA
‘91E21J11480 JUBAD|SL B ‘9dewuep juaplooe Suimol|o) IDIYIA
2onpoud 1o ‘Guiuiesy puajie ol g Jo Sunsal |euonippe apnpul Aew
1uswaninbas Aue o1 payoelie se|dwexa pasinbas ausym” Sujuiesy
93} 10 adJeyd uopeqsiujwpe JO  UOIedlyIUa)  [euonppe  2Jinbau
dlqeuosess ayl Aed e 0} [1ouno) A1) 8yl mojje 0} Alessaodau

‘lieys J9p|oy 83uadl| BPPIYSA 3y | A|qRUOSEDS PIWAIP S| UCIHPUOI SIY| JA'}

'9|(eIsuo?
10 2210 pasuoyIne ue
03 1sanbau uodn sonpoud pue
9ouad1| 3y} jo Andxa Buimoljoy
SYIUOW XIS 104 SBIUIY]
SI9ALIP 84 uonewuojul dasy e
"goe|d w Sulaq 92Uy
SI9ALIP @deriies Asuyoey pljea
B 1N0Y1M 3]DIY3A PasuUdl| Y}
AP 01 UosJad Aue mo||e 10U e
‘92U BY}
J0 91ep Astdxa ay3 pue sw Aue
1e 9po1yaa sy Buialp uoslad

{¥TOZ aunr 6 uo Dy Aq panosddy)




Page 182

"9240} Ul 51 32Ud| DY}
3[IYM SwIy Aue 1e [punod
9y3 Jo |eaoadde soud

3Y1 INOYUM Spew aq |[eys

152JEQU 3] 03 1835 9Y] JO ISeq Sl WOl uayel

3( ||BYS UBWRJNSEIW BY] JUOCI} U] }EIS OU S) i3]
BI3YM ||9M 1UOJS BY) 01 1EBS JEDJ BY] JO 95E(

3Yl WoJ) PaMo||e 39 |[eYsS WWQOGT Usyl paasiyde
3¢ J0ULED JUSWDINSEIW SIY) J| "UOISUDIXS
Sp4eMIBSY ‘||NJ S 1B S| 18IS JUOLJ SYT USYM JUOI4
Ul 3e3S 33 4O JEDS DYI 03 1BDS BYI JO ISBQ DY WO}
Uy el 8q |[IM JUSWINSEIW BYL "WWQOZ 24 ||_YS
1a8uassed Aue 0] a|ge|leag WOOJ 33| Wnwiuiw
9yl "YSI9y-pesy pue YIpIM-1apnoys ‘wool
-1004 pue 83| aienbape aAey 1SNW SSPIYIA ||V

018 ‘SIBPUIM MOPUIM ‘SISallLIe
Fuipn(oxa ‘Yipiw paloniisqoun saysut TG
UEL] SS3| OU JO g [|BYS 1S 1834 3y O YIpim 3yl

‘uopadsul

Joj Wawedap Suisuadr] ayl 01 palussald pue
UOISIDAUOD Yons Aue Jo)je Aj9jeIpowul] paulelqo
9q 01 sl ,@oueljdwo) JO 3182{1143D), ¥ "UOISIDAUOD
3Y11no Adied Aew oS op 03 pasiHoyine adeied

e AjJup “wswpedsp Suisuadr 2yl jo uolssiwiad
$s24dXx2 941 YUM B¢ 1SNW (D7) SeD wna|olidd
pinbi 01 paMaAUOD ag 0} S| 1Byl spP1yaa Auy

"0S SB pRSAUQD 10U pue aJanjaejinuewd
AP puey-1ySi 40 3 |[BYS BPIYDA BYL

"1y31e ueyy ssow 1ou 1ng sia8uassed inoy ueyl
ss9[ 10u uiAuied Jo 9|geded 34 1snW JIIYSA 3YL




Page 183

J[[_YS Jap|oY DoUB3I| 321YSA SYL

J0j Alfjlgisuodsal ay) se Alessadau
Algeuoseau s1 uoiupuo pasodoud siy|

€d

‘Buiuiels 4o

adewep J9Y30 10 siea} ‘s1no
Jofewr wouy 334} Suuanol
Aue pue uea|d ag pjnoys
Iuswuedwos 3yl "My

ple 1SJ1} pUE S|00] [BIJUISS
‘JaysIndunIxs aJ1 ‘[9aym
ai1eds Joj 3daoxs Ardwa
1day asimisylo pue a8e88n|
Ja3uassed 1o} s|qe|iene

9q pinoys juswnedwos
a8e88n| /100 ay3 ainsuy

J|JBYS J2p|OY 20UIDI| I{IYIA BY]

‘UoKedIfIIR|2-3d S8UBYD JoulW
pa1sadans a8ueyd ou UOIPUCD pljeA

‘Bujulels 1o afewep Jaylo 10 SIed)

‘sInd Jofew wouy aa4) Suusnaod Aue pue uea|2 9q
pInoys juswyedwod ayl 1y pie IS4} pue s|oo}
[e1juasse “Jaysinduilxe a1 [9aym aJeds Joj 1daoxe
Adwe aq pjnoys juswiiedwod a8es8n| /1004 sy

[4]

"92IYdA 2Y3 40 1e35 Jejnotued jeyy o1 Ajdde
suolen3ay 40 SdAI13IIQ SOYT I0U JO BB UM
‘98T suore|n3ay (Isn pue uOIPNIISUOD) 3DIYSA
peoy aul Jo /i pue 9y SUOHIBINGSY pue (D3 8¢/96
BAI084IQ Aq papuswie se) D3 STT/9/ aAoUIg
ueadoung ui payioads syuawadinbas Y18uauls ays
Yum Ajdwod yorym 1j2q 1e9s 3ulod ¢ [euoSelp pue
de| e yum papinoid 3q |[eys sjeas Jaguassed ||y

‘WWOZ6 JO WNWIUIW B 8¢ [|BYS dUl| [BIILIDA B
ul 4004 3U3 Jo Med 1S9MO| 343 01 SUOIYSNI 1835 341
WO} LUCCIPERY [BUJDIUI BYJ, "IUOL} Ul UOIIDNIISGO




Page 184

siuswaJinbal Busuady)
UM S2UBPIOIIE Ul PaXI}
pue juasaud sale|d saus0]]
sa8pe dieys

10 Sjua3p ou —jiomApog
1IN0 pue Bpisu; ssauljues|)
S|9A3| PINYY 19Yysem

pue siaysem ‘s1adipp
sinuEsym/peay pue
s94nssald ‘UoIlIpuod aUA|
$J0182ipu} pue s3I
$PsYd

BuImol0] Y1 pauleIUOD
WNWiuiw e se jsnw
UOJIBLLIOLUI PIIUSWNIOP
3YL " IN0 palIed $YISYD
3y} |je 4O SWO2IN0 3Y}
guljiezsp uoiadsu 3RIYaA
91 JO PJOI3I UM

e daoy pue ay)euapun
siseq Ajyiuow e uo [|eys
13p|0Y 32UdII| IDIYSA ¥
pouad asus0y| syl Suunp
a2e)s Aue je uoipadsul /1591
3[2143A s|1ouno?) 3y Sulssed
10 9|qeded aq p|noys pue
ispJo poos u] pauiejulew
Si 8|o1yaA adelied

Aswoey syl Jeyl aunsug

Aujigisuodsau

111ds e aAeY Jap|oy 92UIDY| BDIYBA pue
JRALIP BY1 Y10g 249ym Wsiueyosw

e u] 1nd 01 s)99s uollipuod pasodoad
Y1 “1eym J0j 8|qisuodsal S| oym 03 se
121]4U0I US40 S| BIBY] SISALIP PasSUBI)
0] PRIUSL 342 SIPIYDA DI3YM 1aAaMOoY
‘1aploy 32uD2l] Y1 Yyum 31| Aj@1eWwin
1SNW 3[21YyaA BY] JO dIUBUIUIEW




Page 185

ul paAejdstp aq |jeYys ao13ou
e pue AJusBaows ue Ul asn
21BIpa WL JOJ B|(ISSBIIE
Ajlpea. aq 01 se 3IydA
9yl u uolusod e yans
ul paLdJed ag o} Juswdinba
yons ‘(z-6658 S4 piepuels
ysiyig yum Ajdwod o03)
1wswdinba pue s3uissaap
pte 15413 @leridoidde
guiuieluoo 1 pie
1541} B pue 31ep-ul 3q os|e
1ShW Yyoiym aaysinduiixs
3J1] UBDLYS pue 3jgeuns
B SoWil [je 1B 9|diyaa
3Y3 Ul pauielulEW pue
papiroad S| aaylainsug e
:ljeys Japjoy 32uUsdl 3dIY3A DY L

‘ '1591 D|21YDA JO W1l 3y) 1e
19Yloue 01 3[21YdA U0 woly paddems
pue sapaIyaa 1s8uowe paieys

Buiaq s1pf s1usaaud s1y3 Jaquinu
32U3I[ JO ‘Jaquinu uoneu3sigad
JRIYBA BUI YUm pasleut Ajqispul

9q 03 511 ple 15414 10} Alessaoau
Alqeuoseal 31 J3pISU0D SISO

pouad souadi| a19|dwad 3yl J0}
Aldde suoiipuod a3uadl| 3yl 19348 U]
HIOM

841y a1ealld uo psfedua Jou s i
uans poliad 2o3uad|] 9yl Sulnp sawin
[|B 18 PBSUSD]| SUIBWISJ 1 PAsUad|

SI BPIYDA B 92U0 3B POJIRISP Y2Iym
22A0g A UOSUBY JO ME| 35BD 109|434 0}
papuswe Ajysi|s Suipiom pasodold

*94B2 J9WI0ISND JO 159491U1 BY) Ul J8WOISNI
91 Aq UOIRAISIUIPE-1|9S 104 papIaold 3q

Aew 3 usyl Juswdinba ayy paisanbai se8uassed

€ J] "91B21}1143D pIe 1541} pasiudooss Jusund e

spioy oym uosisad e Aq pasn 2q Ajuo p|noys | asie
PINOYS 25N S}l 104 paeu ayl )| 'sansed payl ol
9OUEISISSE JDPUDJ 01 3SN S U} PSUIRL] 3S0YL ATNO
9]geus 01 S| palJed 1y 3Y3 ‘pie 151y Sulspuau

J Aujiger JnoA 01 UMEBIp S UORUBIIR JNCA

1day aJe

A8yl a1oum 01 se 3[21YSA aY) ul paAe|dsip aq ||eYs
92130U B pue ADUDSIOWS Ue Ul 3SN d1eIpawwl] Jo}
31qIssadde AjipeaJd 3¢ 01 Se 3|21YsA Y3 uj uojysod

B 4ons ul paLued aq ot juswdinba yans ‘(z-6658
Sg pJepuels ysniug yum Ajdwod o1) yuswdinbs
pue sduissadp ple 3s4i areradosdde Sulueiuod

103 PIe 1S4l B pUB d1Bp-Ul 9 OS[B 1SNW Y2Iym
‘19YSINBUIIXS 241} JUSIOLYS PUE 3|qBUNS B 1Y 1O}
9|ge|leAR JO 3SN Ul SI M UIYM SSWIL ||B 1B D[IYdA
3yl ul pauleiuiew pue papiacdd aq ||BYS a4yl

g

3O Bupjiom aq o}

Jeadde Suusals/uoisuadsng
wswdinbs Aapung

syeq 1eas/s1eas

SIOMILU SIBALIQ

sjoAs| 191em /110

13pLo FUBlJOM U] UIOH
sayeag

paJinbeau se Juasaid a8eusis e




Page 186

pazIs wnipaul g SulALied
Aj@jes jo a|qeded §| 3|2IYaA
98e14ied ASudoeH Byl 3unsud

J[[eYsS J2pIOY IOUBIY| I|21YBA BY L

jouued a101343Y] pue pa»jooqg-a.id
9Q 01 9ABY 10U OP S9[I1YDA d8eLled
Aawoey asneodaq si siy] "sadeLled
Aawypey ul 28e338n| Jo a3eLued 34
apew aq o0} spasu uoisiaoad oiyoads

92uadl| 9yl Ag parnuuad se suaduassed jo aquunu
[N} 9Y3 BulALied Jo sjqeded aq 10U ||Im 3J21YydA

DY1 SoI] 18 ueaw Aew syl paided ssBusssed
Jod 28e83n| Jo a2a1d ozis a3esane suo ulAled

10 9|geded aq p|noys s3joiyaa adeluie] AsuyoeH

9d

Sd

J3guinu 82uUaj| 32IYSA JO
Jaguinu uollesiSa. 331YyaA
U3 YuMm paxjsew Ajqijapul
SEAD| PlE 381} 8yl sansuy
'9482 19WO01ISND

JO 1S9491Ul BY] U] J8WOISND
3yl Ag uollelsiuiwpe-4|as
i0j papinoad aq Aew 3 usyl
1uawdinba ayi paisenbau
Jaguassed e J| "a31e21)11430
pie 1511} pasiugoosay

1U311Nn2 B spjoy oym

uosutad e Aq pasn ag Ajuo
PINOYS Y ‘9SiIe pinoys asn
S) 10) pasu Byl | ‘saiped
pJIYy1 01 S2URISISSE JBpuUd.
01 35N 511 Ul pauletl 350y]
ATNQ 3jqeua 01 S| palLIed
1Bf 9y1 ‘pie 1541 Suepusl
JAlI[Igel| JnoA 01 umeap

S| UO[IUS11E JNOA "1d3) 2Je
Ayl 249ym 01 Se 3PIY3A 3Y1




Page 187

[ [lewd) Suiam Ul [1punoD
3yl AHI0u SINOY 8 UIYHAL

g suawaJdinbai snoiaaad s1ospsed
A|@8.ae| 11 Aiessaoau Ajqeuoseal

BY1 H 4o} wiy uo pasodull UCIINED JO UOIPIALOI
Aue jo s|ie1sp Suilm ul 92140 Sulsuadrt ayi

‘[[eYS JSp|0Y D2UIN} BpIYBA BY] Pawaap s uoilpuod pasodoid siy| | 01 3S0JISIp SABP USAIS UIYHM |[eys Jolatidoad sy o)
Aljiqelns pue suoiiauo) 2
‘U3BJISPUIM 1B JO SMOpUIM
apis Ja8uassed Jeal 01 SUOIIDMISS ON
W31 %0L
WNWIUW — USISSILISURIY U9B.0SpUIM BB
ssey8 apis Juod :
|9 8PS 3UOH o JO SMOpPUIM SPIS 128udssed Jeal 01 SUCIIILILSDL ON
31U %SL
WNWIUIW — Uo|SS|WsueI]
UIDIISPUIM JUOI{ o 1431} %0/ Wnwiuiw
: — UOISSIWSueI] SSB|S BpPIS JUCI] e
ISMOJ|0) SE BJe SUOISSILISUeL] WS %/ WnwuIw
L sl L
W31 parwazd wnwiuw 3y — UOISSIWSURI] USBIOSPUIM JUCI] »
1SMO|[0}
suolpnasqo Se 9Je SUOIsSiWSUeI] S| pajnwad wWnwiuiw ayJ,
ysi p y
[|e 40 Je3] 1dsy aq o1
SI sse[8 apIyaA SUL 24nsul e "SUOIIINIISQO
:J|_Ys Japjoy aduadi| 9|dIyaA 3y asodoud a3ueyd oN e Jo led|a 1day 2q 0} S1sse|8 apdIyaA 3y A<
P 2]y Yy P y lie} I A eq _ Y Y

{sz1s u1ged sue|diie
aping) uosiad Jad asedyns

"UOIHPUOD 30U

3} UIYHM pIpn[aul 8¢ 03 UOIHPUOD
D2UI2I| BY1 JOJ UOSESI Y3 34InbaJ J0u
So0p pue palyjdwis 9q ued Suipiom
231 UOIHpUOD e Sypjued U0jle)s uled)
Jajseaue ayj wods sl apedl o8ellled
Asuyoey Jo unowe juedlusis
‘aAey 01 Aj9y| aJe siaBuassed adedsn|
Uonil MOy SOUBAPE Ul MOLY SABM|E

“Hojwod ul |9ARJ} 03 sue5uassed sy3 1o} woo
duimol|e []13S 15|Iym ‘A|24ndas pue Aj9)es paLiied

2 ued 23e33n| syl 18yl 2UNSuUa 0] suoisiacid ayew
1snw Jaaup sy e3e33n| ay) s1eu[de) 01 JapJo ul
‘@1a1yan ay1 o1 paxiye a1e(d 9y uo pate|dsip pue




Page 188

JO eaJe 9PISYO BY) 0} paxiye
Ajwiaig st o3ed 1Uody Yl BINSUT @

3[21YyaA 3y} uo sys)| 1o

sojejd uoies1siSaa s01ysA 3y}

2un3sqo Aem Aue Ul 10U 3snW

21e]d ay1 pue 3j21y3A 3Y3 Jo

4BaJ 3yl WoJ} 8|qISIA 3q p|noys

a1ejd ay1 uo uonewLIofUl

[le Jedwng Jeas 3yl jo

BpISiedU 3Y1 01 paxipe Ajudly
s1a1e[d Jeai Byl 1BYl 3INSU] e

2[|2YS J9p]0Y 32U32]| BIIYSA 3YL

241 01 SE SBA[ISWDY]L ISLeljiuey

01 U134 [[IMm SJBWOISND pue

Apjuapt jo Ajlwiopun 93eIN0dUs |IMm
s1y3 ‘ se1e|d ay3 JO Uol1ed0] Bl 0} Sk
uonesaynads pajielap sisow apiaoad
01 pUE S3IYIA PAsULI) Uo sate|d
JE3J pue JuoJj ylog aaey 0} Alessaosu
Ajqeuoseal 3 I3pISuod SIYPO
lauuew awes a3 ui paie|dsip

2q 0} 95eus|s e1e|d aJmnbau 10U

op sadIyaaA aaly s1ealid pue Aswioey
UO SUOIHPUOI SIUBII| JUBIINTY

‘'UOSEDBJ AUE 10} PBMBUSBJ 10U 10 PayoAal
‘papuadsns J9AS 51 92UBD1j Syl J SABP USA3S
UIYUM pauiniad g 1snu 1 Woym o1 ‘[1auno)
ay1 o Auadoud ayz st a1e|d 20us21j 9yl (q)

'21e|d uonessisad
ay1 Suilonaisqo noyum Jadwng syi mojaq Jo
SAoqe Aj31eIpaull J3YUI ‘DD1Y3A 3Y3 JO Jead

BpISINo 8yl uo paie|dsip Apusuewdad aqisnw
a1e[d 32U33)| [PUNOD Al Jaiseduet 3yl (&)

1d

{s=3e]d Suipnjoul) adeusis

32U

ay1Jo juesd o1 dn uoneoydde
2yl Jo 1dja234 22uis pouad

a1 SuLinp Jo pue s0uad||

3y31 jo pouad syl Sulnp

w3y 1suiede JapJo palead
D2UB|0IA 21358W0p ‘uoiduniul
INOIABY3( |BI20S-1U. SO J3PIO
INOIABYR(Q [BUIWLID J9PIO 1IN0
[BUIWILD 4DA0 Sulpuiq  851n03
pa1e|24 SUIALIP SAIRUIDY|E JO
Ajeuad paxy ‘uoiined ajdwis
J0 [BUWLIC) ‘UORIAUGD 38JRUD
‘suowins ‘uolesiisanu
{RUIWID JO 1s904e Aue

40 sj1e38p |n} Bulpiroad (ao13yns

"dDH 404

1ONPUOD JO BP0 JSALIP PUEB SUOIIIPUOD
92U} Jojetado pue IIIYIA

“JBALIP JO 109}34 Ul PSIpJIepUR]S

usaq sey ASojoulwaal sy -sisnew
Yons j0 AJI30U 0} SISALIP 10} SpIepUR]S
A1o1n1e1S 1)Q 9Y3 Ul poleIs awil Byl
5199|484 polad sunoy gy 9y "waisAs
|eipnl 8y Agq pasoduwil suooues
13Yy310 spnpoul 03 patepdn uaaq sey

"PIUD3I|
2y1 Jo pouad syl uunp (sisuned 10 sio030a41p By
Jo Aue uo ‘diysssuped Jo Auedwod e sy Jo3audoud




Page 189

"941Y 104 d[ge|{BAR S| B[01Y3A
2yl (uaym Ajuo pue) usym
Soulll J|e 12 pajeulwn(|l sq

pue uolleujwn||l jo sjqeded

9Je susgis Jood aInsud
su3is Joou jeiSa1ul yum

pa1il) S92IYsA Jo adsau U] e
2JIY 10} 9|GE[IBAR SI B|2IY3A
9yl (usaym Ajuo pue) uaym

SaWIl ||e 1B paieuIwn|(i
3Q pue uoneulwn|j
Jo ajqeded ag isnw usis
1001 3y “JO0. 3J21Yy2A Y}
01 paxiye st paunod A1)
Jajseoue Aq paquasssd
se Suipsom ayl Suiuieiuod
pue 18I0} pue 3|A)S
2Y3 Ul USIS JOOJ B 3insua
ud1s Jood |euSaiul ue yum
P313l) 10U S331YDdA 98eLed
Aswydey Jjo padsaru] e
:|]eys Japjoy 20uadl| IRIYBA AY L,

$3[IY3A pasual|| || ul paAe|dsip

aq 01 uiejdwon o}l sAem 15 eaed
1uswaiinbau spiepue)s Aloiniels 14Qq
9y1 yum Ajdwios 01 wisiueyosaw e si

1 se Alessa2au A|qruosea. patapisuod
s1 98eusis adiyan J128uassed
Suipse8au uoimpuod pasodoud sy

‘ugis Joou
[eJ831Ul UB INOYIIM 3SOY) O SIDIYBA
adA) uoojes o1 sa1jdde aaoqe 2yl

"SIy ABUDRY J33seoueT

10 UCIIBIIIUSP] Ul ISISSE 03 SUIpIoMm
pue ugiSep X0g J00J Ul AJWIoHUN
e S| 313y} 3j)21yaA 98eled Asuydey
PasSU32Y| 121SEIUET JO UOIIRIIIUSPI
ul 35iSSe 0} JapJo u[ Alessadau
AjqeuOSEDI SI 1 J3PISUOD SIBNHD

,owiy Aue je pajywuaad

10U 2Ue 1919w Y] Jo Ajjuspuadspuy uonouny
SIY3 IN0 ALIBD 1BY) SOIIADP 10 SBYOHMS Dleledas
"SI || Je J319W IXe] 3yl ySnoayy palesado
94 I1Shw xoq 1y31| dol ay1 1.yl sueaw sy,

‘241Y 10} 3|ge(IeAe

SI 3]2iYaA 2yl {usym Ajuo pue) usym sswi}

[|E 18 pateulwn|[l g pue uojleuiwn||i Jo 3[qeded
9q ||eys sudis jood Auy "B[D1IYDA DY} JO 3PIS YIED
uo udis auo ueyl sJ0W 10U Aejdsip 01 palyw.ad

s1 Jolandoud syl ‘quswalinbaa siyl 03 uoilppe U]
"3]31YBA 33 JO SI00P 1U0JL SY1 01 PIXIY4e 3¢ I1snw
[1punod Aup Jaiseaue Ag peyddns susis JooQ
"3[21UDA Y1 JO SIPIS puUB JOOJ 3yl 01 paIIIS

24 |jeys sadelie) AsuyoeH uo susis jo Aejdsip ayyl

<d

'3121Y3A 341 uo s1y3i) Aue jo
21e1d uojle.1sidal oyl 8inasqo
J0u 1snw 1ejd sy S]RIYdA
941 JO U043 Y] J& BupjoO]
pools usym 3[qIsia si a1e|d

31 UO uoIIEULIOI (|B 1B Y]

Aem e yons ut Jadwing ol 3y

S3|21YDA PasuIII} s I91SEIURT UO
sa1e[d JO UOIIBIO] WIOHUN /UOWIWIOD




‘B|31YzA 8y3 Ul palued

2q o1 sJo8uassed Jo saquuinu
wnwixew syl pue sjpiyan ayi
J0 Jaquinu 82u3217 8y} 3uIlels

pa1eas usaym sia8uassed "92U331| By} Ul paquiosald sisduassed
[le Ag u23s aq ued 1 1y} JO IBquinu Sy} pue JIqUINU 32Ul Yl UISISY]
uorysod e yons ul 921yaa syl ASojourwual | paAaauod suosiad o1 sawil ||B 1B I|GISIA 3q O}
uj paAejdsip @3eusis apin0ld e paidunis yum ng uoiipuos Junsixa | se uoliusad B yans ul 9)314aA ay] sSpIsul pauleluew

*{|_YS JBP[OY 32U PIYSA BY) | 3yl se1edijdsl uojlpuod pasodoid S|yl | pue payJew AjJea|2 8q 01 3sned [jeys Joladoad sy

Page 190

3|314y3A 2Y1 JO 3pPISINO

pue apisu| suo8usssed

Aq uaas aq ued Asyl eyl

Jauuel e yons ul paAejdsip
aq 1snw sudis SupjoWsS ON e

paie|dsip

9q 1shw sudis spdiynw

paJinbal 1| "poa1ess uaym

sia8uassed |je Aq uass

2q ued )l 1eyl Aem e yons S
ur apiyaa ayl ul padedsip sme|aAq ageled Asuyoey Ag paianod
st ,23eusis uoiew.oju| ApeaJje S| s1yl Se saJe) Jo 3|ge]
Ja3uassed, panssl /SHliel ayl Aedsip o1 syuswauinbau
[IPUNO) 2yileyl ainsuy e 01 UOI1B|DJ Ul UOI}PUOD B3UBY|
‘pesiusew ag jouued Aue apnjou; 03 pasodoud jou s1 3|
958 "®|2IYDA 3Y] JO Ss1o0p
JUOJJ 941 01 2SBY1L X1}4e pue 19V yHesH
[1ouno) AN i31seaue Ag ay1 Jo swuawaJinbal ayl yum Ajdwoo

paiddns sugis Joop Aejdsig e 01 Alessadau si 98eusdis Supjows




Page 191

SI919IN 4
‘2oe|d
(Ipunod A ay3 Aq 18041139 U1 51 81E0111190 uondaxs Juena|al
uondwexs ue yum panssi usaq sey B $S3]UN J9P|0Y 92U 3P1IYDA 93
BIDIYSA BUI SBALIP OYM JIALIP PAsUad|| 4O UOITINIISUI BU} UO paseq aq J0uues
€ 2434M st sty 03 uondwaxs Ajuo syl ) gop saue)sisse ue Aled 03 [esnya.
BP1YeA 3y3 1Byl Je3| 3 SR YIIYM UOIIIPUGD
ui s8op sduelsisse Suthiles wouy pasodoad ayy Aq paiLie|d/paoueyua
IBALIP pasusd)] e jusAaid 10N e aq Aew 1nq co_wm_m_mm_ ul s1
[|BYS Jap[OY B2U321| 3|IIYdA 3y | SZop souelsisse AlIed 03 JusWalinbay T3
sgop aduelsissy E|
‘a8enue) Aswdey
J21E3S { B Ul Se swes ay) S| aJey
341 1eY1 S318IS YIIYM MOpUIM
Ja3usssed JeaJ apisiesu (STOZ Yaiew ,97 D¥1 Aq panciddy)
3Y3 ul Iounod syl Aq papraold
ugis e Agjdsip 1snw sia8uassed "9dee) AsuyIeH 1921E3S § B Ul SE DWIES 3y}
Jnoj ueyl aJow Asled S| @dey 3yl 18Y1 S91€1S YoIyM Mmoputm Ja8uassed
031 Aydeded syl yim aa1yaa Jeal apisiesu Y3 Ul [1I9Uno) 3yl Ag papiaoad udis
adeuued Aowyoey Aue sunsuy e e Aejdsip 1snwi s1a3uassed unoy ueyl alow Alied
:{leyYs Japjoy a3u3]| 3IIYBA DY, pasodoud s8ueys oN 01 Aloedes 8yl yum sapoiysa s8eliaeld AsuioeH sd
‘[pUno)
33 Jo uoissiwiad ssaadxa "SB[OIYSA PIsuId|| |[B uo ABM BLUBS
U3 INOYUM 321y STeldled a3 ul pahedsip @8eusis Jo asn ayy
Asuxyory e uo Jo Ul pahedsip aq AQ S3[21Y9A PISULII| JO UOILRILIIUSPI
||BYS JUWSSII9APE 10 Watquua ay1 a10woud 01 spUBM |IDUNOD
‘Be)} ‘©o110U ‘USIS OU BJNSUT e AJD By3 se Alessaseu Ajgeuoseal
2]|eYs Jap|oy S0usdl| 321y 3y pawaap sI uollipuod pascdoad spy ta




Page 192

|| 25N A[2JBS UBD pue pauled}
AJINJ S1 B2IYDBA SY3 SALIP 03
payiwaad uosiad Aue ainsuy e
‘Jleys Jap|oy 32U} SPOIYIA 3Y L

241 o1u| palesodiooul Sulsq 240521941
S1 pue 3J21ysA 3yl o uonedyaads

33 03 S91R[D BUIPJOM JUBIIND

ay3 Jo Ajdolew Y3 ‘SIUBWWOD 18I0

e ul uonessidal o1 1o01d paldepe Jo sainlenuewd

ay1 Ag 3|ing asodind s]pIysa B, Se pauysp
S| Syl pue ‘ 3jgIssadde Jieyd@aym aq o3 paiinbai
S1UDIYm 2|2149A B JO 109dsaJ Ul Pansst a2uadi| Auy

S3]21YaA 21qISSA0IY JIBYI|BAU 01 3]qEaijdde SUOIIPUO) [eUsIIPPY

suil)

1EU] 1€ POSIASP 34 [[Im sUollpuod
ajeudosdde pue uoizeoyinads B Uy}
‘poonpo.iul st A1DD Aojepuew §]

"a4leuuollssnb uoljelnsuoo

241 o1u] pajesodiodul 8q [[IMm ALDD UO
uolIsanb y 'sa)a1ysA pasuadi| ul ALDD
10 3nssl @yl Uo YNSUOI S3IIOYINe
|e20] 1eys (67 / eded) spaepuels
AJo1niels 1id 2yl Jo wawalinbal

e s 3 "ALDD Aolepuew Joy
uawWadinbal e 3INPOJIUL [|IM |12UN0D
3y} J3yIaym 38e1S SIY3 18 Jeapun s1 y

Juawdinba aaue|piaains yans Juipiesau

ME[ 93 Jo s1oadse |je yum Ajdwod o3 Aljigisuodsal
siojelidoad/IBAlIp 9yl g |[Im 1 J9Buassed

Aue 03 psezey Jo 198uep Aue Jussaud 0} 10U Se Aem
B yons uy pue AJLIBA0 ‘paliy aq |jeys wuswdinba
yons Auy ‘papiodal/pasotiuow Susq sie Asyi
~jeyl suaguassed Suisiape Juawpedwod sa8usssed
3y3 u1 paAe|dsip aq |jeys 25eudis ajenbape ‘pany
DJE SIDIADP YONS }| ‘SIOIYIA Ul pariuad sie
A)3JeS J9ALIP 15ISSE 0] SW15AS 92UR||IBAINS ALDD

ALDD

[PuUnod

AN Js3seoue ay3 Aq paxiy

Sa.4e) JO 9|¢e1 3Y) Ul pBUIRIUDD

SE 2WI) JUBA3|aJ 3yl 1e pasieyd

9( 01 SLHB] 10 LjlIe1 3y}

Afuo Ae|dsip 1snw pue [12uno)

ay1 Ag psjess pue pasosdde

‘pa1se] 84 1SNW SJ21YDA 9Y1 Ul

papiaoad J913wWiIxe| syl 8insuj e

[[BYS J2P|OY 30U 9|IIYSA 3Y|

a8ueyd pasodoud oN

‘jpuno) Al Jsiseaue eyl Ag paxiy sauey
10 3|ge) BUI Ul PBUIBIUOY SB DLW JUBAS|J Byl 16
pasdieyd aq o1 syiJel Jo Jjuel ayy Ajuo Aejdsip 1snwi
pue |1Duno) ay1 Aq pajeas pue poaaoldde ‘paissl
3¢ 1SNW 3PIIYaA 8yl ul p3apiaosd J9lswixe] syl

14




Page 193

‘uonedoads 321yan
9|gissadde Jreyopasym agelled
Asuoey ay3 01 SLIIOJUOD

1BU) 3PIYaA 3|qIssaooe
J[eYd[a3YMm B 34 1SNl 3]IIYdA
MBU Y] 3|GISSD20E HEeYI|IYM
3¢ 01 palepuew 33Uy
95elLed Aawydey 03 B21UIA JO
adueyd e s1 219Y3 842YM 24nsuy
Jleyoesym

e U 5ujj|aned so8uassed Aue
94n23s pue peojun /peoj A|3jes
UED JBALP 34} 1ey] j|asuliy
AJsiies 1snw Jap|oy a3uadj)|

oyl Je[nanued ul ‘ aplyaa

3y1 ur tuswdinbs 1s1je10ads 3]

‘uonesijdde 20uad3I| BIIYIA MU
10J 23ds ayj Jo Hed S| ing UoIHpPUOD
33U301) B 10U S| {p UOIHPUOS Funsng

BPIYIA
3y} 4o sauniesy /iuswdinbs isyjeads
3y1 |je jo uoiielsdo 3)es ay) Suipnjoul
3J21YydA BY3 JO S94N1LBL 3Y] |[B 3Sh O]
MOY JO a1eme A[[ny SI 9|dIYaA Y3 SALIP
01 pamoj|e uosiad Aue 18yl 2unsua
[1eYs Jop|oy 22us21[ 3|21y3A 98eLIIeD
Asuoey ayi 1eys 109|494 03 papiomal
st uswidinba 3sije1pads auy Jo

2SN 9y1 uo Suiuiell JSAP 24139ds 10y
wswanbal ayl jeyy payse8ins s1 )

"'Tg uoIlpuod
Aq pa1snod Apesde S| 9|21YaA By}
J0 ugisap Jo uonedlynads syl s8ueyd
/ PUswe 03 10U JUsWainbas ayy

(spino

pue AuD Ag pase|daa usaq sey pue
3|ge|leAR J83U0| OU SI 7 [9AD] 0919 2Y1
"8'2)  9211081d pUR JBWOISNI 103|404
0} pa1epdn 3¢ 01 pasu SUBWI|D
3WOSs ‘SUOIIPUOI 32U3DI| URYL JoY el
Adijod ay3 Jo ued uonesynads 3pIyaa

Asejuawindop sonpoud o3 pasinbai
3q ||m NOA sieyd[aaym Jo 28eLlIeD
ay1 104 3|Ing asodind 10U sem aRIYaA BY]
41 ‘Buisuay) Jo4 321yan e Sunuasaid u (p

‘safellen

AswoeH Joyg sjuwil| 98e s|1ounod ayl yum
Aldwod osje 1snw a1y sy Asains
puewap 1awun ue FUIMo||0} panss!

sem a1e(d ay1 JI ‘9|qISS8Ie JIeyd|IyM
9 0s|e 1SNW ?|2Y3A Juswsde|das Auy (o

"32IYSA 21 Yylm patlied aq
1snw sdwelt ‘3jdoad pajges|p juenque
pue Apsp|a JO 82UEISISSE 3] 10}
papiaoad aq 1snw dais |euollppe ue pue
Spjoypuey [euollppe {papiaoid aq Isnw
uednado Jleyaesym ayl pue JeyoRsym
8Y1 Yy10q 31n29s 03 sueaw vy (g

"ainuade syl se apmm
se uluado Jo 3jgedes aqg 1Snw ssaooe
JIBYD|@3YM U0} PIsh 100p Auy "3|31YdA

31 JO JB3J 3] 1B JOOD B U0 JOOP JBdl
apisiesu 9yl ySnouyy JSYUS Jieyd[@sym
B 10} ssad0e apinoad 1snw 3po1ysa ay] (e

:PayoLe1Ie SUOIIPUOD |BUCIIPPE 8S2U1 aARY
[[Im susBuadssed punoq JIBYD[S3YM JO 22UBADALIOD
3} 4o} dsampoelnuew ayl Ag paroidde rauuewl




Page 194

palafep 24 0] pasodoud aJe yaiym suoiupuo) Sulisixy

'sudis
J00p PaNss] |I2UN0D 3yl SACQe
Ajoielpawiwg ugis 9jqissanoe
Jieyajaaym pasiugoorsd
Alleuoinieu ayi sAejdsip appiysa
afeLied Aswydey 3yl aJnsua
3|21Y3A PISUIDY 9]qIssadoe
Jleyd[eaym e Jo 109dssu Ul e
:[|BYsS Jap|oy 82ua31| YDA 3YL

“193|4 8y} Jo Alwioyun sajowoud
uieSe — 98euBIS aY1 104 00| 03 BJ3YM
Y1M JBljILUB) DUI0J3( SJI2U0ISND
1ey1 os paiejdsip aq 01 sey 23eus|s
SIY} S49YM uCI1ed0| 1oexa asodaud

‘paydwis ag ued
BuipJom Inq pileA [|13s Juswainbay

(ETOT AINT (,8T3Y1 U0 DY Aq panoiddy)

olqnd |esauss ayy Joy
uoISNIUoD proae o1 Japto up a8eudis paJinbal ayy
Aejdsip uayl pjnoys pue Ayoyiny Suisusai] ayl 03
3|(ISS90JR JIRYI[IIYM SE B[IIY3A BY3 2JB[D3P pPjnoys
siseq AJelunjoA B uc 3PIYdA 38elue) AduddeH
3|q1sse20k Jleyd[@aum e sapirotd oym uosiad Auy

1agdeuelp
3uisusol ayl Aq psnocidde 3g 031 IPIYLSA Byl 4O
IPISINO Y3 Woly 8jqIsiA suollsod jusuiwosd oml
1Se3] 1B ul u3iS 9|qIssad2. dleydsaym pasiugodau
Ajjeuoneu ayy Aeidsip 1snw sapIysa aselued
AswyaeH s|qIsseode Jeydjdsym Alolepuew ||y

<H

(8T0Z YaJBIN pZZ PRlEPdn

pue 9T0Z 429030 ;ET UO papuawe)
"BI2IUBA 3|ISSDITL JIBYD[SDYM B DALIP
01 polw.iad dJe JuBWISSasse |ealoeLd
1usjeainba 1o a8s)j0) aquedaloy

pue 131seoue Ag paJanlap JUSLUSSISSY
JIBYIISIYAN [BDIORI, T [2A97 D119

ay1 passed saey oym suosiad Ajup g°'N

"JaJn1oeinuew syl Aq panoudde
sem uondepe ayl 1eyl pue ‘uoiiensidal
01 Jolid paldepe sem | 1BY] 20UBPIAD




Page 195

"TTOZ d|pues A 1919X3 Me| ased
Ag passaippe mou S| UOILENHS SIY |

9] ‘0S Op 10U $30p JBp|oY 22Udd]| @Y1 J| ‘paaidxa
sey 3ous2|| Jolalidosd syl aiojaq uonesldde
[EMBUBJ B HWIQNS ISNW J9P|OY 93U 3y L

suoisinoad |e20|
ul syuswalinbadg aanesI8a) 91edidnp
01 82110e1d peq 3¢ 03 PoIIPISUOD S1 1

94 VAINDT 941 Ul pajielap

Ajea)d sJe suoisinoad pue ssasoud
3y ' SUOINPUOD 3aUBIN} Ui patedndnp
3¢ 0} p93U 10U SIOP 2J0JRIB]

pue juswsaJiinbai |e8s) e s1 syt

"pPayoABd B4 [|BYS 92UI3]| 3y ‘Syuow

OM} JO poLIad B UIYUM S|DIYSA BY3 JO UOIHPUOD

JO SSBUL DY) 0} SE PIIYSIIeS 0S 10U S| ISHHYD

D1 J “JSASMOYH °32UDI1| BY] JO IUSWISIRISUIBI
uodn pauiniad aq [|Im 1nQ JIDYO Y3

03 papuey a4 ‘@aus2|] 8y} JoO uolsusdsns uo ‘|jeys
a1ejd @yl "d2IYIA SYI YUM PBISIIES S| JBDIHO

2Y1 se a1 yans |1un papuadsns aq uayl |jeys
22u8a2]| 8yl ‘padinbau s1 Bu11s9) pue uoiasdsul
JaymIng J| ‘UoneUIWEXS JBYMNY 10} AjleIpawiw]
343uaD Suilse / uonodsdsul pajeulwou

$,[12UnNoY) 9yl 01 BJIIYDA By} }03JIp 01 3.

aq jleys ay ‘4a1auiixe | ay} jo Adeunoae ayj 03 Se 4O
adeie) AswoeH BY) JO SSOUMJ BY} OF SB pauysiies
10U S1 U310 Y1 | "SOWIL 3|qBUOSEDM |[B 3B 3[OIUIA
4yons 03 paxyie Ja1awixe| Aue o 3ja1yan 9yl 1591
pue 10adsul 01 1921)J0 921j0d B IO [1DUNOD) 3Y3 Jo
182140 pasuoyIny Ue yuuad [jeys Jolslidold syji

gd uonipuocs
pasodoad Aq passa.ppe s Siyl

yum paljdwod Ajjny =q

lleys (suoiiejngay asn pue uoanIIsuon)) sapIya
JO10[A] Ul paulelu0d 3soyl Jejnoiped ul Suipnjoul)
SluUaWIINbal A101N1EIS JUBAS[SU ||B PUB UCIPUOD
ues|o pue Ap1y ‘ajes 1usiye ue ul 1day 3q auly Joy
3[ge|IBAR 10 BSN Ul S] 3[2IYSA Y] USYM SBWIY |[B 18
fleys auawdinba pue s8uniy sii [je pue ap1ysA sy




Page 196

'seded yooqgaded
opeJy "8'9 ‘sunoyie|d [ensip /eipsw
[E190S / yinow Jo piom Ag paunasal

8¢ Aj|ew.ou pinom SISALIP 1B4) SUBSW
A3ojouyoas Jo Juswdosaap oy,

"$3]d1yaA uo Suisipanpe Aue
91e}|198e) 01 Fun0O] JoSUO| OU BAOWIRY

‘AU smopuUIm
apis Jead up pase|d oq 03 JuswasiUaApe (q)

"Wl suo Aue 1e 321yaA
341 Ul JUSWISIUBAPE SUO JO JSquinu wnwixeuw (e)

-:SUoINpUOI
3uimo]|o 241 01 192[gNs SISALIP JO JUBWHNIIBI
ay3 Suisiyseape sudis Aejdsip Aew so3aladold ayl

1eadas 03
pasu ou 3noge Tg Ul paJaAco Apeal|y

‘92404

U] S} 82U} BY1 BIYyM 3w Aue 1B |[DUN0D) Syl

10 |eacudde syl Inoyum spew 3¢ ||_Ys 92IYaA Y3
4o @sueaeadde Jo uoiupuod ‘uSisap ‘uoiiealnads
23 U1 28ueyd 40 UolIBIDY|E |BIIDIBW ON

' 391LWWOD Y}
01 paJdatad g Aidxo Jole paaRdal
92ua2y| si01aidoud a8eLaed Adudpey
B }O |eAM3UBJ 9yl Jo) uolied)dde
912|dwod Aue 1eu} ysim e s

adayl Adrjod ay3 ulylm eyl 3q Aew

"P9nwwo) Suisuaol] 8yl 0} JaSeuerw
guisuaol) ay) 01 pajedsjep sienew
Aue Jags1 0} 1aylaym Suipaessu
uol18.1osip sey Ja8eue|p SuIsuadI] Yyl

(8TOT Y248 5,TT DY 18 paroiddy)
"SBIUBISWNI [BUondaIXD
13pIsuod 0] sa1HwWwo Alolenday duisusol
01 padlajad 3 {|IM JDJ1BL BY] ‘DWII SIYY JoUY
‘Adidxe s O Sinoy 7/ UIylm
ased Aue ul pue aJn|iey 3y} 1o} uoseal poos AlsA e
SI 848yl SS3|uUn pasnyaa 3q [[1m uontedidde jemausl




Page 197

1oNpu0d JO 3P0 JDH PUE SUCIIPUOD

DOUDI| JBALIP Hd 01 PaiIns alowl
PRJBPISUC) BJE 1IN PljeA PBIBPISUOD
3Je UONIPUO? SIY] Jo suoedidse ay|

01 puUe ISALIP 3} 10§ UOIIDBIISIP OU SI 9J3Y3 2INSUD
01 $1 S1Y1) "pPe193UU02sIp 3¢ 1Shw Ayl ‘piepuels
SE P13l 8JB ®SAU] | "JSALIP 91 Jo siagudssed

10 1UBWILIBLISIUD DY) 1O} B[21YdA 3y} Ul pajelado
SW31SAS 03pIA 10 QA OU 3Q PINOYS 348y L

sajoryan agdelnies Asuoey
40 108dssu Ul uo1129s Asijod uiylm
PapN[aul pue SUOIIPUOD WoJy 313]ap

‘32UDII[ 4O UOIHPUOD B JOU SI SIY]

"}l 01 32eQq paJiaisuely
24 [|Im 91k{d ay] pa1sal pue palledals ussq sey
IIIY3A [euUISII0 BYT USYAA "WSY] 01 Pisisuely

a1e|d |eUIB1I0 3Y] BARY [|IM SBDIYDA JUBWSde|daYy
"SAN0Y g/ WYUm pa1s|dwod W0 JU3pIIoe
ue pue Alloyiny Suisusd ayi 03 pauodal

9 ISNWL 31 JUSPIIIE UE Ul PAA|OAUL S| B21YSA Y1 J|

sAep T UIYUM JDJSUBIL B2IYSA
Jo Ajljou 01 seasuad|| saanbal 1S

‘61S 83e211dau jou
$30p UORIPUOD SIY1 o Sulpiom ay ]

(6t S 9/6T 19V (SU0IsINOId SNO3UD}RISHA)
WawulaA0g (p007) “pred vy Alessacsu Aue

pue pala|dwod uol1RILUAWNIOoP |8 pue uosiad eyl
01 Panss| Usa( SBY 32U32]| MBU B [[JUN JSUMO MdU
21 Aq pasn aqg apdIyaA 3y} ABW SI2URISWINDIID OU
U] "2313)suel] 3y} JO SSaJppe pue aweu ayl SuiAIS
‘uo1393s uUISUBIT Y] 01 WLIOY paqLIosdad ay3 uo
UM Ul J3jSURJ) 9] JO 92110U SAIZ A|D1BIPD WL
1SN 3Ys / 8 35|2 APORWOS O} 3[IIUDA

B U] 159J91Ul U3y / sIy siajsuely soleuidoid ey

‘pienjsod
[eWwIoU B ueyl J93JE| OU 8Q 0] JUDWASIHIBAPE (2)




Page 198

‘uoiie|sida)
10 usWaNINbaJ e SI 1 S paAowW
9 UBd UOIMPUOD SIY] JO Led puodas

"SYIUOW dA[aMm] Jo poldad suo Aue ur Jagquinu

Ui 924yl paadxa 1ou ||eys Sullsa) pue uoidsdsul Jo
SUOISeID0 dlededas ay] ‘|Pounod syl Ag paioads
se aoe|d e yons je pue polad yans ulyum |1puno)
941 JO j|eyaq uo 1o Ag 3ul1sal pue uodadsul

Joj a8eLie] AsudeH ayl 1uasald [|eys '$204nosay
uelwIny pue |33 Jo pesH 3yl Woj Sullm ul
ao130u Aue Jo 1d19931 uo Jo1alidold @y3 ‘suoisincad
pP3IUOIUIW SA0GE 3Y1 01 3d1pn[zad INOYAIAN

(umoys
Sutaq soapIa 10 SGAQJ D]BUNSUN JO YSII 3yl ploAe




Page 199




Page 200

Appendix N re signage will be completed once the final policy has been agreed




Page 201




Page 202

6007 peoy uolsnao)
12pJ0 UolEpPIoSU0D) 8rT pue
{(Burnem 9pT usamIag
JO Uo[DISoY paienys
pue ucilgiyoid uorRIIp pEOJ SS3908 3y
‘saoeld Bupied Ald91seD yim uopsunf
19815 uQ) (ea1y -YtioN e S} Jo 1se3
Jaiseouet) |1ounod UL S2U1BW §'S JO YHON saJllaw 1583 peoy
Alunod aJiysesue pues Ixel J@jseauen 1059 90t 600Z/50/20 douelsip e Jod | T uod e wodd yinog uol1sno) puelS Ixej
6002
Japlp uolnepl|osuo)
(Buniem
JO UoPPLIISSY
pue uoqIyold
‘saoeid Bupjled uorBIIp peoy 28pug
189415 uQ) {eauy AleymoN B | yum uonpun( sy
Js1seauen) {puno) U $aJ18W §°G 40 | 4O UMON sediaw
Ajunon aaiyseaue puels xe] liseaue 1059 90°€ 600Z/£0/20 BIUBISIP BI04 | g5 juiod 2 woly 1583 IA0IE YSY puels ixeg
600Z
13plO UoIiepIoSUDY)
(Suiem
40 UonDLsaY peoy
pue uoLgiyo.d UoNIBAP aJowusRnD
‘saoe|d Bupided AlJoises yum uenaun
188415 UQ) (e8uy ~UJION B S} Jo 1583 Alorowal
Iseaue) punod UL SRJIBW TT JO YLON saslew 1S90 | J91seouen 01
Alunon aqyseouen puels IXel 1a1sesuet T°059 90°¢ 6002/€0/20 souelsipedod | gz aulod e wold yuon | peoy ssaooy DUBLS [XB]
INOHA avod dINVYN ddAL
J1Lil 43g40 NOLLDIYLS3Y 1214d1s1d anysl JTAA3IHOS lva HSINIL 1HVY1S A0 3qIS 13FULS d3ado

O xipuaddy

SHUEY SSENIIEY ASWPEH [PUNG) A Jo15E0UE




Page 203

007

J3pIO uopiepiosuc)
(Buniem

40 uopaLISAY

pue uomgiyoud

18345

‘saoe|d Supjied uol2adip | WEYISSAA Lo auj|
198415 uQ) (esuy Alaylnos e gJa3 AjJsyLioN
J215EDUET) |I2UN0D) Ul sal@w 5°g Jo 3y ausoddo peoy
AlUnoD adiyseosue PUBIS IXB] Iaisesue T°059 90's 600Z/€0/20 20UR1SIp B 404 uod 2 wodg 15e3 SUIHBIA 1S puElS IXEB],
600¢T
J3pI0 UoneplosSU0D
(Bumesm
40 ucpilsay
pue uchigiyold
‘sa3Bid SUPjIEY UonaRlIp | 9Alg YHomiusT
198415 UuQ) (esly Ap@ise3 ue | yum uonaun( sy [8a1
JoisesueT) [1punod Ul S2J1B8W §°6 10 401583 saJ1PW ApayHonN]
Alunoy aaiysesuen puels ixel J915E2UET 1°059 90's 6002,/€0/20 souelsipesod | g uod e WO yinos | sJenbs ejey puelsS IXE|
6007
J3PJD UCIIEP]|OSUOT])
(Bumem
10 UonIMIsSEY
PUE UoLlqiyold
‘5998|d Bupjied UGIIIR41p peoy ucl|eH
192015 UQ) (esay AlRisepn e | Ynm uoroun( sy
Jasesuet) [1punod Ul $3J12W §°G JO 10 1890 SAaBW
Alunogd aayseosue puels Ixel I91582UE7 T'059 =To)= 600Z/€0/20 Qouelsip e 404 | Qg 1uod e wodd YHOoN sue] usaln puels xel
INOYd avoy JINVN AdAL
F1LI1 43gH0 NOLLIIHESIY 1214.LS1a anyslt AINAIHIS alvda HSINI JUvis 40 34is 13341S H3aHo

O Xipuaddy




Page 204

6002

J3PIO UCHBRIOSUOD
(Buiem

40 uoIPUIsaY

pue uchigIyold

‘saoe|d SupjJed uopa21Ip 199435 |[955NY
193115 UQ) (eauy Alspises ue 1o uonunf 183J318
Jaiseouet) |1ouno) Ul sallaW €7 Jo Alro159 MM usplen
AlUnoD aldiysesue puels IXel Igiseaue T°069 90'c | 600Z/E0/T0 2JUR1SIP B Jod sy} Wwou4 ymnos UoWwIWOD puels xe|
600¢
13pIQ UONIRRIOSUDD
{Buiem -
40 UoIPLIIsaYy
pue ucllgiyold peoy spuefeAy
‘sa08|d SUpjEd uojRBILp 10 Alepunoqg
183415 uQ) (ealy Auaises ue Anaises syl
Jgiseouer) jlounod Ul sasBls §°G JO 10 15B3 saJjawW peoy
Alunon audlyseouen puels xel Iyseouen 1°059 9u'E | 600Z/€0/20 gouRISIp BI04 | OF uiod B wodd YHON | swoystiog pueis ey
6007
13plQ0 Uopepiosuad
(Buntepn
10 uorllsey
pue ucpigiyodd uooalp 199135 pJo1
‘saoeld Suplied Ajiaises yim uopoun|
198415 UQ) (B3ly ~yuoN B S Jo 1583
Jggsesuet) ounos u1 sanewW gT Jo YlON saJ1auw 1583 1583
AjunoD sdiysesuen PUELS IXE] | 2qUIEIRIOIA 17099 90°€ | 6002/€0/T0 BOURISIP B UOY | LEIUIOd B WO YInos | peoy sulreiy puels Ixel
IANIOHA avod FINVYN AdAlL
J1LIL H3AQHO NOILDIY1S3Y 12141s1a anysi AINAIHIS diva HSINid 1dvis 40 3ais JAFYLS H3qydo

O XIpuaddy




Page 205

6002
13plQ UonEpIesSUoD)

(Buniem 199418
4O uooillsay AdlYseoueT
pue uoiiqIyold uooslIp 10 Alepunoq
‘saoe|d Suplied Alsisea Ala1se3
198115 UQ) {eduy ~YHOoN E Ul 2yl o 15e7
J315BDUET) [I2UN0D S3419W 9T 4O YHON saJaW 1S9 1S9/
AlunoD adiysesue PUBIS IXB] | SUBIBION T°059 90'¢c 600Z/£0/20 20ue3sIp e Jod 6 1ulod e Wol4 UHON | peoy suLepn puels Ixe]
6002
13pJ0 UCIIEP]|OSUQ))
(Sunem 123035
Jo uoiouissy puepagquINyLIoN
pUB UoIgiyotd uckoaJip 10 Alepunog
‘seae|d upiled Arsisem AjISISBAN
19215 UQ) (eduy ~yinos e Y1 JO 159M
J915B2UET) [12UNOD Ul sedjswl 7T 10 sall2W 7€ 1se3 [BLIUSD
Auno) aqyseouer puElS IXe] | SQWeIBIoN 1°059 90'E 600Z/€0/20 IoURISIP B 104 jutod e woud UINos | peoy sulB| pue1s IXel
6002
J3pI0 UCHIEPI|OSUDT qnp
(Burepa J|OD BQWEdIoIN
1O UOI12[4153Y 2y} 0}
pue uolHqIyedd uodaIIp peoJ 553928 Iy}
‘sa0e|d Bupjied Alioisem Yim uonounf
132415 UQ) (eBUY -ynos e S1L JO 159M,
Jajseoue) [1OUNOD uj $3419W QT 10 YInos saJisw 1S90 1883
Aunon adlyseoue puElS IXe] | aguwedalop T°0S9 90'E 600Z/50/20 2uelsipea0d | 7z uod e Wodq YMON | peoy sulepw puels xe]
INOYS avou JINVN ddAl
J1LIL ¥3AYO0 NOILLSHLSTY 1II41sIa aoysL JINAIHOS iivdad HSINIA 14YLS 10 34ls LIJHLS H3ado

O xipuaddy




Page 206

0TOZ 49p4Q (308]d
pajgesiq pue Juey
IXE] p3asuoyIny ‘Aeg
Buipeojun/3uipeo]
AlUD S9PIUDA SPOOD
‘Bulpeojun/8uipeo
‘Buiiem

40 UoIHqiyoid
‘ucneIonay Med)
{4o15R0UET ‘pROY
YHON pue 133415
younyo} jlounod
AJUNoD adiysesueT

uoidallp
Ausypon
B U $8J18W § JO

1831315 yainyd jo
BUI-2J1U2 Y}
10 YHoN salipw

puels Ixel J815EIUE" 1°059 90°€ | 0T0Z/¢I/90 UEISIP BI04 | FT Iulod B wolq 159M peoy YUON puels Ixel
6007 19315 Buly yum
13pJQ uolIEpl|OSUOD 132415 Auuad
(Susem Suuiof auy| gey
J0 UondLsey o431 O 4Inog
puE uckIglyold sallew € wod e
‘saoe|d Bupled uolaap | wol) 183415 Suny
199415 UQ) (ealy AlJ3YINoes | ypm uorounf sy
191583U87) [[PUNOD B Ul S2JISW § JO 18 pueg| jo eaue
Apunod sliysedsuey puels Ixel J215EDUET T'0S9 90°€ | 600Z/£0/Z0 SIUELS|P B 104 Jen3uepy syl flY | 198415 Auuad puels ixel
6002
JBPIO uoHEpPIOSUOD
(Buiem
JO Uonausay
pue uopigqiyald ANUIAY Wejeq
‘saoe|d Bupyded uonIsdIp Jo Alepunog
133415 UQ) (esuy AlaylioN B AlaynoN 3yl
JBISEDURT) [PUROD Ul S2UBW 0Z 4O | JO YUON seJiaw
Auno) adyseosue] pueis ixel | aquedalow 1°0S% 90'€ | 600Z/E0/T0 aouelsipedod | §gautod e wodg 159, Aempeolg puess et
INOYd avoy 3INVYN 3dAL
LI HAAHO NOLLOIYLS3Y IOMISIA anysl ITNAIHDS a1va HSINIA 1YvIS 40 34Is 13341S H3gyso

O xipuaddy




Page 207

910¢

JIPIO (SUOIIDLIISEY
3unpjied snouea
pUV UOHEI0ASY)
(AuD so3sEOURT
‘QQUIBII0|N

15 BLIOIDIA PUR 1S
[{EISUNL 1S 393JeIN
‘|BJ1UED pY BULBA
15 Agls@) |puno)

UQI234IP
AlSYLION E

UonR2Rakp
Aayuop e

Ul SALQ [BJ3URD
Yim uoioun|

Ul S8JBW ¥E 4o S} WoJ) sadyaw 1983415 aw]
AJunoD suiysesue puels IXEl | sgquwelaloin 1059 a0'E 910e//0/ST 0UBISIP B IO4 | £8IUI0d 2 Lol 1S3M, 1aeN | Auy 3y Sulliep ON
910¢
Japao (sucipusey
Bupjied snoLea
pUY UoIEI0ADY)
(AuD J935B0UET
‘BOUIRIBICIA
15 BLIOIDIA pUR IS
[lE1sun], 15 133 uolsaip BALIQ tedIuD)
‘|elual py auUiBA AldsyrioN B | umsm uonounl sy
15 Aguas() pouno) uf S3J39W 97 4O | JO YHON SJ]18W 28418 WL
Axunod anysesuen puels Ixe] | SquiedaJop 1059 9n'e OTOT/L0/ST gauelsip e Jo4 66 Jied e wouy 1583 e | Auy 1y Builiepn ON
910¢
13plo (suonolsay
Fuped snolseA
puy uoliesoAsy)
(A11D J218ROURT
‘aguiessiol
1S BLIOIA pUB 18 SAlQ [e3us)
[{BISuUnI 15 1994 ueIIRaIp Yyum uoounf
‘leJIus) Py SuULBN Alayuon e S JO YHON
15 Agdaq) |1ouno) ul seJ1sll OF Jo S388W H0T 193415 Qwir|
AlUNOY aJysesue pUBIS IXB), | SCWEIBION 1059 To N 9T0z//0/ST IoURISIP B JO4 uod e woly 1se3 oyde | Auv 1y Sunlean oN
INOHA avoy JANVYN IdAL
J1LIL H3QHO NOILIIELSIY 1211SIa anys.L 4TNA3HOS aLva HSINI4 JHVI1S 40 34iIs 133418 H3Q"o

O xipuaddy




Page 208

60027
19pIQ UCHERLOSUDD
{Bumiep

10 Uo1321I1S9Y

pue uomqIyoLd uonBIp
‘saoB|d SunlJed wep Arlatsam
193435 UQ) (2auy -1Y2lupiw pue -yynos e 19348
131SEIUET) [I2UNOD YSupiw-wdoT Ul $8J19WI §5 Jo | luSWEellied YUMm 1583
Auno) anyseoue] puels [xe|, J315B0UBT 1'059 €T°E | 600Z/80/20 3oURISIP B JO4 | Uondunl 1 wol4 ynos peoy yuoN puz1s IXe.
600¢
IspiQ uoliepIosuo)
(Buimesn
$0 UOILsRY
pue uolIqIyoid uondaLIp 19R135 uoidnis
‘s90E|d Funpled Audisea YHm uorounf
1@a0s ug) (ealy -yHON B | 53140 1583 YLION
19315E0UE17) [PPUNOD wdy-wegT Ul sallew ZI jo S2J13U 7972 199115
AjunoD adyseaue PUBIS IXB] | BqWeslon 1059 80°¢ | 6002/€0/70 2JUeIS|p B 4o od e wol4 YLoN BLIO1DIA puels [xe|
810z
J2pJQ (sucnoLisay
Supjied snowuep
puUy Uo11BI0ASY)
(A11D Jeiseoue 182415 uonapuy
‘B3QWEIBI0IN 303Ul qJaY
1S BELLODIA PUR IS uonpaip Alarsap 2y
J[e1sun), S 18BN Ajioises Yyum uonaunl
‘[B1IUSD PY BULIBA -ymnos e 511 JO }5B3
1§ Aguaq) |1punod ul ssal@wW g jo Jinos sasaw 198415 WL
Aunog adysesuet PUEIS IXE] | SQLUBISIOW 1'059 80°¢ | 9T02/L0/ST souelsip e1od | OT ulod e woud yinos [feisunl § Auv 1y Suljepn oN
INOYd avou JNVYN IdAL
111 ¥3a40 NOILJIHISIH Diylsia asysl INAIHIS Lva HSINI 14vl1s 40 3dIs 14341Ss HIAMO

O Xipuaddy




Page 209

600¢
I9PIO UOIEPIOSUOD

(Bumem 1981
40 uonoLIsSey 2J1yseoueT
pue uoijugiyoldd J0 Alepunoq
‘spoejd Bupled uoIRIIp Alsisea
198415 uQ) (easy Alrsises-ylioN 31 Jo 1563
Jeiseaue) {puno) wdg-weg B Ul WTT JO yllopn wg'gy 159/ 1S3/
Aluno) aayseoue puzis Ixel | sgquiesslop T°059 L0°E 600Z/€0/70 S0UBISIP B 104 ued e wouy ULON | pecy aulelp puels Ixeg
600T
J3PJ0O UonEepIosSuO)
(Buniep
JO UOIIZLIISEY
pue uolgIyold 199435 Adelp
‘S30E|d Bunjied uonosiIp Jo Aepunoq
128438 uQ) (evay Al21583 UR Al49159M0 B3
Ja15eIuen] |1punc) wdg Ul $3J18W €T JO Jo isea saspw
Alunod aJiyseaue -LUeg PUBIS IXB ) 1315B0UE] 1°059 L0°€ 6002/£0/20 2JuBlSIp B U404 | 7 julod B wioly UloN 199015 98en puels Ixe].
600¢T
J9pJO UCHRRIOSUDTD
(Burnem
JO UoILISSY
PuUE UoINqiyold 1215 ey
‘s@ae|d Bupiied uogAIIp 40 AMepunog
183415 uQ) (esly Alioises ue Aia1ss a0 U3
Is1seaue) |puno) wdg-weg ul sadisw QT 0 Jo1se3 ssijow
Alunoy adysesuer puels xe]. l@jseauen T°059 fO'E 6002/E0/20 FouRISIp B 104 S uiod e wol4 YioN 15315 28en pues Ixe|
INOHA avoud FINVYN ddAL
1L H3AHO NOILDIYi1S3Y 12141S1a anyslL F1NG3IHOS diva HSINIA 1HvYi1S 40 Aqls 133418 d3dqdo

O Xipuaddy




Page 210

pasusdy| 1ou tojetado iy aiealtd
e 01 }Jom Bulloejuoa-gnsy| e
lJleys s101eiado auly a3eald ay

M3U JO SUOHINPOJIU] SYl pUB MB| 9582
Aq paposiadns usaqg sey uoIpuUOD Syl

1snuwi siojelado ‘1uno) Ay Jeisesue Ag
pPanss| $30UB| JUBAI|DI YL p|oY 1By SB2
-IYDA puB SISALIp asn Ajuo 1snw Jojelado uy

[4]

-aoe|d pue sw pajuiodde
1Y) 18 puaiie Ajjeniound ‘asned
juspIyns Ag paiuaasad Jo paiejap
SS3JUN ‘|jeys 3|21U3A 33 ‘Soejd pue
awy) pajujodde ue je asuepuane
Ul 8¢ 01 paJly ua3aq sey 3[2IYaA
941y S1BALId B USYM JBYI 3UNSUT e
Jenoned ug [jeys ssodand siyi 4oy
pue sawi} s|geuosead ||e je aqnd
B3 JO SI9QUIDLU O 92IAIIS Bjqel]
-3.4 pue wspIYs Qdwold e apiaold e
:leys Jolesado aury a1eand sy

'sued ajeledas omy olul Hjds SI UoIHpUOD

ay11eyl pasodoud si 1 SulliEWIO) pUue
noAej Jo sasodind a3 104 "SUORIPUOD
10 195 MaU 81 UIYyUMm papn|aut 34
PINOYS pue pljeA SUIBWaJ UOIIPuoD Siyl

(T4 1& 4 UO1aS U] pajie3ap sl p pued ‘q

*3°1 UOIIPUOD s1y3 3o syed Fuiuewas ayy)
‘20e|d
pue awil pajuiodde 1eyl 1e puayie
Aljeniound ‘asnes 1UBI21)4NS AQ paIuaa
-2.4d 10 paAgjap ssajun eys sy
-aA ay3 ‘eoe|d pue swi) palviodde ue
18 DoUBpUDIIE Ul 9 01 paUIY udaq sey

JPIYDA BUIH DIBALI4 B UBYM JBYL dansu] (&)

:epnonded uj jeys asodind

S1Y} 10} pue saw) 9jqeuosead |je Je oqnd
D] JO SIDQUIDW 0 BIIALIS D|CEID4 PUB JUBID
-14e “1dwoud e apiaoud jjeys Jolesado syl

v

uonessiuwpy Suisuaor]

v

SUORIpU0d
82ua217 Jo3esadQ Al 33eAld pasodoud

SIUBLUWOY 1IN0

suol}Ipuo) 33Ua21] jo Suipiopn Sunisixy

ou
$2d

PaNI3338.4 SJUBWILWIOI JO UOIIDIIPISUOI PUD UOIIDYNSUOI

40 asoj2> ay1 buimojfof sapnuwio) bujsual ayl Aq panoiddp suoippuod a2uadij ayy Ajuo moys [jim asuadj fo suonipuos ayy Axyod [puif ayz uj

"MOJaq s UMOYS 34D 32u3} Jo suoipuoI ay3 ‘uonpnsuol fo sasodind ay3 104

AINIDIT 40 SNOILLIANOD

SIONIDIT HOLWVHIJO FHIH ALVAIYd

96T LOV (SNOISIAOYd SNOANYTTIDSIA) LNFJIWNYIAOD T¥IOO1

d Xipuaddy



Page 211

"92e|d Suyel s8ueyd yons Jo sAep
USASS UIYlMm sSalppe Jo 3ueys
Aue Jo (8214ns [Im [jews) Suilum
Ul 321440 BuIsusa] syl AjlloN e
:[leys Jo1edado auy 1eaud sy

"PBIII0U B¢ 03 SPAsU OYM

124e3[2 51 31 12Y3 0S 921340 SuIsuI| 03
paguey2 [IDUNOY 03 B2UBI3J3J PUE |[BWS
40 35N BAISURIX 241 109)481 01 3lepdn

uonesijdde 83u221] mdu e 3Jinbau
pinom sasiwaad Jolesado Jo a8ueyd

B SE ‘Ssalppe SSauisng e 01 90Ul49)9J
3A0W3J 01 papiomad si 1ng Alessaosu
Alqeuoseal paJ3pISUOI S UOJHPUOD SIY]

"92e|d Bunjel asueyd yans Jo sAep usAls
UIyHMm @2uad]| 9y} Jo pouad syl Sunnp (103
-esado ue se ssaulsng sy $1ONPUOD 3SIMIB
-410 Jo saletado ay Ydiym wouy ssalppe Aue
Suipnpui) ssauppe siy Jo adueya Aue o Sul
-1UM Ul [12Uno) Su3 AJnou j[eys Jolelado sy

eV

(eaJe Ja15€2UET 9Y] JO B8pa|Mmouy
|eaiydesodoy poos 108 Jaalp

aY1 sey ‘sjdwex3) Suioeuodqns
941 Ag psulwJspun Jou

2B spiepuels Suisuad|| s dalsesue]
2Jnsua 01 sdais ayel pue
salloyIne guisuadi] y1oq Ag aaejd
Ul splepueis 3y o1 piesal aaey
1SNW ‘Jlouno) AN Jaisesue] yum

‘aoe|d saye]

unoesuoa-qns j1 Ajdde Ajuo jjm siyl
Altea)p ‘Buioesiuoo-gns Jo aoioesd ayl
28BUBW pue |011UCD 01 SUCIHPUOD 33U
sonpotiul o1 pasodoud s1 1 (SIedA g U0}
penssi Ajjeiauss saouad|| OHd — 92u32y|

B JO 1ueJs ay) 01 payoelle aq Ajuo ued
SUQIHPUOD 3Byl 108) 2Y) 01 pJedal Suiney
pue } aanin) ayl ui s2ejd uowwod aicw
3aWo023q 9o10e.d Syl p|noys sUoIHpU0D
Jojesado Jooud aanyny o3 3dwane

ue ul JsAsMmoy ‘Ja3seauet Ut aa3oead
UOWIWIOD 10U S| sageLlied Asuoey

Um0} Jo 1no 3uisn 1o Suioeiuodqns

40 32110e4d Byl 18yl pasiudodai s1

ST0¢
1Y uonendataq ay3 uj spuswadinbal

"10uIsIp
51U JO 9pIiSIN0 Pasuadl] aJe 18y S3DIY3A Bsn
10 SIDALIP 01 X10M JDBIIUOD gNS 10U ISnw
siojetadQ "wayl Ag pasn aJe Jey) Sa2UID
-1] $,49AUP 311 D1BALI ||B JO AdoD e daay

d Xipuaddy




Page 212

:[leys Joiesado a1y ajeand sy

01 10adsal ul 519210 151sse siojetado
94nsus 0} Alessadau Ajgeuoseal
pawaap sl uollpuoa pasodoad siy|

v

"JJB3S JO Jaquiaw
ay1 pue acjeaado ayz Aq pausis usaqg sey
Yaiym Burulel] pauonuswialole syl Jo pio
234 pajuawniop e dasy| 1snuw Joletadp
ayL sdeah omy Alsa 1sed| 18 Joeausyl
pue juawAo|dwa 1o SUOITLIPUCT 353Y}

40 JUBWBIUB WO JY] JO YIUOW 3U0
UIYHM UDMEeLIBPUN 3Q 1SnW Suluie} siy |

"s3unjooq 1dadde 01 USym pue MOH "
$2I51j0d Bulpiensaes ¢
‘syue|dwo) 7
‘men 8ulsusor T
uo
(predun Jo pied) yeis o3 papiroad
st 8uluies; @yenbape jeyi ainsuy e

:|lteys 4ozelado say ateand sy

‘uolnesiuesio syl Ul 9jos ouU aaey

juasaud ase oym ajdoad wiepd ssiwedwod
341y 21eAld SWOS SUOISEII0 UO SB
1ueas|ad si predun /pied 0} aduaiayad ayL

ysey /Jom 9yl Supuswwod uosiad e Jo
W3l HOYS 2 UlyHm 1IN0 PaLLIeD S 1 3BY)
jueniodul i 31 9AIDBYR 2 01 Buluiesl Jo4

‘Bupjenapun a4e

Ay yiom sy} Jo syuswadinbal [eoizoesd
pue |e33] ay3 spueisiapun (predun Jo
pied aq Aew siy3} sssuisng 2yl jo Suruun
3y3 ul Jojelado aay a1ealdd ayi Bulisisse
auoAue 1Byl [BI11U3SSD S| )l Se AJessaoau
AlgeuOSED PRIIPISUOI S UOLMPUOD SIYL

v

'sse204d uoIIRDIHIIOU JO UL
-~RJISIUIWIPE JSYI0 10 XI84d uoliep
-l|EA ‘JUDLUSSISSE ‘D1RDIJIHSI JUBA
-3}24 & 2onpoud 1o ‘SBujuiesy puspe
01 Juawsauinbas Aue o3 paysene
994 10 @5.JeLd uoneIISIuIWpe 3jge
-uoseadt oyl Aed |jeys sasua1] 9y}
‘@0U3D1] 31 JO UONRINP 3Y1 104 e
fileys Jo1esado auty a1eald sy

"219 Uof1e|SIFs| Mau jo

1oedw ‘BuipJensgajes uo salepdn Bpnoul
Aew sa[dwexa paiinbas a1aym Sujurely
10 UOI1BDI}I1I3D [eusIlppe 34Inbald

01 |1puno) Al 9yl mo||e 03 Asessaoau
Alqeuoseal pawasp I UoILPUOD SiYy |

v

d Xipuaddy




Page 213

J0} 3|qIsuodsad aq ||1m 1By}

uostad a2yl jJo sweu ayl anig 3snwl
Jo1esado ay) sty Butop u| ‘syuowl
DAIIND3SUO0D 7 0 polad e uoy
ssauisng a2y Jo Suluuna Aep o3 Aep
BU3 wouy ussqe aq 01 Suiod sue
Aayy Ji (821405 {lim [leWS) Sullim
ul 221440 3uUISus2IT 9Y3 WiIou|

:lleys Jojesado sy a1eaud sy

: ‘a81eyo Aep 01

Aep uj uosiad ajgisuodsal ajendosdde ue
S1 319Y1 92UdSqe JI19Y3] U} jey3 juenodu
Sl 31 pue suolesado aiy ajeaud uo

a0e[d Ul 8.1e $HIBYD SNOJBWNN "SSIUISN]
s 401e1ado 341y 91eAld By JO [01IU0D Aep
03 Aep Ul S Oym mouy| 01 [12Une?) dY3 104
ojelidoadde s1 3 se Auesspoau Ajqeuoseal
pawaap sj uolpuod pasodoud siy

‘(paJidxa sey 9ousdy

ISOYM I2P[OY 3IUBIY 3DIYdA
/19A1ip e 01 sBupjooq Aue a1ea0e
10U [jeys Aayl 'a|) "31} U0 92U
B[31YSA JISALIP JUuB.IND 3Y) Jo Adod
B SUIABY INOYUM 3|21UDA 1O JDALIP
Aue 0} sBupjoog Aue a1ed0]|e 10N

:l1eys Jojesado a4y azeand sy

"J9ALIP B 01 310Mm Sullesol|e 34034

$3¥a3y2 a3eldosdde ay3 no palued

aaey siolesado jey) sunsua o3 |leJi Jipne
2U3 sapiaoud sty se AJessaoau Ajqeuosesu
pawaap si uonipuod pasodoad sty

LY

"Buipaed

-3J suoladsul 4o suoiesiisaul
Aue jo 10adsas Jojeiado ally a3ea
-ud Y3 JO sssuISN( aY] Ul 51931140
pasuoyine yum Ajny arersdo-o)
‘SS3UISN( 9] 01 PRIYBULOI AlJBW
-10} JO SSBUISN( BY) 0} PISAULIOD
S3]21YaA J0 SIDALLp 01 ulie(ad 1n0
paliied suole3IsaAul 10 saulinb
-Ua Aue Jo 10adssu Ul S183140 pasl
-loyine Aue yum Ajny a1esado-o0)

'SS3UISNQ UMO 1134} PUE SB[3IYaA
‘SIaALIp PIsuDdl| 4o 1dadsad ul salinbua

d Xipuaddy




Page 214

28eu31s ay1 yum juejdwos
susis J00p Auedwod |eacidde
40§ 321440 SuIsudIIT Y3 0} HWqng

JJ|BYys Jojetado a1y s1eald sy,

~aid aABY OYm SI3W0ISND 1SISSE 0] OS8R
pue aaiy ayealid pue adeptied Asuyoey
usamilag souelsesdde ul [RIIUSIBLIP
93 210wo4d 01 Joplo ul Alessadau
Ajgeuoseal patapIsuod sl UOIHPUOID SiY L

6V

"P91991j02 UuB3q
sey U ysiym 10} asodund syy a0} |
asn ||Im oym suosiad o) paloLisal

3¢ 1SNW UOIIBLIIOUI 3Y3 0]
SS90y "AJ94nI9s paiols SI ssauIsng
341 0O 251n00 3yl Sulnp paulelqo
uonewloul jeuossad Aue

1241 8JNSUS 1SNW 0s Sulop Ul pue
Adnjod uoioeyoud elep e siepdn
pue maiaal quaws|dw 1dopy

:[leys Joredado auiy ajeand sy,

"219 |BNpIAIpUI

ue uonisodoid o1 Aj@ieludoiddeuy

WBY) 3sn pue suaguinu suoyds|sl
|euostad weyqo Aew suosiad ‘Aepijoy
U0 suof sey pjoyasnoy e usaym mouy
Aew suosiad ueayiudis s| elep jeuossad
SJBWOISND JO asnge 104 [e1iualod ay

paJinbaJ s1 3eym Jo saiijeonoeld

ay1 Sutuie|dxa spiemol Aem awos

$908 s1yl paJinbau uonosloud jo [9A9] 9Y)
Buiure[dxa u11ey1 os|e 1ng WaWalinbau
jedaj e s1 11 se Asessadau Ajgqeuosesu
paJapIsSuod st uolipuod pasodoud sy

8V

‘Jeyeq
J19Y3 Uo ssauisng ay3 jo Suluung

"92UdII| J01eiadO a1y

9leALld e palueld usaq dABY 10U pjhOM
S1911BW JUBAS[DL J9YI0 1O SUOIIIIAUOD
0l sanp oym ng ssauisng ._Ou.m._mao

2y1 Jo a81eya Aep o1 Aep ur Ajlenie

S oym uossad Jsyioue o) JuoL) B SI SiYl
129149 Ul 1nq Jolesado aay a1eaud ayl
Se pawWeu aq 0} |ENPIAIPUL Ug 10} uMouy
Ul sey } SSIIOYINe |BIO| BWOS U}

d Xipuaddy




Page 215

PaAIRdal U OO 81Bp pUB SWI] e
:8upjooq
yoeo 4o 19adsau uf uonewIoUl BUIMO| 0}
3y} plodau [|eys Jolesado adiy aleald sy

‘ASojouyoal ul sa8ueyd S1o9|48s pue
a8en3ue; SuAjdwis Jo swusy ul parepdn
St 3Ng UOINPUOD 32UD1| SUIISIXS 2]
5103|431 Aj@8ue| uoipuod paesodoud syl

33 5100q 3|qeNns e uy 3dax 59 ||eys 9761

Y (SUOISIACI SNOBUESISIAL) JUDWUISACK)

18207 341 JO (Z)95 UO11I3S Jopun J0jetado
ay1 Aq 1dey 2q 01 paJinbad piodad a2y (T)

1d

s3unjoog jo SuipJodlay pue Supjel

‘Sjewiue s3uelsIsse Jo SulAiied ayy

pue ssaudteme Al|igesip Suipnjd

-ul 0T0Z 1V AMjenbz ayz Jepun

suswadinbal s Ypm Aldwod jum

Jojesado ayl moy SHeISP yoiym Al

-jod Ayjenba pajuswnoop sy 91ep
-dn pue maiAaa ‘Wswaldwi 1dopy e

l[jeys Jolesado auiy s3eand sy

“Hels sl

pue siojeiado ally a1eAld AQ pauapIsSuod
Ajradoud aJe sanss) Ayjenba ey

2UNSUS 0] WisiueydawW e s1 gusuleay Jes ul
papnjaul ag o) Adijod 1ey) Jo) pue Adljod
Ajjenba ue oy uswalnbal sy e
Anfenbs sy ul paynuspt SaNssi ssauppe
0% aanjiey Aue Jo 1adsads ul Jojessdo aay
212A14d 343 YHUM SUIS2UOD Aue ssauppe
UBD |12UN0D Yl Ya1ym Aq wisiueyosw

ay3 sepiaoad U se Alessassu Ajgeuoseal
paJepisuod S| uollpuod pasodoud sy

o1V

"SIQIUDA pasuUI||
uo paie[dsip aq ued |1PUNOY AlD
3yl Aq pasnoudde sugis Joop AjlUQ e

‘stuswaJinbaa Supjoog

-a.4d Jo 193dsau uj Aajjod Suisuao

IXE] §,|129Unod syl Aq paJinbau

se uoljewJoul Aejdsip pue

Jagwnu suoyds|a) 1oeIU0D pue

aweu a1y a1eald ay) jo sjielep
apinoJd [leys sudis Joopayl e

"Aajod

IXE1 SU3 Ut p3|le1ap suswadinbau

‘Buipes|siw Jou pue Jes|d

‘leuoissajoid aJe su3is 100p 1B} 9INSUS
01 si su3|s Joop Jojelsdo jo |eacsddesad
10} 1uswalinbali pasodosd ay]

"Yim paxooq aaey Aoyl Auedwod sy}
LI0J] S1 9j21ydA 3yl Jaylaym SulAjinuap)
Ul S3J21YaA aJty ajealid payjooq

d Xipuaddy




Page 216

"J01eiado 241y

91eAld Jayloue woly 1o 03 spusWw
-98uedie Suipenuoagns Aue 118
‘Bupjooq syl Supjewl

uostad ayy Aq paisanbaua j1 ‘Sul
-400¢ JO awi3 1e paionb asel Auy
OHd J2yloue wol}

10 01 Suloes1uoagns Aue Jo sjie1sq
28e83n|

/51B3S p|1y2/3[qIssanoe JIeya|aaym
‘8-9 s1uswaatnbsua 1epoads Auy
(s8uP|o0q 21U0IB|D SEpPNd

-X3) Supjooq Supjel uossad Jo (|
(Ioquinu 183)3/22ua0

-I1) 3PIY3A payoledsip Jo q|

(uS1s jjea/

Dweu '9°1} J9ALIp paydiedsip jo q|
uolleulisap oyads

dn yoid Jo uolreso

dnyod Jo awy,

"018 suluQ/auoyda|al

"3'0 apew sem 3upjoog ayl Moy
Suooq ayi Supew

uosiad Jo (ssappe Jo Jaqunu
auoyd) sjie1sp 10e1UOD pue BWeN

*(10B43U0D

-gns Aue Jo sjieiap Suipnppul) syeway (1)

‘Fupjooq ay) 104 pa1edo||e 92

-1y3an 2y3 Jo Jaquinu uoielisiSas sy (Y)

‘3unjooq ay1 01 pa1ed

-0jje SeM JIALIP B Uydiym Je Wil 3y} (8)

"uoljeuiisap ay (3)

dn-yoid jo 1ulod 3y {9)

"dn-321d jo swi ayL (p}

*(*218 jjeo jeuostad ‘suouds|sl

Ag "o71) epew sem Fupjooq 8yl moH (2)

"J8JI1Y 38U} 4O SsaJppe pue sweu ayl (q)

"3upjooq 313 Jo S1ep pue 2w Y] (e)
:wny Ag paidsaoe 1o paliaul 32
-1UY3A 8J41H 31BALId B O Sup{ooq AISA3 JO Sug)
-noiued Suimol|og ayl ‘Asuanol yoes jo jusw
-92UB3WIWOI 9] 940}8Q ‘UIBI3YY PBIIIUD
90 01 9SNEI JO JSIUD jjeYsS Joleiado 3yl pue
‘(sjqe1dasooe st uoisian JIUCIIDRR ue) ‘Ajann)
-N285SU0I PaJAGUNY 4B YoIym jo saded

d Xipuaddy




Page 217

B JO 9Sh 8y} pue 32U ADd
B SP|OY OYM JSALIP B JOISN3YL e

e se pa1si| Ajuondxs s1 1 se Alessadsu

I3UNSUB ||eys Joleado 341y dleAlld By | A|geuoseas paJIpPISUOD S| UOILPUOD SIY] va
Alus 15| 83U}
JO @1eP 3yl WOoY Syluow ZT JO wnwijujw
B JOJ paulelas pue ‘8[qi8ij|s1ul ‘1B 84y ()
"SPJ023J JO 5195
21eJedas uj 8q 10U ISNW NG PaLIUapI
Aloleledas aq ued s3upj00q JUNOIDE UPAID
puUe yse) "spJodeJ JO 195 suo se 1day (9 "SpA0o23at Bupjoog syl 01 Asuunol 3y}
JUIwWpuswe 1o ppe 01 Joleiado 2yl syse Ajjuanbasqns
uoneuslle aaladsolal jo sjqeded 10N (p pue aoe|d ui Bulaq Supjooq e oYUM
[eo18ojoucayd pue snonuiuod (9 Ja3uassed e dn payoid sey s[21ysa
JBULIO) 21U0I1I3[3 UB U) PRPEC|UMOP J4BALIp 841y 81eALId B Siaym spndul
Jo Jaded ojuo pajund aq 01 3|qy (g Aewl a|dwexs uy 'spioasa Bupjooq
1321440 pasuoyine ue puawe 01 Ajlunpoddo ou s1 aJay3
Aq uoladsul seIpaww 10} B[ge|eAY (B 1B} pUB SI3210 Wi p[ayyim jou ale
SpJooad eyl Juenodwi si 1) "JUSWSII0UD
'9Je SPJ0oJaJ Bupood 1Byl 3UNSUS e ut 3sisse 03 Alesseoau Ajqeuoseau
:lleys tojeiado suiy sieand vy paJapisuod s| uolipuos pasodoad siy] €4
"101e19d0 JusIBYIP B WO 94 ||IM pualle
HIM OUM ISALIP /3[21YBA BY] 1BY] Dieme
Sl Jawo1sno /uossad ay) 1eyl Supjooq e
"Bunjooq 10} Joieiado ue pa3deluod seyuosiad e Ji
343 SupELIBPUN B |jIM OYM J01E jey) yuenodwi palapisuod sty "s8upjooq
-19d0 paldeiIu0d gns ay} Jo alueu }EIU02GNS 0} Jolesado aury a3eald
BY1 apIacad [|Im 0s JI pue Joletado B SMO||e Yolym STQZ 10V UoKengasaq
Jay3oue 0} papenuooqns uiaq s ay1 Aq peanpoJiul suoisiaoad mau
Bupooq syl Jl JBWOISNI B BSIADY 341 Jo asnedaq Alesssau Ajqeuoseal
‘jjeys Jojetado aJary 21eald vy pa1apisuod s| uoilpuod pasodoud siyp ra:|

d Xipuaddy




Page 218

OHd 24y

91ep 3y} pue s3uPooq ||} 03 OHd 243
AQ pasn 15.1} Sem B[214aA a3 91ep 3y (2
a1ep Andxe Suipnjoul

32U33|| 3PIYIA JUd.IND Y] Jo Adod v (g
Jap|oy 2ou0||

B[OIYBA Y3 JO SS3UpPe Swoy pue swen (e

:apnpaul Isnw
$pJoo84 8Yy] (28eied Aswoey 1o
241y 91eAld SB PISUII] Jaylaym)
wiy Ag pa3eJado so1yaa AISAs Jo
splodal ‘oiep 01 dn ‘pajielop dody e
:[leys Jojedado sty s1eand syj

wamlmmn_o 10U 24E S2|2IY2A

painsuiun / pasuadljun 1eyl ainsus o}
|euolletsdo aq 01 wWaisAs e sauinbal puy
SOPIIYDA JO SULISY Ul 3d3 3¢ 01 SpJoJad
[enioe ayi saioads 1ng Uollpuod Builsixe
?Y3 UO sp|ing M se AJessaoau Ajqeuoseal

pa4episuod sl uoilpucd pasodoad ayj

‘pasn usis ||ed ojped Aue

UM 13U1280] ‘SIDIYDA 43NS JO SISALP pue

si3quinu uoie3sigad ‘SIauUMo Byl JO S|Ie1ap
apnpul {|eys saejnajied asay] "uiy Aq paje
-19d0 S3DIYSA SUIH D1eALld [{e Jo sJgnailied
ay1 Jo spJooaa dody os|e |jeys Jolesado ay

|e)

( uonewuoyu| Supjoog ueyl sBY1Q) paiinbay spiodsy

IBALID
a8eLued Aswoey fauly ajeald
PasSuUIDI| J91SEOUERT B 0S| S| ISALIP
ASd 3Y3 }i padinbau s uoijeayou
4ans oN 2842 S9Q pasueyus ue
03 128[gns usag Jou SeY JSALP 3yl
1B} pasiApe a4 pjnoys Supjooq
3y3 Supjewr uosiad a3 Suooqg

B 10} POSI[IIN 97 01 SI ASd B 249U @
gupjooq
ay1 Supjew uostad syl J0 JUSSUOD
pawioul 8yl noyum pajywsed
9 10U [{Im FuD00q SJOIYDA 3JIY
a1eaud e 9yeLIBpUN O] SNOIUIW
B SE yIns 3IYaA 821A18s o1pgnd

g1°g esed spiepuels
Aioiniels | 1q 9yl Aq Juswaiinbau

d Xijpusddy




Page 219

paJid
-X9 SEY 32UaDi| 5 AP Y] 2JUO0
3JOoM Aue pa1edoj|e S| JSALIP 1YL
24nsus o1 908[d Ul WIISAS B BARY e

"90UBI]| 1841 Jo 91ep Andxs ayl Suipn)d
-Ul 82u321| JaAlIp 98eluIed Aswory 40 3y
91BALID JUB4INI S JBALIP BY] Jo AdoD v {2
"(ejqesidde ataym) OHd a3yl wouy
sSupj00q Bup|el pasead JIALIP Byl 31ep
Y31 pue OHd Y1 woJy ssupjooq Sul||iy
-n} PRIUSWILIOD JBALP 3Y3 S81ep 3yl (g
IBALIP BU3 JO SS2UPPE aWoy pue awep (e
@pnjoul 1snw
Splodad @yl (a8eued Aswjoey Jo
8.1y a1eAldd se pasuad|| Jayisym)
wiy Aq paiesado Jaaup Alana Jo
SpJooal ‘aiep o1dn ‘polelsp dasy e
!|[eys Joietado a1y s1enand sy

SIBALIP

10 suua] Uy 1day 9q 01 SpJoIRL |BENJOR
3yl saijnads 1ng T 18 uoiHpuod Suisixe
3y} uo sp[Iing | se Alessadau Ajgeuosesl
paJapisuod si uollpuod pasodoud 8y

[4]

paJidxa

Sey souelnsul 10 33U Y3

usym pajesado si I21YsA ou 1eyl

2Insua o) a0ejd U] WIISAS B 9ARY e

9[21Y3A puUE I9AP 3Y] 0]
pa31edo|e usis [|ea/oipes anbiun o sy v (@
Jaquinu uolieasigal 9dIysA 3yl (p
(e1geandde asaym)
ssupooq [1j|ny 01 3[21YdA 3Y3 Suisn pasead

d Xipuaddy




Page 220

Adoa e pue |iewa Aq 921440 3uisuad
-1 9Y1 0] psyiIouU 3q PINOYSs S1Y1
‘squte|dwiod Jo wiened e uo Jap|oy
2IUSII| © JO 1oNpuod sy Suipiedal
SU49oU0d sey Jolesado Yl J43YM €
‘uanel
uolloe Aue pue uoileSisaaul 3yl
o sSuipuy sy1 Suruiano ueuieid
-woe2 9y1 03 ssuodsal e apiaoad
pue sjuie|dwod syl a3ednssaul ‘7
Juie|dwod syy jo 3lgns
2y} se paijiuapl (s)4apjoy adusd
-1] @Y1 JO s|ie1ap Suipnpul usyel
uoloe /juejduwos aul Jo awod
-1n0 3y3 jO sjie1ap pue (sjuie|duiod
3[21YsA/IsAlIp Aue Sulpn|aul) 921A
-195 sl 1suiede paaledad ulejdwod
AJaaa Ajjleusip Jo Sullum ul pioddy T
J[jeys 103eaado any s1eaud ay |

‘sjuie|duwod jo

Zulpuey 8yl 01 UoIIe[SJ Ul SIUSW

-a4inbauJ o14109ds ase 3uimo||os

243 ‘sputejdwod 01 Bulpuodsal a0y

9WEBIIDUIIL BY] PUE SIDALIP 4O NP

-u02 sapnpul yarym Axjod suied

-0 pUB 93IAIDS JDLUO)SND B 33ep
-dn pue maiasa Jusweldwi 1dopy e

‘jleys Jolesado sy 91eAld sy

"sjule|dwoo
10 sulanzed Aue Allluspl Ued 189140
1yl 0s Jueliodwi 1 8o sjulejdwod sy

‘paJinbau splepuels syl 195w 01 (1B} ABY)
11 @pet] 3yl woyy siolesado /s3jaIysa
/SJBALIp 35041 SA0WRJ PUE Spiepuels

aAcJdwy 01 18Y1a801 3I0M PINoyYs 8210
guIsua2]| sy} pue Jolesado ayy -, JoALp
peq E |22 3M Jeym s 3y Yo, asuodsal
91 DAI8294 03 AJUO SIDALIP |ENPIAIPUI

INogeE siolelado pal1aelucd dARY SI9UL0

pasiioyine ‘@210 SuIsusdl| 3yl UIYUMA

"SDHBISIW ANO WOLY LIRS "7 Bped)
241y 21ea1d syl ulyum juswaacidull
snonuiruod Joj Ajunjioddo ayy sepiaoad
pUE 321AISS J3WOISND JO pJepuels poos
e sejowo.d 11 se Aiessassu Ajgeuoseal
pa4apisuod S| uolpuod pasodoad sy

€

d Xipuaddy




Page 221

J0 2w ay11e apinoad Juswalinb
-9 BAOQE 2Y] YUM 3DUBPIOIIE U
'$82U3440 Sullol0W SNOLIS ‘SEnup
10 Anjenbs ‘@ousjolA Jo s1E34Y3

10 22UBJOIA ‘Aduddapul ‘Aysauoy
~SIp ‘@iNnleu [enxss e JO Siallew
03 S91BJ24 Y2iym Joresado ayy Joj
s3uPooq 1no Asied 0} passisigal
SI 1eY1 42A1ip Aue SulA|OAU SUOIL
-0IAUOD JO UOIEIHIOU 10 saunbua
321j0d ‘sjule]dwod Aue jo (sanoy
bZ UIyHm 3seD AUE UJ 10) jIeWe

Ag Aj@1RIpR WL [1DUNOY) By} Ajll0U

‘lieys Jolesado aupy aeand sy

-9$ 10} jelluslod ayi aAeY Jouued s19liew
Jayro Aue jeyi Ajdwr 31 S90p JoU SaDURD
-I[ [BNPIAIPUL 1suleSe uaye] 3q Ajjedliew

-O1Ne [|ImM uol}de 1Byl UeaLl J0U S0P SIU].

‘Aejap

Aue 1noyum 1punod syl Aq pajesisaaul
9Q P|NOYs 210484331 pue sis1lew Aloes
2llqnd snoluas aq o1 {eluaiod ayi aney
ifo, sacuaffo bBuriojow snorias ‘sbnip
40 Ayjpnba ‘aou3|oin fo s103.4Yy3 10 22U
-0 ‘“Aouadapuy “A1saucy-sip ‘a1nou [pn
-Xas n fo si3)10W,, se Atess@dau Ajgeuos
-B9J 5B U33$ $1 uoilpuod pasodoud sy,

¥

v JO 109dsa4 ul palsy AJogaled
Y1 UIynm |jey eyl sulejdwod jo
309ds31 Ul 0 UoI1IPUOd 32UBIN Ag
padinbal se uoioe |euoiyppe ayeL
‘uollesnsaaul ayz

40 dWo03IN0 s3uipulj ay3 pue jue|d
-LWOD Y3 JO  {321YNS |1m [1BWI)
Suum u] 321140 SuIsuadfT 3yl
Ayizou (sAep 1T sy1 Suimorjoy) sAep
£ IXau 3y} uiyum |jeys Jojeiado
2yl -1diz2a.4 Jaye sAep ¢T poAjOsal
U234 jou sey juie|dwod e 313y
"plodad syuie)d

-Wwod 3yl ul 1day jlews ays Jo

d Xipuaddy




Page 222

‘pouad Suinod

-91 93 4O PUS 3y J91E YIUOoW SU0
uey} 421ej ou papinoad aq pinoys
Yodad 8yl ‘ujel uoliae pue
jute|dwod 3y} jo 10algns ayl se
PRLJIIUBPI SIBP|OY DOUDDY| ‘PRAISD
-aJ sjuie|dwoa [je uljeiap €7 uoll
-Ipuod 93u321] Jod se padinbai oy
1uiejdwos ayl jo Adoo e 4o Loy
3Y1 Ul 3q |[BYS SIYL 9240 Suisuad
-I1 241 03 SY1UOW XIS AISAS PI0dad
sjuiejdwoes ayl 4o Adoo e apiaoag

‘[leys Joiesado aay 1eaud sy

‘sjulejdwos jo seade

UoWIWO2 ssauppe 01 pagdueyd a¢ 01 pasu
sapljod /spiepuels 3uisuadil| 1BYIBYM 10
(s101e49do 841y S1BALId 1UBIBHIP SS0U0B
3q p|no2 s1y3) syule|dwod jo Jaquinu e
}0 122lqns 9yl aJe OYM SIBALIP [BNPIAIPUI
JO SULI3] Ul 3q 1Byl Jayiaym {Iouno) ayl
Aqg paJinbau s1 uoijuaAsaLUl Aue Jayisym
pue siojelado pasuadl| 01 speW 3uidq
siulejdw oo Jo sadAl 8yl malalal o} [I2UN0d
ay3 mojje 01 Aiessadau Ajgeuoseal
Pa4apisu02 sl uoipuod pasododd ayL

S

JJBALIP Y3 YU JusWw
-98ueuie jenidei1u0d Aue saseso
101eJado 3yl JYIBYM JO SS9|pLes
-394 92e]d 33e] ISNw |12Uno) 8yl 01
uoiealjizou siy] ‘sjielep s queule|d
-wo3 ay3 Sutpnjoul Axinbus Sauteld
-0 3Y1 10 84nleu 3yl pue paAnjoA
-Ul JaALIp 93 Jo AUl 9yl |12
-Uno2 aYi 01 UOI1EDHIIOU Yons Aue

*9013j0 8ul

-5U82| aYy1 Ajl0U 01 10U UBSOYD pey Ing
suopeda|ie ay1 Jo aseme Apeauje slom
sioletado aJiy o1eAld 18] paJidsued)
Jaje| ) "paledisul useg sey uoioe ale
-{pawwl Yoiym o ynsad ayl ‘Auied payi e
AQ sjuspioul pa83|je 40 paljilou uaaqg sey
99140 BuISudI| 3] 249Ym o sajdwexs
pey aAeY am syluow gT snoinatd syz uj

‘Aejap Aue noyim

UOIIUDILE §,|IDUNOI 3] 01 SI81BW 3say]
Sulig 01 WisjueyodW e s1 uollpuod pasod
-0ad 23 1ng ‘suiaou0d Alejes ofgnd snoul

d Xipuaddy




Page 223

‘Aijus
15e| JO 31ep 3yl SuUIMO||0} SYuoW
ZT Ueyl ssaj Jou jo pourad e
J0} 1s3nbau uo su92140 pasiLioylne
01 3[gefleAr Aj91RIpaLLILI

WY} 9ewW pue spiodali |e deay e

pue suope3iISAAUL SNOLISS pue d1el|De;
01 s1 Aserpawiun ay3 Joy uoseal 3y
*158nbal uo J3JIJo pasuoyine

01 3|qejieAe AjaleIpaww] apew

9¢ SPJ023J Byl 1eY) JBWaainbal mau

e asodw pue polad awi) syl pusixs

"AI3uB 3se| Y3 JO 21ep 3yt BUIMO||0) SYIUOW
XIS UBY] $53] 10U JO polad e 10} parlasald

:l[eys so1esado aury a1eand vy 0] Alessadau A|qeuoseal patspisuod si | 24 |[eys Jolelado ayi Aq 1doey spiodad ||y fio)

“103esado auy a1eartd ay3 ysSnoayy

‘sesodind a|geldeyd o) pajeuop Pa1BUIPIO-0D 3q pInoys speJ) aJly aieand

a1endoadde §1 4o ‘Jauuew sundss 3yl yum pazeposse Auadosd 150] yans sy

B U] JO pasodsip aq pinoys 3 awr ‘Asuinol jejnoijued 1ey3 104 9RIYRA puE

Yarlym aaye ‘syiuowt g Jo pouad JIALIP 33 AJlIUBpP] 01 3{qR 3q ||IM SPJOdaL

e 104 Ajodoud 150] 24035 Ajainoes e gupjooq ayl pue Jojeiado syl 100D

"Anua jo ued Auadouid 1s0| sey oym saSuassed ayi

91EP 3Y1 WO SYuow 7T o poul 210jaJay} pue pajoog-a.d aie shauinol

-ad e 10} 1d9y 89 15NW pIodaL 3] [V "HUBISHIP SI S3|21YaA 241y 31eALd Ul

OJUO0 palalus ucliewJojul AUe pue 13| Alladoud jo 10adsas ur uonenys sy
130140 paslioyiny ue Ag uoildads

-ul 10} ?|qe|leAR 29 SABM|E JSNLW "pasedy

80| 8y "s|le1ap 1923U02 JUBWIE[D 9q 1,UBD JSUMO 3] 3J2YM [IDUNOD By}

pawies sem 11 JI pue ‘Apsdoud 01 pauiniad Buleq Auadoud ay) sapnpul

241 JO UOIIdLIDSIP B pUBR PUNO} S1Y1 ‘sadelltes Aswydey ul yo| Aadoud

SEM } 2J9Um JO s[1el1ap ‘yojeiado 150] J0 10adsau ur pamo||o) aq 01 ssas04d

341 01 papuey si wall ay3 91ep ay} Y3 |lejep sme|dAq adeidied AsuyoeH syl
BPN[OUI ISNW paodad 3y ‘Sia8uas

-sed J0 s1aAlp Aq wiy 03 papuey "S9|21Yan 341y 1eand

s11ey1 Ajadoud 150 Jo (jeuSIp posuadl| ul Yaj Appuanbauy si Ayiadoud

10 [BhuewW) pJodal ualllim e daay e 150| se Alessadau Ajqeuoseal pawaap

:[leys Jojesado aaiy aieald ay) S1 UoHpuUo2 uisuad)| pasodoud sy 99

d Xipuaddy




Page 224

10U JO Jayiaym) Jsnew Aue
J0J 1s244e 40 93ieyd ‘uoilnes ‘JIA0
8uipulg  Ayeuad paxiy ‘UOIIBIAUOD
Aue Jo sjiezep |jn} Suipircad
{(214NS |1 [1eWS} SuIlMm Ug
19UNO3 2Y3 AJIOU SINOY 8F UIYHAL
J[|BYsS Joresado adly a1eaud v

‘siopjoy
D3UBDI| I|IIUDA pUB SISALIP PASUBI|
Jo 1oadsad ul pasn ulpiom pasodoad
9U3 YUM Ju@1sIsu02 s pue aoe|d

Ul MOU "213 SUOILOUES JO 98Ukl JopIm
a3 s199[424 1 se Alessaoau Ajqeuoses.
paJapIsu0d sl uoliipuos pasodoad sy}

"92Ud| BY} JO
poidad ayy ulunp (s1suped Jo si1010alIp 9Y)
40 Aue uo ‘diysiaunied jo Auedwod e s1 1o}
-eJado ayi i 10} Wiy uo pasoduwi UOIDIAUOD
Aue Jo s{lelap SupMm Ul [IDUNOY) BYL 01 850|D
-sIp SABP UBA3S UIYMIM ||BYs Jolesado ay |

¢d

20U
-1 SIaALp 3ty @jeAld /eFeluied Asu
-Y2BY Jaisedue e sp|oy Ajlusaana oym
Jolesado Aue jo 109dsad Ul padiojus
3¢ 10U [|Im Juswalinbal saoqe sy

‘anoqe ydeisesed
9Y1 Ul PaQLIISSP SJNSO|DSIP 21SE] 3Y)
10 sjuawadinbal 3yl yum Ajldwod o}

paJdinbai aq 1M Jaulied/10108.41p yoes
diyssouried Jo Auedwod e S| 101eIS
-do aJ1y a1eaud / juedidde syl ausym

‘siseq

[ENUUER UB UO 321140 SuISUuadIT ay3

0] 2JNSOJISIP 2Iseq S B 9PINOI]
‘jeys Jojesado aJiy areand v

‘|9AS| paouByUD UE 1B UdYEel
-13pun aJe 358y} ‘@o1a18s 33epdn s9q

Y1 BIA SYI3YD SEQ Ajyluow g 01 103[gns
aJe SIaAUp 3y ajeald /adelied Asuyoey
J215eJUeT |[B 18yl Sl S1Yl 10} uoseal 3y
'8

eied spiepuels Aloiniels |1 Aq padinbad
Ajjeo1j10ads s1 11 se Aessaoau Ajqeuoseal
paJapIsuod S| uolipuod pasodousd syl

1d

SUOIDIAUOD

‘apew 3ujaq
spJodeJ 03 sjuswpuawe Aue uanaid 0}

d Xipuaddy




Page 225

sjlelap 1eyy aoeld ul Adjjod
Sulpien3dajes pajuawnIop e aney
duipiendajes
10 1adsal ul papiaoad Sululely e
‘l[eys soiesado aay areand syl

pasodoudd ay] ‘sis13ew Suipiengajes
0} puodsal /ssauppe [[Im Jojesado ayy
MOY 01 Se 101e13do 3yl J0J }IOMBLERIL
e saplroad y se Atessaoau Ajgeuosead
paJaplsuos si uoilpuod pasodouad siyy

(£}

"2IUBIY| SIY2 4O JUeJS 1O a1ep

941 JO YIUOW T UM JUIAD AUR U]

pue Aejap Inoyym aunso|asip sgq

J1seq e yum sojesado syl spiacid

03 ssaulsng ayz 1of {piedun Jo pied

) s49sn au1y a1eand yim 10euo0

guiaey Jo appryan Sulyoiedsip 1o

pue sgunjooq ul paAjoAUl /SuijJom
sjenpiaipul Sunsixa aainbal e

sasiwald Jojeisdo

3yl ul Juswaoeld /ruswAo|dws

JO 91ep LIRS BY) JO YIuow

T UIYlm palep 21nsojasip S9Q

21seq e yum Jolesado syl apiaoad

03 ssauisng ayi Joyj (predun /pied

) s49sn any s1eAud yim 10e1u00

Buiney Jo s321yan Suiyoiedsip

JO pue sFurjooq ui paAjoAUL
J8upiom sjenpiAlpul [je adihbal e

‘leys Jolesado suaiy a1eaLd ay|

‘Bl {0

o8essed ay1 01 anp pausyeEaM S3W0I3Y
24NSO[ISIp §9Q & JO Allpijen ay1 Se S1a2110
Ag uonepuswwodal e s polad Yuow

-1 24l '6'8 — £°g eied spiepue)ls Aloiniels
140 3Y1 w1 W1[dx3 1 1 Se AJessaoau
Alqeuosesau se papJae8al s1 UOI}PUOD SIY L

SuipaensSajes

"B2U| 3Y1 Jo porad ayz Bupnp
12y /uy uo pasodw (pagieys

d Xipuaddy




Page 226

uawdinbk3 pue sasiwaid 4
SpiLqor e
jusw "pasinbad Ji sayioyine aredosdde
-Aojdwa jo saiep ysiuly pue els e 01 papiroid aq ues uokewIoUl By}
(enoge T3 uon 1BY3 OS S]1BEI3P 12BIU0D [|N} SARY [IDUNOD
~IPU02 4O UOIIULBP 3UL UIYUM 3ul ay1 eudoidde aiaym ey Juepiodul
-|1e4 suosiad 1o 103dsas ur) Jsgquuinu $13| *239 SWO0J SUnIEM/SpI0Ial SUPj0og
91BOHILS) pue 3)ep anssi sgQ e RIA JOYUD S|Ie1Dp 1Y) Jo/sio8usssed
(llew3 pue suoyd) sjteraq 10e3U0) e 9|qeJau|nA 0} Ssa008 dARY Aew
yuig josleqg e woym Jo [je ‘suadaayyooq ‘solueydaw
SS8IppyY e B2IYIA ‘siojesado Nsap ‘@pnjoul suosiad
SWEN |[N4 e Yyons jo sajduwexs siap|oy s2uadlj se
ISMO[j0] SB SS3UISN( $I09YD JO [9AS] SWes 33 01 193{gns uaaq
8y1 4o} {piedun 1o pied) Aypedes 10U 2ABY OYM SSUISNG DY Ul PIAJOAUE
AUB Ul PaAjoAUl /Bupliom sjenpia /8upjiom sjenpiaipul aaey Aews Jojesado
-ipul ||e jo spJooai @jep o1 dn doay e 241y 91eALl4d DY} Se Alessaoau Ajqeuoseal
:[jeys Jojesado auy a1eAld ay) pawasp si uopuod pesodosd sty €3

"Alessaosu se palepdn pue pamaladd
‘paiuaws|dwi aq |jeys Adjod ay)

Asijod SuimojgeIsiym e
S9Q e Ul pajielep siallew
JO UOI1BIBPISUOD PUE SISPUIPO-X3
aJe oym suaaunjoa /uiAojdwa uo
Adnjod Aljige1ins pue JuswlinIds) e
Suipien8sjes Bulpiedal

WIa2uUod JO SI911eLU Hodat o) MOY e

‘sapoljod Suipien8ajes

/8uipien8ajes uo Suluiesy Alojepuewl

03 9IUBI3J34 SIew pue Juruie) 4jels

40 Ja1ew syl Ylim S[e3p SY 18 UoIHpuod

d Xjpuaddy




Page 227

519410 0] @duesIinuy g 33eaJd jou
Op $3[31YDA pasuUIl| WoJ] pue a1y
-§0 5 J0jesad0 Y3 UIYUM SIIUAL
-0B 1B} =insus 01 ua)el ag 01 ade
suonnesaid s|geuoseal |jB 8Jnsu3 e
:lieys Joreuaado ady ajeand sy

"012 A|pnoj SulAeld soiped

‘Bulas11] ‘S1aWIOISND 10BI3IE O] UJOY
IPPIyaA 2y Buisn ‘sasiuaad rolelado
ue apisino dunesaisuod /$3d1Yysa

241y a1eaud yum paleposse sjuiejdwos
1uanaJ4d 0] Asessaosu Ajgeuosead
paJaplisuod st uonipuod pasodoad ayl

¢d

‘Ajrdwoud paaedau

3JE 5129)3p AUB 1BY] PUB UOI}PUOD

punos e uj paulejulBw sJe papia

-0.4d uawdinbs otped pue saiy
-|loey suoydaia) Aue Jeyy aJ ainsuz ¢

"sal1i|1oe4 Sunieas ajenb
-ape sey Joresado ayy Aq papia
-0ad eaue Suiyem Aue 1eyiainsuy 7

"Sulyem 1o 3ur
=004 jo @sodind ayy 10} Jayiaym
‘ss@208 9ARY 21|gqnd 3yl YoIym 03
pue sapiaoad Jolesado syl yaym
‘sasiwaid Aue 1)) pue paje[ijuaa
‘poleay Ajeienbape ‘uesp dosy T
:aenanied ul jjeys asodand siyt 10y}
pue sawii s|geuoseal ||e e Jgnd
93 4O siagLUBW 0] IIAI3S I|qel|
-394 pue juad1yie 1dwoud e apirosd e

:lieys Jojelado auy sjeald sy

‘Pouiglad 2g UOpUoD Suilsixe 2yl ieyl

(TV 1e uonesisiuiwpe Sulsuady| lap
-un paisl| s1 uoiPUOd UIISIXd SIYL JO v 14Eed)

‘Apdwoud

paJiedaa aue 530949p Aue jeyl

pug UOI1IPu0d punos e ul paujejuiew

a.e papirotd wuswdinbs oipes pue
saijfioe) suoyda|al Aue jeyr aunsuy  (p}

"san|oes Suness
a1enbape sey tojesado sy Aq papia
-0id eaJe Suiyem Aue jeyl aunsuz (o)

‘Buniem Jo Supjooq jo asodind sy)
J0} Iaylaym ‘ssadoe aney a1qnd ay)
Yoiym 01 pue sapinoid Jozesado ayy
yoiym ‘sasiwald Aue 1| pue palei
-usna ‘patesy Ajsienbape ‘uesp desy {q)
-.enoined ug [jeys asodind
SIY1 10} pue sl @[geuosead |je e aqnd
IU1 JO SI9qUUBLU 03 DDIAIIS J|RI{SJ PUE LU
-1}42 ‘1dwoid e apinoad jeys sojesado sy

83IAJBS JO piepuels T

LE|

d Xipuaddy




Page 228

paJdinbay 498uo7 oN suonipuo) Suisixg

'93ISOIM JUBA
-394 BY1 UC MIIA 01 3jgejieae aq
OS[E 1SNW SA0gE pP3IS]| S9110U By}
‘s8upjooq 124110 01 ASOjOUYIA]
paseq uonediddy sasn Jjo/pue
2usgam e sey Jojesadp oyl e
"pESJ AjiSeS 9q Ued | 2Jaym ‘pue ssa0
-oe aaey Jiqnd syl aJaym ‘uciyisod Jusu
-iwoud e ul paiejdsip aq ||eys aaoqge ayL

"91B3IHMDD Adijod

saueansut Anjiger algnd ayy jo Adoo vy (p
uoljewopul JoBuassed Jo adsal ul oo
Suisuaai] ayr Aq paplaoad uonewaoyuf (2
"$3Jey} 1o 3|NPayds v (q

'20uU22(7 JoledadQ wenns syt jo Adoo y (e

SO e Je sasiwaad

119y} 18 Suimoljo4 syl Aejdsip ||eys Asyl
‘ss300e 3ARY 31|gnd 3yl yaym o1 sasiuaid
sey Jojetado aaiy 1eAld ayl 219y

'$J2W01sND pue djgnd ayl 0} Juenaial

S| paAe|dsip 8q 01 UOIIBWIOLUI SYL
'$$3208 aAeY 21jand 3y1 2J3ym Seaue ul
AJESS303U A|BUOSEDI PRIIPISUOCT SI SIYL

td

"1senbaJ uo 1921}j0 pasuoyIne ue
03 SWes ay3 aonpo.d pue ssadoe
aaey 21jqnd ay3 yaiym o3 sasjwiaad
J8y/s1y Jo 10adsaa uj Adjjod aoue
-ansut Augigen| ongnd e sawiy (e 3e
90404 U] UlBJUIBLU PUB UIBIGO ||BUS e
‘[feys J03edado a4y aieald @yl

“$S9208
aAey d1|gnd syl UdIym 01 SUOIIED0| 10}
Alessazau Ajqruoseal paJapIsuod si Ssiyl

€d

d Xipuaddy




Page 229

d Xipuaddy



Table 1

Page 230

Appendix Q

Details of Hackney Carriage and Private Hire related Offences

and Maximum Penalties

Details the current fines (as at February 2021} for each level of the standard fine scale.

Level Maximum Fine
1 £200
2 £500
3 £1,000
4 £2,500
5 Unlimited

Table 2

Offences under the Town Police Clauses Act 1847 — these offences relate to hackney
carriage drivers/ vehicles, but do not include private hire.

Section Offence Maximum Penalty
of the
TPCA
1847
40 Giving false information on application for HC | Level 1
proprietor’s licence
44 Failure to notify change of address of HC Level 1
proprietor
45 Plying for hire without a HC proprietor licence | Level 4
47 Driving a HC without a HC driver’s licence Level 3
47 Lending or parting with a HC driver’s licence Level 3
47 HC proprietor employing unlicensed driver Level 3
48 Failure by HC proprietor to hold HC driver’s Level 1
licence
48 Failure by HC proprietor to produce HC driver’s | Level 1
licence
52 Failure to display HC plate Level 1
53 Refusal to take a fare Level 2
54 Charging more than the agreed fare Level 1
55 Obtaining more than the legal fare Level 3 and 1 month
imprisonment until the
excess is refunded
56 Travelling less than the lawful distance for an Level 1
agreed fare
57 Failing to wait after a deposit to wait has been | Level 1
paid
58 Charging more than the legal fare Level 3




Page 231

Appendix Q
59 Carrying other person than the hirer without Levell
consent
60 Driving a HC without proprietor’s consent Level 1
60 Person allowing another to drive a HC without | Level 1
proprietor’s consent
61 Level
62 Driver leaving hackney carriage unattended Level 1
64 HC driver obstructing other HCs Level 1
Table 3
Offences under Local Government {Miscellaneous Provisions} Act 1976 — hackney carriage
provisions
Section | Offence Maximum Penalty
49 Failure to notify transfer of HC proprietor’s Level 3 (by virtue of s 76)
licence
50(1) Failure to present HC for inspection as required | Level 3 {by virtue of s76)
50(2) Failure to inform LA where HC is stored if Level 3 {by virtue of s76)
requested
50(3) Failure of proprietor to report an accident to LA | Level 3 (by virtue of s76)
50(4) Faifure to produce HC proprietor’s licence and Level 3{by virtue of s76)
insurance certificate
53(3) Failure to produce HC driver’s licence Level 3 (by virtue of s76)
53A(9) Failure to return driver’s licence and badge Level 3 and daily penalty of
after ceasing to be in force for immigration £10 for each day of non-
reasons compliance after conviction
57 Making false statement of withholding Level 3 {by virtue of s 76)
information to obtain HC driver’s licence
58(2) Failure to return plate after notice given after Level 3 plus daily fine £10
expiry, revocation or suspension of HC
proprietor’s licence.
61(2) Failure to surrender driver’s licence after Level 3 (by virtue of s 76)
suspension, revocation or refusal to renew.
64 Permitting any vehicle other than HC to wait on | Level 3 (by virtue of s 76)
a HC stand
66 Charging more than the meter fare when HC Level 3 {by virtue of s 76)
used as a private hire vehicle
67 Charging more than the metre fare when HC Level 3 {(by virtue of s 76)
used as a private hire vehicle
71 Interfering with a taximeter Level 3 (by virtue of s 76)
73 {1)(a} | Obstruction of authorised officer or constable Level 3 (by virtue of s76)
73{(1}(b) | Failure to comply with requirement of Level 3 (by virtue of s 76)
authorised officer or constable
73(1)(c) | Failure to give information or assistance to Level 3 (by virtue of a s 76)
authorised officer or constable




Table 4

Page 232

Appendix Q

Offences Local Government {Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976- private hire provisions

Section Offence Maximum Penalty

46(1)(a) | Using an unlicensed PH vehicle Level 3 {by virtue of s 76)

46(1)(b} | Driving a PH vehicle without a PH driver’s Level 3 (by virtue of a 76)
licence

46(1){c} | Proprietor of a PH vehicle using an unlicensed Level 3 {by virtue of s 76)
driver

46(1)(d) | Operating a PH vehicle without a PH operator’s | Level 3 {by virtue of s 76}
licence

46(1)(e) | Operating a vehicle as a PH vehicle when the Level 3 (by virtue of s 76)
vehicle is not licensed as a PH vehicle

46{1}(e} | Operating a PH vehicle when the driver is not Level 3 (by virtue of s 76)
licensed as a PH driver

48(6) Failure to display PH vehicle plate Level 3 (by virtue of s 76)

49 Failure to notify transfer of PH vehicle licence Level 3 {by virtue of s 76)

50(1) Failure to present PH vehicle for inspection as | Level 3 {by virtue of s 76)
required : ,

50(2) Failure to inform LA where PH vehicle is stored | Level 3 (by virtue of s 76)
if requested

50(3) Failure to report an accident to LA Level 3 (by virtue of s 76)

50(4) Failure to produce PH vehicle licence and Level 3 (by virtue of s 76)
insurance certificate

53(3} Failure to produce PH driver’s licence Level 3 {by virtue of s 76)

53{A)9 Failure to return driver’s licence and badge Level 3 and daily penalty of
after ceasing to be in force for immigration £10 for each day of non-
reasons compliance after conviction

54(2) Failure to wear PH driver’s badge Level 3 {by virtue of s 76)

55ZA{8} | Failure to return operators licence after ceasing | Level 3 and daily penalty of
to be in force for immigration reasons £10 for each day of non-

compliance after conviction

55(B) Subcontracting PH Operator knowing that the | Level 3 (by virtue of s 76)
subcontractor will use and unlicensed vehicle
or driver

56(2) Failure by PH operator to keep records of Level 3 {by virtue of s 76}
bookings

56(3) Failure by PH operator to keep records of PH Level 3 {by virtue of 5 76)
vehicles operated by him

56{4} Failure to produce PH Operator’s licence on Level 3 (by virtue of s 76)
request

57 Making false statement or withholding Level 3 (by virtue of s 76)
information to obtain PH driver’s or operator’s
licence

58(2) Failure to return plate after notice given after Level 3 plus daily fine of £10

expiry, revocation or suspension of PH vehicle
licence




Page 233

Appendix Q
61(2) Failure to surrender driver’s licence after Level 3 (by virtue of 5 76)
suspension, revocation or refusal to renew
‘Section Offence Maximum Penalty
67 Charging more than the meter fare when HC Level 3 (by virtue of s 76)
used as private hire vehicle
69 Unnecessarily prolonging a journey Level 3 (by virtue of s 76)
71 Interfering with a taximeter Level 3 {by virtue of s 76)
73{1}{(a} | Obstruction of authorised officer or constable Level 3 (by virtue of s 76)
73(1){b} | Failure to comply with requirement of Level 3 {by virtue of s 76)
authorised officer or constable
73(1)(c) | Failure to give information or assistance to Level 3 (by virtue of s 76)
authorised officer or constable
Table 5

Offences Transport Act 1980 - private hire provisions

Section Offence Maximum Penalty
Section Driving a PH vehicle with a roof sign which Level 3
64(2){(a) | contravenes section 64(1)
Section Causing or permitting a PH vehicle to be driven | Level 3
{2)(b) with a roof sign which contravenes section
64(1)
Table 6

Offences - Hackney Carriage Byelaws

Byelaw Offence Maximum Penalty
Each Failure to comply with a byelaw Level 2

individual

byelaw

The above tables have been reproduced from Chapter 6 Button on Taxis Licensing Law and
Practice, Fourth Edition.




Page 234

Lancaster City Council

Review of taxi licensing Standards

The City Council is proposing to introduce a comprehensive taxi licensing policy that
provides a single point of contact for all information regarding the licensing and safe use of
hackney carriage and private hire vehicles.

The draft policy is currently the subject of public consultation. The consultation closes on
XXXX. If you use taxis (hackney carriages or private hire), work in the taxi trade or are
involved in the industry in any way, thank you for taking the time to read our draft policy,
we would very much welcome your feedback on the proposals.

The policy refers to two different types of taxis,
e Hackney carriages can be accessed at a taxi rank, or flagged down on a street, they
do not need to be prebooked, the fares are set by the Council.
e Private hire vehicles have to be pre booked via a private hire operator, they cannot
be hailed in the street or use the taxi ranks

We request that responses to the consultation are submitted on line via the following link,
XXXXXXXX.

Alternatively they can be emailed to

licensing@Ilancaster.gov.uk with the subject header titled “Consultation response”.

CONSULTATION RESPONSE

The following questions address each of the specific areas of the consultation.

1. Have you read the Councils proposed taxi licensing policy Yes/No

2. The proposed taxi licensing policy is the first time the council have brought all | Yes/ No/
taxi licensing issues within a single document Don’t
Do you think the policy covers all the relevant issues? know

If you answered no — What additional issues do you think should be included
or what sections do you think should be removed

And why



mailto:licensing@lancaster.gov.uk

Page 235

Do you think the proposed policy and appendices set the appropriate Yes/No

standards for hackney carriage and private hire drivers? Don’t
know

If you answered no what standards/ requirements would you like to see

included

Do you think the proposed policy and appendices set the appropriate Yes/No/

standards for hackney carriage and private hire vehicles ? Don’t
know

If you answered no what standards/ requirements would you like to see

included

Do you think the proposed policy and appendices set the appropriate Yes/no

standards for private hire operators

If you answered no what standards/ requirements would you like to see

included

If you are a taxi driver do you feel safe when driving your licensed vehicle Always /
Most of
the
time/
Sometim
e/
Never/
Not a
taxi
driver

Are there are any additional measures that could be introduced that would Yes/ No/

make you feel safe ? if so please list below Don’t

know




Page 236

7. If you are a person who uses hackney carriage or private hire vehicle, do you | Always/
feel safe when travelling in the vehicle ? most of
the
time/
sometim
es/
never/
not a
user of
taxis
Are there are any additional measures that could be introduced that would Yes/No
make you feel safe ? if so please list below
8. Do you think the installation of CCTV in private hire and hackney carriage Positive /
vehicles would have a positive or negative effect of the safety of people negative
travelling in the vehicle ? / Don’t
know
Would you have any concerns regarding your privacy if CCTV was in use in
private hire/ and hackney carriage vehicles ? Yes/ No /
Don’t
know
9. Do you think the Council’s proposals to move towards vehicles with lower Yes/No/
level / no emissions is proportionate, given the Councils commitment to become a | Don’t
cleaner, greener District? Know
Please provide reasons for your views if you think the proposed emission
standards are not proportionate
10. | Itis a legal requirement that private hire vehicles do not look like a hackney Yes/No/
carriage. Do you think the measures proposed are adequate to enable the Don’t
two different types of vehicles to be identified? know

If you answered no




Page 237

What additional measures do you think could be introduced to provide

separate identities for the two types of vehicles (hackney carriage and private

hire)

11. Do you think the signage required to be displayed on the inside and Yes/No
outside of the licensed vehicle is appropriate namely
City council door signage displaying the licence number (external)
Private hire operator door sign (on private hire vehicles) (external)
No smoking signage
Tariff/ fare cards displayed inside the vehicle
Customer advice information inside the vehicle
Roof sign design for hackney carriage
Size and location of taxi plates
If you answered no please give reasons for you view and provide any
other suggestions
12. The proposed policy includes an appendix of passenger advice and
information, there is also a proposal to include a public information
charter sticker in the vehicle ( details can be found in appendix XX of the
policy )
Do you think this would be helpful? Yes/No
If no, please explain your reasons
Do you think this information could be improved if so please provide
your comments
13. An equality impact assessment has been completed in respect of the Yes/ No

proposed policy. Do you think the equality impact assessment has




Page 238

considered the relevant factors and responded accordingly?

If you have answered no please provide your comments as to any
suggested changes/ considerations ?

14 This space is left blank so that you can forward any other information
you consider relevant to this consultation

In order to minimise the opportunity of multiple responses from an individual or
organisation anonomised responses will be highlighted as such in any Council report and
may not be given as much credence as other responses.

Please provide the following information:-

Name of reSPONAENT .......ccceeeiieceeeee ettt

REPIESENTING ..eviviiiie ettt sttt s e e e s te s n e e sreeeraeas

Lancaster City Council Licence holder YES/NO

If Yes licence nUMDbEr e e s
Contact telephone NUMDBEr e e s e e re eaes
Contact e-mail address e e e s

Please note responses received from this consultation will be published in a public report.

If you do not wish your comments to be attributed to you or your organisation in any
published report please tick this box.

Thank you for taking the time to respond to this consultation exercise.

Please note that all comments must be received by Lancaster City Council by XXXXXXXXXX.
Any comments received after this date may not be considered as part of the review.




Page 239

Appendix 4 - Taxi consultation

1. 100% of respondents had read the proposed policy

2. Do you think the policy covers all the relevant issues?
22% yes
22% no
56% don’t know
Suggestions to improve this -

The draft policy doesn’t seem to address the issue of increasing the number of accessible taxis. For
residents who need wheelchair accessible the inability to reliably book a taxi or that one will be
available is a significant restriction on movement & community engagement.

When licensing regulatory committee or full Council make changes or new procedures, these
should be put in a manual and indexed to be passed down to new Licensing managers and
committee chair. When decisions are made at committee no follow up is made by Councillors.
When new staff, particularly temporary ones are engaged not enough background checks are
made. | refer you to "Waj the enforcer" who - engaged.

3. Does the proposed policy set the appropriate standards for HC and PHV?
67% yes
22% no
11% don’t know
Suggestions to improve this -

That the licence holders register for self-employed tax deductions. Several have never paid
any/enough tax. They claim benefits on low earnings. Send their details to HMRC and examine their
SA forms, which show earnings declared.

Do not allow "executive" vehicles. This is used to circumvent planning conditions, allowing two
licensed vehicles.

It also allows unlicensed vehicles to pick up at airports and evade roadside checks.

Increased measures to ensure accessible taxis are available.

4. Does the proposed policy set the appropriate standards for operators?
67% yes
33% no
Suggestions to improve this -

V.

Driver badge number to be highly visible at all times.

Notices firmly fixed in all taxis showing what a passenger can do to report problems, and a clear
number showing the Local Authority number a passenger can phone when they get home.

If a customer books an airport trip, in response to an advert; how do they know there is an
operator’s license.

To provide accessible taxis.

5. If you are a taxi driver, do you feel safe when driving your licensed vehicle?
29% always
57% most of the time
14% sometimes
Suggestions to improve this -

Base operators shouldn't send female drivers to pick-up drunken aggressive males.

It would be handy to be able to report drug dealers. Drivers know when they are on a drug run and
its extremely uncomfortable.

Dialling any number, other than 999 is a waste of time. When making statements at Morecambe
police station nothing happens. When taking dash camera footage to Morecambe police station the
officer did not view it. When calling about a child safety issue; | left after 40 minutes. No police
were despatched. The police maintain that non-payment is a civil matter.



Page 240

IV. It would be good to have a unified stance from all concerned parties (Council, Police, Taxi Drivers
and Operators) concerning passenger behaviour. For example, real time alerts regarding -
Abuse or fare evasions
Barring guilty parties not just from one taxi company but from all
Encouraging drivers to report all such incidents to the police
Naming and shaming offenders
Publicising these measures in local and social media
V. We see notices in banks, shops etc defending their employees' rights to work free from abuse etc.
taxi drivers should be offered similar support

6. If you are a customer, do you feel safe when travelling in your vehicle?
17% always
66% most of the time
17% sometimes
Suggestions to improve this -
I.  Stronger I.D, perhaps fingerprint data per job because we have had a driver that wasn't displaying
his ID, when we asked where it was, he actually produced another person’s ID. This was reported.
Il.  stop allowing executive cars

7. Do you think the installation of CCTV would have a positive or negative effect?
60% positive
40% don’t know
0% negative

8. Any concerns regarding your privacy if CCTV was in use?
42% yes
29% no
29% don’t know

9. Do you think the Council’s proposals to move towards vehicles with lower level/ no emissions is

proportionate?
17% yes

33% no
50% don’t know

Please elaborate why you think the proposed emission standards are not proportionate -

I.  Vehicles required are way too expensive, will put a lot of owners out of business.

Il.  Fares have not increased since 2013.

lll.  Licensing staff did not put applications on the agenda and lied that they had not received them.

Failed to follow the agreed procedures.
IV.  Where are vehicles to be charged.
V. How are long distance hirings to be done?

10. It is a legal requirement that private hire vehicles do not look like a Hackney carriage. Do you think
the measures proposed are adequate?
50% yes
33% no
17% don’t know
What additional measures do you think could be introduced to provide separate identities -
I. If a driver makes ONE illegal trip in a private hire it is immediate revocation.
II.  Making all the same colour would be worse as it could be cloned easier.



Page 241

11. Do you think the signage required to be displayed on the inside and outside of the licensed vehicle is

appropriate?

78% yes

22% no

Suggestions for required signage —

I.  Never ever seen a fare card on display, or customer advice information

II.  Where does all this signage go? There is a contradiction in that windows are to be kept clear.

lll.  Does any customer read the fare card?

12. The proposed policy includes an appendix of passenger advice and information, there is also a
proposal to include a public information charter sticker in the vehicle.
Do you think this would be helpful?
63% yes
37% no
Do you think this information could be improved?
I.  Too many stickers and signage already. Becoming like cartoon cars.
Il.  Send it all out with the Council tax demand.

13. Do you think the equality impact assessment has considered the relevant factors and responded
accordingly?
25% yes
75% no

Additional comments -

In the last 3 years I've only complained about quality of service twice. On both occasions | was met with
rudeness or downright abuse from the office staff.

Because of age and serious mobility problems, I'd like to see more London style taxis. They're much easier to get
in and out of and there's more room for my portable oxygen equipment Also, when taking a cab from the Rank,
if a London taxi is part way down the queue | ask them to pull out for me. Most times they say they're not
allowed. As far as | know, that's a lie.

On two occasions (with Private Hire) I've asked and was told it was no problem for them to send a taller car like
the Fiat Doblo. | was picked up by an ordinary saloon. Reason both times, it broke down so couldn't send it. Of
course, it did, just like | came down with the last rain shower!

Very excessive speed is also a problem mainly, with Private Hire. Drivers deeply resent being asked to slow
down and office staff don't want to know. They've got you by the short hairs; what are you going to do, get out
or be thrown out in the middle of nowhere?

Most drivers are unhelpful and won't offer any help with my equipment no matter how much | am struggling
(which is why | don't like saloon taxis). | once phoned a company (the 32090 people) when | got home, to
complain about a very unhelpful driver who'd collected me after a spell in hospital about 3 years ago. A young
woman started a shocking, shrieking rant that drivers weren't my servants, and it was up to me to sort my
problems

It's not an exaggeration to say that while you occasionally get good drivers, in the main | dread needing a taxi.

| really just want to raise the need to increase the availability of accessible vehicles. Other responses where a
response was forced should be ignored.

There should have been an option to email or write to this consultation.



Page 242

Dear Licensing

| write in support of the proposed change in policy to improve tailpipe emissions from taxis and a
transition for the local taxi fleet towards the use of electric vehicles.

As you are aware air quality remains an issue in the centre of Lancaster with nitrogen dioxide levels
still exceeding the objective standard at some locations around the gyratory. Taxis provide a
significant contribution to road traffic emissions in these locations and traffic counts undertaken in
2016 indicated that taxis (PH and HC) can account at times for up 10% of traffic and often around 5-
6% (see attached). Analysis of the fleet in 2018 also indicated that the majority of the fleet at that
time were still diesel vehicles and had an age profile containing a large proportion of Euro 4 an 5
vehicles with higher emissions (see attached spreadsheet) .

A transition to a new policy which requires better emission standards to be applied and ultimately a
transition to the use of electric vehicles with no tailpipe emissions is therefore very much welcomed
and if supported will be a key action included in the soon to be produced new air quality action plan
for Lancaster . The approach as you are no doubt aware will also contribute to the climate change
objectives as identified by the declaration of a recognised climate emergency locally.

You will be aware that the Council is currently in the process of providing rapid chargers in three car
parks which should be available for use from August 2021. These are ultimately intended for
exclusive taxi use (when sufficient electric taxi demand exists). Other chargers have been requested
through development control, with assurances obtained in some cases to ensure access and suitable
provision for taxi use. The City and County council have/are providing chargers in a number of
locations around the district for general public use.

Further engagement with the taxi trade is proposed for later this year following the delivery of the
chargers, to consult the trade on what other possible assistance the council can offer to assist a
transition to electric vehicles.

Please do not hesitate to contact me if | can offer any further assistance, information or support
regarding this matter.

Best Regards
Paul

Paul Cartmell - Senior Environmental Health Officer - Pollution Control - Environmental
Protection Team, Communities and the Environment Directorate, Morecambe Town Hall,
Marine Road East, Morecambe Lancashire, LA4 4AF - pcartmell@lancaster.gov.uk - Tel.
01524 582728. General Office - environmentalhealth@lancaster.gov.uk Tel. 01524 582935



mailto:pcartmell@lancaster.gov.uk
mailto:environmentalhealth@lancaster.gov.uk

Lancashire County Council

SHP Data Collection - 01772 534579

Page 243

Date: Thursday 16th April 2015

Weather: Dry, bright and sunny

Site: 11240 - A6 Bridge Lane, East of Damside Street, Lancaster

Direction:  Eastbound

Lane: Both Lanes
Time Pedal | Motor | | Hackney | Private | o\ | oaur | ogva Bus Total

Cycle Cycle Carriage | Hire Taxi
00:00 0 2 35 5 2 3 3 2 3 55}
00:15 0 1 17 2 1 7 0 2 1 31
00:30 0 0 16 6 2 5 0 0 0 29
00:45 0 0 14 5 0 0 4 0 1 24
01:00 0 1 15 5 2 5 0 1 0 29
01:15 0 0 8 2 0 1 0 0 1 12
01:30 0 0 11 1 0 1 0 0 0 13
01:45 0 2 5 1 1 5 0 1 0 15
02:00 0 0 8 2 0 2 0 1 0 13
02:15 0 0 6 5 0 0 0 0 0 11
02:30 0 0 7 3 0 3 3 1 0 17
02:45 0 0 5 2 1 1 2 0 0 11
03:00 0 0 5 2 0 0 0 2 0 9
03:15 0 0 8 3 0 0 1 0 0 12
03:30 0 0 7 2 0 2 1 1 0 i3
03:45 0 0 4 1 0 3 0 1 0 9
04:00 0 0 9 2 0 2 0 0 0 i3
04:15 0 0 5 1 1 2 2 0 0 11
04:30 1 0 9 1 0 1 3 0 0 5
04:45 0 0 13 1 1 4 1 1 0 21
05:00 0 1 11 6 1 5 2 2 0 28
05:15 1 1 17 0 1 7 0 2 0 29
05:30 1 1 31 1 1 6 2 2 0 45
05:45 0 0 41 2 1 10 1 0 0 55
06:00 0 0 47 2 0 6 5 1 0 61
06:15 1 1 76 0 0 13 2 3 0 96
06:30 0 3 115 0 3 25 2 0 0 148
06:45 0 6 137 2 2 24 1 6 4 182
07:00 1 2 148 1 5 27 17 1 3 205
07:15 0 4 154 2 2 37 11 1 5 216
07:30 2 4 180 1 2 39 1 2 5 236
07:45 3 5 190 1 2 31 3 3 2 240
08:00 4 2 231 1 5 41 4 3 6 297
08:15 5 2 196 6 4 35 5 2 8 263
08:30 2 3 186 6 8 30 4 5 17 261
08:45 4 2 185 3 3 34 7 8 9 255
09:00 2 4 204 5 15 27 5 3 13 278
09:15 0 1 188 6 8 43 9 2 13 270
09:30 0 1 178 6 8 46 4 4 7 254
09:45 1 1 206 2 12 47 3 9 8 289
10:00 1 9 192 4 9 54 7 5 7 288
10:15 1 0 184 3 10 40 10 1 4 253
10:30 0 5 172 0 5 47 10 4 7 250
10:45 0 3 96 3 4 5 3 1 5 120
11:00 0 2 77 1 1 2 0 1 0 84
11:15 0 0 102 0 5 10 1 2 2 122
11:30 0 1 181 0 5 27 5 4 3 226
11:45 4 1 175 2 7 35 5 3 6 238
12:00 0 5 151 4 2 21 4 4 5 196
12:15 4 7 148 9 4 28 6 1 8 215
12:30 3 17 164 4 1 26 5 0 7 227
12:45 0 3 153 3 1 21 7 1 10 199
13:00 3 5 186 9 2 26 6 1 6 244
13:15 5 10 200 7 7 29 3 3 4 268
13:30 2 6 174 4 7 24 11 0 10 238
13:45 2 5 142 2 1 25 6 4 7 194
14:00 3 0 187 4 3 39 4 5 10 255
14:15 5 0 245 2 7 39 8 6 7 319
14:30 1 0 233 5 7 30 9 6 11 302
14:45 1 11 241 2 9 42 10 5 10 331
15:00 2 12 231 8 9 30 7 4 9 312
15:15 3 10 219 12 7 41 2 5 10 309
15:30 1 5 203 4 11 41 4 3 12 284
15:45 3 3 212 6 2 29 1 4 11 271
16:00 0 4 216 5 4 27 3 1 9 269
16:15 0 3 249 9 6 25 6 5 9 312
16:30 0 5 300 6 8 44 5 2 8 378
16:45 0 9 249 2 7 34 2 4 6 313
17:00 0 2 246 1 3 30 0 0 6 288
17:15 2 0 222 3 8 20 2 0 3 260
17:30 3 2 275 5 3 43 0 2 12 345
17:45 2 3 237 2 4 18 0 0 9 275
18:00 2 4 245 9 4 15 3 0 10 292
18:15 2 8 207 5 5 21 0 0 8 256
18:30 3 5 255 5 3 20 2 0 9 302
18:45 6 4 247 6 6 19 1 1 4 294
19:00 3 3 265 14 7 22 2 0 5 321
19:15 5 1 278 8 11 18 2 1 2 326
19:30 1 1 224 12 5 11 0 0 2 256
19:45 0 6 160 2 4 13 2 0 2 189
20:00 1 3 219 6 2 10 1 0 5 247
20:15 2 2 242 3 2 11 0 0 2 264
20:30 0 1 202 6 1 17 0 0 3 230
20:45 1 1 175 5 0 8 1 1 3 195
21:00 0 0 196 10 1 6 2 1 2 218
21:15 0 3 145 0 0 10 0 0 4 162
21:30 1 0 116 2 1 10 1 2 2 135
21:45 1 2 117 10 0 10 0 1 2 143
22:00 4 2 132 10 0 7 0 1 3 159
22:15 0 1 107 4 0 7 1 1 4 125
22:30 0 4 74 4 1 6 0 0 1 90
22:45 0 1 65 2 1 12 0 2 2 85
23:00 1 3 73 3 0 3 0 1 4 88
23:15 0 1 61 2 2 4 1 2 2 75
23:30 0 1 51 8 0 7 0 0 2 69
23:45 0 0 31 1 0 4 0 0 2 38
Total 112 255 13077 373 319 1803 279 173 424 16815
Percentage 0.7% 1.5% 77.8% 2.2% 1.9% 10.7% 1.7% 1.0% 2.5% -

Thursday 16th April 2015



Lancashire County Council

SHP Data Collection - 01772 534579

Page 244

Date: Thursday 16th April 2015

Weather: Dry, bright and sunny

Site: 11240 - A6 Bridge Lane, East of Damside Street, Lancaster

Direction:  Eastbound

Lane: Inside Lane
Time Pedal | Motor | | Hackney | Private | o\ | oaur | ogva Bus Total

Cycle Cycle Carriage | Hire Taxi
00:00 0 1 21 2 1 1 2 2 1 31
00:15 0 0 11 0 0 3 0 2 0 16
00:30 0 0 9 2 2 4 0 0 0 17
00:45 0 0 5 0 0 0 3 0 0 8
01:00 0 1 3 1 0 4 0 1 0 10
01:15 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 3
01:30 0 0 4 1 0 0 0 0 0 5
01:45 0 2 1 0 0 3 0 1 0 7
02:00 0 0 5 1 0 1 0 1 0 8
02:15 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 2
02:30 0 0 5 1 0 1 1 1 0 9
02:45 0 0 4 1 0 0 1 0 0 6
03:00 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 2 0 4
03:15 0 0 1 1 0 0 1 0 0 3
03:30 0 0 4 1 0 2 1 1 0 9
03:45 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 2
04:00 0 0 3 1 0 1 0 0 0 5
04:15 0 0 2 1 1 0 2 0 0 6
04:30 1 0 6 0 0 1 2 0 0 10
04:45 0 0 10 0 0 3 0 1 0 14
05:00 0 1 4 2 1 2 2 2 0 14
05:15 1 0 8 0 0 4 0 1 0 14
05:30 1 1 18 0 0 5 2 0 0 27
05:45 0 0 20 0 0 6 1 0 0 27
06:00 0 0 18 0 0 3 3 0 0 24
06:15 1 1 53 0 0 5 2 2 0 64
06:30 0 1 52 0 2 16 1 0 0 72
06:45 0 3 68 0 0 12 0 5 0 88
07:00 1 2 69 0 2 8 9 0 0 91
07:15 0 2 72 0 1 22 9 1 0 107
07:30 1 1 76 0 0 25 1 0 0 104
07:45 3 3 75 0 1 13 1 3 0 99
08:00 4 1 103 0 2 18 4 0 0 132
08:15 5 1 83 2 2 16 4 0 0 113
08:30 1 2 84 2 4 17 2 2 3 117
08:45 2 1 92 0 1 20 6 5 0 127
09:00 2 1 111 1 5 12 3 3 1 139
09:15 0 0 107 5 4 23 3 1 2 145
09:30 0 1 85 3 3 19 3 3 0 117
09:45 1 0 110 1 4 24 1 6 0 147
10:00 1 2 102 0 1 27 4 1 0 138
10:15 1 0 101 0 3 16 8 0 1 130
10:30 0 4 98 0 1 21 8 3 0 135
10:45 0 2 53 1 2 2 2 1 1 64
11:00 0 1 45 1 0 1 0 0 0 48
11:15 0 0 70 0 4 6 0 1 0 81
11:30 0 1 95 0 1 13 3 0 0 113
11:45 4 1 93 1 2 18 3 1 0 123
12:00 0 2 86 3 0 13 2 2 0 108
12:15 4 5 89 4 2 11 5 1 0 121
12:30 3 17 93 3 0 13 1 0 1 131
12:45 0 3 74 2 0 13 3 1 0 96
13:00 3 4 110 8 1 9 2 1 0 138
13:15 5 3 109 3 0 14 1 3 0 138
13:30 2 3 85 0 2 14 5 0 0 111
13:45 1 0 67 1 0 16 5 4 0 94
14:00 3 0 109 0 0 24 2 3 2 143
14:15 5 0 143 1 3 20 5 2 0 179
14:30 1 0 129 0 3 14 7 4 6 164
14:45 1 4 121 2 4 21 8 3 3 167
15:00 2 0 120 4 5 12 5 4 1 153
15:15 2 0 103 2 4 21 1 2 2 137
15:30 1 0 95 0 6 20 4 1 5 132
15:45 3 0 117 3 1 13 1 2 1 141
16:00 0 0 110 1 1 11 3 1 1 128
16:15 0 0 127 4 5 9 3 4 3 155
16:30 0 0 168 1 7 20 3 2 2 203
16:45 0 0 127 0 5 18 1 2 1 154
17:00 0 0 132 0 3 18 0 0 0 153
17:15 2 0 117 2 4 13 2 0 0 140
17:30 3 2 156 2 3 20 0 1 1 188
17:45 2 1 116 1 1 12 0 0 1 134
18:00 2 2 114 0 1 7 2 0 0 128
18:15 2 5 100 1 1 8 0 0 2 119
18:30 3 3 103 3 1 8 2 0 2 125
18:45 5 4 111 1 3 9 0 1 0 134
19:00 2 1 135 1 4 11 0 0 1 155
19:15 5 1 139 3 4 8 1 1 0 162
19:30 1 0 115 3 2 4 0 0 0 125
19:45 0 4 92 1 0 12 2 0 0 111
20:00 1 2 123 0 1 7 0 0 1 135
20:15 1 2 142 1 1 6 0 0 0 153
20:30 0 1 121 1 1 8 0 0 0 132
20:45 1 0 92 2 0 4 1 0 0 100
21:00 0 0 115 3 1 4 1 1 0 125
21:15 0 2 93 0 0 7 0 0 0 102
21:30 1 0 66 0 1 6 0 2 0 76
21:45 0 2 81 2 0 7 0 1 1 94
22:00 3 1 95 4 0 4 0 1 0 108
22:15 0 1 88 1 0 4 1 1 0 96
22:30 0 3 57 0 1 6 0 0 0 67
22:45 0 0 51 0 0 10 0 2 0 63
23:00 1 2 47 1 0 2 0 1 0 54
23:15 0 1 46 0 0 3 0 2 0 52
23:30 0 1 32 0 0 5 0 0 0 38
23:45 0 0 24 1 0 3 0 0 0 28
Total 101 119 6950 109 132 921 177 110 46 8665
Percentage 1.2% 1.4% 80.2% 1.3% 1.5% 10.6% 2.0% 1.3% 0.5% -

Thursday 16th April 2015



Lancashire County Council

SHP Data Collection - 01772 534579

Page 245

Date: Thursday 16th April 2015

Weather: Dry, bright and sunny

Site: 11240 - A6 Bridge Lane, East of Damside Street, Lancaster

Direction:  Eastbound

Lane: Outside Lane
Time Pedal | Motor | | Hackney | Private | o\ | oaur | ogva Bus Total

Cycle Cycle Carriage | Hire Taxi
00:00 0 1 14 3 1 2 1 0 2 24
00:15 0 1 6 2 1 4 0 0 1 15
00:30 0 0 7 4 0 1 0 0 0 12
00:45 0 0 9 5 0 0 1 0 1 16
01:00 0 0 12 4 2 1 0 0 0 19
01:15 0 0 5 2 0 1 0 0 1 9
01:30 0 0 7 0 0 1 0 0 0 8
01:45 0 0 4 1 1 2 0 0 0 8
02:00 0 0 3 1 0 1 0 0 0 5
02:15 0 0 4 5 0 0 0 0 0 9
02:30 0 0 2 2 0 2 2 0 0 8
02:45 0 0 1 1 1 1 1 0 0 5
03:00 0 0 4 1 0 0 0 0 0 5
03:15 0 0 7 2 0 0 0 0 0 9
03:30 0 0 3 1 0 0 0 0 0 4
03:45 0 0 4 1 0 2 0 0 0 7
04:00 0 0 6 1 0 1 0 0 0 8
04:15 0 0 3 0 0 2 0 0 0 5
04:30 0 0 3 1 0 0 1 0 0 5
04:45 0 0 3 1 1 1 1 0 0 7
05:00 0 0 7 4 0 3 0 0 0 14
05:15 0 1 9 0 1 3 0 1 0 15
05:30 0 0 13 1 1 1 0 2 0 18
05:45 0 0 21 2 1 4 0 0 0 28
06:00 0 0 29 2 0 3 2 1 0 37
06:15 0 0 23 0 0 8 0 1 0 32
06:30 0 2 63 0 1 9 1 0 0 76
06:45 0 3 69 2 2 12 1 1 4 94
07:00 0 0 79 1 3 19 8 1 3 114
07:15 0 2 82 2 1 15 2 0 5 109
07:30 1 3 104 1 2 14 0 2 5 132
07:45 0 2 115 1 1 18 2 0 2 141
08:00 0 1 128 1 3 23 0 3 6 165
08:15 0 1 113 4 2 19 1 2 8 150
08:30 1 1 102 4 4 13 2 3 14 144
08:45 2 1 93 3 2 14 1 3 9 128
09:00 0 3 93 4 10 15 2 0 12 139
09:15 0 1 81 1 4 20 6 1 11 125
09:30 0 0 93 3 5 27 1 1 7 137
09:45 0 1 96 1 8 23 2 3 8 142
10:00 0 7 90 4 8 27 3 4 7 150
10:15 0 0 83 3 7 24 2 1 3 123
10:30 0 1 74 0 4 26 2 1 7 115
10:45 0 1 43 2 2 3 1 0 4 56
11:00 0 1 32 0 1 1 0 1 0 36
11:15 0 0 32 0 1 4 1 1 2 41
11:30 0 0 86 0 4 14 2 4 3 113
11:45 0 0 82 1 5 17 2 2 6 115
12:00 0 3 65 1 2 8 2 2 5 88
12:15 0 2 59 5 2 17 1 0 8 94
12:30 0 0 71 1 1 13 4 0 6 96
12:45 0 0 79 1 1 8 4 0 10 103
13:00 0 1 76 1 1 17 4 0 6 106
13:15 0 7 91 4 7 15 2 0 4 130
13:30 0 3 89 4 5 10 6 0 10 127
13:45 1 5 75 1 1 9 1 0 7 100
14:00 0 0 78 4 3 15 2 2 8 112
14:15 0 0 102 1 4 19 3 4 7 140
14:30 0 0 104 5 4 16 2 2 5 138
14:45 0 7 120 0 5 21 2 2 7 164
15:00 0 12 111 4 4 18 2 0 8 159
15:15 1 10 116 10 3 20 1 3 8 172
15:30 0 5 108 4 5 21 0 2 7 152
15:45 0 3 95 3 1 16 0 2 10 130
16:00 0 4 106 4 3 16 0 0 8 141
16:15 0 3 122 5 1 16 3 1 6 157
16:30 0 5 132 5 1 24 2 0 6 175
16:45 0 9 122 2 2 16 1 2 5 159
17:00 0 2 114 1 0 12 0 0 6 135
17:15 0 0 105 1 4 7 0 0 3 120
17:30 0 0 119 3 0 23 0 1 11 157
17:45 0 2 121 1 3 6 0 0 8 141
18:00 0 2 131 9 3 8 1 0 10 164
18:15 0 3 107 4 4 13 0 0 6 137
18:30 0 2 152 2 2 12 0 0 7 177
18:45 1 0 136 5 3 10 1 0 4 160
19:00 1 2 130 13 3 11 2 0 4 166
19:15 0 0 139 5 7 10 1 0 2 164
19:30 0 1 109 9 3 7 0 0 2 131
19:45 0 2 68 1 4 1 0 0 2 78
20:00 0 1 96 6 1 3 1 0 4 112
20:15 1 0 100 2 1 5 0 0 2 111
20:30 0 0 81 5 0 9 0 0 3 98
20:45 0 1 83 3 0 4 0 1 3 95
21:00 0 0 81 7 0 2 1 0 2 93
21:15 0 1 52 0 0 3 0 0 4 60
21:30 0 0 50 2 0 4 1 0 2 59
21:45 1 0 36 8 0 3 0 0 1 49
22:00 1 1 37 6 0 3 0 0 3 51
22:15 0 0 19 3 0 3 0 0 4 29
22:30 0 1 17 4 0 0 0 0 1 23
22:45 0 1 14 2 1 2 0 0 2 22
23:00 0 1 26 2 0 1 0 0 4 34
23:15 0 0 15 2 2 1 1 0 2 23
23:30 0 0 19 8 0 2 0 0 2 31
23:45 0 0 7 0 0 1 0 0 2 10
Total 11 136 6127 264 187 882 102 63 378 8150
Percentage 0.1% 1.7% 75.2% 3.2% 2.3% 10.8% 1.3% 0.8% 4.6% -

Thursday 16th April 2015



Lancashire County Council

SHP Data Collection - 01772 534579

Page 246

Date: Thursday 16th April 2015

Weather: Dry, bright and sunny

Site: 11241 - A6 Dalton Square, South of Gage Street, Lancaster

Direction:  Southbound

Lane: Both Lanes
Time Pedal | Motor | | Hackney | Private | o\ | oaur | ogva Bus Total

Cycle Cycle Carriage | Hire Taxi
00:00 0 0 25 12 3 1 2 0 0 43
00:15 0 0 14 4 3 1 0 1 0 23
00:30 0 0 15 9 5 2 0 1 0 32
00:45 0 0 10 4 2 3 0 1 2 22
01:00 0 0 7 8 1 1 3 2 0 22
01:15 0 0 5 2 3 1 0 0 0 11
01:30 0 0 4 2 2 3 0 0 0 11
01:45 0 0 1 1 2 1 0 1 0 6
02:00 0 0 10 3 3 1 1 2 0 20
02:15 0 0 4 2 0 1 0 0 1 8
02:30 0 0 6 2 0 1 2 0 0 il
02:45 0 0 8 1 0 1 0 0 1 11
03:00 0 0 7 0 0 1 0 0 0 8
03:15 0 0 2 2 0 0 0 0 0 4
03:30 0 0 3 5 0 0 0 0 0 8
03:45 0 0 7 1 0 2 1 0 0 11
04:00 0 0 13 0 0 0 2 0 0 5
04:15 0 0 8 1 0 0 0 0 0 9
04:30 0 0 7 0 2 2 0 0 0 il
04:45 0 0 11 2 0 4 2 0 0 19
05:00 1 2 23 3 0 3 1 0 0 53}
05:15 0 2 21 1 0 8 0 0 0 32
05:30 1 1 32 1 0 5 3 1 1 45
05:45 1 2 34 1 1 5 3 0 1 48
06:00 1 6 72 1 0 16 3 1 0 100
06:15 2 6 104 0 0 14 1 1 2 130
06:30 0 2 144 2 0 24 1 4 3 180
06:45 0 6 170 1 0 30 1 1 4 213
07:00 1 6 127 2 4 28 8 3 6 185
07:15 5 1 271 3 1 45 11 2 10 349
07:30 4 4 268 2 7 51 10 0 8 354
07:45 7 5 261 2 10 43 8 1 10 347
08:00 8 5 273 1 6 53 10 6 10 372
08:15 3 4 223 6 3 23 6 0 21 289
08:30 7 9 154 3 2 35 3 0 10 223
08:45 5 4 147 1 4 28 6 2 7 204
09:00 4 1 177 3 11 32 4 4 7 243
09:15 1 3 159 5 8 36 12 1 7 232
09:30 1 1 172 7 14 43 7 0 10 255
09:45 2 4 166 3 8 36 12 3 4 238
10:00 1 1 147 7 9 29 9 0 6 209
10:15 4 14 186 4 3 30 10 1 7 259
10:30 2 9 132 0 4 34 2 3 9 195
10:45 4 11 130 4 8 27 8 0 6 198
11:00 1 3 160 4 2 44 7 1 9 231
11:15 0 3 168 1 14 33 5 3 7 234
11:30 1 1 195 1 12 34 9 4 9 266
11:45 0 2 183 1 9 33 1 1 7 237
12:00 1 2 157 8 8 33 3 2 10 224
12:15 2 0 184 7 1 30 3 3 7 237
12:30 1 2 182 12 9 34 4 3 7 254
12:45 1 2 175 5 9 28 3 3 6 232
13:00 3 3 191 2 5 32 7 1 10 254
13:15 0 7 224 13 7 29 4 1 8 293
13:30 5 4 215 5 12 29 5 3 8 286
13:45 2 0 215 9 8 40 10 5 7 296
14:00 6 4 176 9 10 40 11 4 7 267
14:15 5 4 202 4 14 33 6 3 8 279
14:30 0 4 171 9 7 30 8 2 11 242
14:45 0 3 216 9 6 32 5 6 13 290
15:00 3 0 153 5 3 23 4 1 13 205
15:15 5 2 140 8 9 28 4 3 13 212
15:30 5 5 155 2 2 26 6 0 9 210
15:45 3 2 120 7 5 23 9 0 4 173
16:00 4 2 142 5 3 18 4 2 10 190
16:15 12 4 153 4 1 16 1 2 8 201
16:30 3 13 112 4 5 18 0 2 7 164
16:45 0 16 96 3 1 12 1 0 5 134
17:00 10 6 173 6 6 17 2 2 4 226
17:15 7 2 102 2 2 16 0 0 8 139
17:30 6 5 222 6 5 29 0 1 9 283
17:45 6 4 198 3 1 24 0 1 7 244
18:00 5 4 208 8 10 25 0 2 9 271
18:15 1 0 205 9 6 9 0 1 3 234
18:30 4 2 239 6 9 25 1 0 5 291
18:45 1 7 256 8 7 16 0 0 3 298
19:00 5 3 266 12 3 11 0 0 3 303
19:15 3 3 286 12 4 24 0 0 1 333
19:30 2 3 250 11 1 19 1 0 4 291
19:45 5 3 216 4 1 10 3 0 3 245
20:00 4 4 206 10 1 9 1 0 2 237
20:15 4 1 187 5 1 15 1 0 3 217
20:30 3 2 175 5 2 12 1 0 3 203
20:45 5 1 177 5 1 6 0 0 2 197
21:00 2 2 154 7 0 15 1 0 4 185
21:15 0 0 122 3 0 14 0 0 1 140
21:30 2 3 114 2 0 11 1 0 0 133
21:45 0 0 120 10 0 11 0 0 3 144
22:00 1 0 134 8 0 4 0 0 4 151
22:15 1 2 71 3 0 5 0 1 3 86
22:30 0 2 70 9 0 5 0 0 2 88
22:45 0 1 67 3 0 5 0 1 3 80
23:00 1 1 63 2 0 5 0 0 2 74
23:15 0 0 48 1 0 6 1 0 2 58
23:30 0 1 40 6 0 7 1 0 3 58
23:45 0 0 35 3 0 2 1 0 1 42
Total 206 259 12249 430 351 1759 287 106 453 16100
Percentage 1.3% 1.6% 76.1% 2.7% 2.2% 10.9% 1.8% 0.7% 2.8% -

Thursday 16th April 2015



Lancashire County Council

SHP Data Collection - 01772 534579

Page 247

Date: Thursday 16th April 2015

Weather: Dry, bright and sunny

Site: 11241 - A6 Dalton Square, South of Gage Street, Lancaster

Direction:  Southbound

Lane: Inside Lane
Time Pedal | Motor | | Hackney | Private | o\ | oaur | ogva Bus Total

Cycle Cycle Carriage | Hire Taxi
00:00 0 0 14 5 2 0 1 0 0 22
00:15 0 0 9 0 2 0 0 1 0 12
00:30 0 0 7 4 3 1 0 1 0 16
00:45 0 0 5 2 1 3 0 1 0 12
01:00 0 0 6 2 0 1 2 2 0 13
01:15 0 0 3 0 2 0 0 0 0 5
01:30 0 0 2 0 0 3 0 0 0 5
01:45 0 0 1 1 1 1 0 1 0 5
02:00 0 0 8 2 1 1 1 2 0 15
02:15 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 2
02:30 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 2
02:45 0 0 4 0 0 1 0 0 1 6
03:00 0 0 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 4
03:15 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 2
03:30 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 2
03:45 0 0 5 1 0 1 1 0 0 8
04:00 0 0 9 0 0 0 1 0 0 10
04:15 0 0 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 4
04:30 0 0 4 0 2 2 0 0 0 8
04:45 0 0 4 1 0 1 2 0 0 8
05:00 1 1 17 3 0 3 1 0 0 26
05:15 0 1 13 0 0 5 0 0 0 19
05:30 1 1 18 1 0 3 1 1 0 26
05:45 1 2 23 0 1 4 2 0 0 33
06:00 1 4 49 1 0 11 2 0 0 68
06:15 2 3 72 0 0 10 0 1 1 89
06:30 0 2 94 1 0 15 0 3 1 116
06:45 0 3 123 1 0 16 1 1 1 146
07:00 1 3 95 2 2 18 7 1 2 131
07:15 4 0 179 0 0 29 9 2 1 224
07:30 4 0 162 1 1 25 7 0 1 201
07:45 7 2 163 2 2 20 2 1 0 199
08:00 8 2 182 0 2 20 6 4 0 224
08:15 2 1 130 3 3 11 3 0 0 153
08:30 7 7 88 1 0 21 3 0 2 129
08:45 5 3 74 0 0 12 4 2 1 101
09:00 4 1 116 1 4 21 1 2 0 150
09:15 1 0 111 0 5 20 6 0 0 143
09:30 1 1 117 1 5 28 4 0 1 158
09:45 2 1 111 0 4 22 5 1 0 146
10:00 1 0 92 0 3 18 7 0 0 121
10:15 3 13 98 1 2 18 4 1 1 141
10:30 1 9 91 0 2 25 1 3 2 134
10:45 4 8 78 2 4 16 6 0 1 119
11:00 1 1 106 1 2 27 3 1 0 142
11:15 0 1 99 1 8 16 1 0 0 126
11:30 1 1 130 0 9 20 2 1 0 164
11:45 0 1 112 0 3 13 1 1 0 131
12:00 1 0 111 3 3 20 0 0 2 140
12:15 2 0 112 4 0 13 3 0 0 134
12:30 1 2 109 3 1 19 3 1 0 139
12:45 1 1 105 1 2 19 2 2 0 133
13:00 3 3 124 0 2 22 3 0 0 157
13:15 0 2 145 5 3 16 3 0 1 175
13:30 5 2 149 3 5 20 4 2 0 190
13:45 0 0 141 3 4 24 6 2 0 180
14:00 5 1 123 5 4 22 5 3 0 168
14:15 1 1 124 1 6 13 5 2 0 153
14:30 0 1 107 4 1 23 5 1 0 142
14:45 0 1 147 5 3 17 2 1 3 179
15:00 3 0 74 4 1 6 2 1 3 94
15:15 4 1 90 3 4 20 3 1 3 129
15:30 5 2 92 1 1 17 3 0 0 121
15:45 2 2 62 1 0 7 2 0 0 76
16:00 3 2 76 2 1 14 2 2 0 102
16:15 11 1 97 0 1 9 0 2 1 122
16:30 3 12 55 2 3 10 0 1 1 87
16:45 0 12 42 2 0 8 0 0 0 64
17:00 8 3 110 1 4 13 0 2 0 141
17:15 7 2 54 2 0 10 0 0 1 76
17:30 6 1 127 2 3 17 0 1 0 157
17:45 6 1 129 2 0 13 0 0 1 152
18:00 5 2 134 3 3 17 0 1 0 165
18:15 1 0 130 3 2 5 0 1 0 142
18:30 3 1 153 3 3 11 1 0 0 175
18:45 1 7 170 2 3 11 0 0 0 194
19:00 5 2 172 5 2 4 0 0 0 190
19:15 3 1 181 6 4 19 0 0 0 214
19:30 2 2 168 4 0 14 0 0 0 190
19:45 5 2 143 0 1 5 2 0 0 158
20:00 4 2 123 3 1 8 1 0 0 142
20:15 4 1 120 4 1 10 1 0 0 141
20:30 3 2 114 1 1 8 1 0 0 130
20:45 5 1 112 4 1 4 0 0 0 127
21:00 2 1 94 3 0 8 1 0 1 110
21:15 0 0 79 0 0 8 0 0 0 87
21:30 2 0 67 0 0 7 1 0 0 77
21:45 0 0 76 8 0 5 0 0 0 89
22:00 1 0 94 5 0 1 0 0 1 102
22:15 1 1 45 1 0 3 0 1 0 52
22:30 0 1 44 1 0 4 0 0 0 50
22:45 0 1 46 1 0 3 0 1 0 52
23:00 0 1 41 1 0 2 0 0 0 45
23:15 0 0 29 0 0 4 0 0 0 33
23:30 0 0 28 2 0 4 1 0 0 35
23:45 0 0 19 0 0 1 1 0 0 21
Total 187 153 7725 161 150 1021 160 62 34 9653
Percentage 1.9% 1.6% 80.0% 1.7% 1.6% 10.6% 1.7% 0.6% 0.4% -

Thursday 16th April 2015



Thursday 16th April 2015

Page 248

Lancashire County Council

Thursday 16th April 2015
Dry, bright and sunny

Date:

Weather:

11241 - A6 Dalton Square, South of Gage Street, Lancaster

Southbound
Outside Lane

Site:

Direction:
Lane:

o ~
e} wnfmfoofoofwfyfem © ofafwf o |mfn ofolelan|ela]=]= ol n|e|a]e| ||| =
<|felo NS Y R N R R N S <| B[] o || 0S| || < YN E R S Y olo|n|olofn|o|w|n]|Sfa]8|~ ~|w|olo|ofw]|m|ofv|a|s|w|o|a|wvfn]|a|s
5 L= Y Y T Y Y Y ) s ) ) ) ) =1 dfnf<( <[ asS = SIS E S =82S == ~lgfS|s =S| == .
s |52 = 1l Kt et ] o K e el ] e S A fed el e R ] KoY Kt et o] ) Y S RS RS R R o] f ket ke b ) bt it S S baf B 4 K R Ko Y RN RN o] ) BSTRET =] ket bt =] af bad B K G I Y KN N ] et v S Rl Kt KT R R ENT R B4
E ofo|o o —|lole|e o alx
2 Io[o|=o]~|=olo|olo|o| === o]o|o|o|o]o|o|o| o= =| o =|~| ||~ S| 2 R]| o] |~ [~ x| ||~ ]|~ ~| o[ ~|~[e| S~ ||~ |~ @ | S| 2] S| | | S~ ||| T~ || || [0 | T | ||| [ [m oo fo| = []in
©
o X
3 lolo|o|o|o|o|o|o|c|o|o|c]|o|o|o]|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o||o|~|c|~|o|o|o|~|o|o|o|n|=|o|~|o|o|o|o|o|m|m|o|a|m|n|a|—|=|=|m|«]|a|=|[n]o|~|o|o|o|o|=|o|o|o|o|~|~]|o|o|c|o|o|o|o|o|o|c|o|o|c|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|F|R
3 S
o ~R
3 |=le|o|o|~|o|o|o|o|o|~|o]|o|o|o]|o|~|o|o|o|o|o|n|—|]|=|—|c]w|a|m|o|<|m|o|an|[m|o|n|[~|n]o||a]<¢|<[~|o]|m|o|a|=|<|=|=|<|e]|=|m|[m]|~]||[m|~]|a|[—|o|=|~|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|~|~|o|o|c|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|c|o|~|o|o|a]S
o e~
X
> ®
3 == =|o|o|~|o|o|e|~|o]o|~|o|o|=|o|o|o|m|o|m|~|=|w|<|o| =] alclala x|z ]l alal | 2| 0| 2| 55| 2 o 2| 5] 0] 0| 2] o] ol al ][] 5w 0| @] |~ o] < | <[ ©| | = o] < | B[ [~ [ ][] <fn| ||| 0| | o] o] ] | | | ] ] | B F
=
3
25 i
wﬂ112111212000000000000000000021684024739461240636518734746863251520212221746410100010000000000000&J
£ o
-
> o
2 & alx
£ E~|<[v|~|e|n]|afo] | nfa]a|o|a]|s|ofo] || —|ofw|o|=|o]|o|=|o|o|m|~|ofw|m|n|a|~[vlo]n[~m|ofa]|m|ofa|=|v]m|a|s|~|wfa]o|sm|n|s|c|nfa]o|nls|~|afv]ofs|a|unfo]m|o[~|o|~s|~[a]s|afs]|m|nfa]nfafo|afa]o|sfo]|SIS
-2 N+
0
- <|alolalalslo|alglo|al ol ol ol =l o|nlnln|ol ||| al vl =] e|a|olo|s|ol o] ¢|nlo| s ol 2| alol 0| el ol x|l ol el al ¢ o] o el |8 alo]als|ala|alols| gl ol el ol =l x| ol ~| o |FE
& =[] o] =[ [ o]~ S =] o] = T o [ 2 B[R] B B3 [R|S] S| B[ 2[R 8| R| S| %) 5| 8] B]B| 3| B B B[] 7| &|R[R|R| 5| R[B[X|B| R B|B|R| B| B|R| 8| B| B[ 2| B|%| 8| B[R] 8| 8[3 (2|2 R|B|G| 2| 8| B[ 2|F|F| 2| &[&|F|}| 2[= 2] S
R
s e ol®
5 S|o|o|o|o|e|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|=|=|o|c|n]|m|o|m|m||<|[n|n|m~n]a|o]|m|o]|m|«||o|m|~|~|o|=|~|o|of=|o]n|n]|o]|m|m|m]|~|o||n|o|o|n|=|<|[m|o]+|m|~]|o|x|o|~|~]|=|=|~|o|o|o|=|o|m|c]|o|=|~|o|o]|o|~|o|S|e
) |-
] ol
B glo|ofo|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|ofo|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|w|o|ofo|~|o|o|o|o|o]|o|o|~||o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|n|w|v|o|o|o||o]|~||~|o|o|~n|ofo|o|ofo|~|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|ofo|o|o|o|o|o|o|of=|o|ofo|Bfm
23 o
&
o |olnlolv|e|n|o|v|alvlalvlalunla|wv|a|wn|alv]|a]n]|aln]|oln]|aluv|alun|olwv|aln|o|v|a|v|a|v|alv|alvwlaln|a|wv|a]wn|alw|a]n]|oln]lolnlolwlalnlolwv|aluvla|v|aluvlalvlalun|alvula|n|a|v]|aln]|alu]|olnloluwlalnlolwv|alnlo|vl=]s
e 1212212222222 D212 2| 2 =2 2 |2 22 2l 2 22 D 2 122 2l 2 2 2 | 2 2 2 2 2 2 =2 2 12 =D 2 = 2 2 2 s 2] 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 D 2 = e 2 2 2] 2212 2 2 2 2 | 8]t
ol S R R I BT B T B B N B e B e e et e B e e e e e B e e e BN TN N N T S e S e e B T =t R e e e e et et s s e et et et B B B e et et e Rt Rt Rt BN N N N B B T R R R R R R R B = et Bt B B B N N RN e e B e el
F |o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|olo|a|o|a|a|o|a|a|o|=|=| | === === == === A == =] == =] = | =] 2| = =] = = =] 2] = =] 2 2 =) 2] 2 A 2SS S] QNSNS S S S S S Sl s S
3
&

SHP Data Collection - 01772 534579



Page 249

LA Lancaster

Count of A, Column Labels
Row Labels Hackney Ci Private Hir Grand Total

0 1 3 4
1 6 10 16
2 6 11 17
3 7 12 19
4 11 20 31
5 7 27 34
6 17 18 35
7 9 20 29
8 15 19 34
9 12 22 34
10 7 11 18
11 5 11 16
12 3 11 14
13 1 7 8
14 1 5 6
15 1 1
16 1 1
17 1 1
20 1 1
Unknown 8 8
Grand Totz 108 219 327
LA (All)

Count of AjColumn Labels
Row Labels Hackney C: Private Hir¢ Grand Total

E6 145 190 335
E5 431 751 1182
E4 250 326 576
E3 47 41 88
E2 4

EO 1 1

Unknown 3 18 21



Page 250

From: Pauline Cookson <

Sent: Saturday, May 8, 2021 5:27:37 PM

To: Curtis, Jennifer <jcurtis@lancaster.gov.uk>

Subject: Re: Consultation - PHO Conditions

This email is from an external email address

Do not click any links or open attachments unless you know the content is safe.
Never disclose your password to anyone.

RESPONSE TO PH COSULTATION

Good Afternoon

| operate an airport transfer business and have long been frustrated that we are required to operate
under Private Hire regulations which are designed specifically on the assumption that all Private Hire
cars are 'around town cabs'. Airport specialists operate in a very different marketplace:-

1) Bookings - ALL our journeys pre-booked, usually months ahead of the the date of travel.

2) Vehicles - ALL our vehicles are necessarily large comfortable estate cars (to accommodate up to
four passengers with luggage on journeys of never less than 60 miles).

3) Door signs - ALL our customers are collected from their homes or their places of work. The large
door signs (or so we were assured when they were introduced) exist so that people trying to hail a
cab in the street can distinguish between a Hackney Carriage & a Private Hire car. The door signs are
therefore redundant on an airport car. A licence plate on the back of the car is sufficient assurance
of legitimacy.

4) Additional signage - ALL our customers are sober (they wouldn't be allowed on their flights
otherwise). Signs which threaten our academic, business & family customers with a £75 fine for
soiling the interior of the car are unnecessary (and even insulting).

| note that the Council proposes to continue to sanction Executive Hire as a second category of
Private Hire (section 5.10) even though the need for such a service must be absolutely minimal in the
Lancaster area. Executive Hire businesses are more usually based in large cities or adjacent to large
industrial complexes such as British Aerospace at Warton, Preston. We do have two universities but
my experience suggests that academics, even senior academics, have little interest in riding behind a
'prestige' car badge or a driver wearing a suit and tie.

| suggest that the second category should be Airport Specialist Hire (restricted to cars employed
exclusively in airport transfers) which must account for at least 20 or 30 cars currently licensed by
the Council.

It is particularly frustrating, when visiting airports , to see other airport specialist cars, licensed by
other local authorities, presented in a much more professional, attractive & appropriate way -- much
more relevant to the role they perform.

Regards,

Peter Cookson
Airport Connexion



Page 251

Sir/Madam,

As | completed the online survey, | had not realised | was at the end, and could not go back.

Please add this content to my online submission

CCTV | have previously taken dash cam footage to a Police station, by appointment. The officer did
not view it, as he had made his decision, based on a conversation he had with my assailant. | also
previously followed the Council's policy on vulnerable minors. 40 minutes after dialling 999; no
officer had been despatched. | obtained an incident number and left when the person on the phone
requested that | enter the premises alone.

Meter on at the start of journey: how long should a driver wait at address/prenises.

Refusal of customers. It is a constant observation that base staff send drivers to known non payers
and aggressive persons. They are not banned.

Many proprietors are single vehicle owners and use their vehicle for social domestic pleasure. If the
top sign is off they are not for hire. There is no mention of this in your consultation.Hackney taxis do
draw unwarranted aggression from motorists/individuals, who complain to council.

Point 6.8 mentions out of area working. What do you intend to do with Olacab, Uber etc. How will
you ensure fit and proper standards of a remote operator. You also mention shareholders having
CRB checks. Why? | was until recently a shareholder of 848848 who had no influence on 848848
Limited. Do you have access to Uber's share register?

Accident form: | raised this previously as it contravenes the terms of insurance in not admitting
liability and making a statement.

Where does the driver obtain the car seats from when taxis are exempt.

Private Hire base operator's staff should have the same checks.

Many insurance companies/agents do not issue paper documents.

Many insurance policies have a condition that vehicles are maintained to manufacturer's intervals of
servicing. No one checks service records. At least one proprietor does his own.

It is a condition that private hire operators have planning consent. | sent a list of operators to
planning. Some had no consent, some addresses DID NOT EXIST. Licensing manager would not give
me a list and refused to follow up as it was "before her time" All existing operators should be a
public document, and a copy of planning consent with proof of address shown.

Trade body: previously a member of licensing staff handed out letters to a few drivers who
happened to be on the rank, not proprietors always. This was to seek a representative. Proprietors
were never advised of the name or contact details to submit any items. Communication appears to
be by a private facebook account.

Rank locations: there have been several consultations and little notice and action taken. There was
an opportunity when monies were spent to improve Lancaster and Morecambe centres. A J Inman
was to coordinate, but did not. Meetings with the then Licensing staff/police resulted in the useless
rank provision, which is not enforced by police or enforcement. Ms. Peck advised she would support
our proposals to remove the rank from Market Street, Morecambe. She did not do it energetically, if
at all. Others are time related, on the wrong side of the road, or were instated for very strange
reasons. They need completely revising as the fees include the provision of ranks, some of which are
not even maintained/used.

The following | do NOT wish to be published:

Taxi fares are liable for INCLUSIVE VAT. Invoices are sent out PLUS VAT. THe driver is zero rated
unless his turnover is above the threshold. Those fares should not be plus VAT.

All vehicles under eight seats are liable for VAT if the operator is above the threshold. All vehicles
above eight seats (mainly buses) are zero rated. Leaving aside that some "airport " operators should
pay VAT, and do not issue VAT receipts, you would have more wheelchair accessible vehicles if
companies could own vehicles and not be liable for VAT.

Council representative bodies could lobby the government to give taxis the same zero rating as bus
tickets, and make purpose built WAVs zero rated. 16.7% of the price is a lot of money when the
meter rate is the same as a 5 year old saloon.



Page 252

Regards William Riley || G

To be attached to my online submission
cc C Hartley



Appendix 6 — Matters for Decision

Matter for Decision Section of | Reason Options Consultation Response
Policy
Authorisation of Officers 3.2 To allow Officers from neighbouring Local To consider authorising None
The DfT advocates the Council Authorities to take action against neighbouring Local Authority
considering authorising drivers/operators etc who may be subject to Licensing Officers.
neighbouring officers for enforcement action in their District.
enforcement matters and visa versa. There is no evidence to
The proposal was to be considered as part of suggest there is a problem in
the ongoing local authority reorganisation the Lancaster District with
considerations. drivers from other Local
Authorities.
Hackney Carriage Allocation Policy 5.2.1 Lancaster City Council currently cap the number | Members may wish to Questionnaire Comment
of Hackney Carriage vehicle licences to 108 and | consider allowing a set e Concern raised over
HCV Policy on limiting/delimiting 5.23.2 undertake an unmet demand survey every 3 number of HC licence accessibility and
numbers years to ascertain any unmet demand. applications for zero emission availability of vehicles
vehicles and/or are capable of carrying a
wheelchair accessible wheelchair by a Clir on
behalf of residents
Emission Standards — Proposed 5.5 On 30™ January 2019 the Council declared a To set the dates as set out as | Paul Cartmell
dates climate emergency and made commitments to | proposed in the policy or Supported proposals
work towards activities being carbon zero by amend as appropriate See Appendix 5
2030. 15t January 2025 Euro 6 or
zero emissions Questionnaire Comment
Prolonged lead time as is a significant change to | 1 January 2030 Zero e Vehicles required way to
current vehicle specifications. emission expensive, put a lot of
owners out of business.
e Where are the vehicles
to be charged
ccrv 5.13 Paragraph 7.9 of DfT standards requires LAs to Members can decide whether | Little response from Licensed

consult whether CCTV would have a positive or
negative impact on the safety of PH/HC services

to mandate CCTV in licensed
vehicle in light of the

trade on proposals

€Ge abed



Appendix 6 — Matters for Decision

consultation William Riley
responses/review of See Appendix 5
complaints. Raises concerns over Police

support in detecting crimes
when previously provided
images to Police.

Livery 5.15 Differential between the two types of vehicle Members can decide whether | No response from Licensed trade
for the general public to introduce a livery/colour on proposals

policy on the LCC licensed
fleet of Hackney Carriage or
Private Hire Vehicles and/or
Hackney Carriage roof-sign.

A prototype HC roof-sign has
been designed/custom made
for LCC HCVs to create
uniformity
Hackney Carriage Fare Review 5.20 Time and resources have not allowed for any No decision required No response from Licensed trade
further development on fares, would suggest it is very
few HC drivers who are unhappy
with the current methodology
used.
Installation of Protective Screens in 5.22 Due to the Covid-19 pandemic and with public Guidance has been issued None
Licensed Vehicles safety at the forefront of Licensing, In May from Central Government
2020 the Council passed guidance on screen in | which LCC broadly meets
licensed vehicles those standards.

No decision required

Appendix A Complete No decision required None
Guidelines on Relevance of
Convictions, Cautions and Conduct

Appendix B Signage to be Included in final policy No decision required None

Gz abed




Appendix 6 — Matters for Decision

Staying Safe: Guide for Passengers
Public Information Charter

Appendix C Complete No decision required None
Annual Report to Licensing
Committee
Appendix D Complete No decision required None
Right to Work Matrix
Appendix E CCTV - If a decision is taken to mandate CCTV AS ABOVE None
Private Hire Drivers Licence in all licensed vehicles, Conditions relating to
Conditions CCTV will be required on PHD licences to ensure

any driver is compliant with requirements to

operate the system etc.
Appendix F Complete No decision required None
Hackney Carriage Bye-laws
Appendix G Complete No decision required None
Code of Conduct — Hackney Carriage
Drivers
Appendix H Complete No decision required None
Hackney Carriage and Private Hire
Drivers Dress Code
Appendix | Points 16/17 Emission Standards as above AS ABOVE None
Private Hire Vehicle Specification 22 Colour Policy as above
Appendix J As Private Hire AS ABOVE None
Hackney Carriage Vehicle
Specification
Appendix K Complete No decision required None
Driver/Proprietor Vehicle Inspections
and Checklist
Appendix L G1 - CCTV requirements AS ABOVE None

GGz abed



Appendix 6 — Matters for Decision

Private Hire Vehicle Licence
Conditions

Appendix M
Hackney Carriage Vehicle Licence
Conditions

G1 - CCTV requirements

AS ABOVE

None

Appendix N
Signage Requirements

To be included in final policy

Legally a licensed vehicle has to display a no
smoking sign, licence plates and the positions
being stipulated in policy ensure a licensed LCC
vehicle can be easily identified.

Similarly Private hire operator door signs

No decision required

Peter Cookson — Private Hire
Operator
See Appendix 5

Questionnaire Comment
e To many sticker and
signage already.
Becoming like cartoon

requiring the pre-booked fares only notification cars.
reduces the need for such signage elsewhere
on the vehicle.
Private hire operators and vehicle proprietors
could apply for an exemption in the
requirements to display such materials
dependant on their operations, this would be
decided by Licensing Committee
Appendix O Complete No decision required William Riley
Hackney Carriage Stands See Appendix 5
Expressed concern over position
and upkeep of HC stands in the
District
Appendix P Complete No decision required None

Private Hire Operator Conditions

9Gg abed



Page 257 Agenda Iltem 6

LICENSING COMMITTEE

BUSINESS AND PLANNING ACT 2020

Extension to Pavement Licence Provisions
26" August 2021

Report of Licensing Enforcement Officer

PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

To seek approval for the extension to existing administration and enforcement provisions
contained within Part 1 of the Business and Planning Act 2020 in respect of Pavement

Licences.

RECOMMENDATIONS

1. Retain the existing fee of £100 that is set for the grant of a pavement licence for
a further 12 months until 30" September 2022.

2. That where a pavement licence is granted it shall normally be granted for a
period up to and including 30 September 2022 or a lesser period (not less than
3 months) as directed by the applicant or upon determination by the Local
Authority

3. That the policy and associated appendices (1-4) attached at Appendix A be
extended for a further year to 30" September 2022.

1.0 Introduction

1.1 On 22 July 2020 The Business and Planning Act 2020 came into force.

1.2 Part 1 of the Act deals with the consumption and sale of food and drink outdoors, and
relates to two particular licensing issues

e The introduction of Pavement licences
e The maodification of premises licences to authorise off sales of alcohol for a limited
period

1.3 Historically the Council has dealt with the Licensing of Street/ Pavement cafes
utilising the provisions contained within the Highways Act 1980. In effect the licensing



14

15

1.6

1.7

Page 258

of such areas is the Council giving its approval for the applicant to use the part of the
highway as indicated by the licensee in his/her application. The Highways Act 1980
street café licences remain in place for 1 year, cost £158 and are subject to a set of
standard licensing conditions. The licensing conditions are generally concerned with

Protecting public safety

Preventing public nuisance

Ensuring access for public utility providers when needed

Promoting the appearance of the area (quality/ type of furniture etc)

The Highways Act 1980 licence makes provision for licences to be revoked where
problems are identified. The provisions of the Highways Act 1980 street café licences
remain in statute and therefore any licences issued under these provisions remain
valid.

The Business and Planning Act 2020 (the “Act”) introduced a “Pavement Licence” for
the licence holder to put removeable furniture on part of the highway adjacent to the
premises to sell / serve food and/or drink and also allows people to consume food
and or drink supplied from or in connection with the premises. In effect this allows the
area to be used as an extended seating area to the premises or to be a stall from
which food/ drink is sold/ served. The licence can be applied to any premises which
sells food and/or drink for consumption on or off the premises and is not restricted to
those premises where alcohol is sold. For example, it can be used by a café to set up
an ice cream stall outside,) or it can be used to facilitate what we traditionally regard
as a street café.

The Business and Planning Act 2020 also introduced provisions for the automatic
modification of premises licences (issued under licensing Act 2003) to authorise the
“off-sale” of alcohol for a limited period. The period currently ends on 30 September
2021. The Act does include measures to exclude certain premises that are currently
specifically excluded from selling “off sales” and also makes it clear that those off
sales are only permitted during the hours that the premises is licensed for on sales.
There are also provisions within the Act regarding proposals to review licences in
respect of off sales that have proved problematic.

The above two provisions were introduced as a temporary measure up to and
including 30 September 2021 only in order to facilitate the operation of business
within the restrictions / guidance in place at the time regarding the COVID- 19
pandemic. The pavement licence provision provides a fast-track application
procedure detailing a 7 days consultation period and a subsequent maximum 7 day
period in which those applications must be determined, failure to do so results in
licences being granted by default.

On 20™ July 2021 amendments to the Business and Planning Act 2020 came into
force. The purpose of the amendment is to extend the current provision for Pavement
Licences from the existing statutory expiry date of 30" September 2021 for a further
12 months until 30" September 2022. This is detailed in the following link: -

Business and Planning Act 2020 (Pavement Licences) (Coronavirus) (Amendment)
Regulations 2021



https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2021/866/made
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2021/866/made

2.0

2.1

Page 259

Background information regarding Pavement Licences

The Act details the following

Applications must be made in writing to the Local Authority

Applications must be accompanied by a fee of not more than £100 as the
local authority may require

Applications must contain specific information; these are not detailed in this
briefing paper but replicate the information currently required by the Council
in respect of Highways Act licence applications

The local authority has to publish the application and publicise the 7-day
consultation period

The applicant must place a notice at the premises advising of the application,
the details of the notice requirements are not provided in this report but
largely replicate the Licensing Act public notice requirements. The notice
must stay in place until the end of the consultation period

The local authority must consult the highways authority and any other
persons it considers appropriate regarding the application.

The local authority must take into account any representations made during
the consultation period

The local authority has 7 days following the close of consultation to determine
the application, failure to do so means that the licence is granted by default
The local authority can grant, or refuse the licence in respect of any or all of
the purposes and or in respect of some or all of the highway area

The licence if granted, cannot be for a period of less than 3 months and can
be up to and including 30 September 2021 (extended to 2022)

The licence will be subject to default mandatory conditions in respect of
provisions of no smoking areas and access for mobility impaired and can be
subject to reasonable conditions imposed by the local authority

Pavement licences do not repeal the provisions of the Highways Act
Licences, as such existing highways licences remain in place and valid

There are a number of provisions detailed in the Act in respect of
enforcement powers, these include the facility to revoke the licence in
respect of public health or safety concerns, anti-social behaviour, public
nuisance or obstruction of the highway.

The Act details that a pavement licence constitutes deemed planning
permission.

3.0 Recommendations

3.1

3.2

In order to further enhance the recovery of the local hospitality industry Members are
requested to consider an amendment to the Council’s existing Pavement Licence
policy to extend the period in which such licences and conditions associated with
them are extended for a further 12 months until a end date of 30" September 2022.

The policy outlining the Councils processes and procedures is to be updated to
reflect the amendments in respect of applications for Pavement licences. Appendix

A.



Page 260

CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT
(including Diversity, Human Rights, Community Safety, Sustainability and Rural
Proofing)

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The current fee for a Highways Act Street café licence is set at £158, this fee has been set
at a level of cost recovery . The Pavement Licence administrative process will largely
replicate that of the Highways Act Street café licence process. the maximum fee that can be
charged by the Council for a Pavement licence is £100.

The administrative work involved in processing the application is similar to that associated
with Highways Act Street Café licences, with the additional administrative burden of a
requirement to determine applications within 7 days of the close of consultation.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS
These are outlined in the report and there are no further comments to add.

SECTION 151 OFFICER’S COMMENTS
N/A

IMONITORING OFFICER COMMENTS
The Monitoring Officer has been consulted and has no further comments to make.

BACKGROUND PAPERS Contact Officer: Miss J Curtis
Telephone: 01524 582732

None E-mail: jcurtis@lancaster.gov.uk
Ref: JC




Page 261

Appendix A

Lancaster City Council

Pavement Licensing Policy

Business and Planning Act 2020

Effective: 31 July 2020
Version 1



Page 262

Contents

Section Title Page
1 Introduction

2 Scope

3 Application and Determination of Pavement Licences
4 Conditions

5 Enforcement

6 Review Procedures

Appendix 1 | Site Notice Template

Appendix 2 | Lancaster City Council Pavement Licence Conditions
Appendix 3 | National Conditions

Appendix 4

Scheme of Delegation




Page 263

1. Introduction

The Covid-19 pandemic has affected businesses across all sectors of the economy causing
many to cease trading for several months while others have had to significantly modify their
operations.

On 25 June 2020 the Government announced an intention to relax planning and licensing
laws to help the hospitality industry recover from the coronavirus lockdown by removing
short term obstacles that could get in their way.

The Business and Planning Act 2020 received Royal assent on 22 July 2020 and provides
a fast track process for premises selling food and drink such as bars, restaurants, cafes and
pubs, to sell and provide seating for customers outdoors through temporary changes to
legislation. The Act introduces a temporary permission, in the form of a “pavement licence”,
to be issued by Lancaster City Council for furniture such as tables and chairs to be placed
on the pavement adjacent to their premises which will enable them to sell food and drink
from that area and to maximise seating capacity whilst adhering to social distancing
guidelines.

The measures included in the Act modify provisions in the Licensing Act 2003 to provide
automatic extensions to the terms of on-sales alcohol licences to allow for off-sales. It is a
temporary measure, with provisions lasting until the end of September 2021.

Currently, tables and chairs permissions are granted as Street café licences issued by
Lancaster City Council, under Part 7A of the Highways Act 1980. The Street café licence
fee is currently £158 for an annual licence and is subject to a statutory 28-day consultation
period. Licence conditions are also attached to the grant of these licences

The new measures in the Business and Planning Act, places a cap on the application fee
for businesses, specifies a 7 day consultation period with licences automatically granted if
not determined by the Council within a further 7 day period

2. Scope

2.1 Definition of pavement licence

A pavement licence is a licence granted by the local authority, or deemed to have been
granted, which allows the licence-holder to sell food and or drink and place removable
furniture over certain highways adjacent to the premises in relation to which the application
was made.

2.2 Highways Act Street Café Licences

A holder of a Street Café licence may choose to apply for a Pavement Licence. A holder of
a Street Café licence can apply free of charge for a Pavement Licence, to cover the same
licensed area as the Street Café Licence, up to and including 30 September 2021. The
application process is as outlined in this policy.

2.3 Eligible Businesses

A business which uses (or proposes to use) premises for the sale of food or drink for
consumption (on or off the premises) can apply for a licence. Businesses that are eligible



Page 264

include: public houses, cafes, bars, restaurants, snack bars, coffee shops, and ice cream
parlours.

A licence permits the business to use furniture placed on the highway to sell or serve food
or drink and/or allow it to be used by people for consumption of food or drink supplied from,
or in connection with the use of the premises.

2.4  Eligible Locations

Licences can only be granted in respect of highways listed in section 115A (1) Highways Act
1980.

Generally, these are footpaths restricted to pedestrians or are roads and places to which
vehicle access is restricted or prohibited. Highways maintained by Network Rail or Crown
land are exempt (so a licence cannot be granted).

2.5 Type of furniture permitted

The furniture which may be used is:

e counters or stalls for selling or serving food or drink;

e tables, counters or shelves on which food or drink can be placed;

e chairs, benches or other forms of seating; and

e umbrellas, barriers, heaters and other articles used in connection with the outdoor
consumption of food or drink.

e Ancillary items such as hand sanitising stations required to ensure that the area is
covid secure

The furniture is required to be removable, and must be capable of being easily moved, and
stored away in a secure safe manner when not in use.

The Council would also expect the type of furniture to be ‘in keeping’ with the local area.
2.6 Planning Permission

Once a licence is granted, or deemed to be granted, the applicant will also benefit from
deemed planning permission to use the land for anything done pursuant to the licence while
the licence is valid.

3. Application and Determination of Pavement Licences
3.1  Submission of the Application

An application for a Pavement Licence must be made to the Council, and the following will

be required to be submitted with the application:

e acompleted Application Form

¢ the required fee of £100, (online payment)

¢ aplan showing the location of the existing premises and the area to which the application
relates (ie pavement licensed area) shown by a red line, so the application site can be
clearly identified

e a plan clearly showing the proposed area covered by the licence in relation to the
highway, if not to scale, with measurements clearly shown. The plan must show the
positions and number of the proposed tables and chairs, together with any other items



Page 265

that they wish to place on the highway. The plan shall include clear measurements of,
for example, pathway width/length, building width and any other fixed item in the
proposed area.

e the proposed days of the week on which, and the times of day between which, it is
proposed to put furniture on the highway,

e photos or brochures showing the proposed type of furniture ;

e Reference of any current street café licence ( Highways Act 1980 ) issued by Lancaster
City Council ;

e evidence that the applicant has met the requirement to give notice of the application (for
example photographs of the notice outside the premises and of the notice itself);

e a copy of a current certificate of insurance that covers the activity for third party and
public liability risks, to a minimum value of £2 million,

3.2 Fees

The Council has determined that the fee for applications will be £100.A pavement licence if
granted will be issued from the date the application is granted until 30 September 2021. The
£100 fee is payable irrespective of the duration of the licence, and is non returnable

33 Consultation

Applications are consulted upon for 7 days, starting with the day on which a valid application
was made to the Council.

The Council will publish details of the application on its website at www.lancaster.qov.uk.

The Council is required by law to consult with the Highways Authority ie Lancashire County
Council. In addition, to ensure that there are not detrimental effects to the application the
Council will consult with:

e Lancaster/ Morecambe Town Centre Management/ Business Improvement Manager,
Carnforth Chamber of Commerce as appropriate

e Lancaster City Council Environmental Health Service (including Noise pollution and

Food and Safety Teams)

Lancaster City Council Planning Department

Lancashire Fire & Rescue Service

Lancashire Police

Lancaster City Council Environmental Services (refuse/street cleaning)

Representations from the above parties or members of the public should be provided to
Lancaster City Council’s licensing team by emailing Licensing@Lancaster.gov.uk. The
email should be headed Pavement licence representation followed by the name of the
premises.

The Council will take into account representations received during the public consultation
period and consider these when determining the application. The application will be
determined in accordance with the relevant sections of the Council’s scheme of delegation
outlined at Appendix 4

3.4 Site Notice


http://www.lancaster.gov.uk/
mailto:Licensing@Lancaster.gov.uk

Page 266

An applicant for a pavement licence must on the day the application is made, fix a notice of
the application to the premises so that the notice is readily visible to, and can be read easily
by, members of the public who are not on the premises. The notice must be constructed
and secured so that it remains in place until the end of the public consultation period.

Evidence of the site notice requirement must be supplied to the Council.

The Site Notice must: contain the information as detailed in Appendix 1 and must be a
minimum size of A4 and use Black type in a minimum font size 16

35 Site Assessment

The following matters will be used by the Council and consultees in considering the

suitability of the proposed application:

e public health and safety — for example, ensuring that uses conform with latest guidance
on social distancing and any reasonable crowd management measures needed as a
result of a licence being granted and businesses reopening;

e public amenity — will the proposed use create nuisance to neighbouring occupiers by
generating anti-social behaviour and litter; and

e accessibility — taking a proportionate approach to considering the nature of the site in
relation to which the application for a licence is made, its surroundings and its users,
taking account of:

o any other temporary measures in place that may be relevant to the proposal, for
example, the reallocation of road space. This could include pedestrianised streets
and any subsequent reallocation of this space to vehicles;

o Wwhether there are other permanent street furniture or structures in place on the
footway that already reduce access;

o the impact on any neighbouring premises

o the recommended minimum footway widths and distances required for access by
mobility impaired and visually impaired people

o other users of the space, for example if there are high levels of pedestrian or cycle
movements.

Applicants are strongly encouraged to talk to neighbouring businesses and occupiers prior
to applying for a pavement licence, and so take any issues around noise, and nuisance into
consideration as part of the proposal.

3.6 Determination

Once the application is submitted the Council has 14 days from the day after the application
is made (excluding public holidays) to consult on and determine the application. This
consists of 7 days for public consultation, and then 7 days to consider and determine the
application after the consultation.

If the Council determines the application before the end of the determination period the local

authority can:

e grant the licence in respect of any or all of the purposes specified in the application and
impose conditions,

e grant the licence for some or all of the part of the highway specified in the application,
and impose conditions, or

o refuse the application.



Page 267

Where a valid application has been made and no objections received the application will be
granted by licensing officers

Where a valid application has been made and relevant representations are received the
application will be determined by The Licensing Sub Committee

If the Council does not determine the application within the 14 day period, the application
will be deemed to have been granted.

A template for the notice required is provided at Appendix 1

3.7 Approval of Applications

On approving the application, the Council will issue a Pavement Licence to which conditions
will be attached. The licence will also contain specific terms such as days and hours of
operation and appearance and location of the furniture corresponding to the application.
The Council generally will only permit Pavement Licences between 09:00 and 22:00 hours
Applications outside these hours will be assessed in terms of the criteria detailed above.
The Council however retains the right to specify permitted hours of trading that are less than
those specified above in appropriate circumstances.

3.8 Licence Duration

The provisions regarding pavement Licences will remain in place until 30 September 2021.
As such, the Council will normally grant applications to 30 September 2021.

A licence granted or deemed to be granted will not be valid beyond 30 September 2021.

3.9 Refusal of Applications

If the site is deemed unsuitable for a Pavement Licence, or if relevant representations are
made which cannot be mitigated by conditions then the application may be refused.

There is no statutory right of appeal detailed in the Act .

4. Conditions

The Council’'s standard conditions are set out at Appendix 2. In some cases, extra
measures may be required. This will be considered when determining any application which
has been subject to representations, on a case by case basis.

However, this is not the case for the national licence conditions which are applied to all
Pavement licences These are detailed at Appendix 3.

5. Enforcement

The Council aims to work closely with other enforcement authorities to enforce the
provisions of all appropriate legislation. The case remains that an obstruction of the



Page 268

Highway is an offence under The Highways Act 1980 and will be dealt with by the Highways
Authority or the Police.

Obtaining a licence does not confer the holder immunity in regard to other legislation that
may apply, e.g. Public Liability, Health & Safety at Work, Food Hygiene and Safety, Alcohol
and Entertainment Licensing, Social distancing controls, Applicants must ensure all such
permissions, etc. are in place prior to applying.

If a condition imposed on a licence either by the Council or via a National Condition is
breached the Council will be able to issue a notice requiring the breach to be remedied and
the Council can take action to cover any costs.

The Council may revoke a licence in the following circumstances:
1. For breach of condition, (whether or not a remediation notice has been issued) or
2. Where:

e There are risks to public health or safety — for example by encouraging users to
breach government guidance on social distancing by placing tables and chairs too
close together;

e the highway is being obstructed (other than by anything permitted by the licence);

e there is anti-social behaviour, statutory nuisance or public nuisance — for example,
the use is increasing the amount of noise generated late at night and litter is not being
cleaned up;

e it comes to light that the applicant provided false or misleading statements in their
application — for example they are operating a stall selling hot food and had applied
for tables and chairs on which drinks could be consumed; or

e the applicant did not comply with the requirement to affix the notice to notify the public
for the relevant period.

3. The Council may also revoke the licence where all or any part of the area of the relevant
highway to which the licence relates has become unsuitable for any purpose for which
the licence was granted or deemed to be granted. For example, the licensed area (or
road adjacent) is no longer to be pedestrianised. The Council will give reasons where
these powers are used.

6. Review Procedures

This Policy covers the Temporary Permission for Pavement Licences under the Business
and Planning Act which are scheduled to expire on 30 September 2021.

This Policy will be reviewed from time to time should changes occur in relevant legislation,
the nature of Pavement Licence’s generally, relevant social distancing measures or as a
result of local considerations within the Lancaster City Council area



Page 269

Appendix 1

BUSINESS AND PLANNING ACT 2020
Notice of Application submitted to
LANCASTER CITY COUNCIL
In respect of a Pavement Licence for

NAME OF PREMISES]
[FULL ADDRESS OF PREMISES]

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that in accordance with Business and
Planning Act 2020

(applicant name)

Has made an application to Lancaster City Council on (Date) for a
Pavement Licence

The application is in respect of
(Description of the highway area to be utilised e.g area extending X
meters from the frontage of the premises address)

And is seeking permission to utilise a Pavement Licence to facilitate
(description of the activities to be carried on)

The proposed hours of operation are as follows
(please insert days and timings)

A copy of the proposal and accompanying plan are available for
inspection on the Councils website at XXXXXXXXX

Any person wishing to make representations to the Council regarding
this application may do so by emailing Licensing@lancaster.gov.uk.
The email should be headed Pavement licence representation (insert
premises name). Alternatively, in writing to the Licensing Manager,
Morecambe Town Hall, Marine Road, Morecambe LA4 5AF to be
received no later than 7 days from the date of this notice.

Signed ...l Name inPrint ........................
Dated this th day of 2020

(The date of the notice must be stated as the day after the application was made )


mailto:Licensing@lancaster.gov.uk

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

6.0

7.0

8.0

9.0

10.0

Page 270

Appendix 2

Pavement Licences

Standard licence conditions

The Licence will have effect until 30 September 2021 unless surrendered or revoked.

The issue of a License does not give, or imply any permission to sell intoxicating
liquor in the street.

The Licence shall be displayed in the window of the premises to which it relates.

The use of the Licensed Area shall cease before 22.00 hours each day and shall not
commence prior to 09.00.

The Licensed Area shall be vacated immediately if requested by the Council,
Lancashire County Council as Highway Authority, Lancashire Constabulary or other
emergency service, statutory undertaker etc. without any liability for compensation,
refund of application fee, or damage arising.

The Council reserve the right to request the clearing of the licensed area if required
for special one-off events for public safety

The Licence shall be rendered invalid, should the Licensee cease to own the
premises or cease employment.

The Licensee shall indemnify the Council and shall produce to the Council’s Licensing
Manager for inspection a policy of insurance indemnifying himself and the Council
against any injury or damage to any person or property and against any claim liability
expense or damage arising by reason or in consequence of the permission granted.
The policy shall provide cover of not less than £2,000,000 in respect of any one
accident or series of accidents arising from one incident unlimited during the period
of the insurance.

Upon expiry or revocation of the permission the Licensee shall remove any structures
from the highway and reinstate the highway to its former state and condition and in
default thereof, the Council will be empowered to carry out such work of reinstatement
and recover the expense in so doing from the Licensee.

For streets with footways and carriageways, the maximum width of any licensed area
shall not exceed one third of the usable width of the footpath. A minimum
unobstructed footpath width of 1.8 metres must be provided for safe and convenient
pedestrian movement. This distance being, measured from the edge of the licensed
area to any significant amount of street furniture (such as lamp posts, bollards,
parking meters etc). Where there is a heavy pedestrian flow additional footpath space
may be required.



11.0

12.0

13.0

14.0

15.0

16.0

17.0

18.0

19.0

20.0

21.0

22.0

23.0

24.0

Page 271

For pedestrianised streets a minimum width of 1.8 meters or two thirds of the total
width of the public highway, whichever is the greater, must remain free and
unobstructed to facilitate pedestrian movement. This figure may be increased where
there is a heavy pedestrian flow. The unobstructed route shall fall equally either side
of the centre line of the highway to ensure the space available for tables and chairs
is shared equally between premises on each side of the street.

A clear direct pathway of at least 1.2 metres wide shall be maintained to allow entry
and exit from building premises.

Only the Licensed Area shall be used for trading.

Where tables and chairs are proposed directly outside a shop front, a well designed
and constructed physical barrier or roped area of approximately 0.8 metres in height
is required to designate the area and to guide persons with sight disability around the
use. Such barriers must not be permanently fixed to the ground and must be of a
style, design and type to be agreed by the Council

Only furniture associated with the operation of the pavement licence shall be placed
within the Licensed Area. .

Tables and chairs shall be durable and suitable for outside use. No damaged furniture
should be used.

An area of 1 metre around the Licensed Area must be regularly cleansed and floor
debris and other' waste immediately removed to the satisfaction of the Council’s Head
of Environmental Services.

Tables, chairs and umbrellas shall not be positioned so as to obstruct sight lines for
drivers of vehicles at junctions.

No canopy or umbrella shall be lower than two metres in height and shall be
adequately secured.

All street cafe furniture, including barriers shall be removed and safely securely and
stored at the end of trading each day, or at the end of the approved trading hours as
defined by the Licence, whichever is the earliest.

Suitable safe storage for street café furniture shall be identified by the applicant at
the time of application for a license.

There must be adequate provision made for the collection and containment of litter
and, the Licensee must provide suitable litter bins.

The Licensee will ensure that the designated area is maintained in a clean and tidy
condition. The Licensee shall also take appropriate precautions to prevent the
immediate highway from becoming littered as a result of trading activities.

The Licensee shall at all times when the pavement cafe is in operation make available
for customers toilets and hand washing facilities, to wheelchair accessible standards
where it is practicable and reasonable to do so.



25.0

26.0

27.0

28.0

29.0

30.0

Page 272

The Licensee will be responsible for the conduct of customers. They must not be a
nuisance or annoy users of the highway or other persons.

No speakers or playing of music shall be permitted.

No electrical cables shall be run along the ground in such a way that they create a
trip hazard or are susceptible to mechanical damage.

No tables and chairs (street furniture) to be placed so as to cause an obstruction or
nuisance to any Charter Market stall holder.

N.B. This may mean that a Pavement Licence cannot be used whilst the market is
taking place.

Where alcohol is permitted to be served or consumed in the licensed area glass
receptacles including bottles cannot be used. Polycarbonate or similar material
receptacles should be used.

All patrons consuming intoxicating liguor must be seated at a table within the licensed
area, there will be no vertical drinking



Page 273

Appendix 3
National Licence Conditions

Smoke-free seating condition

The licence holder must make reasonable provision for seating where smoking is not
permitted.

No obstruction condition

The licence-holder must ensure that anything done in pursuant to the pavement licence, or
any activity of other persons which is enabled by the pavement licence, must not have an
effect on the following:

(a) preventing traffic, other than vehicular traffic, from:

(i) entering the relevant highway at a place where such traffic could otherwise enter it
(ignoring any pedestrian planning order or traffic order made in relation to the highway),

(ii) passing along the relevant highway, or

(li)having normal access to premises adjoining the relevant
highway,

(b) preventing any use of vehicles which is permitted by a pedestrian planning order or which
is not prohibited by a traffic order,

(c) preventing statutory undertakers having access to any apparatus of theirs under, in, on
or over the highway, or

(d) preventing the operator of an electronic communications code network having access to
any electronic communications apparatus kept installed for the purposes of that network
under, in, on or over the highway.



Appendix 4

Function

Decision Delegated to

Determination of Pavement
Licence

Where, during the public consultation
period, no representations have been
received.

Licensing Manager

(ref part 2 Section 7)

Where, during the public consultation
period, representations have been
received.

Licensing Sub Committee

(ref part 2 Section 5)

Ref — Councils Constitution

v/ abed



	Agenda
	5 Draft Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy - Consultation Responses
	Appendix A
	Complete Policy and Appendices - Appendix 2
	Consulatation Questionaire - Appendix 3
	Consultation Responses - Appendix 4
	Paul Cartmell Representation - Appendix 5
	Copy of 11240 - A6 Bridge Lane Lancaster PC1pdf
	Copy of 11241 - A6 Dalton Square Lancaster PC2pdf
	Age profile and Euro class composition of taxi fleet -2018 PC3
	Peter Cookson Representation - Appendix 5_redacted
	William Riley Representation - Appendix 5_redacted
	Items for Decision - Appendix 6

	6 Extension to Pavement Licence Provisions
	Appendix A - Pavement Licence Policy (Aug 2020)


